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To: All Members of the Audit & Corporate Governance Scrutiny Committee
Please attend a meeting of the Audit & Corporate Governance Scrutiny Committee to be
held on Wednesday, 22 September 2021 at 3.00 pm in the Council Chamber, District
Council Offices, 2013 Mill Lane, Wingerworth, Chesterfield, S42 6NG.
Yours sincerely

Joint Head of Corporate Governance and Monitoring Officer

Conservative Group

Labour Group

Liberal Democrat Group

Cllr W Armitage
Cllr S Clough
Cllr M Roe
Cllr K Tait
Cllr M E Thacker

Cllr N Barker
Cllr P R Kerry
Cllr G Morley

Cllr R Shipman

AGENDA
1

Apologies for Absence

2

Declarations of Interest
Members are requested to declare the existence and nature of any disclosable
pecuniary interest and/or other interest, not already on their register of interests,
in any item on the agenda and withdraw from the meeting at the appropriate time.

3

Minutes of Last Meeting (Pages 4 - 8)
To approve as a correct record and the Chair to sign the Minutes of the Audit and
Corporate Governance Scrutiny Committee held on 28 July 2021.
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4

Report of the External Auditors - Mazars

a.

Audit Completion Report 2020/21 (Pages 9 - 47)

5

Reports of the Internal Audit Consortium Manager

a.

Internal Audit Consortium Annual Report (Pages 48 - 59)

b.

External Review of Internal Audit (Pages 60 - 90)

c.

Monitoring the Implementation of Internal Audit Recommendations (Pages 91 111)

d.

Summary of Internal Audit Reports (Pages 112 - 119)

e.

Review of Internal Audit Charter (Pages 120 - 131)

6

Report of the Director of Operations and Head of Paid Service

a.

Risk Management (Pages 132 - 153)

7

Report of the Head of Finance and Resources and Section 151 Officer

a.

Annual Statement of Accounts (Pages 154 - 326)

b.

Assessment of Going Concern 2020/21 (Pages 327 - 333)

8

Reports of the Head of Corporate Governance and Monitoring Officer

a.

Annual Governance Statement (Pages 334 - 386)

b.

Corporate Work Programme 2021-2022 (Pages 387 - 392)

9

Forward Plan of Executive Decisions
To consider the Forward Plan of Executive Decisions. The most up-to-date
Forward Plan of Executive Decisions can be accessed via the following link:
https://democracy.nederbyshire.gov.uk/mgListPlans.aspx?RPId=1137&RD=0&bcr=1

10

To consider any other items which the Chair is of the opinion should be
considered as a matter of urgency.

11

Date of Next Meeting
The next meeting of the Audit and Corporate Governance Scrutiny Committtee is
scheduled to take place on 3 November 2021.
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Agenda Item 3
AUDIT & CORPORATE GOVERNANCE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
MINUTES OF MEETING HELD ON WEDNESDAY, 28 JULY 2021
Present:
Councillor Martin E Thacker MBE JP (Chair) (in the Chair)
Councillor Michael Roe (Vice-Chair)
Councillor William Armitage
Councillor Pat Kerry
Councillor Kevin Tait

Councillor Stephen Clough
Councillor Gerry Morley

Also Present:
M Broughton
J Dethick
A Bashir
P Davis
D Stanton

Joint Head of Transformation and Organisation
Head of Finance and Resources, Section 151 Officer
Improvement Officer
Senior Auditor - Internal Audit
Governance Officer

AUD
16/2
1-22

Apologies for Absence

AUD
17/2
1-22

Declarations of Interest

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors N Barker and R Shipman.

Members were requested to declare the existence and nature of any disclosable
pecuniary interest and/or other interest, not already on their register of interest, in
any item on the agenda and withdraw from the meeting at the appropriate time.
No declarations were made at this meeting.

AUD
18/2
1-22

Minutes of Last Meeting

AUD
19/2
1-22

Change in Order of Agenda Items

AUD
20/2
1-22

Performance Management - Quarter 1

RESOLVED – That the Minutes of the meeting of the Audit and Corporate
Governance Scrutiny Committee held on 28 April 2021 be approved as a correct
record and signed by the Chair.

The Chair, in agreement with the other Members of the Committee, changed the
order of the agenda items as set out within these Minutes.

The Committee welcomed the Improvement Officer to the meeting to report
the Quarter 1 outturns for the Council Plan.
Out of the 81 targets: 50 (61%) were on track; 10 (13%) had been affected by
Covid-19; 2 (3%) had been achieved; 3 (4%) were overdue; 1 (1%) had not
been started; and 15 (19%) had been achieved previously.
1
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The Committee commented that some of the targets had been reported in
previous reports, and were concerned about the number of targets which had
been affected by Covid-19. Members agreed that some targets seemed
irrelevant to the Pandemic, such as target SER12 in respect of car parking,
and stated they would like to see a reduction in Covid-19 affected targets as
we moved to a post pandemic world.
RESOLVED – That quarterly outturns against the Council Plan 2019-2023
targets be noted.
AUD
21/2
1-22

Internal Audit Consortium Summary of Progress on the 2020/21 Internal
Audit Plan
The Senior Auditor presented a report which updated Members on the
progress made by the Internal Audit Consortium in respect of the 2020/21
Internal Audit Plan.
The Committee discussed report reference number N018 in respect of
Network Security and Policies and the reasonable assurance level given.
Members were informed that there had been a National Cyber Security Audit
following cyber-attacks on other local authorities, and although nothing of
concern was raised, there were a number of recommendations that needed to
be implemented to improve security further. The Committee noted that the
Council had been accredited with a Public Services Network (PSN)
Compliance Certificate.
The Joint Head of Transformation and Organisation commented that a report
was due to be published in regards to the security issues at Redcar and
Cleveland Borough Council. The Officer would bring the report and a
supplementary document which outlined lessons learnt from the incident to
better prepare us in the future. It was agreed that this would be added to the
Committee’s Work Programme.
RESOLVED – That the report be noted.

AUD
22/2
1-22

Risk Management
The Committee received a report which updated Members of the current
position regarding Risk Management arrangements and the Strategic Risk
Register as at July 2021.
Members discussed risk reference STR14 (cyber security) which had recently
been added to the Strategic Risk Register, and the steps the Authority was
taking to ensure it was secure from cyber criminals. The Committee enquired
about training given to staff, and were informed that employees were given
training on data protection and security during their induction.
The Committee raised concerns that area of risk reference STR10 in respect
of safeguarding did not cover its wide ranging and complex nature. It was
stated, for example, that issues such as radicalisation were not mentioned.
Members agreed that more needed to be done to manage the risk, and as
2
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such requested a more comprehensive assessment be brought back to the
Committee later in the Municipal Year and added to the Work Programme.
RESOLVED – That the Committee notes the report and the Strategic Risk
Register as at July 2021.
AUD
23/2
1-22

Finance Management Code
The Head of Finance and Resources and Section 151 Officer presented a
report which informed the Committee of the requirements of the CIPFA
Financial Management Code.
Members had a wide ranging discussion on the recommendations raised
which were being implemented during 2021/22. The Committee requested
that regular updates be provided during the course of the Municipal Year in
respect of recommendation 2 (benchmarking).
The Committee enquired about benchmarking arrangements, and the most
appropriate way of drawing comparisons with similar local authorities. Seve ral
formats involving seven key areas were discussed which included graphical
demonstrations.
RESOLVED – That the Committee note the publication of the Financial
Management Code.

AUD
24/2
1-22

Financial Outturn 2020-21
Members received a report which informed the Committee of the contents of
the Financial Outturn 2021/22 which would be presented to Cabinet at its
meeting on 29 July 2021.
The Committee discussed table 6 of the report, in particular, efficiencies
identified and the budget shortfall. Members expressed concern in regards to
the projected budget shortfall, and agreed that they would like to see an
action plan which outlined how the Council intended to meet the shortfall. The
Head of Finance and Resources and Section 151 Officer agreed to bring an
action plan to the Committee’s December meeting.
RESOLVED – That the Committee note the report and make any comments
that they believe to be appropriate with regards to the attached report as
presented to Cabinet on 29 July 2021.

AUD
25/2
1-22

Corporate Debt Q1 2021-2022
The Committee considered a report which provided a summary of the
corporate debt position as at 30 June 2021.
The Committee noted the debt owed to the Council, and heard that some debt
had not been written off due to changes to housing benefit and universal
credit by the Department for Work and Pensions.
Members enquired about the number of cases of overpaid housing benefit.
3
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The Head of Finance and Resources and Section 151 Officer agreed to bring
a report to the Committee at a future meeting which outlined overpaid housing
benefit.
RESOLVED – That the Committee note the report concerning the Council’s
corporate debt position as at 30 June 2021.
AUD
26/2
1-22

Corporate Work Programme 2021-2022
The Chair requested that additional items be placed on the Committee’s Work
Programme as discussed in the meeting. The additional items included
reports on the Council’s IT security, safeguarding, benchmarking, projected
budget shortfall, and overpaid housing benefit.
RESOLVED – That the report be noted

AUD
27/2
1-22

Forward Plan of Executive Decisions

AUD
28/2
1-22

Matters of Urgency

AUD
29/2
1-22

Date of Next Meeting

AUD
30/2
1-22

Audit Progress Report - Mazars

RESOLVED – That the Forward Plan of Executive Decisions be noted.

No urgent items were discussed at the meeting.

The next meeting of the Audit and Corporate Governance Scrutiny Committee will
be held on 22 September 2021.

The Committee considered a report from Mazars which provided an update on
their responsibilities as the Council’s external auditors.
RESOLVED – That the report be noted.

AUD
31/2
1-22

Exclusion of Public

AUD
32/2
1-22

Sharley Park Leisure Centre

RESOLVED - That the public be excluded from the meeting during the discussion
of the following item of business to avoid the disclosure to them of exempt
information as defined in Paragraph 3, Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Local
Government Act 1972, (as amended by the Local Government (Access to
Information) (Variation) Order 2006).

The Joint Head of Transformation and Organisation was present at the
meeting to update the Committee on the proposed redevelopment of Sharley
Park Leisure Centre.
RESOLVED – That the Committee note the update on Sharley Park
redevelopment.
4
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Agenda Item 4a
North East Derbyshire District Council
Audit and Corporate Governance Scrutiny Committee
22 September 2021
North East Derbyshire District Council – Audit Completion Report
Report of the External Auditor
Classification:

This report is public

Report By:

Mike Norman, Audit Manager, Mazars

Contact Officer:

as above

_____________________________________________________________________
PURPOSE/SUMMARY
 To provide the Audit and Corporate Governance Scrutiny Committee with a copy
of the audit completion report provided by our external auditors Mazars in respect
of the 2020/21 financial year.
 To secure the approval of the Audit and Corporate Governance Scrutiny
Committee to the Management Representation Letter to be provided by the
Council to Mazars.

_____________________________________________________________________
RECOMMENDATIONS
1. That the Audit and Corporate Governance Scrutiny Committee gives its
consideration to the attached report from the Councils external auditors, Mazars.
2. That the Audit and Corporate Governance Scrutiny Committee approve the Letter
of Representation contained within the Audit Completion Report (Appendix A)
and authorise the Chief Financial Officer to sign the letter on behalf of the
Council.
Approved by the Portfolio Holder – Yes
_____________________________________________________________________
IMPLICATIONS
Finance and Risk

Yes

No 

There are no additional financial implications arising from this report.
On Behalf of the Section 151 Officer
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Yes 

Legal including Data Protection

No

The process has been undertaken in accordance with the requirements of the Accounts
and Audit Regulations. It should be noted that following a Government consultation
exercise, this year the Council is required to complete and approve the audited
Statement of Accounts by the 30 September 2021.
On Behalf of the Solicitor to the Council
Staffing

Yes

No 

There are no staffing issues arising directly from this report.
On Behalf of the Head of Paid Service
_____________________________________________________________________
DECISION INFORMATION
Is the decision a Key Decision?
N/A
A Key Decision is an executive decision
which has a significant impact on two or
more District wards or which results in
income or expenditure to the Council above
the following thresholds:
BDC:
Revenue - £75,000 
Capital - £150,000 
NEDDC: Revenue - £100,000 
Capital - £250,000 
 Please indicate which threshold applies
Is the decision subject to Call-In?
(Only Key Decisions are subject to Call-In)

N/A

Has the relevant Portfolio Holder been Yes
informed
District Wards Affected
All
Links to Corporate Plan priorities or All
Policy Framework

_____________________________________________________________________
REPORT DETAILS
1

Audit Completion Report

1.1

The Audit Completion Report attached as Appendix 1 summarises the findings
of Mazars in respect of their 2020/21 audit.

1.2

The Committee are requested to note and consider the Management
Representation Letter contained within the Audit Completion Report (appendix
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2

A). The Chief Financial Officer will be required to sign the management
representation letter to Mazars on behalf of the Council.
Reasons for Recommendation

2.1

This report is presented to the Audit and Corporate Governance Scrutiny
Committee as part of the process of agreeing the Council’s Statement of
Accounts in respect of the 2020/21 financial year

4

Alternative Options and Reasons for Rejection

4.1
There are no alternative options for consideration.
_____________________________________________________________________
DOCUMENT INFORMATION
Appendix No

Title

1

Audit Completion Report by Mazars

Background Papers (These are unpublished works which have been relied
on to a material extent when preparing the report. They must be listed in the
section below. If the report is going to Cabinet (NEDDC) or Executive (BDC)
you must provide copies of the background papers)
Report Author

Contact Number

Mike Norman, Audit Manager, Mazars
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Audit Completion Report
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Contents

01

Executive summary

02

Status of the audit

03

Audit approach

04

Significant findings

05

Internal control recommendations

06

Summary of misstatements

07

Value for Money
Appendix A: Draft management representation letter
Appendix B: Draft audit report
Appendix C: Independence
Appendix D: Other communications
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Our reports are prepared in the context of the ‘Statement of Responsibilities of auditors and audited bodies’ and the ‘Appointing Person Terms of Appointment’ issued by Public Sector Audit Appointments Limited.
Reports and letters prepared by appointed auditors and addressed to the Council are prepared for the sole use of the Council and we take no responsibility to any member or officer in their individual capacity or to any third party.
Mazars LLP is the UK firm of Mazars, an international advisory and accountancy group. Mazars LLP is registered by the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales.

2

Audit and Corporate Governance Scrutiny Committee
North East Derbyshire District Council
2013 Mill Lane
Wingerworth
Chesterfield
Derbyshire
S42 6NG

Mazars LLP
2 Chamberlain Square
Birmingham
B3 3AX

9 September 2021
Dear Committee Members

Audit Completion Report – Year ended 31 March 2021
We are pleased to present our Audit Completion Report for the year ended 31 March 2021. The purpose of this document is to summarise our audit conclusions.
The scope of our work, including identified significant audit risks and other areas of management judgement, was outlined in our Audit Strategy Memorandum which we presented earlier in the year. We have reviewed our Audit
Strategy Memorandum and concluded that the original significant audit risks and other areas of management judgement remain appropriate.
We would like to express our thanks for the assistance of your team during our audit.
If you would like to discuss any matters in more detail then please do not hesitate to contact me at mark.Surridge@mazars.co.uk
Yours faithfully

Mark Surridge, Director
Mazars LLP
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Mazars LLP – 5th Floor, 3 Wellington Place, Leeds, LS1 4AP
www.mazars.co.uk
Mazars LLP is the UK firm of Mazars, an integrated international advisory and accountancy organisation. Mazars LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales with registered number OC308299 and with its registered office at Tower Bridge House, St Katharine’s Way,
London E1W 1DD.
We are registered to carry on audit work in the UK by the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales. Details about our audit registration can be viewed at www.auditregister.org.uk under reference number C001139861. VAT number: 839 8356 73

Section 01:
Executive summary
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1. Executive summary
Principal conclusions and significant findings
The detailed scope of our work as your appointed auditor for 2020/21 is set out in the National Audit Office’s
(NAO) Code of Audit Practice. Our responsibilities and powers are derived from the Local Audit and
Accountability Act 2014 and, as outlined in our Audit Strategy Memorandum, our audit has been conducted in
accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) and means we focus on audit risks that we have
assessed as resulting in a higher risk of material misstatement.

Audit opinion

Subject to the satisfactory
conclusion
ofan
theunqualified
remaining opinion
audit work,
we financial
have thestatements.
following conclusions:
We anticipate
issuing
on the
Our proposed audit
opinion is included in the draft auditor’s report in Appendix B.

In section 4 of this report we have set out our conclusions and significant findings from our audit. This section
includes our conclusions on the significant audit risks and areas of management judgement in our Audit
Strategy Memorandum, which include:
•

Management override of controls;

•

Net defined benefit pension liability

•

Valuation of property, plant, equipment and investment properties

•

Covid-19 grants recognition

Value for Money

Whilst we are yet to complete our work in respect of the Council's arrangements to secure
economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources, we anticipate having no
significant weaknesses in arrangements to report. Further detail on our Value for Money
work is provided in section 7 of this report.

Whole of Government Accounts (WGA)

We have not yet received group instructions from the National Audit Office in respect of our
work on the Council’s WGA submission. We are unable to commence our work in this area
until such instructions have been received.

Section 5 sets out our findings in relation to internal controls and section 6 sets out any audit misstatements.
Section 7 outlines our work on the Council’s arrangements to achieve economy, efficiency and effectiveness in
its use of resources.

Wider powers

Status and audit opinion

The 2014 Act requires us to give an elector, or any representative of the elector, the
opportunity to question us about the accounting records of the Council and to consider any
objection made to the accounts. No such correspondence from electors has been received.

We have substantially completed our audit in respect of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2021. At the time of writing this report there are a small number of areas where work is still in progress and
these are summarised at Section 2. We will provide an update to you in relation to any significant matters
identified at Section 2 as outstanding through our normal follow up letter.
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Section 02:
Status of the audit
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2. Status of the audit
Our work is substantially complete and there are currently no matters of which we are aware that would require modification of our audit opinion, subject to the outstanding matters including those detailed below.

Audit area

Status

Pensions



Part of our assurance over the net pensions liability is derived from specified procedures
commissioned from the external auditors of the Derbyshire Pension Fund. We are yet to
receive their final report for our consideration and completion of the testing required.

Land, buildings and Investment
Property valuations



We are awaiting residual evidence from management to support valuation inputs and
judgements by the Council’s valuation experts on our samples selected for testing.

Income (including grants),
expenditure, debtors and
creditors sample testing



We are clearing the small number of remaining queries relating to our transaction testing.

Whole of Government
Accounts (WGA)



NAO Group Instructions for local authority audits are not yet available and WGA returns and
audit certificates cannot be issued at the present time. We provide more information on this
matter at page 14.



Our audit work is undergoing final stages of review by the Engagement Lead and further
quality and compliance checks. In addition, there are residual procedures to complete,
including updating post balance sheet event considerations to the point of issuing the opinion,
agreeing the final changes to the financial statements and obtaining final management
representations.

Audit Quality Control and
Completion Procedures

Description of the outstanding matters

We will provide the Audit and Corporate Governance Scrutiny Committee with an update in relation to these outstanding matters in a follow-up letter, prior to signing the
auditor’s report.
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Status of audit

Audit approach
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Internal control
recommendations

Summary of
misstatements

Likely to result in material adjustment or
significant change to disclosures within
the financial statements.

Potential to result in material adjustment
or significant change to disclosures
within the financial statements.

Not considered likely to result in material
adjustment or change to disclosures within
the financial statements.

Value for Money

Appendices
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3. Audit approach
Changes to our audit approach

Service organisations

We provided details of our intended audit approach in our Audit Strategy Memorandum in April 2021. We have
not made any changes to our audit approach since we presented our Audit Strategy Memorandum.

International Auditing Standards (UK) define service organisations as third party organisations that provide
services to the Council that are part of its information systems relevant to financial reporting. We are required
to obtain an understanding of the services provided by service organisations as well as evaluating the design
and implementation of controls over those services. In our Audit strategy Memorandum we reported that we
had not identified any service organisations which were relevant to the Council. This is still the case and there
are no changes to the planned approach or matters arising to report.

Materiality
Our provisional materiality at the planning stage of the audit was set at £1.6m using a benchmark of 2% of
gross operating expenditure. Our final assessment of materiality, based on the final financial statements is
£1.7m using the same benchmark.

Use of experts
In our Audit Strategy Memorandum we identified the following experts planned to be used by management in
preparing the financial statements, and by ourselves in carrying out our audit. There are no changes to the
planned approach or matters arising to report.
Item of account

Management’s expert

Our expert

Defined benefit liability

Hymans Robertson
Actuary for Derbyshire Pension
Fund

PWC
Consulting actuary appointed by the
NAO

Property, plant and
equipment valuation

Wilks, Head & Eve
The Council’s external valuer (nondwellings)
Barlow Property Consultancy
The Council’s external valuer
(dwellings)

Our approach has reflected the size and complexity of the transactions and balances within the subsidiary
company that are consolidated into the Council’s Group financial statements. Based on our planning
discussions and review of the year’s accounts, we did not consider RHL to be a significant component. Our
plan, based on our understanding and the values reported in the prior year’s financial statements was to again
obtain assurance from analytical procedures supported by a review of the council’s consolidation processes.
We did not need to seek specific assurances over transactions and balances from the component auditors of
the subsidiary company.

Not applicable

Not applicable

Financial instrument
disclosures

Arlingclose
Treasury management advisors

Not applicable
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Inform CPI Ltd
Analyse LOCAL Valuation System

Status of audit

The Council’s group structure for 2020/21 includes Rykneld Homes Limited (RHL). This ‘Arms Length
Management Organisation’ is a wholly owned subsidiary of the Council and, as a registered social housing
provider, is responsible for the management of the Council’s housing stock. As in previous years the Council
has consolidated RHL into its Group financial statements and, in auditing these accounts we needed to obtain
assurances over the transactions and balances within the Group relating to the subsidiary company.

We did not identify any significant audit risks for Group accounts purposes in relation to this component.

Business Rates Appeals
valuation

Executive summary

Group Audit Approach

Audit approach

Significant findings
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recommendations

Summary of
misstatements

Value for Money

Appendices

9

Section 04:
Significant findings
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4. Significant findings

In this section we outline the significant findings from our audit. These findings include:

Significant audit risks

•

our audit conclusions regarding other significant risks and key areas of management judgement outlined in
the Audit Strategy Memorandum;

•

our comments in respect of the accounting policies and disclosures that you have adopted in the financial
statements. On page 13 we have concluded whether the financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with the financial reporting framework and commented on any significant accounting policy
changes that have been made during the year;

As part of our planning procedures we considered the risks of material misstatement in the Council’s financial
statements that required special audit consideration. Although we report identified significant risks at the
planning stage of the audit in our Audit Strategy Memorandum, our risk assessment is a continuous process
and we regularly consider whether new significant risks have arisen and how we intend to respond to these
risks. No new risks have been identified since we issued our Audit Strategy Memorandum and we set out below
and on the following pages our audit findings and conclusions in relation to the risks identified.

•

any further significant matters discussed with management;

•

any significant difficulties we experienced during the audit; and

•

modifications required to our audit report.

Management
override of
controls

As part of our planning procedures we considered the risks of material misstatement in the Council’s financial
statements that required special audit consideration. Although we report identified significant risks at the
planning stage of the audit in our Audit Strategy Memorandum, our risk assessment is a continuous process
and we regularly consider whether new significant risks have arisen and how we intend to respond to these
risks. No new risks have been identified since we issued our Audit Strategy Memorandum.

Description of the risk
Management at various levels within an organisation are in a unique position to
perpetrate fraud because of their ability to manipulate accounting records and prepare
fraudulent financial statements by overriding controls that otherwise appear to be
operating effectively. Due to the unpredictable way in which such override could occur
there is a risk of material misstatement due to fraud on all audits.
How we addressed this risk
We addressed this risk through performing audit work over accounting estimates, journal
entries and considering the existence of any significant transactions outside the normal
course of business or otherwise unusual.
Audit conclusion
Our audit procedures have not identified any material errors or uncertainties in the
financial statements, or other matters that we wish to bring to Members’ attention in
relation to management override of controls.
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4. Significant findings
Significant audit risks (continued)

Net defined
benefit
pension
liability
valuation

Description of the risk
The Council’s accounts contain material liabilities relating to the local government pension
scheme. The Council uses an actuary to provide an annual valuation of these liabilities in
line with the requirements of IAS 19 Employee Benefits. Due to the high degree of
estimation uncertainty associated with this valuation, we determined there was a significant
risk in this area.

Valuation of
property, plant,
equipment (land
& buildings) and
investment
properties

Description of the risk
The Council’s accounts contain material balances and disclosures relating to its
holding of property, plant and equipment, and investment properties with the majority
of land and building and investment property assets required to be carried at
valuation. Due to the high degree of estimation uncertainty associated with those
held at valuation, we have determined there is a significant risk in this area.
How we addressed this risk

How we addressed this risk
To address this risk we have:

To address this risk we have:

•

Critically assessed the competency, objectivity and independence of the Derbyshire
Pension Fund’s Actuary;

•

Critically assessed the Council’s valuer’s scope of work, qualifications, objectivity
and independence to carry out the required programme of revaluations;

•

Liaised with the auditors of the Derbyshire Pension Fund to gain assurance that the
controls in place at the Pension Fund are operating effectively. This included the
processes and controls in place to ensure data provided to the Actuary by the Pension
Fund for the purposes of the IAS 19 valuation was complete and accurate;

•

Considered whether the overall revaluation methodologies used by the Council’s
valuer’s are in line with industry practice, the CIPFA Code of Practice and the
Council’s accounting policies;

•

Tested payroll transactions at the Council to provide assurance over the pension
contributions which were deducted and paid to the Pension Fund by the Council;

•

Critically assessed the treatment of the upward and downward revaluations in the
Council’s financial statements with regards to the requirements of the CIPFA
Code of Practice;

•

Reviewed the appropriateness of the Pension Asset and Liability valuation
methodologies applied by the Pension Fund Actuary, and the key assumptions included
within the valuation. This included comparing them to expected ranges, utilising
information provided by PWC, the consulting actuary engaged by the National Audit
Office; and

•

Critically assessed the approach that the Council adopts to ensure that any
assets not subject to revaluation in 2020/21 were materially correct; and

•

Considered movement in market indices between revaluation dates and the year
end in order to determine whether these indicated that fair values have moved
materially over that time.

•

Agreed the data in the IAS 19 valuation report provided by the Fund Actuary for
accounting purposes to the pension accounting entries and disclosures in the Council’s
financial statements.

Audit conclusion
Our audit procedures have not to date identified any material errors or uncertainties
in the financial statements, or other matters that we wish to bring to Members’
attention in relation to the valuation of land, buildings and investment property
assets. As mentioned at page 7 we are working with management to complete the
remaining work in this area.

Audit conclusion
Part of our assurance over the net pensions liability is derived from specified procedures
commissioned from the external auditors of the Derbyshire Pension Fund. As mentioned at
page 7 we are yet to receive their final report for our consideration and completion of the
testing required. Our audit procedures to date have not identified any material errors or
uncertainties in the financial statements, or other matters that we wish to bring to Members’
attention in relation to the valuation of the net defined benefit pension liability.
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4. Significant findings
Significant audit risks (continued)

disclosures required regarding the key sources of estimation uncertainty that management has made in
preparing the Statement of Accounts. There are no matters that we need to highlight in this report.

Covid-19 grant
recognition

Significant difficulties during the audit

Description of the risk
Throughout 2020/21, the Government has provided substantial sums of financial
support to local authorities. A lack of clarity exists in respect of the expected
accounting treatment over this income source. We therefore identified the
completeness and accuracy of the this income as a risk.
How our audit addressed this risk
To address this risk we have:
•

Reviewed the Council’s approach in determining whether grants are or are not
ringfenced for specified areas of expenditure;

•

Tested grant income recorded in the ledger to grant allocations/notifications; and

•

Reviewed a sample of grants to ensure conditions to recognise the income in
2020/21 have or have not been met.

Audit conclusion
As mentioned at page 7 we have some residual audit queries to clear but our audit
procedures have not so far identified any material errors or uncertainties in the
financial statements, or other matters that we wish to bring to Members’ attention in
relation to the accounting for the Council’s Covid-19 grants.

Qualitative aspects of the Council’s accounting practices
We have reviewed the Council’s accounting policies and disclosures and concluded they comply with the
2020/21 Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting, appropriately tailored to the Council’s circumstances.
The draft Statement of Accounts were approved for issue 17 June 2021 and were of a good quality.

During the course of the audit we have had the full co-operation of management. The audit was again carried
out remotely but there were no significant difficulties in carrying out our normal audit procedures and obtaining
the audit evidence required to complete the audit. We continue to work with management to complete any
remaining audit work and resolve audit queries and are grateful for the co-operation and support provided.

Audit fees
As set out in our Audit Strategy Memorandum, we identified the need for a variation to the published scale fee
to take account of several matters. Our current estimate is set out below:
•

Additional testing as a result of changes arising from increased audit quality expectations involving the work
on the valuation of land and buildings and on the local government pension scheme - £7,067.

•

Additional testing as a result of the implementation of new auditing standards: ISA 220 (Revised): Quality
control of an audit of financial statements; ISA 540 (Revised): Auditing accounting estimates and related
disclosures; ISA570 (Revised) Going Concern; and ISA 600 (Revised): Specific considerations – audit of
group financial statements – £2,016

•

Additional testing as a result of new significant audit risks for 2020/21 (covid-19 grant recognition) - £1,188

•

Additional work as a result of the new Code of Audit Practice and VFM reporting – ongoing with our original
estimate being at least £10,000 or 20% of the revised fee depending on the extent of any risks of significant
weaknesses requiring additional work.

We will agree the final fee, and any further variations, with management prior to reporting to the Audit and
Corporate Governance Scrutiny Committee.

Significant matters discussed with management
Page 24
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4. Significant findings (continued)
Modifications required to our audit report

•

Our draft audit report has not needed to be modified and is set out in Appendix B.

Whole of Government Accounts - The NAO has not yet issued its Group Instructions for local authority
audits.

We will update the Audit and Governance Committee when more information is known but at this stage the draft
Auditor’s Report at Appendix B assumes that we are not able to issue the Audit Certificate at this stage.

Wider responsibilities
Our powers and responsibilities under the 2014 Act are broad and include the ability to:
•

issue a report in the public interest;

•

make statutory recommendations that must be considered and responded to publicly;

•

apply to the court for a declaration that an item of account is contrary to law; and

•

issue an advisory notice under schedule 8 of the 2014 Act.

We have not exercised any of these powers as part of our 2020/21 audit.
The 2014 Act also gives rights to local electors and other parties, such as the right to ask questions of the
auditor and the right to make an objection to an item of account. No such objections have been raised

Possible delay in the audit certificate
The issue of the Audit Certificate confirms that we have discharged all of our audit responsibilities and that the
audit is formally ‘closed’. The Audit Certificate would normally be published in our Auditor’s Report on the
Statement of Accounts. We expect to issue the audit report but delay the issue of the Audit Certificate until the
following procedures are complete:
•

Value for Money - We are yet to complete our work in respect of the Council's arrangements for the year
ended 31 March 2021 and expect to report our findings in the 2020/21 Annual Auditors Report within 3
months of giving our audit opinion. At the time of preparing this report, we have not identified any significant
weaknesses in the Council’s arrangements that require us to make a recommendation.
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Section 05:
Internal control recommendations

Page 26

15

5. Internal control recommendations

The purpose of our audit is to express an opinion on the financial statements. As part of our audit we have
considered the internal controls in place relevant to the preparation of the financial statements. We do this in
order to design audit procedures to allow us to express an opinion on the financial statement and not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control, nor to identify any significant
deficiencies in their design or operation.
The matters we report are limited to those deficiencies and other control recommendations that we have
identified during our normal audit procedures and that we consider to be of sufficient importance to merit being
reported. If we had performed more extensive procedures on internal control we might have identified more
deficiencies to be reported or concluded that some of the reported deficiencies need not in fact have been
reported. Our comments should not be regarded as a comprehensive record of all deficiencies that may exist or
improvements that could be made.
Based on the audit work carried out this year, we have not identified any significant control deficiencies in
2020/21 that we are required to report to you and there were none reported in 2019/20 which we were required
to follow up.
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Section 06:
Summary of misstatements
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6. Summary of misstatements
We are pleased to report that no material misstatements have been identified during our audit work to date.
A small number of disclosure amendments to the notes to the Statement of Accounts have been agreed with management to correct minor errors. None of these are significant and we are not required to highlight them in this
report.
There are no unadjusted misstatements identified during the course of the audit work to date above the trivial reporting threshold of £52k. We will update the Audit and Corporate Governance Scrutiny Committee if any reportable
misstatements are identified as a result of the remaining work summarised at page 7.
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Section 07:
Value for Money
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7. Value for Money
Approach to Value for Money

Status of our work

We are required to consider whether the Council has made proper arrangements for securing economy,
efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. The NAO issues guidance to auditors that underpins the
work we are required to carry out and sets out the reporting criteria that we are required to consider. The
reporting criteria are:

We are yet to complete our work in respect of the Council's arrangements for the year ended 31 March 2021.
At the time of preparing this report, we have not identified any significant weaknesses in arrangements that
require us to make a recommendation, however we continue to undertake work on the Council's arrangements.

•

Financial sustainability - How the Council plans and manages its resources to ensure it can continue to
deliver its services

•

Governance - How the Council ensures that it makes informed decisions and properly manages its risks

•

Improving economy, efficiency and effectiveness - How the Council uses information about its costs and
performance to improve the way it manages and delivers its services

Our draft audit report at Appendix B outlines that we have not yet completed our work in relation to the
Council's arrangements. As noted above, our commentary on the Council's arrangements will be provided in
the Auditor’s Annual Report in November 2021

At the planning stage of the audit, we undertake work to understand the arrangements that the Council has in
place under each of the reporting criteria and we identify risks of significant weaknesses in those arrangements.
Although we describe this work as planning work, we keep our understanding of arrangements under review
and update our risk assessment throughout the audit to reflect emerging issues that may suggest significant
weaknesses in arrangements exist.
The table overleaf outlines the risks of significant weaknesses in arrangements that we have identified, the riskbased procedures we have undertaken, and the results of our work.
Where our risk-based procedures identify actual significant weaknesses in arrangements we are required to
report these and make recommendations for improvement. Where such significant weaknesses are identified,
we report these in the audit report.
The primary output of our work on the Council's arrangements is the commentary on those arrangements that
forms part of the Auditor’s Annual Report. We intend to issue the Auditor's Annual Report in November 2021.
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Appendix A: Draft management representation letter

Mazars LLP
2 Chamberlain Square
Birmingham
B3 3AX
xx September 2021

Dear Sirs
North East Derbyshire District Council - audit for year ended 31 March 2021
This representation letter is provided in connection with your audit of the financial statements of North East Derbyshire District Council (the Council) for the year ended 31 March 2021 for the purpose of expressing an opinion as to
whether the financial statements give a true and fair view in accordance with the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2020/21 (the Code) and applicable law.
I confirm that the following representations are made on the basis of enquiries of management and staff with relevant knowledge and experience (and, where appropriate, inspection of supporting documentation) sufficient to
satisfy ourselves that I can properly make each of the following representations to you.
My responsibility for the financial statements and accounting information
I believe that I have fulfilled my responsibilities for the true and fair presentation and preparation of the financial statements in accordance with the Code and applicable law.
My responsibility to provide and disclose relevant information
I have provided you with:
•

Access to all information of which we are aware that is relevant to the preparation of the financial statements such as records, documentation and other material;

•

Additional information that you have requested from us for the purpose of the audit; and

•

Unrestricted access to individuals within the Council and Group you determined it was necessary to contact in order to obtain audit evidence.

Page 33

Executive summary

Status of audit

Audit approach

Significant findings

Internal control
recommendations

Summary of
misstatements

Value for Money

Appendices

22

Appendix A: Draft management representation letter (continued)

I confirm as S151 Officer that I have taken all the necessary steps to make me aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that you, as auditors, are aware of this information.
As far as I am aware there is no relevant audit information of which you, as auditors, are unaware.
Accounting records
I confirm that all transactions that have a material effect on the financial statements have been recorded in the accounting records and are reflected in the financial statements. All other records and related information, including
minutes of all Council and committee meetings, have been made available to you.
Accounting policies
I confirm that I have reviewed the accounting policies applied during the year in accordance with the Code and International Accounting Standard 8 and consider these policies to faithfully represent the effects of transactions, other
events or conditions on the Council’s financial position, financial performance and cash flows.
Accounting estimates, including those measured at fair value
I confirm that any significant assumptions used by the Council in making accounting estimates, including those measured at current or fair value, are reasonable.
I confirm that I am satisfied that the actuarial assumptions underlying the valuation of pension scheme liabilities for IAS19 disclosures are consistent with my knowledge. I confirm that all settlements and curtailments have been
identified and properly accounted for. I confirm that all significant retirement benefits have been identified and properly accounted for (including any arrangements that are statutory, contractual or implicit in the employer’s actions,
that arise in the UK or overseas, that are funded or unfunded).
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Appendix A: Draft management representation letter (continued)

Contingencies
There are no material contingent losses including pending or potential litigation that should be accrued where:
•

information presently available indicates that it is probable that an asset has been impaired or a liability had been incurred at the balance sheet date; and

•

the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated.

There are no material contingent losses that should be disclosed where, although either or both the conditions specified above are not met, there is a reasonable possibility that a loss, or a loss greater than that accrued, may have
been incurred at the balance sheet date.
There are no contingent gains which should be disclosed.
All material matters, including unasserted claims, that may result in litigation against the Council have been brought to your attention. All known actual or possible litigation and claims whose effects should be considered when
preparing the financial statements have been disclosed to you and accounted for and disclosed in accordance with the Code and applicable law.
Laws and regulations
I confirm that I have disclosed to you all those events of which I am aware which involve known or suspected non-compliance with laws and regulations, together with the actual or contingent consequences which may arise
therefrom.
The Council has complied with all aspects of contractual agreements that would have a material effect on the accounts in the event of non-compliance.
Fraud and error
I acknowledge my responsibility as Chief Finance Officer for the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control to prevent and detect fraud and error.
I have disclosed to you:
•

All the results of my assessment of the risk that the financial statements may be materially misstated as a result of fraud;
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Appendix A: Draft management representation letter (continued)

•

All knowledge of fraud or suspected fraud affecting the Council involving:
o management and those charged with governance;

o employees who have significant roles in internal control; and

o others where fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements.
I have disclosed to you all information in relation to any allegations of fraud, or suspected fraud, affecting the Council’s financial statements communicated by employees, former employees, analysts, regulators or others.
Related party transactions
I confirm that all related party relationships, transactions and balances, have been appropriately accounted for and disclosed to you in accordance with the requirements of the Code and applicable law.
I have disclosed the identity of the Council’s related parties and all related party relationships and transactions of which I am aware.
Impairment review
To the best of my knowledge, there is nothing to indicate that there is a permanent reduction in the recoverable amount of the property, plant and equipment and intangible assets below their carrying value at the balance sheet
date. I have considered the impact of Covid-19 on the Council’s Investment Properties. An impairment review is therefore not considered necessary.
Charges on assets
All the Council’s assets are free from any charges exercisable by third parties except as disclosed within the financial statements.
Future commitments
I am not aware of any plans, intentions or commitments that may materially affect the carrying value or classification of assets and liabilities or give rise to additional liabilities.
Subsequent events
I confirm all events subsequent to the date of the financial statements, and for which the Code and applicable law require adjustment or disclosure, have been adjusted or disclosed.
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Appendix A: Draft management representation letter (continued)

Covid-19
We confirm that we have carried out an assessment of the on-going impact of the Covid-19 Virus pandemic on the Council, including the impact of mitigation measures and uncertainties, and that the disclosure in the Statement of
Accounts fairly reflects that assessment.
Brexit
We confirm that we have carried out an assessment of the potential impact of the United Kingdom leaving the European Union, including the potential outcomes at the end of the Implementation Period, and that the disclosure in
the Statement of Accounts fairly reflects that assessment.
Going concern
To the best of my knowledge there is nothing to indicate that the Council and Group will not continue as a going concern in the foreseeable future. The period to which I have paid particular attention in assessing the
appropriateness of the going concern basis is not less than twelve months from the date of approval of the accounts.
I have updated our going concern assessment in light of the on-going Covid-19 pandemic. I continue to believe that the Council’s financial statements should be prepared on a going concern basis and have not identified any
material uncertainties related to going concern on the grounds that current and future sources of funding or support will be more than adequate for the Council’s needs. We believe that no further disclosures relating to the
Council's ability to continue as a going concern need to be made in the financial statements.
Annual Governance Statement
I am satisfied that the Annual Governance Statement (AGS) fairly reflects the Council's risk assurance and governance framework and I confirm that I am not aware of any significant risks that are not disclosed within the AGS.
Narrative report
The disclosures within the Narrative Report fairly reflect my understanding of the Council's financial and operating performance over the period covered by the financial statements.
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Appendix A: Draft management representation letter (continued)

Unadjusted misstatements
I confirm that the effects of the uncorrected misstatements are immaterial, both individually and in aggregate, to the financial statements as a whole.
Yours faithfully

Head of Finance and Resources
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Appendix B: Draft audit report

Independent auditor’s report to the members of North East Derbyshire District Council
Report on the audit of the financial statements
Opinion on the financial statements
We have audited the financial statements of North East Derbyshire District Council (“the Council) and its subsidiary (“the Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2021, which comprise the Council and Group Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement, the Council and Group Movement in Reserves Statement, the Council and Group Balance Sheet, the Council and Group Cash Flow Statement, the Council’s Collection Fund, the Council’s Housing
Revenue Account and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and the CIPFA/LASAAC
Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2020/21.
In our opinion, the financial statements:
•

give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Council and the Group as at 31st March 2021 and of its expenditure and income for the year then ended; and

•

have been properly prepared in accordance with the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2020/21.

Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities section of our
report. We are independent of the Council in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC’s Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Appendix B: Draft audit report (continued)

Conclusions relating to going concern
In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the Head of Finance and Resources’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.
Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Council's ability to continue as a going
concern for a period of at least twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised for issue.
Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the Head of Finance and Resources with respect to going concern are described in the relevant sections of this report.
Other information
The Head of Finance and Resources is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the Statement of Accounts, other than the financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material
misstatement in the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact.
We have nothing to report in this regard.
Responsibilities of the Head of Finance and Resources for the financial statements
As explained more fully in the Statement of the Head of Finance and Resources’ Responsibilities, the Head of Finance and Resources is responsible for the preparation of the Statement of Accounts, which includes the financial
statements, in accordance with proper practices as set out in the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2020/21, and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view. The
Head of Finance and Resources is also responsible for such internal control as the Head of Finance and Resources determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
The Head of Finance and Resources is required to comply with the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2020/21 and prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis
on the assumption that the functions of the Council will continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. The Head of Finance and Resources is responsible for assessing each year whether or not it is appropriate for
the Council to prepare its accounts on the going concern basis and disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern.
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Appendix B: Draft audit report (continued)

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures in line with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of irregularities, including
fraud. Based on our understanding of the Council we identified that the principal risks of non-compliance with laws and regulations related to the Local Government Act 2003 (and associated regulations made under section 21),
the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 (and associated regulations made under section 32) and the Local Government Finance Act 1988 (as amended) and we considered the extent to which non-compliance might have a
material effect on the financial statements.
We evaluated the Head of Finance and Resources’ incentives and opportunities for fraudulent manipulation of the financial statements (including the risk of override of controls) and determined that the principal risks were related
to posting manual journal entries to manipulate financial performance, management bias through judgements and assumptions in significant accounting estimates and significant one-off or unusual transactions.
Our audit procedures were designed to respond to those identified risks, including non-compliance with laws and regulations (irregularities) and fraud that are material to the financial statements. Our audit procedures included but
were not limited to:
•

discussing with management and the Audit and Corporate Governance Scrutiny Committee the policies and procedures regarding compliance with laws and regulations;

•

communicating identified laws and regulations throughout our engagement team and remaining alert to any indications of non-compliance throughout our audit; and

•

considering the risk of acts by the Council which were contrary to applicable laws and regulations, including fraud.

Our audit procedures in relation to fraud included but were not limited to:
•

making enquiries of management and the Audit and Corporate Governance Scrutiny Committee on whether they had knowledge of any actual, suspected or alleged fraud;

•

gaining an understanding of the internal controls established to mitigate risks related to fraud;

•

discussing amongst the engagement team the risks of fraud; and

•

addressing the risks of fraud through management override of controls by performing journal entry testing.

Page 41

Executive summary

Status of audit

Audit approach

Significant findings

Internal control
recommendations

Summary of
misstatements

Value for Money

Appendices

30

Appendix B: Draft audit report (continued)

There are inherent limitations in the audit procedures described above and the primary responsibility for the prevention and detection of irregularities including fraud rests with management and the Audit and Corporate
Governance Scrutiny Committee. As with any audit, there remained a risk of non-detection of irregularities, as these may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations or the override of internal controls.
We are also required to conclude on whether the Head of Finance and Resources’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate. We performed our work in accordance
with Practice Note 10: Audit of financial statement and regularity of public sector bodies in the United Kingdom, and Supplementary Guidance Note 01, issued by the National Audit Office in April 2021.
A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial Reporting Council’s website at www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor’s report.

Report on the Council’s arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources
Matter on which we are required to report by exception
We are required to report to you if, in our view we are not satisfied that the Council has made proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources for the year ended 31 March 2021.
We have nothing to report in this respect.
Responsibilities of the Council
The Council is responsible for putting in place proper arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources, to ensure proper stewardship and governance, and to review regularly the adequacy and
effectiveness of these arrangements.
Auditor’s responsibilities for the review of arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the use of resources
We are required under section 20(1)(c) of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 to satisfy ourselves that the Council has made proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources.
We are not required to consider, nor have we considered, whether all aspects of the Council’s arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources are operating effectively.
We have undertaken our work in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice, having regard to the guidance issued by the Comptroller and Auditor General in April 2021.
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Appendix B: Draft audit report (continued)
Matters on which we are required to report by exception under the Code of Audit Practice
We are required by the Code of Audit Practice to report to you if:
•

we issue a report in the public interest under section 24 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014;

•

we make a recommendation under section 24 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014; or

•

we exercise any other special powers of the auditor under sections 28, 29 or 31 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014.

We have nothing to report in these respects.

Use of the audit report
This report is made solely to the members of North East Derbyshire District Council, as a body, in accordance with part 5 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 and as set out in paragraph 44 of the Statement of
Responsibilities of Auditors and Audited Bodies published by Public Sector Audit Appointments Limited. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the members of the Council those matters we are required to
state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the members of the Council, as a body, for our audit work, for this
report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Delay in certification of completion of the audit
We cannot formally conclude the audit and issue an audit certificate until we have completed:
•

the work necessary to issue our assurance statement in respect of the Council’s Whole of Government Accounts consolidation pack;

•

the work necessary to satisfy ourselves that the Council has made proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources.

Mark Surridge, Key Audit Partner
For and on behalf of Mazars LLP
2 Chamberlain Square
Birmingham
B3 3AX
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Appendix C: Independence

As part of our ongoing risk assessment we monitor our relationships with you to identify any new actual or
perceived threats to our independence within the regulatory or professional requirements governing us as your
auditors.
We can confirm that no new threats to independence have been identified since issuing the Audit Strategy
Memorandum and therefore we remain independent.

Page 44

Executive summary

Status of audit

Audit approach

Significant findings

Internal control
recommendations

Summary of
misstatements

Value for Money

Appendices

33

Appendix D: Other communications
Other
communication

Response

Compliance with
Laws and
Regulations

We have not identified any significant matters involving actual or suspected non-compliance with laws and regulations.

External
confirmations

We did not experience any issues with respect to obtaining external confirmations.

Related parties

We did not identify any significant matters relating to the audit of related parties.

We will obtain written representations from management that all known instances of non-compliance or suspected non-compliance with laws and regulations whose effects should be
considered when preparing financial statements have been disclosed.

We will obtain written representations from management confirming that:

Going Concern

a.

they have disclosed to us the identity of related parties and all the related party relationships and transactions of which they are aware; and

b.

they have appropriately accounted for and disclosed such relationships and transactions in accordance with the requirements of the applicable financial reporting framework.

We have not identified any evidence to cause us to disagree with the Head of Finance and Resources that North East Derbyshire District Council will be a going concern, and therefore we
consider that the use of the going concern assumption is appropriate in the preparation of the financial statements.
We will obtain written representations from management, confirming that all relevant information covering a period of at least 12 months from the date of approval of the financial statements
has been taken into account in assessing the appropriateness of the going concern basis of preparation of the financial statements.
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Appendix D: Other communications
Other
communication
Subsequent events

Response
We are required to obtain evidence about whether events occurring between the date of the financial statements and the date of the auditor’s report that require adjustment of, or disclosure
in, the financial statements are appropriately reflected in those financial statements in accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework.
We will obtain written representations from management that all events occurring subsequent to the date of the financial statements and for which the applicable financial reporting
framework requires adjustment or disclosure have been adjusted or disclosed.

Matters related
to fraud

We have designed our audit approach to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement due to fraud. In addition to the work
performed by us, we will obtain written representations from management, and the Audit and Corporate Governance Scrutiny Committee, confirming that
a.

they acknowledge their responsibility for the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control to prevent and detect fraud;

b.

they have disclosed to the auditor the results of management’s assessment of the risk that the financial statements may be materially misstated as a result of fraud;

c.

they have disclosed to the auditor their knowledge of fraud or suspected fraud affecting the entity involving:
i.

Management;

ii. Employees who have significant roles in internal control; or
iii. Others where the fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements; and
d.
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Executive summary

they have disclosed to the auditor their knowledge of any allegations of fraud, or suspected fraud, affecting the entity’s financial statements communicated by employees, former
employees, analysts, regulators or others.

Status of audit

Audit approach

Significant findings

Internal control
recommendations

Summary of
misstatements

Value for Money

Appendices
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Mark Surridge, Director – Public Services
mark.surridge@mazars.co.uk

Mazars

2 Chamberlain Square
Birmingham
B3 3AX

Mazars is an internationally integrated partnership, specialising in audit, accountancy, advisory, tax
and legal services*. Operating in over 90 countries and territories around the world, we draw on the
expertise of 40,400 professionals – 24,400 in Mazars’ integrated partnership and 16,000 via the
Mazars North America Alliance – to assist clients of all sizes at every stage in their development.
*where permitted under applicable country laws.
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Agenda Item 5a
North East Derbyshire District Council
Audit and Corporate Governance Scrutiny Committee
22nd September 2021
Internal Audit Consortium Annual Report 2020/21
Report of the Internal Audit Consortium Manager
Classification:

This report is public

Report By:

Internal Audit Consortium Manager

Contact Officer:

Jenny.Williams@ne-Derbyshire.gov.uk

PURPOSE / SUMMARY
The purpose of this report is to: 








Present a summary of the internal audit
work undertaken during 2020/21 from which the opinion on the internal
control environment is derived.
Provide an opinion on the overall
adequacy and effectiveness of the Council’s control environment including
any qualifications to that opinion.
Draw attention to any issues that need to
be considered for inclusion in the Annual Governance Statement.
Compare work undertaken with that which
was planned and summarise performance.
Comment on compliance with the Public
Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS).
Comment on the results of the internal
quality assurance programme.
Confirm the organisational independence
of internal audit
Review the performance of the Internal
Audit Consortium against the current Internal Audit Charter.

RECOMMENDATION
1.

That the Internal Audit Consortium Annual Report for 2020/21 be accepted.

Approved by the Portfolio Holder – Councillor Paul Parkin
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IMPLICATIONS
Finance and Risk:
Details:

Yes☒

No ☐

Internal audit reviews help to ensure that processes and controls are operating
effectively thereby contributing to ensuring that value for money is obtained. Regular
audit reviews help to ensure that risk is managed appropriately. Internal audit makes
recommendations to reduce the level of risk and improve the control environment.
On Behalf of the Section 151 Officer
Legal (including Data Protection):
Details:

Yes☒

No ☐

The core work of internal audit is derived from the statutory responsibility under the
Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 which requires the Council to “undertake an
effective internal audit to evaluate the effectiveness of its risk management, control
and governance processes, taking in to account the Public Sector Internal Audit
Standards or guidance”.
On Behalf of the Solicitor to the Council

Staffing:
Details:

Yes☐

No ☒

Click here to enter text.

On behalf of the Head of Paid Service

DECISION INFORMATION
Decision Information
Is the decision a Key Decision?
No
A Key Decision is an executive decision which has a
significant impact on two or more District wards or
which results in income or expenditure to the Council
above the following thresholds:
BDC:
Revenue - £75,000 ☐ Capital - £150,000 ☒
NEDDC:
Revenue - £100,000 ☐ Capital - £250,000 ☐
☒ Please indicate which threshold applies
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Is the decision subject to Call-In?
(Only Key Decisions are subject to Call-In)

No

District Wards Significantly Affected

None

Consultation:
Leader / Deputy Leader ☐ Cabinet / Executive ☐
SAMT ☐
Relevant Service Manager ☒
Members ☐ Public ☐ Other ☐

Yes
Details:
Ward Members

Links to Council Ambition (BDC)/Council Plan (NED) priorities or Policy
Framework including Climate Change, Equalities, and Economics and Health
implications.
Audit reviews help to ensure that the council’s resources and priorities are focused
on achieving the objectives within the Council Plan.

REPORT DETAILS
1

Background

1.1

The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards require that the Internal Audit
Consortium Manager deliver an annual internal audit opinion and report that
can be used by the organisation to inform its governance statement.

2.

Details
IMPACT OF COVID 19

2.1

The advent of COVID- 19 has unsurprisingly had an impact on the extent of
completion of the 2020/21 internal audit plan however, enough of the internal
audit plan (along with reliance on other assurances) has been completed to
be able to give an unlimited audit opinion in respect of the 2020/21 financial
year.
SUMMARY OF WORK UNDERTAKEN

2.2

Appendix 1 details the audit reports issued in respect of audits included in
the 2020/21 internal audit plan. The appendix shows for each report the
overall assurance level provided on the reliability of the internal controls and
the assurance level given at the last audit. The report opinions can be
summarised as follows:

Assurance
Level

2019/20
Number

2019/20

2020/21

2020/21

%

Number

%
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Substantial

14

58

13

68

Reasonable

10

42

6

32

Limited

0

0

0

0

Inadequate

0

0

0

0

Total

24

100

19

100

2.3

A definition of the above assurance levels is shown in Appendix 1.

2.4

No fraud was identified.

2.5

The following table summarises the performance indicators for the Internal
Audit Consortium as detailed in the Internal Audit Service Plan:
Description

2020/21

2021/22

Plan

Actual

Plan

Cost per Audit Day

£294

£284

£306

Percentage of Plan Completed

75%

73%

75% *

8.0
(Corporate
Trigger)

0.00

8.0

Customer Satisfaction Score

85%

97%

85%

To issue internal audit reports within 10
days of the close out meeting

90%

100%

90%

Number/proportion of audits completed
within time allocation

80%

Not measured

80%

Quarterly reporting to Audit and Corporate
Governance Scrutiny Committee

100%

100%

100%

Sickness Absence (Average Days per
Employee)

* Although the usual target is 96%, this will not be achievable given the continued
impact of COVID-19.
19/26 audits have been completed = 73%. However, work on the 2020/21 plan was
completed later than usual and that will have an impact on the completeion of the
2021/22 plan.
It should be noted that an additional audit was also undertaken in respect of
reviewing the processes in place for the payment of COVID – 19 business grants.
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OPINION ON THE ADEQUACY AND EFFECTIVENESS OF THE CONTROL
ENVIRONMENT

2.6

The Internal Audit Consortium Manager is responsible for the delivery of an
annual audit opinion that can be used by the council to inform its governance
system. The annual opinion concludes on the overall adequacy and
effectiveness of the organisation’s framework of governance, risk
management and control.

2.7

Although COVID-19 has meant that less internal audit work has been
undertaken than usual during the year, in my opinion, sufficient work has been
completed and assurances ascertained to be able to provide an unlimited
opinion on the systems of governance, risk management and control in place.

2.8

As well as internal audit work assurance has also been gained from previous
years’ work, the work of the Risk Management Group, PSN compliance,
external audit and compliance with the Code of Corporate Governance.

2.9

In my opinion reasonable assurance can be provided on the overall adequacy
and effectiveness of the council’s framework for governance, risk
management and control for the year ended 2020/21.

2.10

Assurance can never be absolute. In this context “reasonable assurance”
means that arrangements are in place to manage key risks and to meet good
governance principles, but there are some areas where improvements are
required.

2.11 Overall, 100% of the areas audited received Substantial or Reasonable
Assurance demonstrating that there are effective systems of governance, risk
management and control in place.
ISSUES FOR INCLUSION IN THE ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT
2.12 There are no issues directly arising from internal audit work that need to be
included as significant issues on the Annual Governance Statement.

COMPARISON OF PLANNED WORK TO ACTUAL WORK UNDERTAKEN
2.13

The Internal Audit Plan for 2020/2021 was considered and approved by the
Strategic Alliance Management Team. Due to COVID-19 and the cancellation
of the Audit and Corporate Governance Scruiny Committee meetings the plan
was not formally approved by members. 19/26 audits have now been
completed. In respect of the remaining audits the majority of these have been
scheduled into the 2021/22 Internal Audit Plan. Appendix 2 details the audits
completed and those deferred.
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE PUBLIC SECTOR INTERNAL AUDIT STANDARDS AND
OTHER QUALITY ASSURANCE RESULTS
2.14

During 2020/21 a self- assessment was undertaken to review compliance with
the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards. The review confirmed that there
were no significant areas of non- compliance.

2.15

An external review of internal audit took place in May 2021 the results of
which conclude “Current services are assessed to “generally conform” with
the PSIAS and compare favourably with peers, there are no areas where the
service does not comply with the Standards”.

2.16

An improvement spreadsheet is utilised to identify further areas for
improvement. This spreadsheet is discussed at team meetings and actions
agreed accordingly. An action plan will be developed from the points arising in
the 2021 external review and will be used to further drive improvement.

2.17

It can be confirmed that the internal audit activity is organisationally
independent. Internal audit reports directly to the Head of Finance but has a
direct and unrestricted access to the Strategic Alliance Management Team
and the Audit and Corporate Governance Scrutiny Committee.

2.18

Quality control procedures have been established within the internal audit
consortium as follows:


Individual Audit Reviews – Working papers and reports are all subject to
independent review to ensure that the audit tests undertaken are
appropriate, evidenced and the correct conclusions drawn. All reports are
reviewed to ensure that they are consistent with working papers and in
layout. Whilst these reviews may identify issues for clarification, the
overall conclusion of the quality assurance checks is that work is being
completed and documented thoroughly.



Customer Satisfaction – A Customer Satisfaction Survey form is issued
with each report. This form seeks the views of the recipient on how the
audit was conducted, the report and recommendations made.



Client Officer Views – A survey form has been issued to the client officer
seeking their views on the overall performance of the Internal Audit
Consortium for the year in achieving the objectives set out in the Internal
Audit Charter.
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2.19

All staff have been provided with a copy of the Public Sector Internal Audit
Standards and the Internal Audit Manual has been updated to reflect the
requirements of the standards and issued to all staff. The audit manual
was reviewed and updated in May 2020.

The above quality control procedures have ensured conformance with the
PSIAS.

2.20 Based on the customer satisfaction survey forms returned, the average score
was 97% for customer satisfaction during 2020/21 (2019/20 result 94%).
2.21

The results of the Client Officer survey for North East Derbyshire were a
score of 100% (a score of 35/35 over 7 questions).

3

Reasons for Recommendation

3.1

To present to Members the annual report for the Internal Audit Consortium in
respect of North East Detbyshire District Council for 2020/21.

3.2

To ensure compliance with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards.

4

Alternative Options and Reasons for Rejection

4.1

Not applicable

DOCUMENT INFORMATION
Appendix No

Title

Appendix 1

Internal Audit Reports Issued 2020/21

Appendix 2
Comparison of Planned Work to Work Completed 2020/21
Background Papers (These are unpublished works which have been relied on to a
material extent when preparing the report. They must be listed in the section below.
If the report is going to Cabinet (NEDDC) or Executive (BDC) you must provide
copies of the background papers)
Click here to enter text.
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Appendix 1

North East Derbyshire District Council – Internal Audit
Reports Issued 2020/21
Ref
1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19

Report Title
Data Protection
Council Tax
Cash and Bank
CIPFA Financial Management Code
Procurement
Elections
Asset Management
Climate Change
Corporate Targets
Sundry Debtors
Joint Dog Warden Service
Disabled Facilities Grants
Street Cleansing
Leisure Services Direct Debits
Laptops and Removable Media
Mobile phones and Communications
Social Media
Network Security and Policies
Planning Processes and Appeals

Internal Audit Consortium –
Annual Report 2020/21
NEDDC

Assurance
Level
2020/21
Substantial
Substantial
Substantial
Substantial
Reasonable
Substantial
Substantial
Substantial
Substantial
Substantial
Substantial
Substantial
Substantial
Substantial
Reasonable
Reasonable
Reasonable
Reasonable
Reasonable

Opinion
Previous
Audit
Substantial
Substantial
Substantial
N/A
Reasonable
Good
Reasonable
N/A
Reasonable
Substantial
N/A
Substantial
Substantial
Substantial
Satisfactory
N/A
Limited
Substantial
N/A

1
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Assurance
Level
Substantial
Assurance

Reasonable
Assurance

Limited
Assurance

Inadequate
Assurance

Definition
There is a sound system of controls in place,
designed to achieve the system objectives.
Controls are being consistently applied and
risks well managed.
The majority of controls are in place and
operating effectively, although some control
improvements are required. The system
should achieve its objectives. Risks are
generally well managed.
Certain important controls are either not in
place or not operating effectively. There is a
risk that the system may not achieve its
objectives. Some key risks were not well
managed.
There are fundamental control weaknesses,
leaving the system/service open to material
errors or abuse and exposes the Council to
significant risk. There is little assurance of
achieving the desired objectives.

Internal Audit Consortium –
Annual Report 2020/21
NEDDC

2

Page 56

Appendix 2

North East Derbyshire District Council Internal Audit Plan 2020/21

Audit Complete
Ongoing
Carried forward to future years
2020/21
Days

Main Financial Systems
CIPFA Financial Management Code

8

Debtors (Key Controls)

10

Cash and Banking

18

Council Tax

20

Housing / Council Tax Benefit

18

Total Main Financial Systems

74

Other Operational Audits

2020/21

Asset Management Arrangements

10

Corporate Targets

15

Data protection

12

Disabled Facilities Grants

10

Dog Warden Service

5

Elections (carry fwd from 19/20)

10

Food Hygiene

13

Homelessness

10

Leisure Operational including Cafe

20

1
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Leisure direct debits

5

Planning Processes & Procedures / Appeals

10

Procurement

15

Social Media

8

Street Cleansing

10

Total Operational Areas

153

Rykneld Homes

97

IT Related
Laptops & Removable Media

12

Network / cyber security

12

Total IT

24

2020/21
Fraud and Corruption

National Fraud Initiative

5

Total Fraud & Corruption

5

Corporate / Cross Cutting Issues
Climate Change

5

Corporate Governance/Assurance Statement

2

Ethics

10
2
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Financial Advice/Working Groups/Test Schedule
Development

12

Mobile Phones / Communications

10

Transformation Agenda

10

Use of Consultants / IR35 (carry fwd from 19/20)

14

Total Corporate/Cross Cutting Issues

63

Special Investigations / Contingency

25

Apprenticeships / training

30

Audit Committee / Client Liaison

15

Grand Total

486

3
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Agenda Item 5b
North East Derbyshire District Council
Audit and Corporate Governance Scrutiny Committee
22nd September 2021
External Review of Internal Audt
Report of the Internal Audit Consortium Manager
Classification:

This report is public

Report By:

Internal Audit Consortium Manager

Contact Officer:

Jenny.Williams@ne-Derbyshire.gov.uk

PURPOSE
The purpose of this report is to inform members of the results of the external
review of internal audit that took place in May 2021.

RECOMMENDATION
1.

That the results of the external review of internal audit be noted.
Approved by the Portfolio Holder – Councillor Paul Parkin

IMPLICATIONS
Finance and Risk:
Details:

Yes☒

No ☐

The external review confirms that the internal audit service meets the requirements
of the PSIAS and therefore risk is reduced as internal audit is effectively reviewing
the council’s risk, governance and control processes.
On Behalf of the Section 151 Officer
Legal (including Data Protection):
Details:

Yes☐

No ☒

The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards require that an external review of internal
audit takes place every 5 years and this review meets that requirement.
On Behalf of the Solicitor to the Council
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Staffing:
Details:

Yes☐

No ☒

Click here to enter text.

On behalf of the Head of Paid Service

DECISION INFORMATION
Decision Information
Is the decision a Key Decision?
No
A Key Decision is an executive decision which has a
significant impact on two or more District wards or
which results in income or expenditure to the Council
above the following thresholds:
BDC:
Revenue - £75,000 ☐ Capital - £150,000 ☒
NEDDC:
Revenue - £100,000 ☐ Capital - £250,000 ☐
☒ Please indicate which threshold applies
Is the decision subject to Call-In?
(Only Key Decisions are subject to Call-In)

No

District Wards Significantly Affected

None

Consultation:
Leader / Deputy Leader ☐ Cabinet / Executive ☐
SAMT ☐
Relevant Service Manager ☒
Members ☐ Public ☐ Other ☐

Yes
Details:
Ward Members

Links to Council Ambition (BDC)/Council Plan (NED) priorities or Policy
Framework including Climate Change, Equalities, and Economics and Health
implications.
Having an internal audit resource that complies with the Public Sector Internal
Audit Standards ensures that internal audit can effectively contribute to ensuring
that the council’s resources and priorities are focused on achieving the Council
Plan.
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REPORT DETAILS
1

Background

1.1

The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) were introduced from the 1st
April 2013 and Internal Audit has been working to those standards since that
date. The PSIAS require that internal and external assessments of internal audit
must take place.

1.2

An internal self-assessment against the PSIAS utilising the recommended
CIPFA checklist has been undertaken on an annual basis by the Internal Audit
Consortium Manager and these have concluded compliance with the Standards.

1.3

The PSIAS require that an external assessment of internal audit should be
carried out at least once every 5 years by a qualified, independent assessor
or team. The previous external review took place in 2016.

1.4

The selected assessor (Robin Pritchard from Business Risk Solutions) is
CIPFA qualified and has over 40 years internal audit experience including
being Chief Internal Auditor at Staffordshire County Council and a national
partner responsible for internal audit at a number of professional service firms.
Robin also spent 6 years as a professor of internal audit and risk
management at Birmingham City University. Robin is an experienced External
Quality Assessor and has undertaken over 50 reviews of this nature.

2.

Details of Proposal or Information
Format of the assessment

2.1

The assessment took place throughout May 2021 and was conducted
remotely due to COVID-19. The assessment involved a review of the
Consortium’s documentation, working practices, committee reports and
working paper files. The audit committee chairs and senior managers were
also invited to complete a questionnaire.

2.2

This approach enabled Robin to assess the Internal Audit Consortium’s
conformance with the PSIAS against the recommended checklist and
associated standards.
Results of the Review - Headlines

2.3

The report concludes that the Internal Audit Consortium are delivering internal
audit services to a standard that generally conforms with the PSIAS. There
are no areas where the service does not comply with the standards. This
means that Members can have confidence in the service provided by the audit
team. It is acknowledged that the audit team has significant experience and a

Page 62

range of qualifications allowing a robust internal audit standard to be
maintained and delivered.
2.4

The external review report includes benchmarking against other provision in
both the sector and the wider industry and this shows that the team compares
favourably in comparison with its peers and other sectors (Appendix 1 pages
18 - 20).

2.5

As would be expected, the report has made a number of recommendations
that are aimed at highlighting where further development can be made to
enhance the value of the service being provided.

2.6

The assessor’s full report can be seen at Appendix 1.

Key Points Arising out of the Review
2.7

The key theme throughout the report and associated recommendations is in
relation to enhancing and developing the use of risk- based auditing and
linking more to the council’s own risk management definitions and appetite.

2.8

The recommendations are graded red, amber and green to reflect their
relative importance. There are no red recommendations.

2.9

Feedback from the client questionnaires was extremely positive.

2.10

I am now in the process of finalising an action plan to address the
recommendations arising. Progress against the action plan will then be
included as part of the 2021/22 annual report.

3

Reasons for Recommendation

3.1

To ensure that Members are aware of the results of the external review of
internal audit that is required by the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards.

4

Alternative Options and Reasons for Rejection

4.1

Not Applicable
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DOCUMENT INFORMATION
Appendix No

Title

Appendix 1

External Review of Internal Audit Report June 2021

Background Papers (These are unpublished works which have been relied on to a
material extent when preparing the report. They must be listed in the section below.
If the report is going to Cabinet (NEDDC) or Executive (BDC) you must provide
copies of the background papers)
Click here to enter text.
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Internal Audit Consortium and
Derbyshire Dales District Council
External Quality Assessment
Internal Audit Services
Executive report – June 2021
Page 65

Contents
Opinion
Executive summary
Summary of good practice

3
4
6

Part one
• Findings and recommendations

7

Part two
• Suggestions for enhancement of internal audit service

14

Part three
• Benchmarking

18

Appendices

21
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External Quality Assessment
Internal Audit Consortium and Derbyshire Dales District Council

Opinion

Overall assessment: The Internal Audit Consortium and Derbyshire Dales
District Council are delivering internal audit services to a standard that
generally conforms with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards.
Key matters arising from the review:
▪
▪
▪

▪

The service would benefit by further integration of the use of risk-based internal audit techniques with the risk appetite of its
clients regarding planning and the scoping of engagements,
Developing a clear alignment through working papers for each assignment to focus on the achievement of agreed
Management (Business) objectives through consideration of agreed significant risks and relevant key controls. This would
likely enhance efficiency of the methodology as well as the benefit of and value gained from audit reports.
Consideration should be given to the revision of the basis for expressing internal audit recommendations and opinions in
line with risk impact definitions recognised by each client in Risk Management Policies.
The Head of Internal Audit Annual Report should be enhanced through further development of the inclusion of a summary
of the significant residual risks being faced and those other assurances both internal and external available to the Head of
Internal Audit in reaching an annual opinion.

Good Practice identified during the review
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▪
▪
▪
▪
▪
▪

The team demonstrates effective communication with Officers and members at all clients,
Appropriate attention is given to gaining feedback and demonstration of the quality of services through review of
performance which is routinely presented to Audit Committees,
The Internal Audit team has a strong commitment to training,
The team has constructed an analysis of Assurances available at each of its clients
A Fraud Risk Assessment has been completed and is integrated with the internal audit methodology
Audit planning is supported by appropriately detailed notes of discussions with management.

Executive summary
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The Internal Audit Consortium has developed a standard approach to the delivery of services to three local authorities of
Chesterfield, Bolsover and NE Derbyshire and in addition to this core service, provides management of the internal audit
service at Derbyshire Dales District Council and an outsourced service to Rykneld Homes; this has enabled the team to
develop an appropriate depth and breadth of skills to successfully meet the needs of clients.
Services are provided by a dedicated team of in-house staff, which is headed by Jenny Williams as Internal Audit Consortium
Manager, who assumes the role of Chief Audit Executive (HoIA) for the purposes of this review and regarding all internal
audit appointments.
In 2020/21 services have been impacted by the effects of the pandemic which has led to ‘remote auditing’ being required; this
appears not to have adversely impacted on the methodology but has been reflected in the availability of client staff to engage
whilst dealing with other front-line priorities. A number of vacancies have also been experienced during the year.
The service has continued to respond to the changes of focus in professional standards by developing an increasingly risk
based approach with regard to planning and the completion of assignment work; the Internal Audit Manual has been updated
to reflect this in May 2020.
From an internal audit perspective, considerable further advantage may be gained through increasing recognition of
management objectives and inherent risk, as this will enable internal audit plans and assignments to focus on the value of
‘Control Risk’ and therefore attention on significant key controls and the assurances that have been identified as available.
This represents recognition of those key controls which management feel reduce risk to an acceptable level (risk appetite)
and aligns with other current initiatives within internal audit.
Nevertheless, with a constantly changing risk environment, particularly as the service responds to the changing needs of
clients post COVID-19; there is a need and opportunity for the internal audit service to continue to enhance its delivery
through acting as a catalyst to ensure that robust risk management systems are operational, thereby increasing its awareness
of the assessment of risk at each client and as a consequence informing its own approach.
Current services are assessed to ’generally conform’ with the PSIAS and compare favourably with peers, there are no areas
where the service does not comply with the standards. A series of specific recommendations are made in the report that
follows to reflect building on the existing considerable strengths in relation to resources, competency and delivery in order to
enhance future service delivery.

Overall assessment
RESOURCES

Excelling – Processes in this area are fully
embedded within every-day practices and reflect
best practice that is at least consistent with
PSIAS expectations.

2

COMPETENCY

Established – Processes in this area are
generally compliant with the PSIAS and
embedded within every-day practices; the EQA
has identified a number of areas where further
development would be beneficial.

3

DELIVERY

Established – Processes in this area are
generally compliant with the PSIAS and
embedded within every-day practices; the EQA
has identified a number of areas where further
development would be beneficial.
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1

Summary of good practice identified
within EQA
Good practice identified

Observation

1000

An Internal Audit Charter has been established and agreed
with client Audit Committees (AC).

The combination of the Charter is comprehensive and establishes an
appropriate framework against which internal audit services can be
delivered in accordance with the PSIAS.

1100

Independence and objectivity

A team wide process is in place regarding the identification and
management of potential conflicts and/or declarations of interest.

1311

The service has conducted internal assessment exercises of
its performance.

Performance review is embedded within procedures and supported by
a staff Performance and Development Reviews process which
identifies and supports performance development needs.

2020

Active engagement at Board and management level

Represents the establishment of a good understanding of issues
through interaction with Executive Management and Members.

2030

The need for appropriate internal audit resources is
recognised within internal audit planning processes.

This represents a firm basis for the consideration of the successful
delivery of the internal audit plan and the use of support from other
parties, if required.

2040

A detailed Internal Audit Manual is in place which aligns with
the PSIAS.

Provides the basis for a consistent approach to delivery of internal
audit services delivered through a series of templates.

2060

Reports are produced using a standard template which is
consistently applied. Customer feedback is routinely obtained
at the conclusion of each engagement and at year end.

Demonstration of a consistent approach for communication which is
generally well received by management and the AC’s – effective
follow-up ensures issues are not lost.

2120

Evaluate the potential for the occurrence of fraud and how the
organisation manages fraud risk

Fraud Risk registers have been established at each client and
integrated with the internal audit methodology.

2400

Reports are clear and express opinions in a manner that is
understood by stakeholders.

Reports are produced on a timely basis, with comprehensive detail of
internal audit activity being produced for AC attention including
performance information.

2500

Establish and maintain a system to monitor the disposition of
results communicated to management.

A formal process for follow-up and reporting on actions taken
regarding recommendations has been established.
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PSIAS

Part one

Compliance with the
Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS)
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Resources
Business Vision and Mission, Governance arrangements, Recognition of standards, Charter,
Guidance, Procedures and Supervision, Terms of Engagement, Ethics and business conduct.

Issue identified

1

Recommended action

Internal Audit Charter
Whilst the Charter requires that the HoIA’s Annual Opinion
is correctly expressed in relation to Risk Management,
Governance and Internal Control – there are references in
the Charter and other documentation which simply relate
to ‘internal control’ or the ‘control environment’.

When the Internal Audit Charter and other documentation is next revised
update the requirement for the HoIA to provide an Annual Opinion in the
consistent form of Risk Management, Governance and Internal Control.

PSIAS 1010

2

2020/21 engagement completion
Current year provision has been impacted by Covid and
the team holding a number of vacancies.
At the time of the review, internal audit plan outcomes for
2020/21 were not available other than in the case of
Derbyshire Dales DC, where reference has been made to
the internal auditor being required to undertake other
duties in relation to COVID-19 business grants processes,
queries and government returns. ,

Where these events impact upon completion of the internal audit plan
and therefore the content of the Head of Internal Audit Annual opinion, a
reflection on the advice provided by CIPFA could be beneficially referred
to explain the context and advice provided by the professional body.

PSIAS 2450
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Competency
Internal Audit Manual, Planning and Allocation of staffing, Recruitment (Numbers and skills),
Training (Professional and Technical), Appraisal and Development

Issue identified
1

Recommended action

Audit Planning
The HoIA maintains a spreadsheet-based approach to the
conduct of an audit needs assessment which supports the
development of the annual plan.

This recognises the teams’ judgement of factors relating
to Materiality, Control Environment, Sensitivity,
Management Concern and time since last audit.
None of these factors relates directly to the organisations
risk appetite as expressed in each clients’ risk
management system.

Whist it is recognised that client risk registers contain varying levels of
detail regarding controls and assurances and certainly may not be
comprehensive in terms of covering all risks. Conformance with the
PSIAS would be enhanced by formally recognising the risk appetite of
each client in internal audit planning, particularly where the concept of
‘Control Risk’ ( the assessed difference between Inherent and Residual
risk) is identified.

PSIAS 2010

2

Management Objectives
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The Internal Audit service currently specifies the Audit
Objective as part of the Scoping Document for
engagements although there is inconsistency.
PSIAS 2201 provides advice regarding planning
considerations for engagements and states that:
“In planning the engagement, internal auditors must
consider - The objectives of the activity being reviewed
and the means by which the activity controls its
performance and the significant risks to the activity, its
objectives, resources and operations and the means by
which the potential impact of risk is kept to an acceptable
level”.

The Internal Audit Service should consider focusing each audit on agreed
Management Objectives for the area for review as this would help
structure the engagement on significant risks and align the review with the
associated controls that are designed to mitigate this risk.
In this respect, this may allow greater focus to be provided on ‘what
matters most’ and attention being given to selected controls testing
currently contained within established ‘controls check-lists’.

PSIAS 2200/1

Competency continued
Issue identified
3

Recommended action

Grading of recommendations
Issues on which the audit opinion is based currently reflect High,
Medium or Low ratings for which internal audit has defined what it
considers as events which merit concern at these levels. The
definitions are not currently contained within the internal audit manual
or are included in internal audit reports to support gradings.
This is inconsistent with terminology used by each Council in their
Risk Management Policies where definitions of impact are contained
to varying levels of detail.
The PSIAS uses consistent terminology relating to the identification
and reporting on ‘significant’ risk. And it may therefore be beneficial
for internal audit to align its understanding of significance with that of
each client.

a) It would be beneficial to align future grading of recommendations
with those impact definitions used within the risk management
process relating to each clients’ risk appetite.
Existing clients appear to use either a 4x4 or 5x5 risk matrix and
therefore inclusion within internal audit reports as to how consistent
alignment is achieved would assist in both agreeing the specific risk
focus of each engagement as well in assessing the relative
importance of findings at the exit meeting and in determining an
opinion within assurance reports through use of a consistent
understanding and application of risk.
A simple matrix may be:
IA grade

4x4 matrix

5x5 matrix

High

Catastrophic/Severe

Critical/Major

Medium

Moderate

Moderate

Low

Minor

Unlikely/Rare
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b) Include appropriate explanation of alignment of gradings within the
internal audit manual and provide appropriate training to staff
regarding how this should be implemented.

PSIAS 2120/2201

Competency continued

4

Issue identified

Recommended action

Quality Assurance Improvement Programme (QAIP)
The HoIA currently undertakes an annual self-assessment
process and reports a summary of matters arising to Audit
Committees in the Annual Report.

It would be beneficial to consider drawing together the various
elements of review in a formal QAIP policy and presenting this to Audit
Committees, as such in the Annual Report as required in the PSIAS.

The current process considers matters such as issues arising
from PDR’s, client surveys, ideas from team members and
training requirements in addition to matters arising from
external quality assessments.
At present, each element is maintained separately.

An example policy has been provided.

PSIAS 1300
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Delivery
Client engagement and relationship, Directed led service, Terms of Engagement
(Audit/Assignment Brief), Discussion of assurance and advisory opinions, Reporting at assignment
and strategic levels
Issue identified
1

Recommended action

Risk-based internal audit
The emphasis of the PSIAS concerns significance. Earlier
observations referred to the benefit which may be obtained by
increasing alignment with each Councils risk management
processes.
In this respect current practice:
a) Includes low risk audits in annual audit plans
b) Utilises ‘Control Checklists’ as the basis for audits, and
c) Has a tendency to produce reports that are ‘controls based’
rather than focusing on risks to achievement of identified
management objectives.

Ensure that in all aspects of the internal audit methodology there
is transparent consideration of the significant risks that may
impact upon successful delivery of management objectives.
At an Engagement level this should include identification and
focus on particular risks, to the exclusion of others, where risk
management policies or discussions identify issues of a
potentially catastrophic nature such as safeguarding, health and
safety, legislative compliance, failure to deliver statutory services
or reputational damage.

PSIAS 2010/2300/2060

2

Code of Ethics
Internal Audit reports currently state that the audit has been
conducted in accordance with the Public Sector Internal Audit
Standards.

Increasingly best practice also states that the audit has been
conducted in accordance with the Institute of Internal Auditors
Code of Ethics.
PSIAS Code of Ethics

3

Working papers
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The file review exercise identified different practices in relation to
how the audit working papers were constructed with some
focusing on risks and other more reflective of controls.

Establishing the ‘Golden Thread’ between Management
Objectives, significant risks and key controls should be the basis
of each audit as this would allow the development of a consistent
approach to the conduct of audit engagements and ensure a
focus on significance.
PSIAS 2200/2300

Delivery continued
Issue identified
4

Recommended action

IA Opinions
Internal Audit currently uses four levels of opinion – Substantial,
Reasonable, Limited and Inadequate – definitions of expectations
is provided clarifying the differences between the levels, although
this uses general terminology regarding risk rather than relating
specifically to the risk appetite of each client.
The PSIAS as stated previously emphasises the requirement to
focus on what is ‘significant’ to the achievement of Management
Objectives.

The HoIA should consider rewording basis of overall opinions to
provide increasing clarity regarding how internal auditors should
assess the assurance level provided based on the significance of
the risks identified and the recommendations made.
Where a risk/recommendation of a ‘Critical, Catastrophic or
Severe’ nature is identified this would indicate that at best a
‘Limited Assurance’ opinion should be used.
PSIAS 2410 A1/2060
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Delivery continued
Issue identified
5

Recommended action

Head of Internal Audit Annual Report
The Annual Report provides an evidenced approach regarding the
basis upon which the opinion regarding risk management,
governance and control has been reached and compares
favourably with other practice in the sector.
This includes increasing recognition of significant risk and those
wider sources of assurance that are available to the HoIA in
reaching this opinion.
Whilst risk management systems do not consistently include a
comprehensive analysis of the sources of assurance as a second
line of defence, the internal audit team has made good progress in
identifying routine sources of assurance that are available as well
as compiling a Fraud Risk Assessments for each client.

The Head of Internal Audit should continue to develop the
formality of the Annual Report process building the links between
this report and the Annual Governance Statement.
Inclusion of references to significant risks currently faced by
each client will be of benefit to all stakeholders.
Further consideration should be given to inclusion other sources
of assurances that are available such as that relating to
independent assurance regarding PSN, where these are relevant
to providing evidence regarding the significant risks faced by
each client.

PSIAS 2060/2450
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Part two

Suggested enhancements for consideration
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Suggested Enhancements for
consideration
Issue identified
1.

Exit meeting template
Discussions with management regarding the findings identified
within engagements are discussed with management and based
upon a first draft of the report.

A summary of the discussion is then recorded in a narrative note,
which is then used to produce the final report.
Draft reports can contain misunderstandings or factual inaccuracies
which may detract from the value of a report and which may be
better clarified before time is incurred constructing a report and
recommendations.

2.

It is recognised that the HoIA prefers to use the draft report as
the basis for conducting the exit meeting however it may be
beneficial to introduce a standard template on which to record
findings/recommendations along with draft management
reactions as the audit progresses, as this will both formalise the
approach to arriving at the draft report stage, as well as support
timely feedback and verify any misunderstandings or factual
inaccuracies.
This may represent a more efficient and effective use of time by
all parties rather than wait for production of a draft report to
correct misunderstandings.

Client surveys
Progress has been made in obtaining feedback from auditees
following each audit.

3.

Recommended action

The level of response is similar to that seen in other
organisations and therefore Internal Audit may find it useful to
utilise an application such as Microsoft Forms or Survey
Monkey for collecting feedback, as this can prove to be an
efficient means which helps achieve an early response.

Working Paper review record
Current practice is to evidence supervision of an engagement using
a working paper review template which reflects good practice.
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Other evidence of review is contained on pre-engagement
documentation and at report stage.

It may be beneficial to extend the use of the existing template to
include evidence of the review of pre-audit involvement of the
nominated supervisor as well as approval of the review and
release of draft and final reports.

Suggested Enhancements for
consideration
Issue identified
4.

Recommended action

HoIA Performance Development Review
The current process is managed as required by the policy at
Chesterfield Borough Council with the review being completed by
the Service Director Finance; the Chief Executive reviews and
comments as the managers manager.

The standards suggest that it is good practice for feedback to also
be received from the Chair of the Audit Committee.

As the IA Consortium provides a service to four other
organisations it would be constructive to also invite feedback on
an annual basis from the Chief Executive and Chairs of Audit
Committee from these clients.

PSIAS 1110
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Part three

Benchmarking
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Benchmarking Sector analysis
3

Achievement level
1 - Developing
2 - Established
3 - Excelling

2

Local Government
Consortium

Housing
Private

1

All
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0
Resources

Competency

Delivery

Benchmarking Industry analysis
3
Achievement level
1 - Developing
2 - Established
3 - Excelling

2
Local Government

Consortium
1
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Appendix

1.
2.
3.
4.

Summary of client feedback
Key IPPF/PSIAS standards assessed
Basis for EQA
Grading of recommendations
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Summary stakeholder feedback
Question

Positive
(%)

I understand Internal Audit's role in the organisation and its purpose.

100

Internal Audit is customer focused and understands what the organisation is trying to achieve. Internal Audit considers the
viewpoints of the organisation when planning and undertaking reviews and aims to provide a good balance between
assurance and good practice with opportunities for improvement.

100

Internal audit has a presence in the organisation which is visible and approachable.

100

The Internal Audit team provides a flexible and reliable service which adds value through the assurance audits and
additional work it undertakes.

100

Internal Audit makes you aware of any significant issues that occur during an audit on a timely basis and you have the
opportunity to respond or provide additional information.
Internal audit has the skills to provide appropriate assurance and advice to meet our needs?

Good practice and ideas from other organisations are shared through audits, day to day contact, meetings or other
engagement methods.

Average

93

Negative
(%)

7

100
93

7

98%

2%
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Conclusion:
Feedback from stakeholders confirms that the Consortium is considered to provide a high-quality internal audit service whose brief
is clearly understood and the assurance and advice that is provided is well regarded.
Those responses where negative feedback has been received may reflect other findings of the review in so far as they reflect the
potential to increase recognition of management objectives and inherent risk through continuing to develop client relationships to
mutual benefit.

Key PSIAS Standards assessed
(for benchmarking purposes)
Stan
dard

Focus
Purpose, Authority and
Responsibility

The purpose, authority, and responsibility of the internal audit activity must be formally defined in an internal audit charter,
consistent with the Definition of Internal Auditing, the Code of Ethics, and the Standards. The chief audit executive must
periodically review the internal audit charter and present it to senior management and the board for approval.

1100

Independence and
Objectivity

The internal audit activity must be independent, and internal auditors must be objective in performing their work.

2010

Planning

The chief audit executive must establish risk-based plans to determine the priorities of the internal audit activity, consistent with
the organisation’s goals.

2020

Communication and
approval

The chief audit executive must communicate the internal audit activity’s plans and resource requirements, including significant
interim changes, to senior management and the board for review and approval. The chief audit executive must also communicate
the impact of resource limitations.

2030

Resource Management

The chief audit executive must ensure that internal audit resources are appropriate, sufficient, and effectively deployed to achieve
the approved plan.

2040

Policies

The chief audit executive must establish policies and procedures to guide the internal audit activity.

2050

Co-ordination

The chief audit executive should share information and coordinate activities with other internal and external providers of
assurance and consulting services to ensure proper coverage and minimize duplication of efforts.

2060

Reporting

The chief audit executive must report periodically to senior management and the board on the internal audit activity’s purpose,
authority, responsibility, and performance relative to its plan. Reporting must also include significant risk exposures and control
issues, including fraud risks, governance issues, and other matters needed or requested by senior management and the board.

2200

Engagement planning

Internal auditors must develop and document a plan for each engagement, including the engagement’s objectives, scope, timing,
and resource allocations.

2300

Work programme

Internal auditors must identify, analyse, evaluate, and document sufficient information to achieve the engagement’s objectives.

2400

Communicating results

Internal auditors must communicate the results of engagements

2450

Overall opinions

When an overall opinion is issued, it must take into account the expectations of senior management, the board, and other
stakeholders and must be supported by sufficient, reliable, relevant, and useful information.
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1000

Basis for EQA
Compliance with IPPF/PSIAS
▪ Resources
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Business Vision and Mission, Governance arrangements,
Recognition of standards, Guidance, Procedures and
Supervision, Terms of Engagement, Ethics and business
conduct.
▪ Competency
Charter, Internal Audit Manual, Planning and Allocation of
staffing, Recruitment (Numbers and skills), Training
(Professional and Technical), Appraisal and Development
▪ Delivery
Client engagement and relationship, Directed led service, Terms
of Engagement (Audit/Assignment Brief), Discussion of
assurance and advisory opinions, Reporting at assignment and
strategic levels

Basis for overall opinion
Generally Conforms means the evaluator has concluded that the relevant structures, policies, and procedures of the activity,
as well as the processes by which they are applied, comply with the requirements of the individual Standard or element of the
Code of Ethics in all material respects. For the sections and major categories, this means that there is general conformance to a
majority of the individual Standards or elements of the Code of Ethics, and at least partial conformance to the others, within the
section/category. There may be significant opportunities for improvement, but these must not represent situations where the
activity has not implemented the Standards or the Code of Ethics, has not applied them effectively, or has not achieved their
stated objectives. As indicated above, general conformance does not require complete/perfect conformance, the ideal situation,
successful practice, etc.
Partially Conforms means the evaluator has concluded that the activity is making good-faith efforts to comply with the
requirements of the individual Standard or element of the Code of Ethics, section, or major category, but falls short of achieving
some major objectives. These will usually represent significant opportunities for improvement in effectively applying the
Standards or Code of Ethics and/or achieving their objectives. Some deficiencies may be beyond the control of the activity and
may result in recommendations to senior management or the board of the organisation.
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Does Not Conform means the evaluator has concluded that the activity is not aware of, is not making good-faith efforts to
comply with, or is failing to achieve many/all of the objectives of the individual Standard or element of the Code of Ethics,
section, or major category. These deficiencies will usually have a significant negative impact on the activity’s effectiveness and
its potential to add value to the organisation. These may also represent significant opportunities for improvement, including
actions by senior management or the board. Often, the most difficult evaluation is the distinction between general and partial. It
is a judgment call keeping in mind the definition of general conformance above. Carefully read the Standard to determine if
basic conformance exists. The existence of opportunities for improvement, better alternatives, or other successful practices do
not reduce a generally conforms rating.
Source: Institute of Internal Auditors (2016)

Grading of recommendations
▪ The grading of recommendations is intended to reflect the relative
importance to the relevant standard within the Public Sector
Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS).
Recommendation
grading

Explanation

Enhance

The internal audit service must enhance its practice in order to demonstrate
transparent alignment with the relevant PSIAS standards in order to
demonstrate a contribution to the achievement of the organisations’
objectives in relation to risk management, governance and control.

Review

The Internal audit service should review its approach in this area to better
reflect the application of the PSIAS.

Consider

The internal audit service should consider whether revision of its approach
merits attention in order to improve the efficiency and effectiveness of the
delivery of services
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▪ In grading our recommendations, we have considered the wider
environment in terms of both the degree of transformation that is
currently taking place as well as our assessment of the level of risk
maturity that currently exists, as these will have a consequence for
the conduct of internal audit planning as well as subsequent
communication.

Agenda Item 5c
North East Derbyshire District Council
Audit and Corporate Governance Scrutiny Committee
22nd September 2021
Implementation of Internal Audit Recommendations
Report of the Internal Audit Consortium Manager
Classification:

This report is public

Report By:

Internal Audit Consortium Manager

Contact Officer:

Jenny.Williams@ne-Derbyshire.gov.uk

PURPOSE
To present, for members’ information, a summary of the internal audit
recommendations made and implemented for the financial years 2018/19 2020/21 to date.

RECOMMENDATIONS
1.

That the report be noted.
Approved by the Portfolio Holder – Councillor Paul Parkin

IMPLICATIONS
Finance and Risk:
Details:

Yes☒

No ☐

The implementation of internal audit recommendations helps to ensure that there are
effective controls in place to reduce the risk of fraud and error.
On Behalf of the Section 151 Officer
Legal (including Data Protection):
Details:

Yes☐

No ☒

On Behalf of the Solicitor to the Council

Staffing:

Yes☐

No ☒
Page 91

Details:
Click here to enter text.

On behalf of the Head of Paid Service

DECISION INFORMATION
Decision Information
Is the decision a Key Decision?
No
A Key Decision is an executive decision which has a
significant impact on two or more District wards or
which results in income or expenditure to the Council
above the following thresholds:
BDC:
Revenue - £75,000 ☐ Capital - £150,000 ☒
NEDDC:
Revenue - £100,000 ☐ Capital - £250,000 ☐
☒ Please indicate which threshold applies
Is the decision subject to Call-In?
(Only Key Decisions are subject to Call-In)

No

District Wards Significantly Affected

None

Consultation:
Leader / Deputy Leader ☐ Cabinet / Executive ☐
SAMT ☐
Relevant Service Manager ☒
Members ☐ Public ☐ Other ☐

Yes
Details:
Ward Members

Links to Council Ambition (BDC)/Council Plan (NED) priorities or Policy
Framework including Climate Change, Equalities, and Economics and Health
implications.
The implementation of Internal audit recommendations help to ensure that the
Council is delivering high quality, cost effective services.

REPORT DETAILS
1

Background

1.1

Internal Audit make recommendations to improve the governance, risk and
control processes in place. It is important to monitor the implementation of
these recommendations to improve the control environment and to reduce the
risk of fraud and error.
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2.

Details of Proposal or Information

2.1

This report is to inform Members of the Audit and Corporate Governance
Scrutiny Committee of the number of internal audit recommendations made
and the progress in respect of implementing them.

2.2

Appendix 1 provides an analysis of the number of recommendations made
and implemented for the financial years 2018/19 – 2020/21 to date. The table
also summarises the number of recommendations that have been
implemented and those that are outstanding. Below this the table details every
outstanding recommendation.

2.3

No high priority recommendations are outstanding. There are however 12
medium priority recommendations from 2019/20 and 5 from 2020/21
outstanding. As operations start to return to normal officers should now revisit
these recommendations to progress their implementation.

3

Reasons for Recommendation

3.1

To inform Members of the internal audit recommendations made and
outstanding so that it can be assessed if appropriate and timely action is being
taken.

4

Alternative Options and Reasons for Rejection

4.1

Not Applicable

DOCUMENT INFORMATION
Appendix No

Title

Appendix 1

Summary of Internal Audit Recommendations Made and
Implemented
Background Papers (These are unpublished works which have been relied on to a
material extent when preparing the report. They must be listed in the section below.
If the report is going to Cabinet (NEDDC) or Executive (BDC) you must provide
copies of the background papers)
Click here to enter text.
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North East Derbyshire District Council
Summary of Internal Audit Recommendations made and implemented 2018/19 – 2020/21

Recommendations Made

2018/19

2019/20

2020/21

Number of High Priority

5

1

0

Number of Medium Priority

47

30

21

Number of Low priority

82

43

33

Total

134

74

54

Recommendations
Implemented

127

50

21

High Recommendations
Outstanding

0

0

0

Medium Recommendations
Outstanding

1

12

5

Low Recommendations
Outstanding

6

12

8

Not overdue yet

0

0

20

Total Overdue
Recommendations

7

24

13

95%

68%

62%

Percentage due implemented
Page 94

1

North East Derbyshire
2018/19
Report
Ref
N004
N024
N027

Audit

Directorate

Conclusion

Money Laundering
Premises & Personal
Licences
Fly Tipping

People

Reasonable

Recommendations
High Medium Low
2
4

Place
Place

Reasonable
Reasonable

Total

1

3

7
10

1

5

21

Total

Not
Overdue

Overdue

Implemented

6

4(1M 3L)

2

7
14

2L
1L

5
13

27

7

20

2019/20
Report
Ref
N003
N010
N014
N016
N019

Page 95

N020
N023
Total

Audit
Business Continuity &
Emergency Planning
Gifts and Hospitality
Commercial and Industrial
Property Rents
Transformation Agenda
Members IT Equipment
Coney Green & Midway
Business Centres
Transport

Directorate

Conclusion

Recommendations
High Medium Low

Total

Place
People

Substantial
Reasonable

1
2

4
7

5
9

1M
7 (1M 6L)

4
2

Place
People
People

Substantial
Reasonable
Reasonable

3
4
3

1

5
4
3

2 (1M 1L)
4M
3M

3

Place
Place

Reasonable
Reasonable

2
8
23

4
1
17

6
9
41

6 (2M 4L)
1L
24

1

1
2

Not
Overdue

Overdue

Implemented

8
17

2020/21
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Report
Ref

Audit

N001

Data Protection

N002

Council Tax

N003
N004

Cash and Banking
CIPFA Financial
Management Code

N005

Procurement

N006

Elections

N007

Asset Management

N008

Climate Change

N009

Corporate Targets

N010

Sundry Debtors

N011

Dog Warden Service

N012

Disabled Facilities Grants

N013

Street Cleansing
Leisure Services Direct
Debits
Laptops and Removable

N014
N015

Directorate
Corporate
Resources
Corporate
Resources
Corporate
Resources
Corporate
Resources
Corporate
Resources
Corporate
Resources
Env &
Enforcement
Corporate
Resources
Corporate
Resources
Corporate
Resources
Env &
Enforcement
Env &
Enforcement
Corporate
Resources
Corporate
Resources
Corporate

Conclusion

Recommendations
High Medium Low

Total

Not
Overdue

Overdue

2

Implemented

Substantial

3

3

1

Substantial

2

2

Substantial

1

1

1
3

2L

Substantial

1

2

3

Reasonable

5

1

6

1

1

1

3

Substantial

2

2

Substantial

1

1

Substantial

2

2

Substantial

2

2

2

Substantial

3

3

3

1

1

2

2

1
4

1
6

Substantial
Substantial

2

Substantial
Substantial
Reasonable
3

5 (4M 1L)

1
1

1

2
2L

1
2L

2
1
6

N016
N017
N018
N019

Media
Mobile Phones &
Communications
Social Media
Network Security and
Policies
Planning Processes and
Appeals

Resources
Corporate
Resources
Corporate
Resources
Corporate
Resources
Corporate
Resources

Reasonable

1

3

4

2 2 (1M 1L)

Reasonable

4

2

6

1

Reasonable

2

1

3

3

Reasonable

3

3

2

54

20

Total

0
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4

21

33

5

1
13

21

NEDDC Outstanding Recommendations as at 31st August 2021
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Audit and date audit
completed

Recommendation
Outstanding

Money Laundering – June 2018

Once the Anti-Money
Medium
Laundering policy has been
December 2018
updated and approved (as per
R1 and R2 above), staff with key
roles should be made fully
aware of their associated
responsibilities and ensure
compliance with and awareness
of the policy going forward. The
policy should also be made
available to wider employees via
the intranet.

Money Laundering – June 2018

Reporting of Money Laundering
incidents and limits of cash that
can be accepted needs to be
consistent across all staff
guidance and related
policies/policy to ensure
potential issues are promptly
dealt with in line with AML
regulations.

Low

A training programme/matrix to
be documented in line with the

Low

Money Laundering – June 2018

Priority and
Original Target
Date

December 2018

5

Managers Comment

Audit and date audit
completed

Money Laundering – June 2018

Premises & Personal Licences –
March 2019
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Premises & Personal Licences –

Recommendation
Outstanding

Priority and
Original Target
Date

new regulations (previous
training date, records for scope
and effectiveness of training)
and rolled out for employee’s
who are working in the “potential
risk areas” to keep them
updated and refresh their
knowledge.

December 2018

The Anti-Money Laundering
Compliance Officer (as
recommended as part of R2)
should undertake a periodic
review of payments received
into NEDDC and BDC sites.
This should identify any regular
or large payments of cash with a
view to highlighting and
reporting any potential instances
of money laundering.

Low

To be compliant with legislation,
ensure registers of licences are
available and published as soon
as possible
Establish a procedure to identify
licences that are no longer

Low

Managers Comment

December 2018

December 2019
Low
6

Web connectors have been purchased from
Uniform to enable the licensing registers to
be published online. This has been delayed
by the Covid 19 pandemic. On hold
This work is low priority. It had commenced
but has now been affected by the Covid 19

Audit and date audit
completed

Recommendation
Outstanding

Priority and
Original Target
Date

Managers Comment

March 2019

operational and decide on an
appropriate timeframe /
regularity for the committee to
revoke these
It should be ensured that the
new legislation regarding Duty
of Care is reflected within the
existing Fly Tipping Policy.

July 2020

pandemic and is on hold.

Low

The policy review has not been completed
pending service review. It will begin when the
current Environmental Health Services
Review recommendations are implemented
and staff are n post. However, given the
current priorities in the service and the fact
that the approach to duty of care is
consistent and well understood, then this is
considered a low priority.
In terms of Business Continuity, in order to
meet the requirements of the Civil
Contingencies Act 2004 local authorities are
required to have in place a corporate
business continuity plan and a register of
priority functions, which we have. The
service area BC plans are more of an
additional level of best practice that some
local authorities in Derbyshire use and some
that decide not to.

Fly tipping May 2019

Business Continuity and
Emergency Planning – July
2019

December 2019

To inform the next review of the Medium
Strategic Alliance Corporate
April 2020
Business Continuity Plan,
service area Business
Continuity Plans are created /
revisited (including key contacts)
with the support of the Senior
Emergency Planning Officer.
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Based on the current situation and the fact
that there have recently been some structural
changes, the way the authority works has
changed dramatically. My recommendation
7

Audit and date audit
completed

Recommendation
Outstanding

Priority and
Original Target
Date

Managers Comment

will be that the corporate business continuity
plan will be updated in light of Covid-19 and
structural changes, and that I look at, in
consultation with Karen, the suitability and
effectiveness of having service area BC
plans moving forward, and if they are to be
continued to look at further training needs.
Gifts and Hospitality – October
2019

Gifts and Hospitality – October
2019

Gifts and Hospitality – October
2019
Gifts and Hospitality – October
2019
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Consideration be made to
adding an indication on the
declaration form if the donor has
any existing/potential contracts
or partnership links to the
authority
to
ensure
transparency.
Consideration be given to
publishing the Gifts & Hospitality
register on the NEDDC website
as part of the transparency
agenda.
Consideration be given to
adopting a NEDDC gifts &
hospitality form/guidance or
adopting the BDC documents.
Development of the “Do it online
gifts & hospitality declaration
and declaration of interests
forms” be
undertaken by
Officers and Members with

Low

Delayed – DOI form review will take place
and be rolled out May 21

February 2020

Low

Extended by SAMT

February 2020

Medium
February 2020
Low
February 2020

8

Extended by SAMT

Audit and date audit
completed

Recommendation
Outstanding

Gifts and Hospitality – October
2019

authorisation as appropriate.
Sponsorship and advertising is
considered for inclusion on the
annual declaration.

Gifts and Hospitality – October
2019

Gifts and Hospitality – October
2019

Industrial and Commercial
Property Rents – November
2019

Priority and
Original Target
Date

Managers Comment

Low

Legal Services will keep a centralised
register

February 2020

Chair’s charity processes are
examined
to
ensure
that
appropriate separation of duties
controls are in place, registers
held and best practice on
acceptance or rejection of
donations
issues
are
considered.
A
standardised
officer
declaration of interests form is
considered
as
a
library
document to ensure consistency
of recorded data.
To ensure the Council optimises
rental income, rent reviews as
part of the lease renewal
process should be undertaken
promptly; the process of which
should be embedded within the
overarching operational day to
day revised procedures.
Restated.

Low

Excel spreadsheet to be set up
separation of duties for verification.

with

February 2020

Low

Will take place as part of MODGOV roll out

February 2020

Low
April 2020
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9

No changes currently within the availability of
staff resources – undertaking of reviews and
inspection regime impractical within current
health crisis.

Audit and date audit
completed

Recommendation
Outstanding

Priority and
Original Target
Date

Managers Comment

Industrial and Commercial
Property Rents – November
2019

Complex arrears cases should
be closely monitored and
evidence of discussions with all
parties retained. In particular,
decisions relating to account
D000166 (Holmes) should be
made to prevent the level of
debt outstanding from
increasing and becoming
uncollectible.

Medium

Liaising with Revenues and legal sections to
address current historic debt cases to the
point of resolution or to recommend for write
– off.

Transformation Agenda –
December 2019

Further work is required to
embed the Transformation
Agenda principles within both
BDC & NEDDC. The continued
development of the project
management principles is
required to ensure that the
principles of the change
requirements are known and
that projects are progressed.
Regular communications are
required to ensure that staff are
fully aware of the
Transformation Agenda and its
purpose and progress.
Communications should include
examples of completed projects
together with the efficiencies
gained.

Medium

Transformation Agenda –
December 2019

April 2020

October 2020

Medium
October 2020
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10

Audit and date audit
completed

Recommendation
Outstanding

Transformation Agenda –
December 2019

Councillors, Managers and Staff Medium
should be encouraged to
provide feedback and comments October 2020
regarding the Transformation
Agenda as it develops and
becomes embedded into both
BDC and NEDDC. These
communications should be
acknowledged and progress
reported back to the both the
individual making the comment
and more generally authority
wide, this could be carried out
within the Extranet environment.
Management should consider
Medium
supplementing and improving
October 2020
the Extranet facilities and web
pages to provide improved
communication with Members
and staff concerning the
purpose, progress and adoption
of Transformation ideas across
both authorities.
Due to the financial risk
Medium
associated with unreturned
December 2020
Council owned I.T. equipment
and to conform to the Members
ICT Charter, responsibilities for
retrieving all I.T. equipment from
departing Members needs to be
11

Transformation Agenda –
December 2019

Members IT Equipment –
February 2020

Priority and
Original Target
Date

Managers Comment
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Audit and date audit
completed

Members IT Equipment –
February 2020

Members IT Equipment –
February 2020

Coney Green and Midway
Business Centres – March 2020

Recommendation
Outstanding
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clarified and a procedure
defined e.g. escalation to senior
management/Leader and/or
apply charges
When equipment is issued or
returned, liaison with I.T. and
Accountancy is required to
ensure all relevant paperwork is
completed e.g. device transfer
forms AND all records are
updated e.g. EE, Support Works
and spreadsheets
Members should be formally
reminded to submit their
equipment for a regular health
check in accordance with the
Members ICT Charter. Where
equipment is not received on an
annual basis, management
should liaise with the Leaders at
both Councils for following up
with individual Members.
To review the process of
monitoring EPC’s due for
renewal through the Asset
Management Group to ensure
those nearing expiry are
actioned promptly to enable full
compliance to Energy Efficiency
(Private Rented Sector)

Priority and
Original Target
Date

Medium
December 2020

Medium
December 2020

Low
March 2021

12

Managers Comment

Audit and date audit
completed

Recommendation
Outstanding

Priority and
Original Target
Date

(England and Wales)
Regulations 2015 (Referred to
as MEES) by 2023.
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Coney Green and Midway
Business Centres – March 2020

The lease renewal process
Medium
should commence at the earliest
opportunity ensuring appropriate August 2020
property inspections have taken
place and that a signed lease is
held effective for the renewal
date. Where existing tenants are
allocated an additional unit, the
tenant should not be granted
access until the lease (or licence
of temporary occupation) has
been agreed and signed.

Coney Green and Midway
Business Centres – March 2020

Subject to the internal
appointment of a RICS qualified
surveyor, checks of the rental
valuation should be evident on
all tenants’ files.

Low

Coney Green and Midway
Business Centres – March 2020

For transparency, the rationale
for not charging a rent deposit
should be recorded.

Low

Coney Green and Midway
Business Centres – March 2020

To safeguard the Council
against potential losses and to
ensure lease requirements are

Medium

December 2020

March 2020

13

Managers Comment

Audit and date audit
completed
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Recommendation
Outstanding

Priority and
Original Target
Date

being met, the process
introduced to confirm that
incoming tenants hold an
appropriate level of insurance
cover and a valid Fire Risk
Assessment (compliance with
the Regulatory Reform (Fire
Safety) Order 2005) should be
extended to record all requests
made. Checks of insurance
should be made on an annual
basis thereafter and efforts to
collect related documents
should prioritise tenancies
assessed as of higher risk.

December 2020

Coney Green and Midway
Business Centres – March 2020

To review, update and increase
the web-presence of Coney
Green and Midway to promote
Business Centre facilities and
services available. A review of
charges for the virtual office /
mailing address service should
run concurrently.

Low

Transport – April 2020

To comply with the Goods
Vehicles (Licensing of
Operators) Act 1995 and to fulfil
the requirements of the Traffic
Commissioner, a second named

Low

Managers Comment

December 2020

December 2020

14

Arrangements are in place for Streetscene
and Waste Service managers to undertake
OCR (CPC) Transport manager training and
qualification November 2021 during which
time the Joint Head of Streetscene remains

Audit and date audit
completed

Council Tax - July 2020

Council Tax - July 2020

Procurement – September 2020

Procurement – September 2020

Recommendation
Outstanding

Priority and
Original Target
Date

contact who works closely with
the Transport section, should be
allocated to the Operator ‘O’
Licence.
Accounts in credit should be
examined to determine whether
refund request forms require to
be issued, or whether it is
appropriate to write off those
balances. Those credit balances
aged 6 years+ (and where no
response to an overpayment
notification has been received),
are identified annually and then
written off.
Periodic reviews of accounts
placed on recovery override
should be undertaken to ensure
that they only remain at this
status for only as long as is
necessary.

Managers Comment

the single named person on the Council’s
operator licence.

Low
October 2020

Low
October 2020
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Perform should be routinely
Low
updated to reflect the
November 2020
implementation status of audit
recommendations.
Once the relevant revisions to
Medium
the budget and policy framework
are completed and the updates
15

Audit and date audit
completed

Procurement – September 2020

Procurement – September 2020
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Recommendation
Outstanding

Priority and
Original Target
Date

to the procurement rules are
made, the latest version of the
Procurement Strategy should be
formally approved and made
available on the Councils’
Extranet.
The Procurement Manager
should ensure that the training
information previously provided
to Gedling Borough Council is
adapted and delivered across
both Bolsover and North East
Derbyshire District Councils with
the provision to repeat the
training annually or biennially as
a refresher for designated
operational managers and staff,
this should be delivered through
the development of a webinar if
current restrictions continue.
The Procurement Manager
should design and seek the
approval of the Head of Finance
for key performance targets for
the Procurement team, the
approved targets should then be
incorporated within the Perform
system to allow actual outturns
to be measured against targeted
performance.

TBC

Medium
TBC

Medium
December 2020

16

Managers Comment

Audit and date audit
completed

Recommendation
Outstanding

Procurement – September 2020

The Procurement Manager
Medium
should ensure that available
July 2021
resources are deployed to
proactively review spend
analyses and compare to the
contracts register and In-tend to
identify expenditure where there
is no formal record of the
procurement process held
centrally, these cases should be
followed up with the relevant
service managers to ensure
future consultation with the
Procurement team.
The move to IDOX for a
Medium
centralised asset register is
April 21
progressed and an action plan
including timescales is
prepared.
Climate change should be
Low
included on service risk
February 2021
registers and consideration be
given to including it on the
Strategic Risk Register.
Consideration should be given
Low
to adding Climate Change as a
February 2021
consideration to all Committee
reports
Procedures should identify that
Low
credit notes should not be raised
17

Asset Management – October
2020

Climate Change – October 2020

Climate Change – October 2020
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Sundry Debtors – November

Priority and
Original Target
Date

Managers Comment

IDOX have been engaged to provide training,
data transfer and consultancy services in
connection with implementing the ‘works’
module. A delivery/training plan is currently
being developed

Audit and date audit
completed

Recommendation
Outstanding

Priority and
Original Target
Date

2020

on inactive accounts and refund
processes should occur in these
instances.

31 July 21

Sundry Debtors – November
2020

A report of items still not
actioned after a set time after
first being put on hold is
considered for escalation
purposes.

Low

Mobile phones &
Communications – March 21

Device database records are
compared to billing breakdowns
to ensure accuracy and
investigate discrepancies.
Where SIM/IMEI numbers are
not recorded these details
should be sought if possible.

Medium

Mobile phones &
Communications – March 21

31 July 21

30 June 21
Low
30 June 21
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18

Managers Comment

Agenda Item 5d
North East Derbyshire District Council
Audit and Corporate Governance Scrutiny Committee
22nd September 2021
Internal Audit Consortium Summary of Progress on the 2021/22 Internal
Audt Plan
Report of the Internal Audit Consortium Manager
Classification:

This report is public

Report By:

Internal Audit Consortium Manager

Contact Officer:

Jenny.Williams@ne-Derbyshire.gov.uk

PURPOSE
To present, for members’ information, a progress report in respect of the
2021/22 Internal Audit Plan.

RECOMMENDATIONS
1.

That the report be noted.
Approved by the Portfolio Holder – Councillor Paul Parkin

IMPLICATIONS
Finance and Risk:
Details:

Yes☒

No ☐

Internal audit reviews help to ensure that processes and controls are operating
effectively thereby contributing to ensuring that value for money is obtained.
On Behalf of the Section 151 Officer
Legal (including Data Protection):
Details:

Yes☒

No ☐

The core work of internal audit is derived from the statutory responsibility under the
Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 which requires the Council to “undertake an
effective internal audit to evaluate the effectiveness of its risk management, control
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and governance processes, taking in to account the Public Sector Internal Audit
Standrads or guidance”.
On Behalf of the Solicitor to the Council

Staffing:
Details:

Yes☐

No ☒

Click here to enter text.

On behalf of the Head of Paid Service

DECISION INFORMATION
Decision Information
Is the decision a Key Decision?
No
A Key Decision is an executive decision which has a
significant impact on two or more District wards or
which results in income or expenditure to the Council
above the following thresholds:
BDC:
Revenue - £75,000 ☐ Capital - £150,000 ☒
NEDDC:
Revenue - £100,000 ☐ Capital - £250,000 ☐
☒ Please indicate which threshold applies
Is the decision subject to Call-In?
(Only Key Decisions are subject to Call-In)

No

District Wards Significantly Affected

None

Consultation:
Leader / Deputy Leader ☐ Cabinet / Executive ☐
SAMT ☐
Relevant Service Manager ☒
Members ☐ Public ☐ Other ☐

Yes
Details:
Ward Members

Links to Council Ambition (BDC)/Council Plan (NED) priorities or Policy
Framework including Climate Change, Equalities, and Economics and Health
implications.
Internal audit reviews help to ensure that the Council is delivering high quality, cost
effective services.
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REPORT DETAILS
1

Background

1.1

The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards require that the Internal Audit
Consortium Manager reports periodically to the Audit and Corporate
Governance Scrutiny Committee in respect of performance against the audit
plan. Significant risk and control issues should also be reported.

2.

Details of Proposal or Information

2.1

Appendix 1 is a summary of reports issued between the 10th July 2021 and
the 27th August 2021. The Appendix shows for each report the level of
assurance given and the number of recommendations made / agreed where a
full response has been received. This provides an overall assessment of the
system’s ability to meet its objectives and manage risk. The definitions of the
assurance levels used can be seen at Appendix 2.

2.2

In this period 2 reports have been issued both with substantial assurance.

2.3

Reports are issued as Drafts with five working days being allowed for the
submission of any factual changes, after which time the report is designated as
a Final Report. Fifteen working days are allowed for the return of the
Implementation Plan.

2.4

Appendix 3 provides full details of the audits completed and audits in progress
in respect of 2021/22. We are currently slightly behind on the 2021/22 internal
audit plan because: The completion of the 2020/21 internal audit plan ran into 2021/22.
 The NEDDC Senior Auditor left and there was a short recruitment gap

2.5

The Consortium is now fully staffed again and concentrating on the 2021/22
internal audit plan.

2.6

No issues arising relating to fraud have been identified.

3

Reasons for Recommendation

3.1

To inform Members of progress on the 2021/22 Internal Audit Plan and to
provide details of the Audit Reports issued to date.

3.2

To comply with the requirements of the Public Sector Internal Audit
Standards.

4

Alternative Options and Reasons for Rejection

4.1

None
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DOCUMENT INFORMATION
Appendix No

Title

Appendix 1

Summary of Internal Audit reports issued in respect of the
2021/22 Internal Audit Plan between the 10th July 2021 and the
27th August 2021
Appendix 2
Assurance Definitions
Appendix 3
Progress on the 2021/22 Internal Audit Plan
Background Papers (These are unpublished works which have been relied on to a
material extent when preparing the report. They must be listed in the section below.
If the report is going to Cabinet (NEDDC) or Executive (BDC) you must provide
copies of the background papers)
Click here to enter text.
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Appendix 1

NORTH EAST DERBYSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL
Summary of Internal Audit Reports Issued between the 10th July 21 and the 27th August 2021
Report
Ref No.

Report Title

N001

Health & Safety

N002

Payroll

Scope and Objectives

Assurance
Provided

To ensure that the
Council’s health & safety
arrangements comply
with legislation, to review
COVID -19 H & S
arrangements
To review and assess
the controls and
procedures in place

H = High Priority M = Medium Priority L = Low Priority
Note 1

Response not due at time of writing report
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1

Date

Number of
Recommendations

Report
Issued

Response
Due

Made

Accepted

Substantial

25/8/21

15/9/21

2 (1M
1L)

Note 1

Substantial

26/8/21

20/9/21

4 (1M
3L)

Note 1

Appendix 2

Current Assurance Levels
Assurance Level

Definition

Substantial
Assurance

There is a sound system of controls in place, designed to
achieve the system objectives. Controls are being consistently
applied and risks well managed.

Reasonable
Assurance

The majority of controls are in place and operating effectively,
although some control improvements are required. The
system should achieve its objectives. Risks are generally well
managed.

Limited Assurance Certain important controls are either not in place or not
operating effectively. There is a risk that the system may not
achieve its objectives. Some key risks were not well managed.
Inadequate
Assurance

There are fundamental control weaknesses, leaving the
system/service open to material errors or abuse and exposes
the Council to significant risk. There is little assurance of
achieving the desired objectives.

:

Control levels that were used until end March 17

Control Level

Definition

Good

A few minor recommendations (if any).

Satisfactory

Minimal risk; a few areas identified where changes would be
beneficial.

Marginal

A number of areas have been identified for improvement.

Unsatisfactory

Unacceptable risks identified, changes should be made.

Unsound

Major risks identified; fundamental improvements are required.

1
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Appendix 3

North East Derbyshire District Council Progress on the Internal
Audit Plan 2021/22
Complete
In progress
Joint Audit with BDC

2021/22
Days

Main Financial Systems
Main Accounting / Budgetary Control / MTFP

15

Creditor Payments (key controls)

10

Debtors (key controls)

10

Treasury Management

15

Council Tax (key controls)

10

NNDR

20

Housing Benefits

18

Payroll

15

Business Grants

15

Total Main Financial Systems

128

Other Operational Audits

2021/22

Committee Processes

8

Food Hygiene

12

Grounds Maintenance

8

Homelessness

12

Insurance

10

Killamarsh Leisure Centre

13

Section 106

12

Total Operational Areas

75

Rykneld Homes

97

1
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IT Related
Disaster Recovery

6

IT Transformation Programme / Digital Agenda

8

Total IT

14
2021/22

Fraud and Corruption
National Fraud Initiative

5

Total Fraud & Corruption

5

Corporate / Cross Cutting Issues
Business Continuity
Corporate Governance / Assurance Statement
Corporate Targets
Financial Advice / working groups
Safeguarding
Ethics
Health and Safety
Risk Management
Transformation Agenda

8
2
10
12
8
10
12
7
10

Total Corporate/Cross Cutting Issues

79

Special Investigations / Contingency
Apprenticeships / training

43
30

Audit Committee / Client Liaison

15

Grand Total

486

Reserve Areas
Taxi Licences
VAT
Sickness absence
Leisure financial
Cemeteries
IT Disposal of old equipment
********Waste Management – requested by NEDDC Audit Cttee to complete this year in
respect of new recycling arrangements
2
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Agenda Item 5e
North East Derbyshire District Council
Audit and Corporate Governance Scrutiny Committee
22nd September 2021
Review of Internal Audit Charter
Report of the Internal Audit Consortium Manager
Classification:

This report is public

Report By:

Internal Audit Consortium Manager

Contact Officer:

Jenny.Williams@ne-Derbyshire.gov.uk

PURPOSE
To report to Members for information and approval the results of a review of
the Internal Audit Charter. The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS)
state that the Head of Internal Audit must periodically review the Internal Audit
Charter and present it to the relevant Committee for approval.

RECOMMENDATION
1. That Members note the outcome of the review of the Internal Audit Charter.
2. That subject to any comments Members may wish to make, that the Internal
Audit Charter be agreed.
3. That the agreed Internal Audit Charter be reviewed in a years’ time or sooner
in the event of any significant changes being made to the Public Sector
Internal Audit Standards

Approved by the Portfolio Holder – Councillor Paul Parkin
IMPLICATIONS
Finance and Risk:
Details:

Yes☒

No ☐

The re-adoption of the Internal Audit Charter will help to ensure that the Internal
Audit Consortium continues to provide a quality service in line with the PSIAS
reviewing risk management, governance and internal control processes.
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On Behalf of the Section 151 Officer
Legal (including Data Protection):
Details:

No ☒

Yes☐

On Behalf of the Solicitor to the Council

Staffing:
Details:

Yes☐

No ☒

Click here to enter text.

On behalf of the Head of Paid Service

DECISION INFORMATION
Decision Information
Is the decision a Key Decision?
No
A Key Decision is an executive decision which has a
significant impact on two or more District wards or
which results in income or expenditure to the Council
above the following thresholds:
BDC:
Revenue - £75,000 ☐ Capital - £150,000 ☒
NEDDC:
Revenue - £100,000 ☐ Capital - £250,000 ☐
☒ Please indicate which threshold applies
Is the decision subject to Call-In?
(Only Key Decisions are subject to Call-In)

No

District Wards Significantly Affected

None

Consultation:
Leader / Deputy Leader ☐ Cabinet / Executive ☐
SAMT ☐
Relevant Service Manager ☒
Members ☐ Public ☐ Other ☐

Yes
Details:
Ward Members

Links to Council Ambition (BDC)/Council Plan (NED) priorities or Policy
Framework including Climate Change, Equalities, and Economics and Health
implications.
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Links to Council Ambition (BDC)/Council Plan (NED) priorities or Policy
Framework including Climate Change, Equalities, and Economics and Health
implications.
Clearly defining the purpose, authority and principal responsibilities of internal audit
in line with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards requirements contributes to
ensuring that the council’s resources and priorities are focused on achieving the
Council Plan.

REPORT DETAILS
1

Review of the Internal Audit Charter

1.1

The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) which took effect from the
1 April 2013 require that the purpose, authority and responsibility of internal
audit must be formally defined in an Internal Audit Charter (Appendix 1).

1.2

The Internal Audit Charter was last formally approved by this Committee in
September 2020. It was agreed that the Charter would be reviewed every
year to ensure that it is kept up to date.

1.3

There have been no updates to the PSIAS since the last review of the charter.

1.4

The current Internal Audit Charter has been reviewed and it is felt that it is still
fit for purpose. In places the previous Charter referred to “internal control” or
the “control environment”, these references have been replaced by the
current best practice terminology which is “risk management, governance and
internal control processes”. The other change is in respect of BDC Audit
Committee now being the Audit and Corporate Overview Scrutiny Committee.

1.5

The Internal Audit Charter is attached as Appendix 1.

3

Reasons for Recommendation

3.1

To comply with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards and to clearly set
out the purpose, authority and principal responsibilities of the Internal Audit
Consortium.

4

Alternative Options and Reasons for Rejection

4.1

Not Applicable
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DOCUMENT INFORMATION
Appendix No

Title

Appendix 1

Internal Audit Charter

Background Papers (These are unpublished works which have been relied on to a
material extent when preparing the report. They must be listed in the section below.
If the report is going to Cabinet (NEDDC) or Executive (BDC) you must provide
copies of the background papers)
Click here to enter text.
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BOLSOVER, CHESTERFIELD AND NORTH EAST
DERBYSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCILS’
INTERNAL AUDIT CHARTER

INTRODUCTION
1.

The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) which took effect
from 1 April 2013 require the adoption of an Internal Audit Charter. The
Internal Audit Charter describes the purpose, authority and principal
responsibilities of the Internal Audit Consortium that have been
established to provide the internal audit service to the three Councils’.

PSIAS/REGULATORY BASIS OF OPERATION
2.




3.

The adoption of the PSIAS is mandatory and includes a
Definition of Internal Auditing
Code of ethics
International Standards for the Professional Practice of Internal
Auditing
The Mission of Internal Audit is: To enhance and protect organisational value by providing riskbased and objective assurance, advice and insight.

4.

The Internal Audit Consortium adopts the PSIAS and the purpose and
definition of Internal Audit as specified by the PSIAS: Internal Auditing is an independent, objective assurance and consulting
activity designed to add value and improve an organisation’s
operations. It helps an organisation accomplish its objectives by
bringing a systematic, disciplined approach to evaluate and improve
the effectiveness of risk management, control and governance
processes

5.

The Internal Audit Consortium also adopts and is mindful of the Core
Principles for the Professional Practice of Internal Auditing. So, the
Internal Audit Consortium: 








Demonstrates integrity.
Demonstrates competence and due professional care
Is objective and free from undue influence (independent)
Aligns with the strategies, objectives, and risks of the organisation,
Is appropriately positioned and adequately resourced
Demonstrates quality and continuous improvement
Communicates effectively
Provides risk-based assurance
1
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Is insightful, proactive, and future-focused.
Promotes organisational improvement.
The requirement for an internal audit function in local government is
specified within the Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2015,
which state:
A relevant body must undertake an effective internal audit to evaluate
the effectiveness of its risk management, control and governance
processes, taking into account public sector internal auditing standards
or guidance.

.
6.

The Consortium agreement details how the Consortium will operate in
terms of finance, staffing, reporting and independence.

7.

Internal Audit is also governed by policies, procedures, rules and
regulations established by the host Council. These include Financial
Regulations, Conditions of Service, Codes of Conduct and Anti-Fraud
and Corruption strategies.

8.

Where key services are to be provided to one of the partner Councils’
by other contractors or through a partnership, in order for internal audit
to form an opinion on the risk management, governance and internal
controls in place, a right of access to relevant information and
documents should be included in contracts or agreements concerned.

DEFINITIONS
9.

The PSIAS require that the Charter must define the terms “Board” and
“Senior Management” for the purposes of internal audit activity.

10.

The PSIAS glossary defines the board as:
The highest level of governing body charged with the responsibility to
direct and/or oversee the activities and management of the
organisation. Typically this includes an independent group of directors
(e.g. a board of directors, a supervisory board or a board of governors
or trustees). If such a group does not exist, the “board” may refer to the
head of the organisation, “Board” may refer to an audit committee to
which the governing body has delegated certain functions.

11.

At Chesterfield Borough Council the “Board” will be the Standards and
Audit Committee.
At Bolsover District Council the “Board” will be the Audit and Corporate
Overview Scrutiny Committee
At North East Derbyshire District Council the “Board” will be the Audit
and Corporate Governance Scrutiny Committee.

12.

In addition to this the Joint Board will approve and monitor the annual
business plan and financial position of the Consortium.

2
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13.

“Senior Management” – those responsible for the leadership and
direction of the Council. This will be each Council’s Senior
Management Team.

14.

The PSIAS adopt the term “Chief Audit Executive”, this role is met by
the Internal Audit Consortium Manager.

SCOPE AND OBJECTIVES OF INTERNAL AUDIT
15.

The scope of the Internal Audit Consortium encompasses the
examination and evaluation of the adequacy and effectiveness of each
organisation’s governance, risk management and internal control
processes in relation to each organisation’s defined goals and
objectives.

16.

The Audit Consortium’s remit covers all functions and services for
which the Council’s are responsible and this extends to the entire risk
management, governance and internal control processes of the
organisations and not just financial controls.

17.

The Consortium will objectively examine, evaluate and report on the
adequacy of the risk management, governance and internal controls in
place as a contribution to the proper, economic, efficient and effective
use of resources.

18.

The internal audit service will be delivered on the basis of a risk
assessment of auditable areas at each of the partner authorities. A
predominantly systems based approach to most audits will be adopted.

19.

The risk management, governance and internal control processes
comprises the whole network of systems established within each
partner authority to provide reasonable assurance that corporate
objectives will be achieved, with particular reference to:







20.

Consistency of operations with established objectives and goals,
The reliability and integrity of financial and operational information,
The effectiveness and efficiency of operations and programmes,
Safeguarding of assets and interests from losses of all kinds, including
those arising from fraud, irregularity and corruption,
Compliance with laws, regulations, policies, procedures and contracts,
The economic and efficient use of resources (value for money) and
effective monitoring systems and optimum use of performance
management information.
With the introduction of the PSIAS, internal audit may also provide
“consultancy” services. This work could take any form, provided that
the independence of the service is not compromised, but will typically
include special reviews or assignments where requested by
management, which fall outside the approved plan and for which a
contingency is included in the audit plan. There will be no significant
consultancy work undertaken without the approval of the relevant Audit
Committee.
3

Page 126

RESPONSIBILITIES AND REPORTING
21.

The PSIAS requires that the Internal Audit Charter should establish the
responsibilities and reporting arrangements of internal audit.

22.

The Internal Audit Consortium Manager reports directly to each
Council’s Audit Committee and to each Chief Financial Officer /
Director. The Internal Audit Consortium Manager also has direct
access to each Council’s Chief Executive / Directors , Monitoring
Officer and where necessary elected Members.

23.

The Internal Audit Consortium Manager will manage the provision of
the Internal Audit service to each Council by: 

Preparing each year in advance a risk- based audit plan for discussion
and agreement by each council's Client Officer and approval by the
Audit Committee. Any in-year significant changes to the audit plan shall
be agreed by the respective Client Officers and Audit Committees,
 Preparing the internal audit budget and resource plan for approval by
the Joint Board,
 Presenting an annual report to each Council’s Audit Committee that
meets the requirements of the PSIAS and includes: o An overall opinion on the adequacy and effectiveness of the
organisation’s risk management, governance and internal
control processes (including any qualifications to that opinion),
o Presents a summary of the audit work from which the opinion is
derived, including reliance placed on the work by other
assurance bodies,
o Draws attention to any issues the Internal Audit Consortium
Manager judges particularly relevant to the preparation of the
Annual Governance Statement,
o Compares work actually undertaken with work that was planned
and to report relevant performance measures and targets.
 Presenting periodic reports to each Audit Committee summarising all
internal audit reports issued and if considered necessary providing
copies of the reports,
 Formally report the findings and recommendations of audit work to
senior management and the respective Audit Committee throughout
the year. Audit reports will: o Include an audit opinion on the reliability of the risk
management, governance and internal control processes in the
system or area audited,
o Identify inadequately addressed risks and non-effective control
processes,
o Detail management’s response and timescale for corrective
action,
o Identify issues of good practice.
 Ensuring audit work is supervised, reviewed, recorded and reported,
 Implementing a follow up process for ensuring the effective
implementation of audit recommendations or ensuring senior
management are aware of the consequences of not implementing a
recommendation and are prepared to accept the risk,
4
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24.

Liaising as needed with the External Auditor for each Council and with
other regulators,
Maintaining and managing a risk assessment in relation to the
functions of the Consortium,
Ensuring that there is an up to date Audit Manual in place setting out
expected standards for the service, and monitoring compliance with
these standards, including in relation to the planning, conduct, quality
assurance and reporting of audit assignments.
Senior managers should assist audit to discharge their duties by:







25.

The prompt provision of information and explanations,
Providing input to the audit plan to ensure attention is focused on areas
of greatest risk,
Informing the Audit Consortium of any plans for change, including new
systems,
Responding to the draft internal audit report, including provision of
management responses to recommendations, within the timescale
requested by the audit team,
Implementing agreed management actions in accordance with agreed
timescales,
The respective Audit Committees must:






26.

Approve the Internal Audit Charter,
Approve the risk based internal audit plan,
Receive progress reports and an annual report from the Internal Audit
Consortium Manager in respect of the audit plan,
Approve any large variances or consulting services not already
included in the audit plan.
The Joint Board will:



Approve the internal audit budget and outturn.

AUDIT RESOURCES
27.

The Chief Financial Officer at each Council will ensure that the Audit
Consortium has the necessary resource to enable the Internal Audit
Consortium Manager to be able to give an annual evidence-based
opinion.

28.

The staffing and budget of the Internal Audit Consortium will be kept
under review by the Internal Audit Consortium Manager, bearing in
mind the resource requirements identified in the audit plan process.
Where resources available do not match the resource requirements
identified by the annual audit plans, the Internal Audit Consortium
Manager will report to the Joint Board.

29.

The Internal Audit Consortium Manager will be professionally qualified
(CMIIA, CCAB or equivalent) and have wide internal audit and
management experience. The Internal Audit Consortium Manager will
5
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ensure that the internal audit service is appropriately skilled in terms of
qualifications, knowledge and experience.

QUALITY AND ASSURANCE PROGRAMME
30.

The PSIAS state that a quality assurance and improvement programme
must include both internal and external assessments. Internal
assessments should be ongoing and periodical and external
assessments must be undertaken at least once every 5 years.

31.

All internal audits are subject to a management quality review. Policies
and procedures to guide staff in performing their duties have been
established within the audit manual.

32.

The internal self- assessment of internal audit will be undertaken
annually by completing the checklist for assessing conformance with
the PSIAS included within the PSIAS Application Note.

33.

External assessment can be satisfied by either arranging a full external
assessment or by undertaking a self assessment with independent
validation. External assessments must be by a qualified, independent
assessor from outside the organisations. The Internal Audit Consortium
Manager must discuss the format of the external assessments and the
qualifications and independence of the assessor with the Audit
Committee.

34.

An external assessment of the internal audit function will take place at
least once every 5 years and the results reported back to the Audit
Committee of each Council.

35.

The results of the quality and assurance programme and progress
against any improvement plans must be reported in the annual report.

INDEPENDENCE, AUTHORITY AND ETHICS
36.

In order to achieve its objectives effectively, Internal Audit must be
seen to be independent. Internal auditors must maintain an unbiased
attitude that allows them to perform their engagements in such a
manner that no quality compromises are made.

37.

The scope of internal audit allows for unrestricted access at each
partner authority to all records, personnel, premises and assets
deemed necessary to obtain information and explanations as it
considers necessary to fulfil its responsibilities in the course of the
audit. Such access shall be granted on demand and not subject to prior
notice.

38.

This right of access is included in the agreement signed by the three
authorities establishing the Internal Audit Consortium and in each
authority's Financial Regulations. In addition, where necessary, the
Internal Audit Consortium Manager will have unrestricted access at
each authority to:
6
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The Chief Executive / Relevant Director
The Chief Financial Officer
Members
The Monitoring Officer
The Chair and Members of the Audit Committee
Individual Directors / Heads of Service
All Other Employees
The External Auditor

39.

The Internal Audit Consortium Manager will confirm to the Audit
Committees’ at least annually, the organisational independence of the
internal audit activity.

40.

Independence is further achieved by:






Reporting to the Audit Committee and senior management at each
authority,
Not being part of system and procedures being audited,
Rotating responsibility for audit assignments within the audit team,
Completing declaration of interest forms on an annual basis,
Internal Audit staff not undertaking an audit in an area where they
have had operational roles for at least two years.

41.

If any member of the Internal Audit Consortium considers there is or
could be a conflict of interest, this must be declared to the Internal
Audit Consortium Manager who will direct alternative and independent
resources to the audit.

42.

Where internal audit staff are required to undertake non-audit duties,
the Internal Audit Consortium Manager will make it clear that those
audit staff are not fulfilling those duties as internal auditors. The Internal
Audit Consortium Manager will ensure that within the service there
remains sufficient impartiality to enable the actions and activities of
those internal audit staff to be subject to audit by those independent
from the activity.

.
43.

44.

Internal auditors must conform to the Chartered Institute of Public
Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) Code of Ethics in addition to those
of other professional bodies of which they hold membership.
The Code of Ethics promotes an ethical, professional culture to ensure
fairness, objectivity and freedom from conflicts of interest. The key
principles are;
 Integrity – to establish trust thus providing reliance on their
judgement;
 Objectivity – in gathering, evaluating and communicating
information about the activity or process being examined in order to
make a balanced assessment of all relevant circumstances without
influence;
 Confidentiality – to respect the value and ownership of information
received which should not be disclosed without appropriate
authority or a legal or professional obligation to do so, nor be used
for personal gain; and
7
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Competence – to apply knowledge, skills and experience
appropriately.

FRAUD AND CORRUPTION
45.

Managing the risk of fraud and corruption is the responsibility of
management. Each Council has an Anti Fraud and Corruption strategy
and a zero tolerance towards fraud.

46.

The Internal Audit Consortium Manager should be notified of all
suspected or detected fraud, corruption or impropriety in accordance
with each Council’s Financial Regulations and Anti Fraud and
Corruption strategies, in order to inform their opinion of the risk
management, governance and internal control arrangements in place.

47.

Subject to availability of resources with the internal audit plan, internal
audit may assist management in the investigation of suspected fraud
and corruption.

48.

The Internal Audit Consortium Manager will report any instances of
fraud detected as a result of audits undertaken to the Audit Committee.

REVIEW OF THE INTERNAL AUDIT CHARTER
49.

The Internal Audit Charter will be reviewed every year by the Internal
Audit Consortium Manager and will be reported to each Council’s Audit
Committee for approval.

8
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Agenda Item 6a
North East Derbyshire District Council
Audit and Corporate Governance Scrutiny Committee
22 September 2021
Risk Management
Report of the Operations
Classification:

This report is public

Report By:

Lee Hickin, Director of Operations

Contact Officer:

Lee Hickin, Director of Operations

PURPOSE / SUMMARY


To update Members of the Audit and Corporate Governance Scrutiny
Committee of the current position regarding Risk Management arrangements
and the Strategic Risk Register as at August 2021.

RECOMMENDATIONS
1.

That the Audit and Corporate Governance Scrutiny Committee notes the
report and Strategic Risk Register as at August 2021 as set out in Appendix
1.

Approved by the Portfolio Holder – Councillor Paul Parkin
IMPLICATIONS
Finance and Risk:
Details:

Yes☒

No ☐

There are no additional financial implications arising out of this report. Whilst, where
appropriate, additional mitigation measures have been identified and implemented
during the course of preparing the Strategic and Operational Risk Registers, the cost
of implementing this mitigation will be met from within previously agreed budgets.
Risk Management Issues are covered throughout the body of the main report.
On Behalf of the Section 151 Officer
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Legal (including Data Protection):
Details:

No ☒

Yes☐

There are no legal or data protection issues arising directly out of this report.
On Behalf of the Solicitor to the Council

Staffing:
Details:

Yes☐

No ☒

There are no human resource issues arising directly out of this report.
On behalf of the Head of Paid Service

DECISION INFORMATION
Decision Information
Is the decision a Key Decision?
No
A Key Decision is an executive decision which has a
significant impact on two or more District wards or
which results in income or expenditure to the Council
above the following thresholds:
BDC:
Revenue - £75,000 ☐ Capital - £150,000 ☒
NEDDC:
Revenue - £100,000 ☐ Capital - £250,000 ☐
☒ Please indicate which threshold applies
Is the decision subject to Call-In?
(Only Key Decisions are subject to Call-In)

No

District Wards Significantly Affected

None

Consultation:
Leader / Deputy Leader ☐ Cabinet / Executive ☒
SAMT ☒
Relevant Service Manager ☐
Members ☐ Public ☐ Other ☐

Yes

Links to Council Ambition (BDC)/Council Plan (NED) priorities or Policy
Framework including Climate Change, Equalities, and Economics and Health
implications.
None.
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REPORT DETAILS
1

Background

1.1

Audit and Corporate Governance Scrutiny Committee have previously
endorsed the Council’s Risk Management Strategy which was then approved
by Cabinet in March 2020. The Strategy includes but is not limited to the
following;








The nature of ‘risk’ both the ‘threats’ and the ‘opportunities’
The benefits of a robust risk management approach
The Council’s risk appetite
Risk categorisation – Operational, Governance, Strategic
Project and Partnership risk
The Council’s risk management approach and arrangements including
a new ‘Risk Management Group’
Roles and responsibilities including Senior Risk Officer and Senior
Information Risk Officer (SRO and SIRO)

1.2

The Strategy also details the work of a ‘Risk Management Group’. This is
elected Member led and includes the Councils Senior Risk Officer (SRO),
Senior Information Risk Officer (SIRO), S151 Officer, representation from
senior management, Internal Audit and Health and Safety. The group
provides a comprehensive oversight of risk throughout the organisation and is
the conduit to and from the whole organisation in terms of risk management.

1.3

The group ‘regularly’ and ‘consistently’ oversee, all of the risk registers
ensuring they are up to date and accurate whilst offering challenge to the
assessment process itself. It is responsible for risk management reporting to
stakeholder groups across the Council, including this Scrutiny Committee and
supports the production of the Annual Governance Statement. The group
leads on the development and review of all risk related policies, plans and
strategies across the Council and oversees and champions the
implementation of the Risk Management Strategy and associated action plan
including training ‘relating to’ and the ‘embedding of’ an effective risk
management culture.
Update of the Risk Management Group held on 19th August 2021
Two additional Strategic Risks had been added to the Risk Register. These
were as follows:
STR15
Illegal dumping of waste on large area of Council owned land at Rotherside
Road, Eckington leading to prosecution and/or contamination or water course
or risk to human health/environment.
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Part of this land was leased out and the leasee had encroached on land
outside of the leased area. NEDDC had taken control and secured the site.
Lessons learnt would be circulated. A Lessons Learnt Log would be created.
The Interim Head of Property Services would be invited to the next Risk
Management Group meeting.
STR16
Northwood JV failure to meet obligations as shareholder and directors of
Northwood leading to failure in meeting company obligations and reduction in
profits.
This risk related to the potential lack of experience, knowledge and skills of
company directors.
1.4

Having previously developed and established new risk register templates for
Strategic, Operational, Partnership and Project related risks, the group have
overseen their completion by Heads of Service in relation to their own service
areas. The templates cover; risk area, threat/opportunity, mitigation and risk
ratings. At the meeting ‘Head of Service for Environmental Health presented
their Operational Risk Register – discussion centred around the following;
ENV01
Achievement of national regulatory programmes e.g. Food Safety,
Health & Safety, Animal Licensing, Private Drinking Water Sampling and
Risk Assessments and Environmental Permitting (Industrial Pollution
Control).
Part of Environmental Health’s role was to assist businesses to thrive and
prosper. Two years ago the service had been under scrutiny from the FSA.
Agency staff had been utilised in order to put the service back on track.
Investment in mobile applications and agile working had benefitted
Environmental Health Officers.
ENV02
Recruitment and retention including loss of specialised in house
technical expertise e.g. acoustics, contaminated land, air quality.
(Also linked to Strategic Risk STR4)
This risk was an issue nationally. Attempting to recruit to the contaminated
land role. JE had allowed for narrowing of pay differentials with other local
authorities.
The service had improved and a positive culture would be promoted.
ENV03
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Delivery of a safe and effective local authority licensing regime.
Safeguarding training for drivers and operatives had been implemented.
DBS requests had been outsourced. Policy review work will provide further
assurance.
ENV04
Infectious disease control and investigation.
Risk of a major outbreak which could overwhelm capacity to investigate.
Further work to be undertaken with regard to business continuity. NA
requested clarity on individual service priorities from an ICT perspective.
ENV05
Failure to maintain and demonstrate officer competency through
training and QA measures. Failure to update supporting procedural
documents and operational guidance.
Continuous improvement to be progressed and a 3 year programme to be
developed by January 2022. Appointed Development Service Manager to
commence at the end of August 21. LH to attend development sessions.
KE to copy LB into any sessions for LH’s availability.
ENV06
Loss of ICT systems or data e.g. hardware failure or ransomware attack
rendering access to ICT unavailable for some time.
(Also linked to Strategic Risk STR12)
Propose to establish offline toolkit of key documents and explore use of cloud
based system.
ENV07
Timely submission of annual and other statutory returns.
Important to ensure that submissions/statutory returns do not rely on one
officer for completion.
ENV08
Theft, damage or loss of Environmental Monitoring Equipment including
sound level meters and air quality samplers.
ENV09
Global Pandemic
Asset register. All service areas were responsible for maintaining their own
asset registers. A register of land/vehicles/play areas etc. was held centrally.
Page 136

The Group discussed the third party risks at length with the Head of
Service.
1.5

The Group reviewed the Strategic Risk Register (see Appendix 1). Each Risk
was discussed. The following are items of note;

New or Emerging Risks Identified
The Ping-demic and self-isolation requirements had caused serious
difficulties but had not resulted in any services being suspended.
LH advised that changes to the management structures of both NEDDC
and BDC had resulted in a dedicated two director model with LH now
working solely for NEDDC and Karen Hanson working solely for BDC.
This had presented both opportunities and threats. Further structural
changes may occur.
KA advised that work was underway with Rykneld Homes around housing
risks. Once completed the relevant risks would be included on the
Strategic Risk Register.
2.

Details of Proposal or Information

2.1

To update Members of the Audit and Corporate Governance Scrutiny
Committee of the current position regarding Risk Management arrangements
and the Strategic Risk Register as at July 2021.

3

Reasons for Recommendation

3.1

The Council have in place a robust Risk Management Strategy and action
plan which enables the organisation to manage the many and varied risks
facing the Council. The approach to managing those risks is applied within
decision making processes and is continuous with a structured review process
overseen by the Risk Management Group.

3.2

The Risk Management Group is elected Member led and includes the
Councils Senior Risk Officer (SRO), Senior Information Risk Officer (SIRO),
S151 Officer, representation from senior management, Internal Audit and
Health and Safety. The group provides a comprehensive oversight of risk
throughout the organisation and is now becoming the conduit to and from the
whole organisation in terms of risk management. The Risk Management
Group is now able to provide risk management reporting to stakeholder
groups across the Council and will support the production of the Annual
Governance Statement.

3.3

The Risk Management Group have made significant progress in ensuring that
risk is effectively managed within the organisation. By leading on the
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development and review of all risk related policies, plans and strategies
across the Council, the Risk Management Group will provide consistency of
approach and alignment of all service areas in relation to risk management.
By overseeing and championing the implementation of the Risk Management
Strategy and associated action plan including training ‘relating to’ and the
‘embedding of’ an effective risk management culture, the Risk Management
Group will be pivotal in the organisations future success.
4

Alternative Options and Reasons for Rejection
Under relevant good practice and to facilitate the development of robust
managerial arrangements the Council is required to prepare a Strategic Risk
Register as part of its risk management framework. This report is intended for
Members and Officers to consider both the Strategic Risk Register, together
with the Council’s wider framework for managing risk and partnerships. Given
the importance of these arrangements for the overall governance of the
Council it is necessary to subject them to regular review. The alternative of not
providing this is therefore rejected.

DOCUMENT INFORMATION
Appendix No

Title

1

Strategic Risk Register as at 6 September 2021

Background Papers (These are unpublished works which have been relied on to a
material extent when preparing the report. They must be listed in the section below.
If the report is going to Cabinet (NEDDC) or Executive (BDC) you must provide
copies of the background papers)
Service Area Operational Risk Registers
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APPENDIX

STRATEGIC RISK REGISTER – updated 06/09/21
Area Of Risk
(Reference / Date)

Threats / Opportunities

Mitigation / Controls In Place /
Actions Undertaken

STR1
Parliamentary uncertainty
following the General
Election, Government
Legislation / impact of
referendum vote to leave the
EU / adverse external
economic climate has an
accelerating impact on
Council funding, or upon the
local economy, to which
Council is unable to adopt
an appropriate change of
Strategic direction. The
decision to leave the EU
creates significant
uncertainties whilst there is
a significant programme of
legislative change which
impacts directly upon local
government.

 Unable to deliver a package of
services that both addresses
changing national priorities whilst
meeting changing local needs and
aspirations.
 Increases costs or reduces resources
available to the Council directly, or to
its key partners.
 Reduced influence over delivery of
local services.
 Unable to effectively support local
communities.
 Increased demands on Council
services at a time when Council
resource base is reducing.

 Mitigation.
 The Council is outward looking and
actively works to secure details of
proposed change and the
approaches that might be adopted
to mitigate against associated risks,
including working to identify new
income streams.
 The Council has effective political
and managerial arrangements in
place to manage change.
 Appropriate levels of financial
reserves / investment funding are
maintained to fund strategic shifts in
service delivery.
 Effective engagement with staff to
ensure they embrace necessary
change.

STR1

Inherent Risk Score
(Likelihood x Impact)

Residual Risk Score
(Likelihood x Impact)

Sept 19

4x4

16
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2

3x4

12

Potential Further Action /
Action Planned / When By
Date

Risk Owner /
Lead Officer

SAMT /
Political
Leadership

Area Of Risk
(Reference / Date)

Threats / Opportunities

Mitigation / Controls In Place /
Actions Undertaken

STR2
Failure to deliver a balanced
budget in line with the
MTFP, at a time when the
Council’s reserves are at an
acceptable rather than a
robust level, and localism
has created significant
uncertainties re future
funding levels.

 Impact upon ability to deliver current
level of services.
 Unable to resource acceptable levels
of service.
 Significant adverse reputational
Impact.
 The Covid 19 pandemic is putting a
significant and unprecedented risk on
budget setting

 Mitigation
 The Council has effective financial
management in place to ensure
budget arrangements are robust.
 The Council has appropriate
managerial arrangements and
culture in place to manage any
necessary change.
 The Council has ‘adequate’ financial
reserves in place to cushion against
any loss of income for a period of at
least one financial year.
 The Council has been closely
monitoring the impact of Covid 19
and adjusting the budgets
accordingly. The financial impact of
the pandemic is recorded as a key
risk in budget setting for the MTFP
refresh

STR2

Inherent Risk Score
(Likelihood x Impact)

Residual Risk Score
(Likelihood x Impact)

16/11/ 20

4x4

16
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3

3x4

12

Potential Further Action /
Action Planned / When By
Date

Risk Owner /
Lead Officer

Political
Leadership /
S151 Officer/
SAMT

Area Of Risk
(Reference / Date)

Threats / Opportunities

Mitigation / Controls In Place /
Actions Undertaken

STR3
The Council is affected by a
operational service failure
which has a major impact
upon the local community,
this impact being reflected
in the Council’s
sustainability and
reputation. Failure could
arise from services – inc
Data Protection – failing to
adhere to best practice.
Resulting in a potential
impact upon the Council’s
ability to secure its
corporate objectives. Given
the efficiency measures that
have been introduced to
date this is considered to be
an increasing issue for the
Council.

 A significant service failure
 Mitigation
associated with a major impact on the  The Council has appropriate
local community.
managerial arrangements in place
 Deterioration in services to the public,
supported by staff recruitment and
potentially a major impact upon a
training to ensure these risks are
local resident or a group of local
effectively managed.
residents.
 The Council has a Performance
 Significant staff and financial
Management Framework in place to
resources required to resolve
help ensure that services are
position, impacting on other services.
delivered in line with good practice
and industry standards. On going
 A major service has its operating
monitoring and regular reporting will
capacity significantly impact and is
help ensure that any emerging
required to introduce major reform in
issues re service performance are
its approach to service delivery.
effectively identified and resolved at
 Severe reputational damage
the earliest possible opportunity.

STR3

Inherent Risk Score
(Likelihood x Impact)

Sept 19
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STR4
Emergency Planning and
Business Continuity
arrangements fail to meet
required standards when
tested by flu pandemic,
natural disaster (flood), etc.

3x5

Residual Risk Score
(Likelihood x Impact)

15

2x5

10

 Inability of Council to provide services  Mitigation
as a consequence of a severe
 The Council works in partnership
catastrophic external event (e.g.
with a range of partners on its
flooding, major terrorist incident, flu
Emergency Planning arrangements
pandemic, fire, cyber crime).
to ensure that we operate in line
with best practice. There is an
annual ‘desktop’ scenario to test

4

Potential Further Action /
Action Planned / When By
Date

Risk Owner /
Lead Officer

SAMT

Area Of Risk
(Reference / Date)

Threats / Opportunities

Mitigation / Controls In Place /
Actions Undertaken

Cyber crime with a loss of
data / systems, results in the
inability to provide core
services and reputational
damage.

 Failure of IT infrastructure, leading to
inability to effectively operate services
and to safeguard income streams.
 Business Continuity Plans prove

ineffective in practice.

STR4

Inherent Risk Score
(Likelihood x Impact)

Sept 19
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STR5
Increasing difficulty in
recruiting to key posts or in
replacing key staff who leave.
Staff morale is adversely
affected arising from the pace
of change, tightening financial
circumstances or external
circumstances.

Potential Further Action /
Action Planned / When By
Date

officers understanding of the
arrangements and validate that they
are fit for purpose in a realistic ‘trial’
scenario.
All services have Business
Continuity plans in place which
identify key risks and mitigation.
Corporate IT systems have been
tested against Industry standards for
Business Continuity.
 The Council works in partnership
with a range of other agencies that
should be able to provide support in
the event of the Council’s own
procedures failing to be effective.
 The Council has in place industry
standard measures to minimise the
risk of cyber crime.

5x5

Residual Risk Score
(Likelihood x Impact)

25

 Deterioration in services to the public.
 Increasing inefficiencies in service
provision.
 Weakening of Internal Control
arrangements.
 Increased pressure on other
members of staff.

5x3

15

 Mitigation
 The Council has effective
communication and working with
staff as validated by securing ‘silver’
accreditation at IIP.
 There is sufficient funding to bring in
agency staff where required to
maintain service performance.

5

Risk Owner /
Lead Officer

SAMT

Area Of Risk
(Reference / Date)

Threats / Opportunities

Mitigation / Controls In Place /
Actions Undertaken

Potential Further Action /
Action Planned / When By
Date

 At this stage the problematic areas
are those where there are national
‘shortages’. In the majority of areas
it has proved possible to recruit
appropriate replacement staff.
 Appropriate training budgets are in
place to ensure that staff receive
necessary training to maintain
service quality / continuity.
 The Council is looking to introduce
appropriate apprenticeship / training
schemes in order to develop
suitable staff.
STR5

Sept 19

STR6
Delivery of the Council’s
Agenda is dependent upon
effective delivery of both a
number of major initiatives /
projects and implementing a
range of new government
reforms whilst achieving
financial
targets
and
maintaining service quality,
which may overstretch our
reduced
organisational
capacity.

Inherent Risk Score
(Likelihood x Impact)

3x4

Residual Risk Score
(Likelihood x Impact)

12

 New initiatives are not delivered in a
cost-effective manner.
 Failure to maintain / improve services
in line with local aspirations.
 Failure to generate the savings
required to balance the budget.
 Financial savings measures weaken
Governance / Internal Control
arrangements.
 Service deterioration / failure arising
from capacity issues.

2x4

8
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 The Council has effective
prioritisation and project
management arrangements in place
to ensure resources are directed at
key objectives.
 The Council has made efforts to
ensure effective use of employees
by utilising shared services to
protect service resilience, by
maintaining appropriate training
arrangements and by investing in
transformational service delivery
projects.
 The Council has a robust
performance management

6

Risk Owner /
Lead Officer

SAMT

Area Of Risk
(Reference / Date)

Threats / Opportunities

Mitigation / Controls In Place /
Actions Undertaken

Potential Further Action /
Action Planned / When By
Date

framework that is intended to
highlight emerging issues.

STR6

Sept 19

Inherent Risk Score
(Likelihood x Impact)

3x4

Residual Risk Score
(Likelihood x Impact)

12

2x4

8

Risk Owner /
Lead Officer

SAMT

Risk Owner /
Lead Officer

SAMT /
Political
Leadership

STR7
 Failure to provide effective community  Mitigation
leadership.
Need to effectively engage
 The Council has in place a range of
with local communities and
 Loss of trust in the Council
mechanisms designed to secure
a range of local partners (inc  Inability to deliver good quality cost
feedback from local residents
Shared / Joint services) to
including the Performance
effective services targeted at local
deliver cost effective joined
Framework, a range of consultation
needs.
up services.
events and the role of Elected
 Poor outcomes for local residents,
Members as local champions.
due to failure to engage other
 The Council has an active
agencies.
Partnerships Team and senior
Members / Officers actively engage
with other organisations serving the
area.
 The Council’s management
structures are aligned to our key
partnership arrangements.
STR7

Sept 19

Inherent Risk Score
(Likelihood x Impact)

3x4

Residual Risk Score
(Likelihood x Impact)

12
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7

2x4

8

Area Of Risk
(Reference / Date)

Threats / Opportunities

Mitigation / Controls In Place /
Actions Undertaken

Potential Further Action /
Action Planned / When By
Date

STR8
 Adverse Impact upon Service Quality.  Mitigation
Governance Arrangements  Failure to deliver high quality services  The Council has appropriate
including
Performance,
which address national and local
managerial arrangements in place
Finance
and
Risk
priorities.
supported by staff recruitment and
Management need to be  Significant adverse reputational
training to ensure these risks are
maintained in order to
effectively managed.
impact.
continue
to
operate
 The Council has active Standards
effectively in a rapidly
and Audit Committees which provide
changing environment.
independent review of the
Governance arrangements in the
Council.
 The Annual Governance Report sets
out an evidence based structured
assessment of the operation of the
Council’s governance
arrangements.
STR8

Sept 19

STR9
Staff morale / Sickness
Levels adversely affected as
a result of the pace of
change, tightening financial
circumstances or external
circumstances.

Inherent Risk Score
(Likelihood x Impact)

3x4

Residual Risk Score
(Likelihood x Impact)

12

 Deterioration in services to the public
and loss of productivity.
 Loss of key staff / increased sickness
levels.
 Increased pressure on other
members of staff.
 Loss of ‘goodwill.’

2x4

8
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 The Council operates in line with the
independent IIP standards and HR
‘good practice’ to help ensure
current staff are well managed and
motivated.
 The staff has a range of
communication mechanisms in
place to ensure staff engagement
with the Council’s agenda.
 The Council has reduced its
emphasis of securing savings

8

Risk Owner /
Lead Officer

S151 Officer /
Monitoring
Officer / SAMT

Area Of Risk
(Reference / Date)

Threats / Opportunities

Mitigation / Controls In Place /
Actions Undertaken

Potential Further Action /
Action Planned / When By
Date

through vacancy management and
seeks to bring in ‘agency staff’ etc
as required.
 While the Council cannot control
external circumstances it has
continued to work with staff to
mitigate the impact of these on
individual employees.
STR9

Sept 19

STR10
Failure to have in place
robust, comprehensive and
up to date policies and
procedures for safeguarding
children
and
vulnerable
adults.

Inherent Risk Score
(Likelihood x Impact)

3x4

Residual Risk Score
(Likelihood x Impact)

12

3x3

9
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 The Council has in place up to date
policies for safeguarding both
Children and Vulnerable Adults.
These policies are aligned to DCC
policies which in turn are in line with
legislation, regulation and statutory
duties placed on Local Authorities.
• The Council has in place and
maintain systems of working
practice to safeguard children and
vulnerable adults at Council
activities and those who receive
Council services.
• Staff recognised as appropriate to
do, are DBS checked
• All staff receive mandatory
safeguarding training
• Safeguarding is widely promoted and
embedded throughout the
organisation with all staff being
issued with a wallet sized

 Profile of safeguarding is poor
 Staff and members do not know what
safeguarding is and their role within it
 Staff and members do not know how
to spot the signs
 Staff and members do not know how
to report it and to who?
 Lack of public confidence in Council
policies plans and staff
 Reputational damage
 Potential significant harm to
individuals resulting from abuse and
neglect of Children and/or Vulnerable
Adults possibly leading to personal
harm, injury and death

9

Risk Owner /
Lead Officer

SAMT

Area Of Risk
(Reference / Date)

Threats / Opportunities

Mitigation / Controls In Place /
Actions Undertaken

Potential Further Action /
Action Planned / When By
Date

‘safeguarding quick reference guide’
which details what to look out for
and what to do
• The Council has an internal
safeguarding group which meets
quarterly which has representation
from all service areas of the Council.
• The Council host and Chair the
Countywide Derbyshire
Safeguarding Leads Sub Group of
the Derbyshire Safeguarding
Childrens’ Board and Derbyshire
Safeguarding Adults Board
• The Council are represented on both
the Derbyshire Safeguarding
Children’s Board (DSCB) and the
Derbyshire Safeguarding Adults
Board ( DSAB)
STR10

16/11/ 20

STR11
Failure of NEDDC’s Local
Plan to be found sound at
independent examination.

Inherent Risk Score
(Likelihood x Impact)





5x4

Residual Risk Score
(Likelihood x Impact)

20

4x3

12
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 The Council has successfully
avoided Government intervention in
the plan-making process.
 The Plan has now been through
independent examination by the
independent Inspector.
 The Council has taken all
reasonable steps in the preparation
of the Plan to ensure that it is based

Potential Government intervention
Undermining the local plan
Reputational damage
Loss of control of planning and
development

10

Risk Owner /
Lead Officer

SAMT /
Political
Leadership

Area Of Risk
(Reference / Date)

Threats / Opportunities

Mitigation / Controls In Place /
Actions Undertaken

Potential Further Action /
Action Planned / When By
Date

on sound evidence and meets
procedural and legal requirements.
This has included taking external
legal advice, securing an advisory
visit with the Planning Inspectorate
and engaging consultants to
critically review the Publication Draft
Plan.
 The Inspector has completed her
Report and has found the Plan to be
sound and able to be adopted.
 Main remaining risks are
i)
Full Council deciding not to
adopt the Plan,
ii)
JR of Full Council’s decision
STR11

Sept 19

STR12
Impact of HS2 and the
electrification of the MML on
environment, heritage,
communities and
businesses.

Inherent Risk Score
(Likelihood x Impact)

2x4

Residual Risk Score
(Likelihood x Impact)

8

 Without considerable environmental
mitigation measures will have a
negative impact on the visual amenity
of the district, disruption to
businesses, home owners and
communities. It also has the potential
to cause disruption on the roads and
stall progress on areas of
development due to uncertainty.
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11

2x4

8

 Senior management actively
engaged with HS2 staff to discuss
proactive business mitigation
measures.
 Political leadership working with
relevant community groups and
agencies lobbying for enhanced
mitigation measures.
 Contributing to the East Midlands
HS2 growth strategy and mitigation
study

Risk Owner /
Lead Officer

SAMT /
Political
Leadership

Area Of Risk
(Reference / Date)

Threats / Opportunities

Mitigation / Controls In Place /
Actions Undertaken

Potential Further Action /
Action Planned / When By
Date

 Awaiting the outcome of the
Government Review and the
Integrated Rail Plan

STR12

16/11/ 20

STR13
Failure to address the
impact of COVID-19 upon
the organisation, local
economy and community

Inherent Risk Score
(Likelihood x Impact)

4x4

Residual Risk Score
(Likelihood x Impact)

16

4x4

16

 Inability to deliver services or service  The Council plays an active role in
failure
the Local Resilience Forum (LRF)
and network of sub groups taking
 Loss of income to the Council
part in very frequent meetings and
 Inability to provide safe working
working to effectively and
environment resulting in COVID
collectively tackle the impact of
contamination and infection
COVID within the County. This
 Adverse impact on employee health
forum includes many agencies
across the public sector spectrum
 Inability to change the Councils ‘ways
including emergency services, NHS,
of working’ to meet the current
Public Health and others (see
challenges
strategic risk 6 also)
 Increased Cybersecurity and ICT
 The Council has in place effective
related risk due to remote working
business continuity and emergency
increase
action plans which enabled the
 Inability to deliver strategic plans and
effective and efficient deployment
ambitions
and diversification of resources to
 Inability to support local businesses
ensure service resumption, business
and employers
and community support in the initial
response phase of the COVID-19
 Inability to support the community and
pandemic
in particular vulnerable people
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12

Risk Owner /
Lead Officer

SAMT /
Political
Leadership

Area Of Risk
(Reference / Date)

Threats / Opportunities

Mitigation / Controls In Place /
Actions Undertaken
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 The Council have in place robust
recovery plans which include the
following;
 Maintaining Financial Control Development of financial resilience
reserves and accessing govt.
funding aimed at local authority
support, service budget reviews,
controlling expenditure, regular fees
and charges reviews, furloughing
staff as necessary
 Workplace Safety – Return to work
protocols and risk assessments,
regular inspection, social distancing
plans, protection and hygiene
measures, PPE, staff testing,
communication plan, staff related
policy reviews, training and
briefings, recognition of vulnerable
employees
 New Ways of Working – Virtual and
remote working capability, digital
workforce training, digital inclusion
plans, remote and homeworking
task group, homeworking policy
review, website and online services
capability review, managing teams
remotely guidance
 ICT and Cybersecurity – Evaluation
of remote applications and tools,
training and guidance, cybersecurity
investment planning

13

Potential Further Action /
Action Planned / When By
Date

Area Of Risk
(Reference / Date)

Threats / Opportunities

Mitigation / Controls In Place /
Actions Undertaken
 Front Facing Services – Workplace
safety as above, public interaction
protocols, equipment such as
‘sneeze, screens in place and face
masks etc, floor markings and
signage, social distancing
measures, one way systems in
facilities and public areas, NHS test
and trace registration and materials
in place
 Strategy and Plans Review – Risk
management, Transformation
Programme, Digital, Climate
Change, People, Growth, Tourism
and Leisure are all strategies
currently being reviewed
 External Recovery Plans – Aimed at
the local economy, business support
and survival, includes channelling
and distribution of business grants,
council tax and business rates
support, links to other bodies
including; LRF Recovery Sub
Group, D2N2 Recovery. There is
also a key focus on Communities
and the Council’s engagement and
support with them including Parish
Councils, voluntary sector and
partners at all levels in the
restoration and recovery challenge
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Potential Further Action /
Action Planned / When By
Date

Area Of Risk
(Reference / Date)
STR13

Nov 20

STR14
Cyber security attack which
severely impacts ICT
systems and data. E.g.
Ransomware attack
rendering access to ICT
unavailable for some time.

STR14

08/02/2021

Threats / Opportunities

Inherent Risk Score
(Likelihood x Impact)

5x5

Mitigation / Controls In Place /
Actions Undertaken
Residual Risk Score
(Likelihood x Impact)

25

5x3

15

Potential Further Action /
Action Planned / When By
Date
Risk Owner /
Lead Officer

SAMT /
Political
Leadership

 Inability of Council to provide services
as a consequence of a severe
catastrophic event which renders
access to ICT unavailable such as
Ransomware attack.
 Potential ICO Fines and reputational
damage.
 Adverse Impact upon Service Quality
and income streams.
 Failure to deliver high quality
services which address national and
local priorities.
 Potential ICO fines for loss of data
 Significant adverse reputational
impact.
 Significant cost to Council.

 See Operational level activities risk
reference ICT1
 The Council works in partnership
with a range of partners on its
Emergency Planning arrangements
to ensure that we operate in line
with best practice.
 All sections have Business
Continuity plans in place which
identify key risks and mitigation.
 Corporate IT systems have been
tested against Industry standards for
Business Continuity.

Emergency planning to run
Cyber security training events.

Inherent Risk Score
(Likelihood x Impact)

Residual Risk Score
(Likelihood x Impact)

Risk Owner /
Lead Officer

5x5

25
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15

5x4

20

Improved awareness to
Service Managers.
Service Managers to review
business continuity plans
specifically relating to cyberattack.

SAMT /
Political
Leadership

Area Of Risk
(Reference / Date)

Threats / Opportunities

Mitigation / Controls In Place /
Actions Undertaken

STR15
Illegal dumping of waste
on large area of Council
owned land at Rotherside
Road, Eckington leading to
prosecution and/or
contamination or water
course or risk to human
health/environment.



Potential contamination of river
Rother



Potential risk to human
health/environment from waste

STR15

Inherent Risk Score
(Likelihood x Impact)

Residual Risk Score
(Likelihood x Impact)

Risk Owner / SAMT
Lead Officer
Political
Leadership

STR16
Northwood JV failure to
meet obligations as
shareholder and directors of
Northwood leading to failure
in meeting company
obligations and reduction in
profits.





Appoint Directors for a minimum of
3 years

Discuss
Leadership/Cabinet



Appoint Officer as Director rather
than 2 Councillors (as originally
One Councillor and one Officer)



\understand key financial and
contractual risks

STR16

Inherent Risk Score
(Likelihood x Impact)

22/06/2021

22/06/2021







Potential prosecution by the
Environment Agency for
knowing allowing deposit of waste
onto land



Council peaceably re-entered site
and taken control of site.
16/06/2021



Secure site



Keep Environment Agency
informed of Council actions

Potential Further Action /
Action Planned / When By
Date

Cost of remediation of land
potentially substantial

Turnover of Council appointed
Directors to Northwood instability in
Company
Lack of accountability and
understanding or business leading
to lower/no profits/loss making

Residual Risk Score
(Likelihood x Impact)
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16



Lessons learned to be
created August 2021



Site investigation report
to be commissioned
July 2021



Site remediation works
to deal with any
risks (timescale
dependant on findings
above)

Risk Owner / SAMT
Lead Officer
Political
Leadership

/

with

/

Agenda Item 7a
North East Derbyshire District Council
Audit and Corporate Governance Scrutiny Committee
22 September 2021
North East Derbyshire District Council – Statement of Accounts 2020/21
Report of the Head of Finance and Resources
Classification:

This report is public

Report By:

Jayne Dethick, Head of Finance and Resources

Contact Officer:

as above

_____________________________________________________________________
PURPOSE/SUMMARY
To approve the audited Statement of Accounts for 2020/21, as attached as Appendix 1
to this report.
_____________________________________________________________________
RECOMMENDATIONS
1.

That the Audit and Corporate Governance Scrutiny Committee approve the
audited Statement of Accounts in respect of 2020/21

2.

That delegated powers are granted to the Chief Financial Officer in consultation
with the Chair or Deputy Chair of the Audit and Corporate Governance Scrutiny
Committee to agree any changes which may be necessary in order to ensure the
finalisation of the external audit currently being concluded by the Council’s
external auditors Mazars to ensure completion of the Statement of Accounts by
the statutory deadline of 30 September 2021.

Approved by the Portfolio Holder – Yes
_____________________________________________________________________
IMPLICATIONS
Finance and Risk

Yes

No 

There are no additional financial implications arising from this report.
On Behalf of the Section 151 Officer
Legal including Data Protection

Yes 

No
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The process has been undertaken in accordance with the requirements of the Accounts
and Audit Regulations. It should be noted that following a Government consultation
exercise, this year the Council is required to complete and approve the audited
Statement of Accounts by the 30 September 2021.
On Behalf of the Solicitor to the Council
Staffing

Yes

No 

There are no staffing issues arising directly from this report.
On Behalf of the Head of Paid Service
_____________________________________________________________________
DECISION INFORMATION
Is the decision a Key Decision?
N/A
A Key Decision is an executive decision
which has a significant impact on two or
more District wards or which results in
income or expenditure to the Council above
the following thresholds:
BDC:
Revenue - £75,000 
Capital - £150,000 
NEDDC: Revenue - £100,000 
Capital - £250,000 
 Please indicate which threshold applies
Is the decision subject to Call-In?
(Only Key Decisions are subject to Call-In)

N/A

Has the relevant Portfolio Holder been Yes
informed
District Wards Affected
All
Links to Corporate Plan priorities or All
Policy Framework
_____________________________________________________________________
REPORT DETAILS
1

Background

1.1

The Statement of Accounts is a statutory document which sets out the Council’s
income and spending during the financial year and its balances at the end of the
financial year.

1.2

The documents that make up the Statement of Accounts are complex and are
required to be prepared in line with the accounting rules that apply to all councils.

1.3

The statements are audited by the Council’s external auditors, Mazars LLP who
provide an opinion with regard to the quality or integrity of the financial
information, including the principal of ‘going concern’.
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2

Details of Proposal or Information
Statement of Accounts

2.1

The External Audit team, Mazars LLP, has been undertaking work on the
Statement of Accounts throughout July and August. The outcomes of the
external audit work are set out in the Audit Completion Report presented by
Mazars under Item 4b) of this agenda.

2.2

Attached as Appendix 1 to this report is the Council’s Audited Statement of
Accounts in respect of 2020/21. The External Auditor’s work is substantially
complete however there may be some changes still requested by the External
Auditors following completion which, if required, will be reported verbally at the
Committee. It is not anticipated that there will be any material changes between
the version attached and the final Statement of Accounts for 2020/21.

2.3

Given the possibility that issues raised either at today’s meeting or subsequently
may require the Statement of Accounts to be amended it is recommended that
delegated powers be given to the Chief Financial Officer in consultation with the
Chair or Deputy Chair of this Committee to agree any final changes to the
Council’s Statement of Accounts 2020/21. It should be noted that the only
changes that will be made under these delegated powers will relate to
amendments agreed with the Council’s external auditors Mazars.

3

Reasons for Recommendation

3.1

The external audit process in respect of 2020/21 is substantially complete and,
subject to the satisfactory completion of outstanding work, is expected to receive
an unqualified audit opinion. The outcome of this review is summarised in the
External Auditors Audit Completion Report (Item 4b).

4

Alternative Options and Reasons for Rejection

4.1
There are no alternative options for consideration.
_____________________________________________________________________
DOCUMENT INFORMATION
Appendix No

Title

North East Derbyshire District Council – Statement of
Accounts 2020/21.
Background Papers (These are unpublished works which have been relied
on to a material extent when preparing the report. They must be listed in the
section below. If the report is going to Cabinet (NEDDC) or Executive (BDC)
you must provide copies of the background papers)
1

Report Author

Contact Number

Jayne Dethick – Head of Finance and Resources

(01246) 217078
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NARRATIVE REPORT
Introduction
North East Derbyshire District Council covers an area of 100 square miles, with a
population of just over 100,000 people and operates alongside Derbyshire County
Council in providing local authority services to our residents. The Council has 399
employees. This report sets out how the Council has served our community during
the 2020/21 financial year outlining both our service delivery and financial
performance. Whilst the main emphasis is on the previous financial year (2020/21),
the report also covers the ability of the Council to continue to provide sustainable
services which meet local needs, and outlines how the Council works in partnership
to enhance the prosperity of the communities served.
The Council’s Performance and Outcomes for Local Residents
The emphasis of the Statement of Accounts which follows this narrative report is upon
the financial performance of the Council. Our financial performance, however, needs
to be considered in conjunction with our ability as a Council to provide a sustainable
comprehensive range of value for money services that meet both our statutory
obligations and the needs of our local area. This narrative outlines some of the
services and projects which the Council has delivered during the course of 2020/21,
while linking current performance to our strategic objectives and plans for the future.
It should be noted that this is in addition to the Council’s local response to the Covid
-19 pandemic which had a significant impact on council services during the year.
2020/21 was year two of the Council Plan 2019 – 2023. The vision is for the district
to be a place that is clean and attractive, a place where people are proud to live and
work, where they will prosper and are safe, happy and healthy.
The Council has four strategic aims designed to deliver this vision through priorities
that cover the life of the Council Plan. In order to better understand how the Council
has performed during the course of the current financial year, the table below sets
out headline progress against the Council’s agreed Strategic Aims and Priorities
Strategic Aim / Priorities
Creating a business friendly District
that develops skills and jobs
o Supporting businesses to
maximise their potential
skills
o Develop and promote a visitor
economy across the District
o Implementing a revised District
Growth Strategy
o Town centre regeneration

Progress Against Key Targets






The Council continues to work
with partners to ensure the
regeneration of the Avenue site,
former Coalite site and former
Biwater site to provide housing
and commercial land /
development opportunities.
92.1% of major applications
were determined within
timescale exceeding the target.
4 business engagement events
delivered
3 Virtual job fairs took place in
2020/21

North East Derbyshire District Council Statement of Accounts 2020/21
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NARRATIVE REPORT






Enhancing our residents’ quality of
life
o Providing a range of leisure
facilities for our communities
o Engage better with our
Communities
o Improving our housing
o Protecting the most vulnerable
within our communities
o Help communities address local
issues and concerns













Protecting and promoting the
character of our District
o Protect the character of our
District




North East Derbyshire
Employment and Skills Strategy
has been approved
A dedicated business advisor
based at D2N2 Growth Hub was
appointed and has supported
over 70 NEDDC businesses
Clay Cross Town Deal confirmed
£24.1m funding
During Covid the Council has
administered central government
and discretionary support grants
to qualifying businesses.
The Council invests significant
funding in the Voluntary and
Community Services sector and
in our Partnership Team to
provide effective support to
vulnerable /disadvantaged
people.
During Covid the Council has
supported its local community
through customer call-backs,
food parcel deliveries and
supporting local pharmacies with
prescription deliveries.
Processing times for new
Housing Benefit and Council Tax
Support claims were quicker
than the target.
The Council has increased its
leisure offer by taking over
running of Killamarsh sports
centre.
Work continues to deliver the
Corporate Communications
Strategy Action Plan
20 projects awarded Community
Action Grants Funds totalling
£9,839.50.
Installed a BSL video remote
and relay service to enable deaf
users to contact the Council via
BSL
12 electronic vehicle charging
points installed across the district
99% of all reports of fly-tipping
referred for investigation were

North East Derbyshire District Council Statement of Accounts 2020/21
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o Tackle climate change
o Ensure a clean, green
environment
o Enhance the natural
environment





responded to within 3 working
days
Reduced the District Council's
carbon emissions by over 100
tonnes CO2 in 2020/21(largely
due to the effects of Covid on
leisure services and staff
working from home).
Received funding to administer
green grants and ran a number
of successful publicity
campaigns to encourage
recycling and cut carbon use.

Delivering high quality cost effective
services by engaging with residents,
partners and Council staff

o Customer satisfaction levels
remain good and residents
appreciated the support during
Covid.
o Transforming how our Council
o The Council provides customer
works
contact centres, supported by
o Creating a safe District in which
telephony and internet access to
to live and work
services.
o Being a listening Council
o The Council has an effective
o Providing high quality street
modern, ICT infrastructure
scene
providing cost effective services
o Providing an effective Planning
to both residents and
Service
employees.
o The Council continues to make
transformation savings and has
a new plan fit for the future.
o The Council continues to steadily
grow its online customer base
and use.
o Planning application processing
targets and national targets have
been exceeded.
o Additional resources have been
secured for our Planning
Enforcement team following a
review.
o The Council continues to invest
in its future Managers through its
leadership programme.
o In recognition of the successful
working from home transition
due to Covid, the Council has
developed a new agile working
policy.
Most service areas have
undertaken a review and
North East Derbyshire District Council Statement of Accounts 2020/21
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produced an action plan
reflecting on the changes made
by Covid and future community,
customer and Council needs
The above provides a 'snapshot' of the Council's performance for 2020/21. The
pandemic has affected the Council as it has every organisation and individual. As a
public sector provider the Council has been instrumental in working with other
bodies to support its residents and customers during this difficult time. This has
included administering government and local support grants, supporting pharmacy
and food deliveries and contacting vulnerable customers.
Whilst some targets have clearly been affected by the pandemic such as leisure
centre participation rates and income, the Council has progressed a number of key
strategies in this period together with its service plans and found innovative ways to
continue effective operational delivery through agile working and technology.
A strategic focus has been to continue delivering against our Carbon Reduction Plan
and Digital Strategy whilst supporting the community and our customers during
Covid. The Council produced a recovery plan early on during Covid and this has been
supplemented by Service Reviews and Plans. Crucially supporting the district post
Covid is a strategic focus for 2021/22.
The Council recognises the role of a wide range of other organisations in promoting
the well-being of our community. Accordingly it works with a range of partners to
ensure that residents benefit from good services from a wide range of public sector
providers. The challenge of Covid underlined the need for effective partnership
working and how well placed the Council is in this regard.
As part of the Performance Management Framework the Council systematically
collect details of complaints and compliments. This information allows us to address
any specific issues that have arisen and also to better understand where services are
in need of improvement. Our performance management arrangements mean that the
Council are well placed to identify and address areas of concern before they escalate
into matters which could undermine service delivery. There is a Customer Service
Code of Practice and Standards in place and a Compliments, Comments and
Complaints Policy.
The longer term sustainability of both our service delivery and the Council’s financial
position are protected by Corporate, Service and Financial Plans. These are
supported by a Risk Management Framework which identifies and mitigates the
strategic and operational risks which could hinder or prevent our plans being
achieved.This framework has been reviewed and refreshed during 2020/21.
Although the Council takes steps to manage and mitigate the risks it faces it does
need to be recognised that some of the major strategic risks are only partially within
its direct influence. Key strategic risks recorded in the Councils risk register comprise:


The requirement to adapt to legislative change which may require additional
or enhanced services, may reduce the financial resources available to the
North East Derbyshire District Council Statement of Accounts 2020/21
4
Page 162

NARRATIVE REPORT
Council, or may impact on our ability to provide services which meet local
needs.


We are required to manage the ongoing impact of budget pressures which
need to be carefully managed to mitigate the impact on service provision, to
ensure we balance the budget whilst maintaining effective governance and
internal control arrangements.



Our ability to attract and retain the staff required to operate an effective Council
and the impact of the financial environment or external circumstances having
an adverse effect on staff morale.



The direct or indirect impact of wider factors such as economic recession upon
local communities, the loss of a major employer, or an Emergency Plan issue.



The risk of operational service failure which has an impact on the local
community and the Council’s ability to secure its corporate objectives.



Failure to have robust comprehensive and up to date policies and procedures
for safeguarding children and vulnerable adults.



Impact of HS2 and the electrification of the Midland Main Line on the
environment, heritage, communities and businesses.



The risk of overstretched or reduced organisational capacity in delivery of the
Council’s Agenda as this is dependent upon effective delivery of both a
number of major initiatives / projects and implementing a range of new
government reforms whilst maintaining service quality.



Lack of strategic direction from Members / Corporate Management, external
partners change Strategic direction.



Failure to maintain effective governance arrangements including
Performance, Finance and Risk Management in order to continue to operate
effectively in a rapidly changing environment.
Failure to address the impact of COVID-19 upon the organisation, local
economy and community




The risk of Cyber security attack which severely impacts ICT systems and
data. E.g. Ransomware attack rendering access to ICT unavailable for some
time.

Our organisation is risk aware rather than risk averse as the decision whether to
accept risk has to be taken in light of the potential benefits of a proposed course of
action. The extent to which the Council is risk averse, will undoubtedly impact on its
potential to progress available opportunities to secure benefits for local residents.
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The Risk Management approach, both in the identification of risks and the action
taken to address the risks, is flexible and has the ability to respond to change.
National policies, service delivery arrangements, national and local circumstances,
together with Council priorities have and will continue to change and evolve over time.
The Council’s Risk Management focus and arrangements are able to adjust in order
to ensure that current threats and opportunities are effectively addressed and not
stifled by inappropriate risk management arrangements.
Financial Performance
General Fund
The Council’s main revenue account is known as the General Fund. The costs of all
services (excluding Council Housing) are charged against it. The General Fund
budget is supported by the council tax which for 2020/21 was not increased so the
Band D Council Tax charge remained at £189.65 for the year.
During 2020/21, the Council continued its established approach of robust financial
management to help maintain high quality services for our residents. The original
budget was set in February 2020 with a savings target of £0.217m to be identified
from transformation savings, property rationalisation and income generation.
During the year the main impact on the budget was the Covid 19 pandemic which
inevitably had a detrimetal impact on the Council’s financial position. Whilst additional
costs were incurred as a result of the pandemic the main pressure came from lost
income from fees and charges, predominantly within leisure services but also from
other services such as MOT testing. Also, whilst not income foregone like fees and
charges, collection rates for local taxation were also considerably lower in 2020/21.
Council Tax was 2% lower than the pre pandemic forecast and business rates 10%
lower.
Covid Response grant funding of £1.440m has been received from the Government
during the year to aid the continued delivery of council services. In addition the
Government have compensated for a proportion of the income lost from fees and
charges, such as leisure centre income.
At the end of the year the Council had met the savings target of £0.217m, and made
a contribution to the Resilience Reserve of £0.594m. Although this represents a
financial gain it does need to be recognised that much of this benefit arose from ‘one
off’ savings, rather than from a reduction in the underlying level of expenditure.
However, this enhancement in the level of balances does put the Council in a better
postion to offset the required savings target.
As detailed below, the net cost of services outturn position of £8.000m was £0.627m
lower than the budget forecast:
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Current
Budget
2020/21
£000
Environment & Enforcement Directorate
Corporate Resources Directorate
Growth & Economic Development Directorate
Net Cost of Services

Outturn
2020/21
£000

Variance
£000

4,747
3,202
678

3,981
3,410
609

(766)
208
(69)

8,627

8,000

(627)

The actual net cost of services shown above links to the net expenditure chargeable
against the General Fund in the Expenditure and Funding Analysis which forms part
of the core financial statements. The Expenditure and Funding Analysis provides a
link between the funding basis that is reported for management decision making and
the statutory accounting basis as reported in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement.
Effective financial management over the past few years has enabled the Council to
maintain the level of General Fund balances at £2m which is considered a realistic
level. Against the background of recovery from the pandemic and ongoing reductions
in the level of Government funding it is crucial that the Council continues to maintain
robust budgetary control and secure its ongoing savings targets. The balances will
be required to provide the initial investment to generate income growth and fund
reconfiguration of services necessary for us to meet our savings targets over the
coming years.
The Housing Revenue Account (HRA)
The Housing Revenue Account is a legally separate account which ring fences the
income from council house rents. This income is required to meet the costs of
managing and maintaining the Council’s housing stock. In April 2020 the new Social
Housing Rent Standard came into force which is externally regulated by the Housing
Regulator and applies to all registered providers of social housing. For the first time,
the Government directed the Regulator to apply the rent standard to all registered
providers and this includes local authorities. The Standard confirms that rent
increases of up to CPI + 1% for the next five years will be permitted, commencing
April 2020. A rent increase of 1.7% was applied in 2020.
The management of the Council’s housing is undertaken by Rykneld Homes Limited,
a wholly owned subsidy of the Council. Rykneld Homes Limited is funded by the
Council’s Housing Revenue Account through the payment of a Management Fee
which for 2020/21 was agreed at £9.852m.
Alongside the housing investment programme being delivered by Rykneld Homes,
the Council has continued to support the drive to improve the council stock with a
strong commitment to both new build, together with an appropriate level of investment
in existing properties.
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The HRA net cost of services outturn position was £0.115m worse than anticipated,
as detailed below. The HRA reserves remain at £3m as at 31 March 2021. Strong
financial performance during the year enabled a contribution of £1.890m to the HRA
Development Reserve which will be reinvested in the stock. Again these are
considered to be adequate rather than a generous level of financial reserves in the
light of the risks facing the Council’s HRA.
Current
Budget
2020/21

Outturn
2020/21

Variance

£000

£000

.

£000
Housing Revenue Account
Net Cost of Services

(12,399)

(12,284)

115

(12,399)

(12,284)

115

Capital expenditure and resources
The Council has invested £12.716m on capital schemes in the year. This is split
between the Housing Revenue Account (£11.173m) and General Fund capital
expenditure (£1.543m).
The main capital schemes delivered in 2020/21 by the Council were:








Council housing stock investment programme of £7.613m;
External Wall Insulation Schemes of £2.816m;
Pine View Redevelopment Scheme of £0.064m;
Stock Purchase scheme of £0.431m;
Private Sector Disabled Facilities Grants of £0.249m;
Vehicle Replacement £0.562m;
Other capital schemes of £0.981m.

The capital programme was fully financed in the year utilising grants (£1.020m),
prudential borrowing (£0.562m), major repairs and development reserves (£9.919m)
and usable capital receipts from asset sales (£1.215m).
Treasury Management
At 31 March 2021, the Council has a total capital financing requirement (Council debt)
of £183.170m. This shows a net decrease in the year of £0.766m. The net decrease
reflects prudential borrowing of £0.562m offset by debt repayments of £1.328m. The
prudential borrowing relates to the purchase of vehicles (£0.562m). The level of debt
repayment reflects the Councils commitment to repay the approved scheduled debt
repayments in the year (£1.328m).
To meet the capital financing requirement the Council has external borrowing from
the Public Works Loans Board (£149.238m). The remainder is effectively financed
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from utilising the Council’s own reserves and balances (£33.932m). During the year
the Council repaid £0.303m to the PWLB as loans matured.
The Council has a general policy of not utilising leasing arrangements to finance
capital acquisitions, as other means of finance are considered to be more cost
effective. No new leasing arrangements were entered into 2020/21, so no leasing
liabilities remain.
Assets
During 2020/21 the Council completed the sale of 65 council dwellings under the
Right to Buy Legislation, 3 dwellings on the open market and demolished 11
dwellings, these were offset by the addition of 4 dwellings for affordable rent to the
HRA stock.
While Assets have been revalued during the year the changes to asset values
detailed in the accounts have no impact on the Council Tax Payer or Housing Tenants
but show as an increase or reduction in the net worth on the Council’s Balance Sheet.
Reserves and Balances
The Council holds usable reserves and balances totalling £69.412m. These include
general reserves of £5.000m (General Fund and Housing Revenue Account general
reserves discussed earlier). Additionally, the Council has £4.349m that relates to
unapplied capital grants, earmarked general fund revenue reserves of £22.700m and
earmarked HRA reserves of £34.681m. The Council also has £2.682m of usable
capital receipts at 31 March 2021. It should be noted that many of these resources
are committed to fund future service delivery or spend is subject to specific grant
conditions. Reserves are necessary to enable sound financial management and to
safeguard service delivery at a time when our revenues streams and expenditure
commitments are increasingly volatile.
During 2020/21 the Council received Section 31 grants to offset the reliefs given to
businesses during lockdown. These grants will not be discharged against the
Collection Fund until 2021/22 thereby inflating the General Fund at the end of this
financial year. Therefore the grant income has been transferred to the NNDR
earmarked reserve ready to fund that element of the deficit in 2021/22.
Collection Fund
Business Rates
As part of the Business Rates Retention Scheme, a number of years ago local
authorities were given the opportunity to work with neighbouring authorities to
establish a business rates pool. Being part of a pool allows member authorities to be
treated as a single authority for the purpose of certain calculations under the scheme.
With effect from 1 April 2015, the Council became a member of the Derbyshire Pool
which is administered by Derby City Council. The advantage of the pool is the
opportunity to generate additional business growth through collaborative working and
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to smooth out the impact of volatility in business rates income across a wider
economic area.
In 2020/21, £11.066m of Business Rates income was raised. An anticipated surplus
of £1.401m was forecast in the previous year. During the year £17.464m was paid on
account with the in year deficit of £8.887m and opening surplus balance of £1.542m
leaving a deficit balance of £7.345m at 31 March 2021. The Council’s share of the
deficit is £2.938m.
The deficit in 2020/21 is largely as a result of reliefs given to businesses during the
lockdown. Section 31 grants have been received to offset this but under collection
fund accounting rules these will not be discharged until 2021/22 so have been moved
into an earmarked reserve in the general fund this year.
The Government’s Tax Income Compensation Scheme is compensating local
authorities for 75% of their lost business rates income in 2020/21. Payments will be
based on the loss of business rates compared to the forecast position, £0.369m for
this council.
Council Tax
In 2020/21 £61.515m of Council Tax Income was raised. After taking account of
appropriate charges to the Collection Fund the balance (£61.550m) is shared
between the precepting authorities. In 2020/21, £60.923m was precepted on the
Collection Fund account and a further £0.582m was paid out in relation to previous
years surpluses. This leaves a deficit in year of £1.049m which when added to the
opening balance on the fund (£0.745m) leaves a deficit on the fund of £0.304m at 31
March 2021. The Council’s share of the deficit is £0.046m.
The deficit in 2020/21 is the result of lower income collection rates during the
pandemic. Supplementary regulations have been issued to address these
exceptional negative balances and as a result deficits have been spread over the
next three years.
Pension Fund Reserve
The Council’s position with regard to the pension fund administered on its behalf by
Derbyshire County Council has seen an increase in the liabilities of £38.207m and an
increase in the fair value of assets of £19.822m. The fund shows a net increase in
the pension liability of the Council by £18.385m to £58.165m at 31 March 2021.
Financial Planning
In line with good practice the Council plans its finances over the medium term (four
years). The Council regularly reviews its spending plans in light of changing priorities,
external factors and projected financial forecasts to ensure that they remain robust
and sustainable over the longer term. Legislative changes that were due at the end
of the current financial settlement were set to have a significant impact both upon its
financial position and service delivery in future years and had been considered as
part of the financial plan.
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The Covid-19 pandemic has delayed the proposed funding review further and
confirmation as to whether this will proceed in full or in part in the spending review
announcement of the autumn is awaited. The impact will then be considered in the
budget refresh later in 2021.
Whilst the Council continues to face significant financial challenges over the next four
years, and has a good track record of delivering efficiencies, an experienced and well
qualified management team, robust governance arrangements and a workforce
committed to delivering good quality services. These key assets together with a
combination of economic growth and service transformation, means that the Council
is well placed to meet these challenges. These are key factors that support my view
that the Council can continue to perform effectively, whilst ensuring that it maintains
a balanced budget.
General Fund
The Council set the budget in February 2021, with no shortfall in respect of 2021/22,
but with an estimated cumulative shortfall in the medium term financial plan of £2.9m
by 2024/25. A council tax increase of 1.95% was approved by Council in respect of
2021/22.
Pre Covid, plans were in place to address the ongoing budget shortfall including:






A refresh of the transformation programme including a full programme of
service related reviews.
Continuing to seek opportunities for income growth associated with increases
in the number of homes and business premises operating in the District.
Continuing to identify asset refurbishment schemes as part of the wider
strategy of optimising the use of Council assets.
Utilising capital receipts to reduce borrowing costs in order to generate savings
on interest and principal repayments.
Continuing with vacancy management arrangements.

However, the pandemic has made it hugely challenging to maintain momentum on
the growth and transformation agenda this year, this will be a priority in 2021/22.
A further delay to the Government’s financial reforms relieves some presuure on the
2021/22 budget but assumptions have been made for this in the medium term
financial plan in future years. In addition, the impact of the pandemic continues to be
felt into 2021 and estimates have been included within the budget where possible,
with additional costs and lost income being met from the Covid Response Grant.
Housing Revenue Account (HRA)
The Council continues to operate its HRA within the context of a 30 year Business
Plan which shows the Council’s housing operation to be sustainable over that period.
The Council is working with Rykneld Homes to ensure that properties continue to be
maintained to a decent standard and provide affordable accommodation with a
secure tenure which meets the housing needs of local residents. As part of this
programme the Council is seeking both to maintain a high standard of housing
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services, whilst investing in maintaining and refurbishing existing stock. Following a
stock condition survey of all stock the Council has increased the level of investment
in the existing stock to £12m per annum, largely to allow investment in the big number
of non traditional properties in the district. The Council has also committed to
investing in a substantial eco programme of works to the stock over the next two
years.
Management Arrangements
In 2020, Council approved a report to implement a new management structure. The
report disestablished the post of Joint Chief Executive, and designated the newly
named Joint Director of Corporate Resources as Head of Paid Service for a fixed
term. This review has been delayed as a result of the Coronavirus pandemic and the
temporary arrangements have remained in place throughout. As the recovery from
the pandemic continues both Councils plan to resume this review in the coming
months.
Coronavirus Pandemic
Coronavirus was categorised as a pandemic by the World Health Organisation on 11
March 2020. The Council started to see the impacts of the pandemic at the end of
the previous financial year and the 2020/21 financial year has been a full year of
dealing with the issues generated by the ongoing pandemic. Below is a brief outline
of how the Council has continued to address the impact of the pandemic.
Provision of Services
The Council’s business continuity plan has been in place throughout the year to
ensure that our services were prioritised in line with the Government’s response to
the pandemic. For the majority of the year, services have been fully provided, in line
with Government guidelines. In addition, many other services have been delivered
during the year as local councils have been delivering a number of government
schemes to address the impact of the pandemic.
The Community Support Team, established at the start of the first national lockdown
has continued to provide support to those most vulnerable across the district and the
Environmental Health service has been at the forefront of local compliance and
enforcement activity.
Grants Received and Distributed
Undoubtedly the biggest challenge faced over the past year has been the
administration of a range of grant and relief schemes on behalf of the Government.
Some of the schemes are fully reimbursed whilst others are a set allocation. The
eligibility criteria for these schemes are set out in government guidance and
throughout the year the Council has worked closely with the Department for Business,
Energy and Industrial Strategy (BEIS) to deliver all grant and relief schemes as swiftly
as possible to qualifying business owners and individuals across the district.
The Covid19 grants received during 2020/21 are shown in the table below:
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Covid19 Grants

Grant
Received

Expenditure

£’000

£’000

Grant
Carried
Forward to
2021/22
£’000

Grant
Transfered
to
Reserves
£’000

Agency Grants
Small Business Grant Fund (SBGF) & Leisure
Grant Fund (RHLGF)
Local Restrictions Support Grants (Closed)
Christmas Support Payments
Closed Business Lockdown Payments
Local Restrictions Support Grant (Open)
Covid19 Test & Trace
Principal Grants
Local Authority Discretionary Grants (LADGF)
Additional Restrictions Grants (ARG)
Covid19 Response Grant (via Resilience Reserve)
Council Tax Hardship
Homelessness during lockdown
Covid19 Compliance & Enforcement
Covid19 Enforcement
New Burdens - SBGF & RHLG
New Burdens - LADGF
New Burdens - Business Rates Admin Costs
Reimbursement Scheme
Compensation Scheme
Total

(19,070)

19,070

0

(5,367)
(77)
(3,465)
(278)
(223)

4,673
59
3,005
183
114

(694)
(18)
(460)
(95)
(109)

(961)
(2,931)
(1,440)

961
2,344
1,063

0
(587)
(377)

(776)
(125)
(44)
(50)
(130)
(58)
(23)

616
125
35
0
0
5
0

(160)
0
(9)
(50)
(130)
(53)
(23)

(1,106)
(36,124)

1,106
33,359

(1,376)

0
(1,389)

Council’s Workforce
From 23 March 2020, all staff who could work from home did so and a major agile
working exercise was launched to provide facilities as quickly as possible to those
office based staff who initially couldn’t. In following the Government guidelines, those
employees who can work from home have continued to do so and for those who
couldn’t a covid safe environment has been in place. Whilst this has at times
presented challenges, neither sickness nor self isolation have resulted in a reduction
in Council services to date.
The Council is now in the process of reviewing working practices for the post covid
working environment and has recently launched an agile working policy.
Reserves, Financial Performance and Financial Position
The Council holds reserves and fund balances as noted above and as detailed in the
Movement in Reserves Statement and accompanying notes. Any costs or losses of
income to the Council as a result of the pandemic not covered by the Government
funding are being met from the General Fund balances. This was recognised by
reviewing the approved budget during the year to identify budget pressures, mainly
from lost income and keeping this under review throughout. The uncertainty caused
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by the pandemic, surrounding major sources of estimation for asset values, the
pension liability and arrears are discussed in further detail in General Note 4.
Cash Flow Management
The cash flows of the Council are managed on a daily basis as part of our treasury
management function. Income from individuals paying council tax and dwelling rents,
from businesses in respect of business rates and commercial rents, along with other
service income such as leisure fees and charges, all provide the cash to allow the
council to meet its outgoings. Surplus cash is held as temporary investments until it
is needed as shown in Note 18. The Council has not experienced any negative cash
flow effects during the year as a result of the pandemic. The impact of the pandemic
on the Council’s cash flow will continue to be monitored on a daily basis.
Major Risks to the Council
Risks specifically linked to the pandemic have been included in the strategic risks
detailed above.
Plans for Recovery
The impact of the pandemic on the district will be continue to be felt for some time to
come. Health and wellbeing, employment, education and housing have all been
adversely affected. Both inward and outward facing recovery plans are in place to
tackle the specific impact on council services (inward) and the role to be played in the
recovery of the wider community.
The outward facing recovery plan focuses closely on the impact to the economy and
the role the Council will play throughout the recovery phase. Health and wellbeing
and providing support to those most vulnerable in the district are also an integral part
of the recovery plan.

Jayne Dethick CPFA
Head of Finance & Resources and S151 Officer
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Introducing the Accounts of North East Derbyshire District Council
The Legal Basis
The maintenance, preparation and format of the Council’s accounts are governed by
statute and recognised good practice. They follow the requirements for the
publication of financial information governing local authorities. The Accounts are set
out in order to show the day to day income and expenditure and to highlight changes
to the financial position of the Council during the year.
The document has several statements; these are explained in the summary below:
A Narrative Report (Pages 1-17)
This sets out an overview of the Council’s financial position as at 31 March 2021 and
its financial performance during the year.
Introductory Statements and Notes (Pages 18-46)
This section includes:
Statement of Responsibilities for the Statement of Accounts (Page 19)
Accounting Policies (Pages 20-42)
The Accounting Policies sets out the basis on which the figures have been compiled
into the various accounts which comprise this document.
General Notes (Pages 43-46)
This section identifies any issues that may be useful to the reader prior to reading the
Financial Statements.
Movement in Reserves Statement (Pages 48-49)
This statement shows the movement in the year on the different reserves held by the
authority, analysed into ‘usable reserves’ (i.e. those that can be applied to fund
expenditure or reduce local taxation) and other reserves.
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (Page 50)
The Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement shows the Council’s actual
financial performance for the year, measured in terms of resources consumed and
generated over the past twelve months.
The Balance Sheet (Page 51)
This statement details the financial position of the Council as at 31st March 2021; its
assets, liabilities, balances and reserves.
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The Cash Flow Statement (Page 52)
This consolidated statement summarises the inflows and outflows of cash arising
from transactions with third parties for revenue and capital purposes. Cash is defined
for the purpose of this statement, as cash in hand and deposits repayable on demand
less overdrafts repayable on demand.
Notes to the Core Single Entity Financial Statements (Pages 53-120)
The notes provide explanations of the figures in the main financial statements. Where
figures shown in the financial statements are expanded in detail, a cross reference is
made to the statement in which the explanatory note is provided.
Expenditure and Funding Analysis Statement Notes (Pages 54-57)
Movement in Reserves Statement Notes (Pages 58-59)
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement Notes (Pages 60-64)
Balance Sheet Notes (Pages 65-97)
Cash Flow Statement Notes (Pages 98-99)
Other Notes (Pages 100-120)
Supplementary Single Entity Financial Statements (Pages 121-134)
These consist of the Housing Revenue Account and the Collection Fund.
The Housing Revenue Account (HRA) (Pages 122-129)
This account reflects the statutory obligation to maintain a revenue account for local
authority housing provision. It includes the debit and credit items required to be taken
into account in determining the surplus or deficit on the HRA for the year. The HRA
is incorporated into the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.
HRA Income and Expenditure Statement (Page 122)
This account shows in detail the income and expenditure on HRA services included
in the whole authority Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.
Movement on Housing Revenue Account Statement (Page 123)
This statement shows how the HRA Income and Expenditure Statement surplus or
deficit for the year reconciles to the movement on the Housing Revenue Account
balance for the year.
The Collection Fund (Pages 130-134)
This statement details income received by the fund from council taxpayers and
business ratepayers.
Council Tax Precept payments are made from the fund to North East Derbyshire
District Council, Derbyshire County Council, Derbyshire Police Authority and the
Derbyshire Fire Authority.
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NNDR payments are made to the Government, North East Derbyshire District
Council, Derbyshire County Council and Derbyshire Fire Authority.
Group Accounts (Pages 135-145)
The Council established an Arm’s Length Management Organisation (ALMO)
Rykneld Homes Limited from 1 April 2007 to manage the Council’s housing dwellings
and associated capital programme. The ALMO is a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Council. Local authorities with a subsidiary are required to prepare group accounts in
addition to the single entity financial statements (Accounts and Audit Regulations
2015). The group accounts reflect the transactions of both organisations in one set
of statements. These comprise of the following key financial statements:

Group Movement in Reserves Statement



Group Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement



Group Balance Sheet



Group Cash Flow Statement



Notes to the Group Accounts

Glossary (Pages 146-152)
This provides an explanation of some of the terms used within the Statement of

Accounts.
Annual Governance Statement (Page 157)
This statement identifies the systems that the Council has in place to ensure that its
business is conducted in accordance with the law and proper standards, and that
public money is safeguarded

North East Derbyshire District Council Statement of Accounts 2020/21
17
Page 175

INTRODUCTORY STATEMENTS

INTRODUCTORY
STATEMENTS

North East Derbyshire District Council Statement of Accounts 2020/21
18
Page 176

STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS
The Council’s Responsibilities
Section 151 of the Local Government Act 1972 requires the Council to make
arrangements for the proper administration of its financial affairs and to ensure that
one of its officers has the responsibility for the administration of those affairs. In this
Council, that officer is the Head of Finance and Resources.
The Council is required to manage its affairs to secure economic, efficient and
effective use of resources and safeguard its assets.
The Council is required to approve the Statement of Accounts.
The Head of Finance and Resources Responsibilities
The Head of Finance and Resources is responsible for the preparation of the
authority’s Statement of Accounts which, in terms of the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of
Practice on Local Authority Accounting in United Kingdom ("the Code”), is required
to present a true and fair view of the financial position of the authority at the
accounting date and its income and expenditure for the year ended 31 March 2021.
In preparing this Statement of Accounts, I have:




selected suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently;
made judgements and estimates that were reasonable and prudent;
complied with the Code.

I have also:



kept proper accounting records which were up to date;
taken reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other
irregularities.

I can confirm that I certify these accounts to give a true and fair view of the financial
position of the authority at the reporting date and of its expenditure and income for
the year ended 31 March 2021.
Signed by:

Jayne Dethick CPFA
Head of Finance and Resources and Section 151 Officer
Date: 17/6/21
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Accounting Policies and General Notes
This section explains the accounting policies applied in producing the Statement of
Accounts and identifies any notes that may be useful to the reader prior to reading
the Financial Statements.
1

General Principles

The Statement of Accounts summarises the Council’s transactions for the 2020/21
financial year and its position at the year-end of 31st March 2021. The Council is
required to prepare an annual Statement of Accounts by the Accounts and Audit
Regulations 2015 which require them to be prepared in accordance with proper
accounting practices. These practices primarily consist of the Code of Practice on
Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2020/21 supported by International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).
The accounting convention adopted is historical cost, modified by the revaluation of
certain categories of non-current assets and financial instruments.
The Council does not have any transactions that are reclassifiable to the Surplus or
Deficit on the Provision of Services so as such has not grouped the items in Other
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure into amounts that may be reclassifiable and
amounts that are not.
The Council has followed the requirements of International Accounting Standard
(IAS) 1 in preparing the Statement of Accounts. Its objectives are to ensure that for
all material items the Council:


Adopts accounting policies most appropriate to its particular circumstances for
the purpose of giving a true and fair view;



Reviews the accounting policies regularly to ensure that they remain
appropriate, and changes them when a new policy becomes more appropriate;



Ensures that sufficient information is disclosed in the financial statements to
enable users to understand the accounting policies adopted and how they
have been implemented.

The general principles adopted in compiling the accounts are those set out by CIPFA
in the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom, which
is recognised by statute as representing proper accounting practice. In addition the
Local Authority Accounting Panel Standards Committee periodically issue bulletins
on accounting practice. These accounting policies conform with those principles,
which are applicable to Local Authorities.
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2

Accounting Concepts

The concepts used in selecting and applying the most appropriate policies and
estimation techniques are as follows:


The qualitative characteristics of financial information – relevance, reliability,
comparability, and understanding;



Materiality (all major transactions and events are included);



The accounting concepts of accruals, going concern and primacy of legislative
requirements.

3

Accruals of Income and Expenditure

Activity is accounted for in the year that it takes place, not simply when cash
payments are made or received. In particular:


Revenue from fees, charges and rents due from customers are recognised
when the Council transfers the risk and rewards of ownership to the purchaser
and it is probable that economic benefits or service potential associated with
the transaction will flow to the Council.



Revenue from the provision of services is recognised when the Council can
measure reliably the percentage of completion of the transaction and it is
probable that economic benefits or service potential associated with the
transaction will flow to the Council.



Supplies are recorded as expenditure when they are consumed – where there
is a gap between the date supplies are received and their consumption, they
are carried as inventories on the Balance Sheet;



Expenses in relation to services received (including services provided by
employees) are recorded as expenditure when the services are received
rather than when payments are made.



Interest receivable on investments and payable on borrowings is accounted
for in the year to which it relates and are based on an effective interest rate for
the relevant financial instrument rather than the cash flow fixed or determined
by the contract;



Where income and expenditure has been recognised but cash has not been
received or paid a debtor or creditor for the relevant amount is recorded in the
Balance Sheet. Where it is doubtful that debts will be settled, the balance of
debtors is written down and a charge made to revenue for the income that
might not be collected.

An exception to this principle relates to electricity and other similar periodic payments
which are charged at the date of meter reading rather than being apportioned
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between financial years. This policy is consistently applied each year and therefore
does not have a material effect on the year’s accounts.
Income and expenditure are credited and debited to the relevant service revenue
account, unless they properly represent capital receipts or capital expenditure.
Grant claims are submitted on an actual basis wherever possible, however if the
information to do this is not available then a best estimate basis is adopted.
4

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash is represented by cash in hand and deposits with financial institutions repayable
without penalty on notice of not more than 24 hours. Cash equivalents are short-term,
highly liquid investments that mature within three months and are readily convertible
to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of change in
value.
In the Cash Flow Statement, cash and cash equivalents are shown net of bank
overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Council’s
cash management.
5

Charge to revenue for Non Current Assets

Services, support services and trading accounts are debited with the following
amounts to record the cost of holding non-current assets during the year:
•
•
•

depreciation – attributable to the assets used by the relevant service
revaluation and impairment losses on assets used by the service where there
are no accumulated gains in the Revaluation Reserve against which losses
can be written off
amortisation of intangible assets attributable to the service

The Council is not required to raise council tax to fund depreciation, revaluation and
impairment losses or amortisation. However, it is required to make an annual
contribution from revenue towards the reduction in its overall borrowing requirement
equal to an amount calculated on a prudent basis determined by the Council in
accordance with statutory guidance.
Depreciation, revaluation and impairment
losses and amortisation costs are therefore replaced by the contribution in the
General Fund of a Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP), by way of an adjusting
transaction with the Capital Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves
Statement for the difference between the two.
The Council’s policy for the calculation of the statutory provision for the repayment
of debt is determined each year by the Council. The Council has decided that for
2020/21 the outstanding general fund debt prior to 1 April 2007 will be repaid at a
rate of £56,000 per year until the debt is extinguished. All other prudential
borrowing for the General Fund is repaid based on the life of the asset.

North East Derbyshire District Council Statement of Accounts 2020/21
22
Page 180

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
6

Collection Fund

The transactions of the Collection Fund are wholly prescribed by legislation. Billing
authorities have no discretion to determine which receipts and payments are
accounted for within the fund and which outside.
NNDR - Impairment of Appeals
Each year the Council commissions an independent assessment of the outstanding
appeals lodged with the Valuation Office. The assessment has reviewed every
individual appeal and estimate of the likelihood of the appeal succeeding based on
the category of appeal and previous appeal determinations.
The rateable value and the period covered by the appeal have been used to establish
a prudent provision to meet the estimated costs of successful appeals.
7

Contingent Assets

A contingent asset arises where an event has taken place that gives the Council a
possible asset whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise
of uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Council. Contingent
assets are not recognised in the accounting statements; they are disclosed by way
of notes where it is probable that there will be an inflow of economic benefit or service
potential.
8

Contingent Liabilities

A contingent liability arises when an event has taken place that gives the Council a
possible obligation whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or
otherwise of uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Council.
Contingent liabilities also arise in circumstances where a provision would otherwise
be made but either it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required or
the amount of the obligation cannot be measured reliably. Contingent Liabilities are
not recognised in the accounting statements; but are disclosed in a note to the
accounts.
9

Doubtful Debts

Provisions for doubtful debts are made to ensure that the Council can finance any
sums due to the Council which are subsequently deemed to be irrecoverable after all
recovery measures have been exhausted. This sum is reduced annually by sums
written off and increased by any contributions from the revenue account. The
provision is netted off against debtors in the Balance Sheet and not included in the
provisions total.
The provision for doubtful debts in respect of overdue council tax, housing benefit
overpayments, rents and NNDR is calculated by category on a percentage basis
based upon previous experience of the recovery of debts of that type. The provision
for other sundry debts is calculated by reference to the age of the debt involved, and
the Council’s previous experience of recovering such debt.
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10

Employee Benefits

Benefits Payable during Employment
Short term employee benefits are those due to be settled within 12 months of the
year end. They include such benefits as salaries, paid annual leave and paid sick
leave, bonuses and non-monetary benefits (e.g. cars) for current employees and are
recognised as an expense for services in the year in which employees render service
to the Council. An accrual is made for the cost of holiday entitlements earned by
employees but not taken before the year-end but which can be carried forward into
the next financial year. The accrual is made at the salary rates applicable in the
following accounting year, as this is the period in which the employee takes the
benefit. The accrual is charged to the relevant service area of the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement, but then is reversed out through the Movement
in Reserves Statement so that the annual leave is charged to revenue in the financial
year in which the annual leave occurs.
Termination Benefits
Termination benefits are amounts payable as a result of a decision by the Council to
terminate an officer’s employment before the normal retirement date, or an officer’s
decision to accept voluntary redundancy and are charged on an accruals basis to the
appropriate service or, where applicable, to the Non Distributed Costs line in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement at the earlier of when the Council
can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits or when the Council recognises
costs for a restructuring.
Where termination benefits involve the enhancement of pensions, statutory
provisions require the General Fund balance to be charged with the amount payable
by the Council to the Pension Fund or pensioner in year, not the amount calculated
according to the relevant accounting standards. In the Movement in Reserves
Statement appropriations are required to and from the Pensions Reserve to remove
the notional debits and credits for pension enhancement termination benefits and
replace them with accrued debits for the cash paid to the Pension Fund and
pensioners and any such amounts payable but unpaid at the year end.
Post Employment Benefits
Employees of the Council are members of the Local Government Pension Scheme
administered on behalf of the Council by Derbyshire County Council. The scheme
provides defined benefits to members (lump sums and pensions) earned as
employees working for the Council.
The Local Government Pension Scheme
The Local Government Pension Scheme is accounted for as a defined benefit
scheme:


The liabilities of the Derbyshire County Council Pension fund attributable to
the Council are included in the Balance Sheet on an actuarial basis using the
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projected unit method – i.e. an assessment of future payments that will be
made in relation to retirement benefits earned to date by employees, based on
assumptions about mortality rates, employee turnover rates, etc, and projected
earnings for current employees.


Liabilities are discounted to their value at current prices using a discount rate.



The assets of the Derbyshire County Council Pension fund attributable to the
Council are included in the Balance Sheet at their fair value:
•
•
•
•

quoted securities – current bid price;
unquoted securities – professional estimate;
unitised securities – average of the bid and offer rates;
property – market value.

The change in the net pension’s liability is analysed into the following components:
•

Current Service Cost - the increase in liabilities as result of years of service
earned this year. This is allocated in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement to the services for which the employees worked.

•

Past Service Cost - the increase in liabilities arising as a result of a scheme
amendment or curtailment whose effect relates to years of service earned in
earlier years. These costs are debited to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision
of Services in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, as part
of Non Distributed Costs.

•

Interest Costs - the expected increase in the present value of liabilities during
the year as they move one year closer to being paid. The cost is debited to the
Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement.

Remeasurements – comprising:
•

The Return on Plan Assets – excluding amounts included in net interest on the
net defined benefit liability (asset) – charged to the Pension Reserve as Other
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure.

•

Actuarial Gains and Losses – change in the net pension liability that arise
because events have not coincided with assumptions made at the last
actuarial valuation or because the actuaries have updated their assumptions debited to the Pensions Reserve as Other Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure.

•

Contributions paid to the County Pension Fund – cash paid as employer’s
contributions to the pension fund in settlement of liabilities; not accounted for
as an expense.
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In relation to retirement benefits, statutory provisions require the General Fund
balance to be charged with the amount payable by the Council to the pension fund or
directly to pensioners in the year, not the amount calculated according to the relevant
accounting standards. In the Movement in Reserves Statement, this means that there
are transfers to and from the Pensions Reserve to remove the notional debits and
credits for retirement benefits and replace them with debits for the cash paid to the
pension fund and pensioners and any such amounts payable but unpaid at the year
end. The negative balance that arises on the Pension Reserve therefore measures
the beneficial impact to the General Fund of being required to account for retirement
benefits on the basis of cash flows, rather than as benefits are earned by employees.
Discretionary Benefits
The Council has restricted powers to make discretionary awards of retirement
benefits in the event of early retirements. Any liabilities estimated to arise as a result
of an award to any member of staff are accrued in the year of decision to make the
award and accounted for using the same policies as are applied to the Local
Government Pension Scheme.
11

Events after the Reporting Period

Events after the Balance Sheet date are those events, both favourable and
unfavourable, that occur between the end of the reporting period and the date when
the Statement of Accounts is authorised for issue. Two types of events can be
identified:
•

Those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the
reporting period – the Statement of Accounts is adjusted to reflect such events.

•

Those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting period –
the Statement of Accounts are not adjusted to reflect such events, but where
a category of events would have a material effect, disclosure is made in the
notes of the nature of the events and their estimated financial impact.

Events taking place after the date of authorisation for issue are not reflected in the
Statement of Accounts.
12

Exceptional Items

Exceptional items are included in the cost of the service to which they relate or on the
face of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement if that degree of
prominence is necessary in order to give a fair presentation of the accounts. An
adequate description of each exceptional item is given within the notes to the
accounts.
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13

Prior Period Adjustments, Changes in Accounting Policies and
Estimates and Errors

Prior period adjustments may arise as a result in a change of accounting policies or
to correct a material error. Changes in accounting estimates are accounted for
prospectively, i.e. in the current and future years affected and do not give rise to a
prior period adjustment.
Changes in accounting policies are only made when required by proper accounting
practices or the change provides more reliable or relevant information about the effect
of transactions, other events and conditions on the Council’s financial position or
financial performance. Where a change is made it is applied retrospectively by
adjusting the opening balances and comparative amounts for the prior period as if
the new policy had always been applied.
Material errors discovered in the prior period figures are corrected retrospectively by
amending opening balances and comparative amounts for the period.
14

Financial Instruments

The Council is required to recognise, measure, present and disclose information
about any financial instruments. A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise
to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another
entity. Typical financial assets include bank deposits, trade receivables and other
receivables, loans receivable and advances. Typical financial liabilities include trade
payables and other payables, borrowings and financial guarantees. Non-exchange
transactions, such as those relating to taxes and government grants, do not give rise
to financial instruments.
Financial Liabilities
Financial liabilities are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the Council becomes
a party to the contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are initially
measured at fair value and are carried at their amortised cost. Annual charges to the
Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement for interest payable are based on the carrying
amount of the liability, multiplied by the effective rate of interest for the instrument.
For most of the borrowings that the Council has, this means that the amount
presented in the Balance Sheet is the outstanding principal repayable (plus accrued
interest). Interest charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
is the amount payable for the year according to the loan agreement.
Financial Assets
Financial assets are classified based on a classification and measurement approach
that reflects the business model for holding the financial assets and their cash flow
characteristics.
There are three main classes of financial assets measured at:
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amortised cost

fair value through profit or loss (FVPL), and

fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)

The Council's business model is to hold investments to collect contractual cash
flows. Financial assets are therefore classified as amortised cost, except for those
whose contractual payments are not solely payment of principal and interest.
Financial Assets Measured at Amortised Cost
Financial assets measured at amortised cost are recognised on the Balance Sheet
when the Council becomes a party to the contractual provisions of a financial
instrument and are initially measured at fair value. They are subsequently measured
at their amortised cost. Annual credits to the Financing and Investment Income and
Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for
interest receivable are based on the carrying amount of the asset multiplied by the
effective rate of interest for the instrument. For most of the financial assets held by
the Council, this means that the amount presented in the Balance Sheet is the
outstanding principal receivable (plus accrued interest) and interest credited to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is the amount receivable for the
year in the loan agreement.
When loans are made at less than market rates (a soft loan), a loss is recorded in
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (debited to the appropriate
service) for the present value of the interest that will be foregone over the life of the
instrument, resulting in a lower amortised cost than the outstanding principal.
Interest is credited to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement at a marginally higher
effective rate of interest than the rate receivable from the organisation, with the
difference serving to increase the amortised cost of the loan in the Balance Sheet.
Statutory provisions require that the impact of soft loans on the General Fund
balance is the interest receivable for the financial year.
Any gains and losses that arise on the de-recognition of an asset are credited or
debited to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.
Expected Credit Loss Model
The Council recognises expected credit losses on all of its financial assets held at
amortised cost, either on a 12-month or lifetime basis. The expected credit loss
model also applies to lease receivables and contract assets. Only lifetime losses
are recognised for trade receivables (debtors) held by the Council.
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Impairment losses are calculated to reflect the expectation that the future cash flows
might not take place because the borrower could default on their obligations. Credit
risk plays a crucial part in assessing losses. Where risk has increased significantly
since an instrument was initially recognised, losses are assessed on a lifetime basis.
Where risk has not increased significantly or remains low, losses are assessed on
the basis of 12-month expected losses.
Financial Assets Measured at Fair Value through Profit or Loss
Financial assets that are measured as FVPL are recognised on the Balance Sheet
when the council becomes a party to the contractual provisions of a financial
instrument and are initially measured and carried at fair value. Fair value gains and
losses are recognised as they arise in the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of
Services.
The fair value measurements of the financial assets are based on the following
techniques:
 instruments with quoted market prices - the market price.

 other instruments with fixed and determinable payments - discounted cash flow
analysis.

 equity shares with no quoted market prices - multiple valuation techniques (which
include market approach, income approach and cost approach).

The inputs to the measurement techniques are categorised in accordance with the
following three levels:
 Level 1 inputs - quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets
that the Council can access at the measurement date.

 Level 2 inputs - inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are
observable for the asset, either directly or indirectly.

 Level 3 inputs - unobservable inputs for the asset.

Any gains and losses that arise on the derecognition of the asset are credited or
debited to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.
Where fair value cannot be measure reliably, the instrument is carried at cost (less
any impairment losses).
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15

Government Grants and Contributions

Whether paid on account , by instalments or in arrears, government grants and third
party contributions and donations are recognised as due to the Council when there is
reasonable assurance that: •
•

The Council will comply with the conditions attached to the payments, and
The grants or contributions will be received.

Amounts recognised as due to the Council are not credited to the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement until conditions attached to the grant or
contribution have been satisfied. Conditions are stipulations that specify that the
future economic benefits or service potential embodied in the asset acquired using
the grant or contribution are required to be consumed by the recipient as specified,
or future economic benefits or service potential must be returned to the transferor.
Monies advanced as grants and contributions for which conditions have not been
satisfied are carried in the Balance Sheet as creditors. When conditions are satisfied,
the grant or contribution is credited to the relevant service line or Taxation and NonSpecific Grant Income (non-ring fenced revenue grants and all capital grants) in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.
Where capital grants are credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement, they are reversed out of the General Fund Balance in the Movement in
Reserves Statement. Where the grant has yet to be used to finance capital
expenditure, it is posted to the Capital Grants Unapplied reserve. Where it has been
applied, it is posted to the Capital Adjustment Account. Amounts in the Capital Grants
Unapplied reserve are transferred to the Capital Adjustment Account once they have
been applied to fund capital expenditure.
16

Heritage Assets

Heritage assets are a distinct class of asset which are reported separately from
property, plant and equipment and intangible assets.
Recognition
Heritage assets are classed as “a tangible asset with historical, artistic, scientific,
technological, geophysical or environmental qualities that is held and maintained
principally for its contribution to knowledge or culture” or “an intangible asset with
cultural, environmental or historical significance”. A general de-minimis limit of
£10,000 is applied to all fixed assets.
Measurement
Only heritage assets that have a cost or value available are required to be entered
into the Balance Sheet. Where information on the cost or value is not available and
the cost of obtaining the information outweighs the benefits to the user of the
statements, the code does not require that the asset is recognised in the Balance
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Sheet, although appropriate disclosure is needed where heritage assets are not
recognised in the Balance Sheet.
Unlike other assets, a full valuation every five years is not required. Valuations can
be done whenever the Council requires. The valuations may be made by any method
that is appropriate and relevant, this may include insurance valuations.
However, the code does require that authorities review the carrying amounts of
heritage assets with sufficient regularity to ensure they remain current. Because of
this the Council has determined that a five year review will be carried out.
Impairment
Impairment reviews are only required in limited circumstances. However, the Council
has determined that a five year review will be carried out. An immediate review will
need to be carried out where an asset has suffered physical deterioration or breakage
of a heritage asset; or where new doubts arise as to the authenticity of a heritage
asset.
Where impairment is identified as part of this review and it is deemed material, or as
a result of a valuation exercise, this is accounted for by:


Where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the Revaluation
Reserve, the carrying amount of the asset is written down against that balance
(up to the accumulated gains).



Where there is no balance in the Revaluation Reserve or an insufficient
balance, the carrying amount of the asset is written down against the relevant
service lines in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

Where an impairment loss is reversed subsequently, the reversal is credited to the
relevant service line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, up to
the amount of the original loss, adjusted for depreciation that would have been
charged if the loss had not been recognised.
Depreciation
Depreciation is provided for on some heritage assets, ones with a definite life, by the
systematic allocation of their depreciable amounts over their useful lives.


Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line allocation over the useful life of the
asset.

For any heritage assets with indefinite lives no depreciation is required.
Revaluation gains are also depreciated, where applicable, with an amount equal to
the difference between the current value depreciation charged on assets and the
depreciation that would have been chargeable based on their historic cost being
transferred each year from the Revaluation Reserve to the Capital Adjustment
Account.
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Disposals
When it becomes probable that an asset is to be sold it is reclassified as an Asset
Held for Sale. The asset is revalued before reclassification and then carried at the
lower of this amount and fair value less costs to sell. Where there is a subsequent
decrease to the fair value less costs to sell, the loss is posted to the Other Operating
Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. Gains
in fair value are recognised only up to the amount of any previous losses recognised
in the Surplus or Deficit on Provision of Services. Depreciation is not charged on
Assets Held for Sale.
If assets no longer meet the criteria to be classed as Assets Held for Sale, they are
reclassified back to non-current assets and valued at the lower of their carrying
amount before they were classified as assets held for sale. They are adjusted for
depreciation, amortisation or revaluations that would have been recognised had they
not been classified as Held for Sale.
Assets that are abandoned or scrapped are not classified as Assets Held for Sale.
When an asset is disposed of or decommissioned, the value of the asset in the
Balance Sheet is written off to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement as part of the gain or loss on disposal. Receipts from disposal are credited
to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as part of the gain or loss
on disposal (i.e. netted off against the carrying value of the asset at the time of
disposal). Any revaluation gains in the Revaluation Reserve are transferred to the
Capital Adjustment Account.
Amounts received from disposal proceeds in excess of £10,000 are categorised as
capital receipts. The balance of receipts is credited to the Capital Receipts Reserve
and can only be used either to finance new capital investment or set aside to reduce
the Council’s underlying need to borrow. Receipts are appropriated to the Reserve
from the Movement on Reserves Statement.
The written-off value of disposals is not a charge against council tax, as the cost of
fixed assets is fully provided for under separate arrangements for capital financing.
Amounts are appropriated to the Capital Adjustment Account from the General Fund
Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement.
17

Intangible Fixed Assets

Expenditure on non-monetary assets that do not have a physical substance but are
identifiable and controlled by the Council as a result of past events (for example
computer software) are capitalised when it is expected that future economic benefits
or service potential will flow from the intangible asset to the Council.
Internally generated assets are capitalised where it is demonstrable that the project
is technically feasible and is intended to be completed (with adequate resources
being available) and the Council will be able to generate future economic benefits or
deliver service potential by being able to sell or use the asset. Expenditure is
capitalised where it can be measured reliably as attributable to the asset and is
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restricted to that incurred during the development phase (research expenditure
cannot be capitalised).
Intangible Assets are initially measured at cost. Amounts are only re-valued where
the fair value of the assets held by the Council can be determined by reference to an
active market. In practice no intangible asset, held by the Council, meets this criterion
and they are therefore carried at amortised cost.
The depreciable amount of an intangible asset is amortised over its useful life to the
relevant service lines in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.
Each intangible asset is tested for impairment each year to see if there is an indication
that the asset might be impaired; any losses recognised are posted to the relevant
service lines in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. Any gain or
loss arising from the disposal of an intangible fixed asset is posted to the Other
Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement.
Where expenditure on intangible assets qualifies as capital expenditure for statutory
purposes, amortisation, impairment losses and disposal gains or losses are not
permitted to have an impact on the General Fund Balance. The gains and losses are
therefore reversed out of the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves
Statement and posted to the Capital Adjustment Account and (for sale proceeds
above £10,000) the Capital Receipts Reserve.
18

Interests in Companies and Other Entities

The Council has a material interest in Rykneld Homes Limited, a housing company
limited by guarantee.
Rykneld Homes Ltd is a wholly owned subsidiary, which was formed on 1 April 2007
and as a result the Council are required to prepare Group Accounts. In the Council’s
own single-entity accounts, the interests in companies and other entities are recorded
as investments, i.e. at cost, less any provision for losses.
The Council also has a joint venture in Northwood Developments Limited. This is
being accounted for as an available-for-sale financial asset. Group accounts are not
being prepared based on materiality.
19

Inventories

Inventories are included in the Balance Sheet at the lower of cost and net realisable
value.
20

Investment Property

Investment properties are those that are used solely to earn rentals and/or for capital
appreciation. The definition is not met if the property is used in any way to facilitate
the delivery of service or production of goods or is held for sale.
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Investment properties are measured initially at cost and subsequently at fair value,
based on the amount at which the asset could be exchanged between knowledgeable
parties at arm’s-length. Properties are not depreciated but are re-valued according to
market conditions at the year end. Gains and losses on revaluation are posted to the
Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement. The same treatment is applied to gains and
losses on disposal.
Rentals received in relation to investment properties are credited to the Financing
and Investment Income and Expenditure line and result in a gain for the General Fund
Balance. However, revaluation and disposal gains and losses are not permitted by
statutory arrangements to have an impact on the General Fund Balance. The gains
and losses are therefore reversed out of the General Fund Balance in the Movement
on Reserves Statement and posted to the Capital Adjustment Account and (for sale
proceeds above £10,000) the Capital Receipts Reserve.
21

Jointly Controlled Operations and Jointly Controlled Assets

Jointly controlled operations are activities undertaken by the Council in conjunction
with other ventures’ that involve the use of assets and resources of the ventures’
rather than the establishment of a separate entity. The Council recognises on its
Balance Sheet the assets that it controls and the liabilities it incurs and debits and
credits the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement with the share of
expenditure it incurs and the share of income it earns from the operation.
Jointly controlled assets are items of property, plant and equipment that are jointly
controlled by the Council and other ventures’, with the assets being used to obtain
benefits for the ventures’. The joint venture does not involve the establishment of a
separate entity. The Council accounts for only its share of the jointly controlled
assets, the liabilities and expenses it incurs on its own behalf or jointly with others in
respect of its interest in the joint venture and income that it earns from the venture.
The Council has the following jointly controlled operations:
Internal Audit Services - with Bolsover District Council and Chesterfield Borough
Council, and Derbyshire Dales District Council
ICT Services – with Bolsover District Council and Derbyshire Dales District Council
Environmental Health Services – with Bolsover District Council
The Council does have jointly controlled assets with Chesterfield Borough Council
and Bolsover District Council regarding the operation of a crematorium. On the basis
of materiality, the Council does not include any figures for the joint crematorium within
the Statement of Accounts.
22

Leases

The Council accounts for leases as finance leases where the terms of the lease
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the property,
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plant or equipment from the lessor to the lessee (the Council). All other leases are
classified as operating leases.
Where a lease covers both land and buildings, the land and buildings elements are
considered separately for classification.
Arrangements that do not have the legal status of a lease but convey the right to use
an asset in return for payment are accounted for under this policy where fulfilment of
the arrangement is dependent on the use of specific assets.
The Council as Lessee
Finance Leases
Property, plant and equipment held under finance leases are recognised on the
Balance Sheet at the commencement of the lease at its fair value measured at the
lease inception. The asset recognised is matched by a liability for the obligation to
pay the lessor.
Lease payments are apportioned between:
•
•

A charge for the acquisition of the interest in the property, plant or equipment
and applied to write down the lease liability;
A finance charge (debited to the Finance and Investment Income and
Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

Property, plant and equipment recognised under finance leases is accounted for
using the policies applied generally to such assets, subject to depreciation being
charged over the lease term if this is shorter than the assets estimated useful life
(where ownership of the asset does not transfer to the Council at the end of the lease
period).
The Council is not required to raise Council Tax to cover depreciation or revaluation
and impairment losses arising on leased assets. Instead a prudent annual
contribution is made from revenue funds towards the deemed capital investment in
accordance with statutory requirements.
Depreciation and revaluation and
impairment losses are therefore substituted by a revenue contribution in the General
Fund balance, by way of an adjusting transaction with the Capital Adjustment Account
in the Movement in Reserves Statement for the difference between the two.
Operating Leases
The Council also has operating leases where the risk and rewards relating to the
leased property remains with the lessor. Rentals payable are charged to the relevant
service revenue account on a straight line basis over the term of the lease, generally
meaning that rentals are charged when they become payable.
The Council as Lessor
Finance Leases
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Where the Council grants a finance lease over a property, the relevant asset is written
out of the Balance Sheet as a disposal. At the commencement of the lease, the
carrying amount of the asset in the Balance Sheet is written off to the Other Operating
Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as part of
the gain or loss on disposal. A gain, representing the Council's net investment in the
lease, is credited to the same line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement also as part of the gain or loss on disposal, matched by a lease (long-term
debtor) asset in the Balance Sheet.
Lease rentals receivable are apportioned between:
•
•

A charge for the acquisition of the interest in the property – applied to write
down the lease debtor (together with any premiums received); and
Finance income credited to the Financing and Investment Income and
Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

The gain credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement on
disposal is not permitted by statute to increase the General Fund balance and is
required to be treated as a capital receipt.
The Council currently has no finance leases for property where this policy applies.
Operating Leases
Where the Council grants an operating lease over a property or an item of plant or
equipment, the asset is retained on the Balance Sheet. Rental Income is credited to
the Other Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement. Credits are made on a straight line basis over the life of the lease, even if
this does not match the pattern of payments e.g. there is a premium paid at the start
of the lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging the lease are
added to the carrying amount of the asset and charged as an expense over the lease
term on the same basis as rental income.
23

Overheads and Support Services

The costs of overheads and support services are charged to directorates in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in accordance with the Council’s
arrangements for accountability and financial performance.
24

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, Plant and Equipment are non-current assets that have physical substance
are held for use in the provision of services, for rental to others, or for administrative
purposes and are expected to be used during more than one financial year.
Recognition
Expenditure on the acquisition, creation or enhancement of tangible fixed assets is
capitalised on an accruals basis, provided that it yields benefits to the Council and
the services that it provides is for more than one financial year. Expenditure that
secures but does not extend the previously assessed standards of performance of
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the asset (e.g. repairs and maintenance) is charged to revenue as it is incurred. A
general de-minimis limit of £10,000 is applied to non-current assets.
Measurement
Assets are initially measured at cost, comprising the purchase price and any costs
directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for
it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management.
The Council does not capitalise borrowing costs incurred whilst assets are under
construction.
The cost of assets acquired other than by purchase is deemed to be its current value,
unless the acquisition does not have commercial substance (i.e. it will not lead to a
variation in the cash flows of the Council). If an asset is acquired via an exchange
the cost of acquisition is the carrying amount of the asset exchanged by the Council.
Donated assets are measured at fair value. The difference between fair value and
the consideration paid is credited to the Taxation and Non Specific Grant income line
of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, unless the donated asset
has been made conditionally. Until all conditions are met the gain is held in the
Donated Assets Account. Gains that are credited to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement are reversed out of the General Fund balance to the Capital
Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves Statement.
Assets are then carried in the Balance Sheet using the following measurement bases:
•

Infrastructure, community assets and assets under construction – depreciated
historical cost;

•

Dwellings – current value, determined using the basis of existing use for social
housing;
Surplus assets – fair value, estimated at the highest and best use from a
market participant’s perspective;
All other assets – current value, determined as the amount that would be paid
for the asset in its existing use.

•
•

Where there is no market based evidence for the current value of an asset because
of the specialist nature of an asset, depreciated replacement cost (DRC) is used as
an estimate of current value.
Where non property assets that have short useful lives or low values (or both),
depreciated historical cost basis is used as a proxy for current value.
Assets included in the Balance Sheet at current value are re-valued where there have
been material changes in the value, but as a minimum every five years. Valuations
are undertaken by a professionally qualified valuer. Increases in valuations are
matched by credits to the Revaluation Reserve to recognise unrealised gains.
Where decreases in value are identified, they are accounted for as follows:
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•

Where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the Revaluation
Reserve, the carrying amount of the asset is written down against that balance,
up to the value of the accumulated gains;

•

Where there is no balance in the Revaluation Reserve or an insufficient
balance, the carrying amount of the asset is written down against the relevant
service lines in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

The Revaluation Reserve contains revaluation gains recognised since April 2007, the
date of its formal implementation. Gains arising before that date have been
consolidated into the Capital Adjustment Account.
Impairment
At the end of each reporting period an assessment is made of whether there is any
indication that an asset may be impaired. If there is an indication of impairment, and
it is deemed material. The recoverable amount of the asset is estimated to determine
the impairment loss.
Where impairment losses are identified they are accounted for as follows:


Where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the Revaluation
Reserve, the carrying amount of the asset is written down against that balance,
up to the value of accumulated gains;



Where there is no balance in the Revaluation Reserve or an insufficient
balance, the carrying amount of the asset is written down against the relevant
service lines in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

Where an impairment loss is reversed subsequently, the reversal is credited to the
relevant service line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, up to
the amount of the original loss, adjusted for depreciation that would have been
charged if the loss had not been recognised.
Depreciation
Depreciation is provided for on all property, plant and equipment assets by the
systematic allocation of their depreciable amounts over their useful lives. An
exception for assets without a determinable finite useful life (i.e. freehold land) and
assets that are not yet available for use (i.e. assets under construction).
Depreciation is calculated on the following bases: 





Land – Not depreciated
Dwellings and other buildings – straight-line allocation over the useful life of
the property as estimated by the valuer.
Infrastructure Assets - Straight-line allocation over life of asset
Vehicles, plant furniture and equipment – straight-line allocation over the
useful life of the asset.
Community assets – are not depreciated.
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Council Dwellings – Straight Line allocation over the life of the property (also,
subject to componentisation)

Items of property, plant and equipment are not depreciated until they become
available for use (i.e. when the asset is in the location and condition necessary for it
to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management). Depreciation
ceases at the earlier of the date that items of property, plant and equipment are
classified as held for sale and the date they are derecognised.
Revaluation gains are also depreciated, with an amount equal to the difference
between current value depreciation charged on assets and the depreciation that
would have been chargeable, based on their historical cost being transferred each
year from the Revaluation Reserve to the Capital Adjustment Account.
Where an item of Property, Plant and Equipment exceed £1m in value and has major
components whose costs are significant in relation to the total cost of the item, the
components are depreciated separately. The Council deems “significant” to be 25%
or more of the total cost of the asset. The Council also applies the following de
minimis levels with regard to component accounting.
Components are not separately identified where:
•
•

The useful life of the asset is less than 10 years
The depreciation charge based on the life of the component would differ from
that for the total asset by less than £10,000.
The component life must be materially different to the main asset to be treated
as a component.

•

For grouped assets such as Council Dwellings a practical level of componentisation
has been applied which links to the work programmes carried out within capital
programme. An appropriate life has been assigned to each of these components.
Disposals
When it becomes probable that an asset is to be sold it is reclassified as an Asset
Held for Sale. The asset is re-valued before reclassification at its existing use value
then carried at the lower of this amount and fair value less costs to sell. Where there
is a subsequent decrease to the fair value less costs to sell, the loss is posted to the
Other Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement. Gains in fair value are recognised only up to the amount of any previous
losses recognised in the Surplus or Deficit on Provision of Services. Depreciation is
not charged on Assets Held for Sale.
To be classified as an asset held for sale an asset must meet the following criteria:



The asset must be available for immediate sale in its present condition subject
to terms that are usual and customary for sales of such assets;
The sale must be highly probable, the appropriate level of management must
be committed to a plan to sell the asset and an active programme to locate a
buyer and complete the plan must have been initiated;
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The asset must be actively marketed for sale at a price that is reasonable in
relation to its current value;
The sale should be expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale
within one year of the date of classification and action required to complete the
plan should indicate that it is unlikely that significant changes to the plan will
be made or that the plan will be withdrawn.

If assets no longer meet the criteria to be classed as Assets Held for Sale, they are
reclassified back to non-current assets and valued at the lower of their carrying
amount before they were classified as assets held for sale. They are adjusted for
depreciation, amortisation or revaluations that would have been recognised had they
not been classified as Held for Sale.
Assets that are abandoned or scrapped are not classified as Assets Held for Sale.
When an asset is disposed of or decommissioned, the value of the asset in the
Balance Sheet is written off to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement as part of the gain or loss on disposal. Receipts from disposal are credited
to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as part of the gain or loss
on disposal (i.e. netted off against the carrying value of the asset at the time of
disposal). Any revaluation gains in the Revaluation Reserve are transferred to the
Capital Adjustment Account.
Amounts received for disposals, in excess of £10,000 are treated as capital receipts.
A proportion of Housing receipts is payable to central government. The balance of
receipts is credited to the Capital Receipts Reserve and can only be used for new
capital investment or set aside to reduce the Council's underlying need to borrow.
Receipts are appropriated to the Reserve from the General Fund balance in the
Movement in Reserves Statement.
The gain or loss on the sale of assets is not a charge against council tax. Amounts
are appropriated to the Capital Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves
Statement
25

Provisions

Provisions are made where an event has taken place that gives the Council a legal
or constructive obligation that probably requires settlement by a transfer of economic
benefits or service potential and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.
Provisions are charged to the appropriate service revenue account in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in the year that the Council
becomes aware of the obligation, and are measured as a best estimate at the balance
sheet date of the expenditure required to settle the obligation taking into account
relevant risks and uncertainties.
When payments are eventually made, they are charged to the provision set up in the
Balance Sheet. Estimated settlements are reviewed at the end of the financial year –
where it becomes more likely than not that a transfer of economic benefit will not be
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required (or lower settlement anticipated) the provision is reversed and credited back
to the relevant service revenue account.
26

Reserves

The Council sets aside specific amounts as reserves for future policy purposes or to
cover contingencies. Reserves are created by appropriating amounts out of the
General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement. When expenditure
to be financed from a reserve is incurred, it is charged to the appropriate service
revenue account in that year to count against the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision
of Services in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. The reserve
is then appropriated back into the General Fund Balance so that there is no net
charge against Council Tax for the expenditure.
Certain reserves are kept to manage accounting processes for non-current assets,
financial instruments, and retirement and employee benefits and do not represent
usable resources for the Council.
27

Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital under Statute

Expenditure incurred during the year which may be capitalised under statutory
provisions but does not result in the creation of a non current asset has been charged
as expenditure to the relevant service revenue account in the year. Where the Council
has determined to meet the cost of this expenditure from existing capital resources
or by borrowing, a transfer in the Movement in Reserves Statement from the General
Fund balance to the Capital Adjustment Account then reverses out the amounts
charged so there is no impact on the level of council tax.
28

Trust Funds

Details of the nature and amount of trust funds where the Council acts as the sole
trustee are disclosed as a note to the Balance Sheet.
29

Value Added Tax (VAT)

The Council is normally able to recover all VAT. Where this is the case VAT is not
included in the income and expenditure statements. Where the Council is unable to
recover VAT it is charged to the appropriate service.
30

Segmental Analysis

The Council operates with three directorates. All services of the Council fall into one
of these directorates. The main service areas within each directorate are as follows:
Corporate Resources – Partnerships; Legal; Governance, Elections and Scrutiny;
Procurement; Financial Services; Revenues and Benefits; Audit (client); ICT (client);
Customer Services and Improvement; Leisure; Human Resources; Health and
Safety; Payroll.
Economic Development & Growth - Economic Development; Housing Strategy;
Property and Estates; Emergency Planning.
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Environment & Enforcement - Planning; Environmental Health; Community Safety;
Emergency Planning; Streetscene.

North East Derbyshire District Council Statement of Accounts 2020/21
42
Page 200

GENERAL NOTES
1

Changes in Accounting Policies

As recommended in the Code of Practice guidance notes, there have been a limited
number of minor changes to the Accounting Policies which are seeking to clarify the
policies adopted in respect of 2020/21.
2

Accounting Standards that have been issued but have not yet been
adopted

The Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting (the Code) requires the Council
to disclose the expected impact of new standards that have been issued but not yet
adopted by the Code for the financial year. This applies to the following new or
amended standards within the 2021/22 code:
 Amendments to IFRS 3 Business Combinations: Definition of a Business
 Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39 and IFRS 7: Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
and Interest Rate Benchmark Reform Phase 2
The Council does not anticipate that any of the above will have a material impact on
the financial statements.
3

Critical Judgements in Applying Accounting Policies

In applying the accounting policies, the Council has had to make certain judgements
about complex transactions or those involving uncertainty about future events. The
critical judgements made in the Statement of Accounts are:






There is a high degree of uncertainty about future levels of funding for local
government. However, the Council has determined that this uncertainty is not
yet sufficient to provide an indication that the assets of the Council might be
impaired as a result of a need to close facilities and reduce levels of service
provision.
A review is undertaken to assess whether capital spend restores or enhances
an asset. A further judgement is then made as to whether there is a
consequent requirement to derecognise any existing value of any component
of the asset. The Council derecognises a component when the expenditure
exceeds 75% of the carrying value of the component. Expenditure on
components below this value is impaired through the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement.
The Council has determined the impairment of financial assets based on a
range of factors including aged debt profiling of sundry debors, housing benefit
overpayments, council tax and business rates.
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4

Assumptions made about the future and other major sources of
estimation uncertainty

The Statement of Accounts contains estimated figures that are based on assumptions
made by the Authority about the future or that are otherwise uncertain. Estimates are
made taking into account historical experiences, current trends and other relevant
factors. However, because balances cannot be determined with certainty, actual
results could be materially different from the assumptions and estimates.
The items in the Authority’s Balance Sheet at 31 March 2021 for which there is a
significant risk of material adjustment in the forthcoming financial year are as follows:
Arrears
At 31 March 2021, the Authority had total outstanding arrears of £7.198m. This was
made up of a sundry debtor balance of £1.669m, rents of £2.085m, over paid housing
benefits of £1.523m, NNDR payers of £0.851m and council tax payers of £1.070m.
A review of bad debt provision has been undertaken based on the age of the debt,
and a total doubtful debt provision of £3.700m has been made in the Accounts. All
allowances have been reviewed in the context of the financial impact of the Covid-19
pandemic on collection rates.
If collection rates were to change, either positively or negatively, this would be
reflected in the current year’s budgets as an increase or decrease in provision
requirements. Any change in the budgeted provision would impact on reserve
balances. If collection rates were to deteriorate, 10% of the amount of the impairment
of bad debts would require an additional provision of £0.370m.
Earmarked Reserves
A sum of £0.460m has been set aside to cover potential legal claims against the
Council. The reserve will be reviewed annually and adjusted accordingly. If the
reserve is not sufficient then General Fund balances will need to be utilised.
A sum has also been set aside for Business Rates (£6.837m). The amount of income
retained from business rates each year is based on an estimate as at 31 January, the
surplus or deficit is based on the outturn position and further adjustments are made
for the levy and redistributions in and out of the pool. Due to the complexity of these
estimates an earmarked reserve was been created to mitigate against any future
impact to the General Fund. This is particularly prevalent this year because of the
impact of the Covid pandemic. Section 31 grants have been received to offset the
cost of reliefs given to businesses during the lockdown but under collection fund
accounting rules these will not be discharged until 2021/22 so have been moved into
an earmarked reserve in the general fund this year to meet this future liability.
Property, Plant and Equipment
The Council’s assets are reviewed for impairment on an annual basis by the valuers
procured by the Council. The impairment review considers the overall market
conditions as well as any impairment relating to loss of economic benefit.
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Assets are depreciated over useful lives that are dependent on assumptions about
the level of repairs and maintenance that will be incurred in relation to individual
assets.
If the level of impairment is changed, this will impact on the net worth of the Council.
Impairment charges are reflected in the Accounts but are reversed through the
Movement in Reserves Statement so that there is no impact on the council tax or rent
payer.
It is estimated that the annual depreciation charge for buildings, including council
dwellings, would increase by £1.051m for every year that useful lives had to be
reduced.
Pensions Liability
Estimation of the net liability to pay pensions depends on a number of complex
judgements relating to the discount rate used, the rate at which salaries are projected
to increase, changes in retirement ages, mortality rates and expected returns on
pension fund assets. A firm of consulting actuaries is engaged to provide the Council
with expert advice about the assumptions to be applied.
During 2020/21 the Council’s actuaries advised that the net pension liability had
increased by £18.385m. This is made up of:
• £17.240m actuarial loss
• £1.145m loss arising from employer contributions of £3.033m being less than the
pension obligations of £4.178m
The effect of changes in the individual assumptions can be measured. For instance
a 0.5% decrease in the discount rate assumption would result in a decrease in the
pension liability of £16.915m. A 0.5% increase in the assumed salary increase rate
would result in a £1.739m increase in the pension liability and an increase of 0.5% in
the assumed pension rate would increase the pension liability by £14.810m. A one
year increase in member life expectancy would increase the defined benefit obligation
by around 3-5%.
Business Rates Appeals Provision
Since the introduction of the Business Rates Retention Scheme effective from 1st
April 2013, Local Authorities are liable for their proportionate share of successful
appeals against business rates charged to businesses in 2015-16 and earlier
financial years. Therefore, a provision has been recognised for the best estimate of
the amount that businesses have overpaid. The estimate has been calculated using
the latest Valuation Office (VAO) ratings list of appeals and the analysis of successful
appeals to date when providing the estimate of total provision up to and including
31st March 2021. The Council’s share of the balance of business rate appeals
provisions is 40% and equates to £1.463m (2019/20: £1.350m).
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Impact of the Covid-19 Pandemic on Pension Assets and Liabilities and Arrears
The Council's net pension liability included in our balance sheet and disclosed at note
39 includes an estimate of the total value of the Council's share of the Derbyshire
Pension Fund investment assets. The valuation of the Fund's Property investment
assets has been impacted by Covid-19 and reported on the basis of 'material
valuation uncertainty' as per the requirements of VPGA 10 of the RICS Red Book
Global. Consequently less certainty and a higher degree of caution should be
attached to the Council's share of these Pension Fund assets. The Council's actuary
has estimated that the value of the Council's share of these Pension Fund Property
investment assets at 31 March 2021 was £8.97m
When the full financial impact of the pandemic is realised it may result in a material
adjustment being required to the carrying values of asset and pension fund valuations
in the next financial year. Higher impairment allowance may need to be charged in
the future should asset levels fall. Similarly, if the discount rate changes, the size of
the net pension liability will also vary.
An estimate has been made of the possible effect on individuals and businesses
within the Council’s impairment for debtors. This may not be sufficient to cover the
eventual losses incurred and arrears levels may increase as individuals and
businesses struggle to make payments for council tax, business rates, commercial
rents and sundry debtors.
5

Prior Period Adjustments

There have been no prior period adjustments to the published financial statements
for 2020/21.
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MOVEMENT IN RESERVES STATEMENT
This statement shows the movement in the year on the different reserves held by the authority, analysed into ‘usable reserves’ (i.e. those that
can be applied to fund expenditure or reduce local taxation) and other reserves. The Cost of All Services line shows the true economic cost of
providing the authority’s services, more details of which are shown in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. These are
different from the statutory amounts required to be charged to the General Fund Balance and the Housing Revenue Account for council tax
setting and dwellings rent setting purposes. The increase/decrease line shows the net increase or decrease to reserves in year.
2020/21

General Fund
HRA Capital Receipts Major Repairs Capital Grants Total Usable Unusable Total Authority
Balances Balances
Reserve
Reserve
Unapplied
Reserves Reserves
Reserves
£'000

Balance at 31 March 2020

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

15,423

36,338

3,294

176

1,846

57,077

181,625

238,702

669

7,001

0

0

0

7,670

(6,837)

833

Adjustments from I&E charged under the accounting
basis to the funding basis under regulation

6,434

(5,658)

(612)

1,998

2,503

4,665

(4,665)

0

Increase or (decrease) in 2020/21

7,103

1,343

(612)

1,998

2,503

12,335

(11,502)

833

22,526

37,681

2,682

2,174

4,349

69,412

170,123

239,535

Movement in Reserves during 2020/21:
Total Comprehensive Income and Expenditure

Balance at 31 March 2021
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2019/20

General Fund
HRA Capital Receipts Major Repairs Capital Grants Total Usable Unusable Total Authority
Balances Balances
Reserve
Reserve
Unapplied
Reserves Reserves
Reserves
£'000

Balance at 31 March 2019

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

13,801

32,675

5,559

176

1,293

53,504

150,584

204,088

1,063

463

0

0

0

1,526

33,088

34,614

559

3,200

(2,265)

0

553

2,047

(2,047)

0

1,622

3,663

(2,265)

0

553

3,573

31,041

34,614

15,423

36,338

3,294

176

1,846

57,077

181,625

238,702

Movement in Reserves during 2019/20:
Total Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Adjustments from I&E charged under the accounting
basis to the funding basis under regulation
Increase or (decrease) in 2019/20
Balance at 31 March 2020
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COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND
EXPENDITURE STATEMENT
This statement shows the accounting cost in the year of providing services in
accordance with generally accepted accounting practices, rather than the amount to
be funded from taxation. Authorities raise taxation to cover expenditure in accordance
with regulations; this may be different from the accounting cost. The taxation position
is shown in the Movement in Reserves Statement.
2019/20 restated

2020/21

Net
Expenditure Income
Expenditure
£'000
£'000
£'000

11,883

(7,655)

29,392 (26,567)
4,175

(1,708)

45,450 (35,930)
22,230 (31,826)
0
0
67,680 (67,756)

Environment & Enforcement
4,228 Directorate
Corporate Resources
2,825 Directorate
Growth & Economic
2,467 Development Directorate
Cost Of General Fund
9,520 Services
(9,596) Housing Revenue Account
0 HRA Exceptional Item (note 3)
(76) Cost of All Services
7,920 Other Operating Expenditure

Expenditure Income
£'000

10,622

£'000

Net
Expenditure
£'000

(6,842)

3,780

40,553 (38,357)

2,196

3,465

(2,135)

1,330

54,640 (47,334)

7,306

19,035 (31,320)
0
0

(12,285)
0

73,675 (78,654)
0
(note 4)

(4,979)

5,045 Financing and Investment
Income and Expenditure

(note 5)

(14,415) Taxation and Non-Specific
Grant Income

(note 6)

7,152

5,446

(1,526) (Surplus) or Deficit on
Provision of Services

(15,288)

(7,669)

(Surplus) or Deficit on
(13,819) Revaluation of Fixed Assets

(note 23)

Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on
(19,269) Pension Assets/Liabilities

(note 23 & 39)

(10,404)

(33,088) Other Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure
(34,614) Total Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure

17,240
6,836

(833)

.
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The Balance Sheet shows the value as at the Balance Sheet date of the assets and
liabilities recognised by the authority. The net assets of the authority (assets less
liabilities) are matched by the reserves held by the authority. Reserves are reported in
two categories. The first category of reserves are usable reserves, i.e. those reserves
that the authority may use to provide services, subject to the need to maintain a prudent
level of reserves and any statutory limitations on their use (for example the Capital
Receipts Reserve that may only be used to fund capital expenditure or repay debt).
The second category of reserves is those that the authority is not able to use to provide
services. This category of reserves includes reserves that hold unrealised gains and
losses (for example the Revaluation Reserve), where amounts would only become
available to provide services if the assets are sold; and reserves that hold timing
differences shown in the Movement in Reserves Statement line ‘Adjustments between
accounting basis and funding basis under regulations’.
Note

31 March
2020
£'000

31 March
2021
£'000

382,822
58
14,128
25
7,690
404,723

Property, Plant & Equipment
Heritage Assets
Investment Property
Intangible Assets
Long Term Debtors
Long Term Assets

Note 10
Note 10 & 11
Note 12
Note 13
Note 14

391,686
58
14,198
56
8,729
414,727

0
154
7,052
28,183
35,389

Assets Held for Sale
Inventories
Short Term Debtors
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Current Assets

Note 15
Note 16
Note 17
Note 18

0
123
11,262
38,615
50,000

Short Term Borrowing
Short Term Creditors
Provisions (short term)
Current Liabilities

Note 19
Note 20
Note 21

(2,251)
(15,188)
(1,053)
(18,492)

Note 21
Note 19
Note 19 & 39

(1,499)
(147,033)
(58,168)
(206,700)

(350)
(10,654)
0
(11,004)
(1,385)
(149,238)
(39,783)
(190,406)

Provisions (long term)
Long Term Borrowing
Other Long Term Liabilities
Long Term Liabilities

238,702 Net Assets
(57,077) Usable Reserves
(181,625) Unusable Reserves
(238,702) Total Reserves

239,535
MIRS & 22
MIRS & 23

(69,412)
(170,123)
(239,535)
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT
The Cash Flow Statement shows the changes in cash and cash equivalents of the
authority during the reporting period. The statement shows how the authority
generates and uses cash and cash equivalents by classifying cash flows as
operating, investing or financing activities. The amount of net cash flows arising from
operating activities is a key indicator of the extent to which the operations of the
authority are funded by way of taxation and grant income or from the recipients of
services provided by the authority. Investing activities represent the extent to which
cash outflows have been made for resources which are intended to contribute to the
authority’s future service delivery. Cash flows arising from financing activities are
useful in predicting claims on future cash flows by providers of capital (i.e. borrowing)
to the Council.
2019/20
£'000
(1,526) Net (surplus) or deficit on the provision of services
Adjustment to surplus or deficit on the provision of services for noncash
(19,708) movements
Adjust for items included in the net surplus or deficit on the provision of
6,956 services that are investing and financing activities
(14,278) Net Cash flows from operating activities (note 24)
6,182 Investing Activities (note 25)
1,304 Financing Activities (note 26)
(6,792) Net (increase) or decrease in cash and cash equivalents

2020/21
£'000
(7,669)

(12,983)

8,139
(12,513)
1,778
303
(10,432)

(21,391) Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the reporting period

(28,183)

(28,183) Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the reporting period (note 18)

(38,615)
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NOTES TO THE CORE SINGLE ENTITY
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE CORE
SINGLE ENTITY
FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

2020/21
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EXPENDITURE & FUNDING ANALYSIS NOTES
1

Expenditure and Funding Analysis

The Expenditure and Funding Analysis shows the adjustment between the funding
basis, which is that reported for management decision making and the accounting
basis in the year.
2020/21

Adjustments
Net
between
expenditure Funding and
chargeable to accounting
the GF/HRA
basis
£'000
£'000
Environment & Enforcement Directorate

3,981

Corporate Resources Directorate

3,410

Net
expenditure
in CIES
£'000
3,780

(6,627)

(201)
(1,214)
721
(5,658)

(12,285)

1,373

(6,352)

(4,979)

Other Income and Expenditure

(9,819)

7,129

(2,690)

(Surplus) or Deficit on Provision of Services

(8,446)

777

(7,669)

Growth & Economic Development Directorate
Housing Revenue Account

Net Cost of Services

609

2,196
1,330

2019/20 restated

Adjustments
Net
between
expenditure Funding and
chargeable to accounting
the GF/HRA
basis
£'000
£'000
Environment & Enforcement Directorate

3,737

Corporate Resources Directorate

4,337

Net
expenditure
in CIES
£'000
4,228

(12,796)

491
(1,512)
1,355
3,201

(9,595)

Net Cost of Services

(3,610)

3,535

(75)

Other Income and Expenditure

(1,676)

225

(1,451)

(Surplus) or Deficit on Provision of Services

(5,286)

3,760

(1,526)

Growth & Economic Development Directorate
Housing Revenue Account

1,112

2,826
2,466
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EXPENDITURE & FUNDING ANALYSIS NOTES
General Fund and HRA Balances

2020/21

Opening GF and HRA Balances @ 1 April
Net surplus/(deficit) on GF in year
Closing GF and HRA balance at 31 March

2019/20

51,762

46,476

8,446

5,286

60,208

51,762

The note below shows the difference between the accounting basis and funding
basis.

1a 2020/21
Note to the Expenditure and Funding Analysis: Adjustments between funding and accounting basis

Adjustments from GF to arrive at the CIES
amounts

Adjustments Net changes
for capital for pension
Other
Total
purposes adjustments differences Adjustments
£'000
£'000
£'000
£'000

Environment & Enforcement Directorate
Corporate Resources Directorate
Growth & Economic Development Directorate
Housing Revenue Account

(992)
(490)
526
(5,658)

799
(752)
182
0

(8)
28
13
0

(201)
(1,214)
721
(5,658)

Net Cost of Services

(6,614)

229

33

(6,352)

2,416

916

3,797

7,129

(4,198)

1,145

3,830

777

Other operating expenditure and income
Difference between GF (surplus) / deficit and
CIES (surplus) / deficit
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EXPENDITURE & FUNDING ANALYSIS NOTES
1a 2019/20 restated
Note to the Expenditure and Funding Analysis: Adjustments between funding and accounting basis

Adjustments from GF to arrive at the CIES
amounts

Adjustments Net changes
for capital for pension
Other
Total
purposes adjustments differences Adjustments
£'000
£'000
£'000
£'000

Environment & Enforcement Directorate
Corporate Resources Directorate
Growth & Economic Development Directorate
Housing Revenue Account

(813)
(905)
1,075
3,201

1,285
(603)
279
0

19
(4)
1
0

491
(1,512)
1,355
3,201

Net Cost of Services

2,558

961

16

3,535

Other operating expenditure and income

(118)

1,379

(1,036)

225

Difference between GF (surplus) / deficit and
CIES (surplus) / deficit

2,440

2,340

(1,020)

3,760

Adjustments for Capital Purposes
1. Adjustments for capital purposes – this column adds in depreciation and
impairment and revaluation gains and losses in the service line, and for:


Other operating expenditure – adjusts for capital disposals with a transfer of
income on disposal of assets and the amounts written off for those assets.



Financing and investment income and expenditure – the statutory charges
for capital financing i.e. Minimum Revenue Provision and other revenue
contributions are deducted from other income and expenditure as these are
not chargeable under generally accepted accounting practices.



Taxation and non-specific grant income and expenditure – capital grants
are adjusted for income not chargeable under generally accepted accounting
practices. Revenue grants are adjusted from those receivable in the year to
those receivable without conditions or for which conditions were satisfied
throughout the year. The Taxation and Non Specific Grant Income and
Expenditure line is credited with capital grants receivable in the year without
conditions or for which conditions were satisfied in the year.
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EXPENDITURE & FUNDING ANALYSIS NOTES
Net Change for the Pensions Adjustments
2. Net change for the removal of pension contributions and the addition of IAS 19
Employee Benefits pension related expenditure and income:


For services this represents the removal of the employer pension
contributions made by the authority as allowed by statute and the replacement
with current service costs and past service costs.



For Financing and investment income and expenditure - the net interest
on the defined benefit liability is charged to the CIES.

Other Differences
3. Other differences between amounts debited/credited to the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement and amount payable/receivable to be
recognised under statute:


For Financing and investment income and expenditure the other
differences column recognises adjustments to the General Fund for the timing
differences for premiums and discounts.



The charge under Taxation and non-specific grant income and
expenditure represents the difference between what is chargeable under
statutory regulations for council tax and NDR that was projected to be received
at the start of the year and the income recognised under generally accepted
accouting practices in the Code. This is a timing difference as any difference
will be brought forward in future Surpluses or Deficits on the Collection Fund.

The table below shows the amount of income received from external sources given
on a segmental basis.
restated

2020/21 2019/20
Income Income
from
from
Services Services
£'000

Environment & Enforcement Directorate
Corporate Resources Directorate
Growth & Economic Development Directorate
Housing Revenue Account
Other Operating Income
Total income analysed on a segmental basis

£'000

(6,865)
(38,334)
(2,135)
(31,320)
0
(78,654)

(7,655)
(26,567)
(1,708)
(31,826)
0
(67,756)
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MOVEMENT IN RESERVES NOTES
2

Adjustments between Accounting Basis and Funding Basis under Regulations

This note details adjustments that are made to the total comprehensive income and expenditure recognised by the Authority in the year in
accordance with proper accounting practice to the resources that are specified by statutory provisions as being available to the Authority to
meet future capital and revenue expenditure.
Usable Reserves

2020/21
General Fund
Balances
£’000
Adjustments to the Revenue Resources
Am ounts by which incom e and expenditure included in the Com prehens ive Incom e and
Expenditure Statem ent are different from revenue for the year calculated in accordance with
s tatutory requirem ents :
· Pens ion cos ts (trans fers to or from the Pens ions Res erve)
· Council Tax and NNDR (trans fers to or from the Collection Fund)
· Pooled Funds (trans fers to or from the Pooled Funds Inves tm ent Account)
· Holiday Pay (trans fers to or from the Accum ulated Abs ences Res erve)
· Revers al of entries included in the Surplus or Deficit on the Provis ion of Services in
relation to capital expenditure (thes e item s are charged to the Capital Adjus tm ent Account)
Total Adjustments to Revenue Resources
Adjustments between Revenue and Capital Resources
Trans fer of non-current as s et s ale proceeds from revenue to the Capital Receipts Res erve
Paym ents to the governm ent hous ing receipts pool (funded by a trans fer from the Capital
Receipts Res erve)
Pos ting of HRA res ources from revenue to the Major Repairs Res erve
Statutory provis ion for the repaym ent of debt (trans fer from the Capital Adjus tm ent Account)
Capital expenditure financed from revenue balances (trans fer to the Capital Adjus tm ent
Account)
Total Adjustments between Revenue and Capital Resources
Adjustments to Capital Resources
Us e of Capital Receipts Res erve to finance capital expenditure
Us e of the Major Repairs Res erve to finance capital expenditure
Application of capital grants to finance capital expenditure
Trans fer from Deferred Capital Receipts Res erve upon receipt of cas h
Total Adjustments to Capital Resources
Total Adjustments

Usable Capital
Receipts Reserve
£’000

HRA Balances
£’000

Major Repairs
Reserve
£'000

Capital Grants
Unapplied
£’000

1,145
3,796
(57)
33

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0
0

1,131

10,705

0

0

0

6,048

10,705

0

0

0

0

(26)

(3,999)

4,025

0

0

1,803

0

(1,803)

0

0

0
0

(11,319)
0

0
(1,619)

11,319
0

0
0

0

0

0

0

0

1,777

(15,318)

603

11,319

0

0
0
(1,458)
67
(1,391)

0
0
(1,045)
0
(1,045)

(1,215)
0
0
0
(1,215)

0
(9,321)
0
0
(9,321)

0
0
2,503
0
2,503

6,434

(5,658)

(612)

1,998

2,503
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Usable Reserves

2019/20
General Fund
Balances
£’000
Adjustments to the Revenue Resources
Amounts by which income and expenditure included in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement are different from revenue for the year calculated in accordance with
statutory requirements:
· Pension costs (transfers to or from the Pensions Reserve)
· Council Tax and NNDR (transfers to or from the Collection Fund)
· Pooled Funds (transfers to or from the Pooled Funds Investment Account)
· Holiday Pay (transfers to or from the Accumulated Absences Reserve)
· Reversal of entries included in the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services in
relation to capital expenditure (these items are charged to the Capital Adjustment Account)
Total Adjustments to Revenue Resources
Adjustments between Revenue and Capital Resources
Transfer of non-current asset sale proceeds from revenue to the Capital Receipts Reserve
Payments to the government housing receipts pool (funded by a transfer from the Capital
Receipts Reserve)
Posting of HRA resources from revenue to the Major Repairs Reserve
Statutory provision for the repayment of debt (transfer from the Capital Adjustment Account)
Capital expenditure financed from revenue balances (transfer to the Capital Adjustment
Account)
Total Adjustments between Revenue and Capital Resources
Adjustments to Capital Resources
Use of Capital Receipts Reserve to finance capital expenditure
Use of the Major Repairs Reserve to finance capital expenditure
Application of capital grants to finance capital expenditure
Transfer from Deferred Capital Receipts Reserve upon receipt of cash
Total Adjustments to Capital Resources
Total Adjustments

Usable Capital
Receipts Reserve
£’000

HRA Balances
£’000

Major Repairs
Reserve
£'000

Capital Grants
Unapplied
£’000

2,340
(1,036)
39
16

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

(2,771)

17,486

0

0

0

(1,412)

17,486

0

0

0

(58)

(5,286)

5,344

0

0

2,409

0

(2,409)

0

0

0
0

(9,000)
0

0
(2,141)

9,000
0

0
0

0

0

0

0

0

2,351

(14,286)

794

9,000

0

0
0
(553)
173
(380)

0
0
0
0
0

(3,059)
0
0
0
(3,059)

0
(9,000)
0
0
(9,000)

0
0
553
0
553

559

3,200

(2,265)

0

553
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COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND
EXPENDITURE STATEMENT NOTES
3

Material Items of Income and Expense

2020/21
There are no material items of Income and Expense to be disclosed separately during
2020/21.
2019/20
There are no material items of Income and Expense to be disclosed separately during
2019/20.
4

Other Operating Expenditure
2019/20
£'000

5

2020/21
£'000

3,210 Parish Council Precepts and Council Tax Reduction Contribution
2,409 Payments to the Government Housing Capital Receipts Pool
2,301 (Gains)/Losses on the disposal of non-current assets

3,365
1,803
1,984

7,920 Total

7,152

Financing and Investment Income & Expenditure
2019/20
£'000
5,313 Interest payable and similar charges
1,379 Net interest on the net defined benefit liability
(408) Interest receivable and similar income
Income and expenditure in relation to investment properties and
(1,309) changes in their fair value
70 Other investment income
5,045

2020/21
£'000
5,275
916
(358)
(429)
42
5,446
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COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND
EXPENDITURE STATEMENT NOTES
6

Taxation and Non Specific Grant Income
2019/20
£'000
0
(926)
0
0
(926)

2020/21
£'000
Revenue Support Grant
New Homes Bonus Grant
Capital Grants and Contributions
Council Tax Freeze Grant

(4,431) Business Rates Retention
(9,058) Council Tax Income (includes parish precepts)
(14,415) Total Grants

0
(824)
(1,620)
0
(2,444)
(3,697)
(9,147)
(15,288)
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COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND
EXPENDITURE STATEMENT NOTES
7

Grant Income

The Authority credited the following grants and contributions to the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement in 2020/21.
2020/21
£'000
Credited to Taxation and Non Specific Grant Income
See note 6

2019/20
£'000

(2,444)

(926)

0
(115)
(820)
(1,014)
(23)
0
(47)
(250)
(81)
(540)
(33)
(5,772)
(11,532)
(695)

(650)
(114)
(722)
0
(146)
(166)
0
(252)
(22)
0
(45)
(6,045)
(12,569)
(951)

(518)
(646)

(779)
(196)

Credited to Services
Air Quality Feasibility Grant
Council Tax Admin Grant
Disabled Facilities Grant
Energy Efficiencies Grant
European Elections Grant
Parliamentary Elections Grant
Police & Crime Commissioner Elections Grant
Housing Benefits Admin Grant
Housing Benefits New Burdens Grant
New Towns Fund Grant
Police Authority Contributions
Rent Allowances Grant
Rent Rebates Grant
Section 106 Grants
Other Grants
Other Contributions
Covid-19 Related Grants
Additional Restrictions Grant
Christmas Support Payments Grant
Closed Business Lockdown Payments Grant
Council Tax Hardship Grant
Covid-19 Homelessness Grant
Covid-19 LA Support Grant
Covid-19 New Burdens Grant
LADGF Grant
Local Restrictions Support Grant (Closed)
Local Restrictions Support Grant (Open)
Sales Fees and Charges Support Grant
Test & Trace Grant
Other Covid-19 Related Grant

(2,931)
(77)
(3,465)
(776)
(125)
(1,440)
(211)
(961)
(5,367)
(278)
(1,105)
(223)

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

(14)

0

Total

(39,059)

(22,657)

Overall Grants Total

(41,503)

(23,583)
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COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND EXPENDITURE STATEMENT NOTES
8

Transfers to/from Earmarked Reserves

This note sets out the amounts set aside from the General Fund and HRA balances in earmarked reserves to provide financing for future
expenditure plans and the amounts posted back from earmarked reserves to meet General Fund and HRA expenditure in 2020/21.
Balance at Transfers Transfers Balance at
31st March
Out
In
31st March
2019
2019/20
2019/20
2020
£'000
£'000
£'000
£'000

Transfers
Out
2020/21
£'000

Transfers Balance at
In
31st March
2020/21
2021
£'000
£'000

General Fund:
Revenue Grant Reserve
Legal Reserve
Car Park Enforcement
Planning Policy
Invest to Save
Crematorium
Revenue Projects
Insurance Reserve
Business Rates
Investment Properties R & M
Resilience Reserve
Other Reserves
Total

(3,099)
(460)
(4)
(122)
(4,254)
0
(24)
(90)
(3,087)
(144)
0
(517)
(11,801)

1,320
0
0
5
1,036
0
0
1
368
23
0
68
2,821

(2,235)
0
0
(50)
(204)
(440)
0
0
0
0
(1,349)
(165)
(4,443)

(4,014)
(460)
(4)
(167)
(3,422)
(440)
(24)
(89)
(2,719)
(121)
(1,349)
(614)
(13,423)

4,124
0
0
52
112
0
0
0
0
0
1,137
50
5,475

(6,075)
0
0
(40)
(150)
0
0
0
(4,118)
0
(2,108)
(87)
(12,578)

(5,965)
(460)
(4)
(155)
(3,460)
(440)
(24)
(89)
(6,837)
(121)
(2,320)
(651)
(20,526)

HRA:
Insurance Reserve
Development Reserve
Debt Repayment Reserve
HRA Capital Grant Reserve
ALMO Deficit Reserve
Total

(495)
(1,776)
(27,400)
(4)
0
(29,675)

0
1,633
0
0
0
1,633

(50)
(946)
(4,300)
0
0
(5,296)

(545)
(1,089)
(31,700)
(4)
0
(33,338)

0
597
0
0
0
597

(50)
(1,890)
0
0
0
(1,940)

(595)
(2,382)
(31,700)
(4)
0
(34,681)

Total

(41,476)

4,454

(9,739)

(46,761)

6,072

(14,518)

(55,207)
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COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND
EXPENDITURE STATEMENT NOTES
9

Expenditure and Income by nature
2020/21

2019/20

£'000

£'000

Expenditure
Employee Expenses
Premised Related Expenditure
Transport Costs
Supplies and Services
Support Services
Transfer Payments
Capital Financing Costs
Interest Payments
Precepts and Levies
Payments to Housing Capital Receipts Pool

13,947
1,505
385
29,061
1,378
17,405
8,591
5,275
3,365
1,803

14,171
1,720
490
18,208
1,377
19,015
10,393
5,313
3,210
2,409

Total Expenditure

82,715

76,306

Income
Fees, Charges and Other Service Income
Interest and Investment Income
Government Grants
Business Rate Retention
Income From Council Tax
Recharges and Other Income

(35,134)
(358)
(40,567)
(3,697)
(9,147)
(1,481)

(33,552)
(388)
(28,951)
(4,431)
(9,058)
(1,452)

Total Income

(90,384)

(77,832)

(7,669)

(1,526)

Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services

The significance of IFRS15 has been considered and does not have material impact
on amounts or timing of revenue recognition.

North East Derbyshire District Council Statement of Accounts 2020/21
64
Page 222

BALANCE SHEET NOTES
10

Property, Plant and Equipment

Council Dwellings

Other Land and
Buildings

Vehicles, Plant and
Equipment

Infrastructure Assets

Heritage Assets

Community Assets

Surplus Assets

Assets under
Construction

Total Property, Plant &
Equipment (Asset
Register)

Leased Assets

Total Property, Plant &
Equipment

Movements in 2020/21

Cost or Valuation & Impairment

£’000

£’000

£’000

£’000

£’000

£’000

£’000

£’000

£’000

£’000

£’000

At 1st April 2020

355,499

25,027

5,668

421

58

1

10

367

0

0

0

0

0

0

Assets reclassified (to)/from Held for Sale

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

Revaluation increases/(decreases) recognised in the Revaluation
Reserve - 1 April

0

210

0

0

0

0

Revaluation increases/(decreases) recognised in the surplus/deficit
on the provision of service - 1 April

0

(35)

0

0

0

369 387,053

0

387,053

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

210

0

210

0

0

0

(35)

0

(35)

Movement in cost or valuation
Reclassification

Additions

574

0

0

0

0

1,608

(662)

(64)

0

0

0

0

0

0

(726)

0

(726)

Impairment of Additions - CIES

(4,983)

(147)

0

0

0

0

0

0

(5,130)

0

(5,130)

Disposals

Impairment of Additions - Revaluation Reserve

8,701

211

(367)

11,094

0

11,094

(6,174)

(19)

0

0

0

0

0

0

(6,193)

0

(6,193)

Revaluation increases/(decreases) recognised in the Revaluation
Reserve - 31 March

3,230

(152)

0

(14)

0

0

0

0

3,064

0

3,064

Revaluation increases/(decreases) recognised in surplus/deficit on
the provision of service - 31 March

7,458

61

0

(114)

0

0

0

0

7,405

0

7,405

363,436

25,092

6,242

293

58

1

10

1,610 396,742

0

396,742

As at 31st March 2021
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Council Dwellings

Other Land and
Buildings

Vehicles, Plant and
Equipment

Infrastructure Assets

Heritage Assets

Community Assets

Surplus Assets

Assets under
Construction

Total Property, Plant &
Equipment (Asset
Register)

Leased Assets

Total Property, Plant &
Equipment

Movements in 2020/21

£’000

£’000

£’000

£’000

£’000

£’000

£’000

£’000

£’000

£’000

£’000

Accumulated Depreciation
At 1st April 2020

0

(505)

(3,668)

0

0

0

0

0

(4,173)

0

(4,173)

Movement in depreciation reclassification

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

(7,641)

(490)

(7)

0

0

0

0

(8,878)

0

(8,878)

Depreciation Charge
Assets reclassified (to)/from Held for Sale

0

0

(740)
0
0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

Depreciation written out to the Revaluation Reserve

0

115

0

0

0

0

0

0

115

0

115

Depreciation written out to the surplus/deficit on provision of
services

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

192

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

192

0

192

7,449

291

0

6

0

0

0

0

7,746

0

7,746

0

(589)

(4,408)

(1)

0

0

0

0

(4,998)

0

(4,998)

Balance Sheet Net Amount at 31st March 2021

363,436

24,503

1,834

292

58

1

10

1,610 391,744

0

391,744

Balance Sheet Net Amount at 31st March 2020

355,499

24,522

2,000

421

58

1

10

369 382,880

0

382,880

Disposals
Depreciation reversed due to impairment review
As at 31st March 2021
Net Book Value
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Council Dwellings

Other Land and
Buildings

Vehicles, Plant and
Equipment

Infrastructure Assets

Heritage Assets

Community Assets

Surplus Assets

Assets under
Construction

Total Property, Plant &
Equipment (Asset
Register)

Leased Assets

Total Property, Plant &
Equipment

Movements in 2019/20

Cost or Valuation & Impairment

£’000

£’000

£’000

£’000

£’000

£’000

£’000

£’000

£’000

£’000

£’000

At 1st April 2019

352,440

16,661

5,108

390

58

1

10

Reclassification

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

Assets reclassified (to)/from Held for Sale

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

Revaluation increases/(decreases) recognised in the Revaluation
Reserve - 1 April

0

5,133

0

170

0

0

Revaluation increases/(decreases) recognised in the surplus/deficit
on the provision of service - 1 April

0

3,302

0

(139)

0

10,745

565

543

0

32 374,700

0

374,700

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

5,303

0

5,303

0

0

0

3,163

0

3,163

0

0

0

337

12,190

0

12,190

Movement in cost or valuation

Additions
Impairment of Additions - Revaluation Reserve

(795)

(274)

0

0

0

0

0

0

(1,069)

0

(1,069)

Impairment of Additions - CIES

(6,228)

(291)

23

0

0

0

0

0

(6,496)

0

(6,496)

Disposals

(7,123)

(69)

(6)

0

0

0

0

0

(7,198)

0

(7,198)

Revaluation increases/(decreases) recognised in the Revaluation
Reserve - 31 March

1,315

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

1,315

0

1,315

Revaluation increases/(decreases) recognised in surplus/deficit on
the provision of service - 31 March

5,145

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

5,145

0

5,145

355,499

25,027

5,668

421

58

1

10

369 387,053

0

387,053

As at 31st March 2020
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Council Dwellings

Other Land and
Buildings

Vehicles, Plant and
Equipment

Infrastructure Assets

Heritage Assets

Community Assets

Surplus Assets

Assets under
Construction

Total Property, Plant &
Equipment (Asset
Register)

Leased Assets

Total Property, Plant &
Equipment

Movements in 2019/20

£’000

£’000

£’000

£’000

£’000

£’000

£’000

£’000

£’000

£’000

£’000

Accumulated Depreciation
At 1st April 2019

0

(921)

(2,995)

(52)

0

0

0

0

(3,968)

0

(3,968)

Movement in depreciation reclassification

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

(7,650)

(515)

(660)

(7)

0

0

0

0

(8,832)

0

(8,832)

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

Depreciation written out to the Revaluation Reserve

00
0

591

0

26

0

0

0

0

617

0

617

Depreciation written out to the surplus/deficit on provision of services

0

0

(19)

26

0

0

0

0

7

0

7

214

0

6

0

0

0

0

0

220

0

220

7,436

340

0

7

0

0

0

0

7,783

0

7,783

0

(505)

(3,668)

0

0

0

0

0

(4,173)

0

(4,173)

Balance Sheet Net Amount at 31st March 2020

355,499

24,522

2,000

421

58

1

10

369 382,880

0

382,880

Balance Sheet Net Amount at 31st March 2019

352,440

15,740

2,113

338

58

1

10

32 370,732

0

370,732

Depreciation Charge
Assets reclassified (to)/from Held for Sale

Disposals
Depreciation reversed due to impairment review
As at 31st March 2019
Net Book Value
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Depreciation
The following useful lives and depreciation rates have been used in the calculation of
depreciation:
Council Dwellings –
Component

Useful Life

Land
Building
Roof
Windows & Doors
Bathroom
Heating
Kitchen

Infinite Life
20 - 80 years (see note below)
50 years
30 years
20 years
20 years
15 years

During 2020/21 the building component of council dwellings has been depreciated
over the following number of years: Defective Houses – 20 years
Pre 1945 – 50 years
1945 – 1974 – 60 years
Post 1974 – 80 years
Post 2010 – 80 years
Other assets are depreciated over the following lives: Other Land and Buildings – 10 – 50 years
Vehicles, Plant, Furniture and Equipment – 1 – 25 years
There is no requirement to depreciate land assets. In calculating depreciation, the
straight line method has been adopted using a prudent estimate for the useful
economic life and residual value for individual assets within each category. The fixed
asset register contains the detailed information used in the depreciation calculation.
Leased vehicles are depreciated on a straight line basis from the month of acquisition.
Assets under Construction
The current amount of assets under construction is £1,609,244 (£369,195, 2019/20).
This figure is made up from work on the Refurbishing Council Dwellings £431,758,
EWI Scheme at Heath £309,146, EWI Scheme at Mickley £826,671, Pine View
Redevelopment £36,765, Report for the development of Sharley Park Leisure Centre
£1,760, Acquistions and Disposal Programme £2,000 and Stock Purchase Scheme
£1,144.
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Impairment
The Council has impaired £5.856m of capital works undertaken during 2020/21
(£7.565m, 2019/20) of which £5.130m (£6.496m, 2019/20) has been put through the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and £0.726m (£1.069m,
2019/20) through the Revaluation Reserve. It is recognised that this expenditure is
not reflected in the overall value of the property.
The 31 March 2021 impairment gains of £10.469m (£6.460m gains, 2019/20) arise
as values are adjusted to reflect current market values within the asset categories
shown, of which £7.405m gain (£5.145m gain, 2019/20) has been put through the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and a gain of £3.064m (£1.315m
gain, 2019/20) through the Revaluation Reserve.
Capital Commitments
The following table identifies the capital commitments at the end of the financial year.
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
£'000
£'000
Disabled Facilities Grants

218

161

Total Commitments

218

161

Revaluations
A certified Valuation Report has been prepared by Barlow Property Consultancy for
Council Dwellings and Wilks, Head and Eve, Chartered Surveyors and Town
Planners for Operational and Non-Operational assets. The valuations are assessed
on the basis of open market value (for existing use where appropriate) or depreciated
replacement cost (where there is no market for the property) in accordance with the
Statements of Asset Valuation Practice and Guidance Notes of the Royal Institution
of Chartered Surveyors.
Valuations are assessed at maximum five year periods with additional annual desktop reviews. The date of the last full valuation of assets was 1 April 2019. Council
Housing stock is valued on the basis of market value with vacant possession less a
regional reduction. For 2020/21 this is 42% (2019/20 42%).
Vehicles, Plant and Equipment, Infrastructure and Community Assets are shown in
the Balance Sheet at historic cost.
Assets are reviewed for any significant increases or decreases (impairment) in value
every year. Impairment of assets is assessed in accordance with the guidance below.
The Council has considered the following in respect of the valuations placed upon its
assets in the Balance Sheet at 31 March 2021:
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any significant increase or decline in a fixed asset’s market value during the
period;



evidence of obsolescence or physical damage to the fixed asset;



a significant adverse change in the statutory or other regulatory environment
in which the Authority operates;



a commitment by the Authority to undertake a significant reorganisation .
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The following table shows the in year valuation changes for each category of non-current assets compared with the current historic cost:
Council
Dwellings
£’000

Other
Vehicles,
Infrastructure Heritage
Land and Plant and
Assets
Assets
Buildings Equipment
£’000

£’000

£’000

£’000

Community
Assets

Surplus
Assets

Assets under
Construction

Total

£’000

£’000

£’000

£’000

Carried at Historic Cost

0

0

6,242

293

0

1

0

1,610

8,146

Valued at current value:
31st March 2021
31st March 2020
31st March 2019
31st March 2018
31st March 2017

363,436
0
0
0
0

17,839
3,490
1,574
2,189
0

0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
58

0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
10
0

0
0
0
0
0

381,275
3,490
1,574
2,199
58

Total cost or
valuation

363,436

25,092

6,242

293

58

1

10

1,610

396,742
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11 Heritage Assets
Reconciliation of the carrying value of Heritage Assets held by the Authority: Civic Regalia

Total Assets

£'000

£'000

Cost or Valuation
1 April 2019

58

58

0

0

31 March 2020

58

58

1 April 2020

58

58

Revaluations

0

0

31 March 201

58

58

In Year Disposals

Civic Regalia
The Authority’s collection of civic regalia is reported in the Balance Sheet at a
jeweller’s valuation which is based on market values. The most recent valuation has
taken place during the 2020/21 financial year.
Heritage Assets: Five year summary of transactions
2020/21
£'000
Balance B/fwd

2019/20
£'000

2018/19
£'000

2017/18
£'000

2016/17
£'000

58

58

58

58

68

0

0

0

0

(10)

Sculpture

0

0

0

0

0

Balance C/fwd

58

58

58

58

58

Revaluation of Assets
Civic Regalia
Disposal of Assets
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12

Investment Properties

The following items of income and expenditure have been accounted for in the
Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement.
2020/21
£'000
Rental Income from investment property

2019/20
£'000

(579)

(565)

Direct operating expenses arising from investment property

52

73

Capital Transactions

98

(818)

Net (gain)/loss

(429)

(1,310)

There are no restrictions on the Council’s ability to realise the value inherent in its
investment property or on the Council’s right to the remittance of income and the
proceeds of disposal. The Council has no contractual obligations to purchase,
construct or develop investment property or repairs, maintenance or enhancement.
The Council has disclosed the impact of COVID-19 on the valuer’s process and the
material uncertainty attached to these valuations as at 31 March 2021.
Fair Value Hierarchy
Details of the Council’s investment properties and information about the fair value
hierarchy as at 31 March 2021 with comparators for 2019/20 are as follows:
2020/21
Level 1
£'000

Level 2
£'000

Fair value
as at 31
March 2021
£'000

Level 3
£'000

Industrial Units
Commercial Properties
Land
Shared Ownership Properties

0
0
0
0

7,745
1,349
3,750
1,354

0
0
0
0

7,745
1,349
3,750
1,354

Total

0

14,198

0

14,198
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2019/20
Level 1
£'000

Level 2
£'000

Fair value as
at 31 March
2020
£'000

Level 3
£'000

Industrial Units
Commercial Properties
Land
Shared Ownership Properties

0
0
0
0

7,686
1,353
3,750
1,339

0
0
0
0

7,686
1,353
3,750
1,339

Total

0

14,128

0

14,128

 Level 1 valuation uses quoted prices in active markets for identical assets.
 Level 2 valuation uses other observable inputs.
 Level 3 valuation uses significant unobservable inputs.
Valuation Techniques used to determine Level 2 (Significant Observable
Inputs) Fair Values for Investment Properties
The fair value for the £14.198m has been based on the market approach using
current market conditions and recent sales prices and other relevant information for
similar assets in the Council’s area. Market conditions are such that similar properties
are actively purchased and sold and the level of observable inputs are significant,
leading to the properties being categorised at Level 2 in the fair value hierarchy.
Highest and Best Use of Investment Properties
In estimating the fair value of the Council’s investment properties, the highest and
best use of the properties is their current use.
Valuation Techniques
There has been no change in the valuation techniques used during the year for
investment properties.
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The following table summarises the movement in the fair value of investment
properties over the year:
2020/21
£'000
Balance B/fwd

14,128

15,948

Reclassifications - Asset moved from OLB

0

0

Additions:
Purchases

0

0

Enhancements

43

22

Disposals

(7)

(666)

Net gains/losses from fair value adjustments

34

Balance C/fwd

13

2019/20
£'000

14,198

(1,176)
14,128

Intangible Assets

The Council accounts for its software as intangible assets, to the extent that the
software is not an integral part of a particular IT system and accounted for as part of
the hardware item of Property, Plant and Equipment. The intangible assets include
only purchased licences as the Council has no internally generated software. All
software is given a finite useful life, based on assessments of the period that the
software is expected to be of use to the Council. The useful lives assigned to the
major software suites used by the Council are:
Useful Life

Software Package

3 Years

Enterprise Software
Capita AIM Software
Mitel Software
Tranman Software
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The movement on intangible asset balances during the year is as follows:
2020/21
£'000
Balance B/fwd
Gross carrying amount
Accumulated Amortisation

2019/20
£'000

799
(774)

774
(740)

0
0

0
0

Net Carrying Amount 1 April

25

34

Additions:
Purchases
Amortisation

39
(8)

25
(34)

Disposals:
Assets at GBV
Amortisation

0
0

0
0

Balance C/fwd

56

25

838
(782)
56

799
(774)
25

Reclassification - Asset
Reclassification - Accumulated Amortisation

Comprising:
Gross carrying amounts
Accumulated amortisation

The intangible assets relate to computer software. This includes amortisation costs
of £0.008m (£0.034m, 2019/20) which have been charged to services in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. The assets are being amortised
over a period of 3 years using a straight line method. An impairment review of these
assets was undertaken as at 31 March 2021 which has not impacted on the asset
values.
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Long Term Debtors
31st March
2021

31st March
2020

£'000

£'000

Housing Act Advances and Outstanding Mortgages
Rykneld Homes Loan
Northwood Group Loan
Northwood Shares - Long Term Investment
Works in Default
Long Term Finance Leases

15

3
6,845
1,600
144
123
14

3
6,115
1,338
91
112
31

8,729

7,690

Assets Held For Sale

The Council has no Assets held for Sale at 31 March 2021.
16

17

Inventories
Balance at
31st March

Balance at
31st March

2021
£'000

2020
£'000

Street Scene
Swimming Pools/Leisure Centres
Other

100
15
8

134
12
8

Total

123

154

Short Term Debtors

Central Government Bodies
Other Local Authorities
Bodies external to Central Government
Total

31st March
2021

31st March
2020

£'000

£'000

850
3,129
7,283

1,574
2,313
3,165

11,262

7,052
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Cash and Cash Equivalents

The balance of cash and cash equivalents is made up of the following elements:

19

31st March
2021
£'000

31st March
2020
£'000

Cash held by Authority
Bank Current Accounts
Short Term Deposits

5
2,494
36,116

6
2,072
26,105

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents

38,615

28,183

Financial Instruments

Financial Instruments - Classifications
A financial instrument is a contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity
and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity. Non-exchange
transactions, such as those relating to taxes, benefits and government grants, do not
give rise to financial instruments.
Financial Liabilities
A financial liability is an obligation to transfer economic benefits controlled by the
Council and can be represented by a contractual obligation to deliver cash or financial
assets or an obligation to exchange financial assets and liabilities with another entity
that is potentially unfavourable to the Council.
The majority of the Council’s financial liabilities held during the year are measured at
amortised cost and comprised:




long-term loans from the Public Works Loan Board,
lease payables detailed in note 38, and
trade payables for goods and services received.

Financial Assets
A financial asset is a right to future economic benefits controlled by the Council that
is represented by cash, equity instruments or a contractual right to receive cash or
other financial assets or a right to exchange financial assets and liabilities with
another entity that is potentially favourable to the Council. The financial assets held
by the Council during the year are accounted for under the following two
classifications:


Amortised cost (where cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest
and the Council’s business model is to collect those cash flow) comprising:
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o
o
o
o
o
o


cash in hand,
bank current and deposit accounts,
loans to other local authorities,
loans made for service purposes,
lease receivables detailed in note 38, and
trade receivables for goods and services provided.

Fair value through profit and loss comprising:
o money market funds managed by Sungard fund managers
o Equity investment with Northwood Group Limited

Financial assets held at amortised cost are shown net of a loss allowance reflecting
the statistical likelihood that the borrower or debtor will be unable to meet their
contractual commitments to the Council.
Financial Instruments - Balances
The financial liabilities disclosed in the Balance Sheet are analysed across the
following categories:
a. Financial Liabilities

Long Term

Short Term

31st March 2021 31st March 2020
£'000
£'000
Loans at amortised cost:
- Principal sum borrowed
- Accrued interest
Total Borrowing

31st March 2021
£'000

31st March 2020
£'000

(147,033)
(147,033)

(149,238)
(149,238)

(2,205)
(46)
(2,251)

(304)
(46)
(350)

(3)
(3)

(3)
(3)

-

-

Liabilities at amortised cost:
- Trade payables*
Included in Creditors

-

-

(13,265)
(13,265)

(7,565)
(7,565)

Total Financial Liabilities

(147,036)

(149,241)

(15,516)

(7,915)

Liabilities at amortised cost:
- Deferred Capital Receipts Unapplied
Total Other Long-term Liabilities

*The short term creditor’s line in the Balance Sheet includes £1.923m (2019/20
£3.089m) that do not meet the definition of a financial liability as they relate to nonexchange transactions.
The total short-term borrowing includes £2.251m (2019/20: £0.350m) representing
accrued interest and principal repayments due within 12 months on long-term
borrowing.
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The financial assets disclosed in the Balance Sheet are analysed across the
following categories:
b. Financial Assets

Long Term

Short Term

31st March 2021 31st March 2020
£'000
£'000

31st March 2021
£'000

31st March 2020
£'000

At amortised cost:
- Principal

0

0

34,075

24,069

At fair value through profit & loss:
- Fair Value
Total Investments

0
0

0
0

2,041
36,116

2,036
26,105

At amortised cost:
- Principal
Total Cash and Cash Equivalents

-

-

2,499
2,499

2,079
2,079

At amortised cost:
- Trade Receivables*
- Lease Receivables
- Loans made for service purposes

123
14
8,449

112
31
7,456

5,781
17
259

4,034
67
233

At fair value through profit & loss:
- Fair Value
Included in Debtors

144
8,730

91
7,690

0
6,057

0
4,334

Total Financial Assets

8,730

7,690

44,672

32,518

*The short term debtors line in the Balance Sheet includes £5.205m (2019/20
£2.871m) that do not meet the definition of a financial asset as they relate to nonexchange transactions.
The total short-term investments includes £36.116m (2019/20: £26.105m)
representing principal repayments due within 12 months.
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Financial Instruments - Gains and Losses
The gains and losses recognised in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in relation to financial instruments consist of the
following:
c. Financial Instruments - Gains and Losses

Financial Liabilities
Amortised Fair Value through
Cost
Profit & Loss
£'000
£'000

Interest expense
Losses on de-recognition
Losses from changes in fair value
Impairment losses
Fees paid
Interest payable and similar charges **

Financial Assets
Fair Value
Amortised through Profit & 2020/21
Cost
Loss
Total
£'000
£'000
£'000

2019/20
Total
£'000

(5,275)
0
0
0
0
(5,275)

0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0

(5,275)
0
0
0
0
(5,275)

(5,313)
0
(56)
0
0
(5,369)

0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0

358
0
0
0
0
358

0
0
0
57
0
57

358
0
0
57
0
415

388
20
0
17
0
425

Net impact on surplus/deficit on provison of services

(5,275)

0

358

57

(4,860)

(4,944)

Net Gain/(Loss) for the Year

(5,275)

0

358

57

(4,860)

(4,944)

Interest income
Dividend income
Gains on de-recognition
Gains from changes in fair value
Impairment loss reversals
Interest and investment income **

Page 240

North East Derbyshire District Council Statement of Accounts 2020/21
82

BALANCE SHEET NOTES
Financial Instruments - Fair Values
Financial instruments, except those classified at amortised cost, are carried in the
Balance Sheet at fair value. For most assets, including money market funds and other
pooled funds, the fair value is taken from the market price. The fair values of shares
in Northwood Group Limited have been valued from the company’s balance sheet
net assets.
Financial instruments classified at amortised cost are carried in the Balance Sheet at
amortised cost. Their fair values have been estimated by calculating the net present
value of the remaining contractual cash flows at 31st March 2021, using the following
methods and assumptions:






Loans borrowed by the Council have been valued by discounting the
contractual cash flows over the whole life of the instrument at the appropriate
market rate for local authority loans.
The fair values of other long-term loans and investments have been
discounted at the market rates for similar instruments with similar remaining
terms to maturity on 31st March.
The fair values of finance lease assets and liabilities have been calculated by
discounting the contractual cash flows (excluding service charge elements) at
the appropriate AA-rated corporate bond yield.
No early repayment or impairment is recognised for any financial instrument.
The fair value of short-term instruments, including trade payables and
receivables, is assumed to approximate to the carrying amount given the low
and stable interest rate environment.

Fair values are shown in the table below, split by their level in the fair value
hierarchy:
 Level 1 – fair value is only derived from quoted prices in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities, e.g. bond prices
 Level 2 – fair value is calculated from inputs other than quoted prices that are
observable for the asset or liability, e.g. interest rates or yields for similar
instruments
 Level 3 – fair value is determined using unobservable inputs, e.g. non-market
data such as cash flow forecasts or estimated creditworthiness
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d. Financial Instruments - Fair Values Liabilities

Balance
Balance
Fair
Sheet
Fair Value
Sheet
Fair Value
Value 31st March 2021 31st March 2021 31st March 2020 31st March 2020
Level
£000
£000
£000
£000

Financial liabilities held at amortised cost:
Short and Long-term loans from PWLB
Accrued Interest (PWLB)

2
2

(149,238)
(46)

(197,563)
(46)

(149,542)
(46)

(214,459)
(46)

3
3

(3)
(13,265)
(162,552)

(3)
(13,265)
(210,877)

(3)
(7,565)
(157,156)

(3)
(7,565)
(222,073)

Other liabilities:
Deferred Capital Receipts Unapplied
Trade Creditors
TOTAL
Liabilities for which fair value is not disclosed *

(62,640)

(44,254)

TOTAL FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

(225,192)

(201,410)

Recorded on balance sheet as:
Short-term creditors
Short-term borrowing
Short-term provisions
Long-term borrowing
Long-term provisions
Other long-term liabilities

(15,188)
(2,251)
(1,053)
(147,033)
(1,499)
(58,168)

(10,654)
(350)
0
(149,238)
(1,385)
(39,783)

TOTAL FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

(225,192)

(201,410)

The fair value of short-term financial liabilities held at amortised cost, including trade
payables, is assumed to approximate to the carrying amount.
The fair value of financial liabilities held at amortised cost is higher than their balance
sheet carrying amount because the authority’s portfolio of loans includes a number
of loans where the interest rate payable is higher than the current rates available for
similar loans as at the Balance Sheet date.
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e. Financial Instruments - Fair Values Assets

Balance
Balance
Fair
Sheet
Fair Value
Sheet
Fair Value
Value 31st March 2021 31st March 2021 31st March 2020 31st March 2020
Level
£000
£000
£000
£000

Financial assets held at fair value:
Money market funds
Bond, equity and property funds
Corporate, covered and government bonds
Shares in listed companies
Shares in unlisted companies
Forward contracts in the Council's favour

1
1
1
1
3
2

33,041
0
0
144
0
0

33,041
0
0
144
0
0

15,036
0
0
91
0
0

15,036
0
0
91
0
0

3
2
2
2
3
3
3

5,903
2,574
3,000
0
8,707
3
31

5,903
2,574
3,000
0
8,707
3
31

4,145
10,147
3,000
0
7,688
3
98

4,145
10,147
3,000
0
7,688
3
98

53,403

53,403

40,208

40,208

Financial assets held at amortised cost:
Trade Receivables
Bank deposits
Loans to local authorities
Loans to Building Societies
Loans to External Bodies
Deferred Capital Receipts Unapplied
Lease receivables
TOTAL
Assets for which fair value is not disclosed *

5,326

2,871

TOTAL FINANCIAL ASSETS

58,729

43,079

Recorded on balance sheet as:
Long-term debtors
Long-term investments
Short-term inventories
Short-term debtors
Short-term investments
Cash and cash equivalents

8,585
144
123
11,262
36,116
2,499

7,599
91
154
7,051
26,105
2,079

TOTAL FINANCIAL ASSETS

58,729

43,079

The fair value of short-term financial assets held at amortised cost, including trade
receivables, is assumed to approximate to the carrying amount.
The fair value of financial assets held at amortised cost is the same than their balance
sheet carrying amount because the interest rate on similar investments is now the
same than that obtained when the investment was originally made.
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Financial Instruments - Risks
The Council complies with CIPFA’s Code of Practice on Treasury Management and
Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities, both revised in December
2017.
In line with the Treasury Management Code, the Council approves a Treasury
Management Strategy before the commencement of each financial year. The
Strategy sets out the parameters for the management of risks associated with
financial instruments. The Council also produces Treasury Management Practices
specifying the practical arrangements to be followed to manage these risks.
The Treasury Management Strategy includes an Investment Strategy in compliance
with the Ministry for Housing, Communities and Local Government Guidance on
Local Government Investments. This Guidance emphasises that priority is to be
given to security and liquidity, rather than yield. The Council’s Treasury Management
Strategy and its Treasury Management Practices seek to achieve a suitable balance
between risk and return or cost.
The main risks covered are:




Credit Risk: The possibility that the counterparty to a financial asset will fail to
meet its contractual obligations, causing a loss to the Council.
Liquidity Risk: The possibility that the Council might not have the cash
available to make contracted payments on time.
Market Risk: The possibility that an unplanned financial loss will materialise
because of changes in market variables such as interest rates or equity prices.

Credit Risk: Treasury Investments
The Council manages credit risk by ensuring that treasury investments are only
placed with organisations of high credit quality as set out in the Treasury Management
Strategy. These include commercial entities with a minimum long-term credit rating
of A-, the UK government, other local authorities, and organisations without credit
ratings upon which the Council has received independent investment advice.
Recognising that credit ratings are imperfect predictors of default, the Council has
regard to other measures including credit default swap and equity prices when
selecting commercial entities for investment.
A limit of £5m is placed on the amount of money that can be invested with a single
counterparty. The Council’s Treasury Management Strategy identifies approved
counterparties with whom investments can be made including the duration of the
investment. A full copy of the Council’s Treasury Management Strategy can be found
on the Council’s Website.
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The table below summarises the credit risk exposures of the Council’s treasury
investment portfolio by credit rating and remaining time to maturity:
f. Credit Risk Exposure
Credit Rating

31st March 2021
31st March 2020
Long-term Short-term Long-term Short-term
£'000
£'000
£'000
£'000

AAA
AA
A+
A
Unrated local authorities

0
0
0
0
0

33,041
18
57
0
3,000

0
0
0
0
0

15,036
5,015
3,054
0
3,000

Total

0

36,116

0

26,105

Credit risk not applicable *

0

0

0

0

Total Investments

0

36,116

0

26,105

Credit risk is not applicable to shareholdings and pooled funds where the Council has
no contractual right to receive any sum of money.
Loss allowances on treasury investments have been calculated by reference to
historic default data published by credit rating agencies, adjusted for current and
forecast economic conditions. These are not material so no adjustments have been
made in the Accounts.
Credit Risk: Trade and Lease Receivables and Contract Assets
The Council’s credit risk on lease receivables is mitigated by its legal ownership of
the assets leased, which can be repossessed if the debtor defaults on the lease
contract.
The following analysis summarises the Council’s trade and lease receivables, by due
date. Only those receivables meeting the definition of a financial asset are included.
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g. Due date for receivables

31st March 2021
Trade
Lease
receivables receivables
£'000
£'000

31st March 2020
Trade
Lease
receivables receivables
£'000
£'000

Neither past due nor impaired
Past due 3-6 months
Past due 6-12 months
Past due 12+ months
Individually impaired

3,621
140
76
118
2,085

17
0
0
0
0

2,592
16
12
101
1,546

67
0
0
0
0

TOTAL RECEIVABLES

6,040

17

4,267

67

Loss allowances on trade and lease receivables and contract assets have been
calculated by reference to the Council’s historic experience of default and to adjust
for current and forecast economic conditions. Receivables are determined to have
suffered a significant increase in credit risk where they are 30 or more days past due
and they are determined to be credit-impaired where they are 365 or more days past
due.
Receivables are collectively assessed for credit risk in the following groupings:

h. Credit risk for receivables

HRA Tenants
Sundry Debtors
Other Trade Receivables
Lease Receivables
Loans made for Service Purposes
Total

Range of
allowances set
aside

40% - 90%
40% - 100%
0%
0%
0%

31st March 2021
31st March 2020
Gross
Loss
Gross
Loss
receivable allowance receivable allowance
£'000
£'000
£'000
£'000
2,085
1,669
2,027
17
259

(1,147)
(229)
0
0
0

1,546
728
1,760
67
233

(863)
(133)
0
0
0

6,057

(1,376)

4,334

(996)

Receivables are written off to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services when
they are identified as no longer collectable, but steps are still taken to collect sums
owing wherever possible. The amount written off but still subject to enforcement
action at 31st March 2021 is £0.104m (2019/20: £0.354m).
Credit Risk: Loans, Financial Guarantees and Loan Commitments
In furtherance of the Council’s service objectives, it has lent money to Rykneld Homes
Limited. It has also committed to lend money to Rykneld Homes Limited and
Northwood Group Limited should it be requested to do so at market rates of interest.
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The amounts recognised on the balance sheet, and the Council’s total exposure to
credit risk from these instruments are:

Borrower

Exposure type

Balance Sheet Risk exposure
Balance Sheet
Risk exposure
31st March 2021 31st March 2021 31st March 2020 31st March 2020
£'000
£'000
£'000
£'000

Council House Mortgages Loans at market rates
Rykneld Homes Limited
Loans at market rates
Northwood Group Limited Loans at market rates

3
7,104
1,601

3
3
17

3
6,348
1,338

3
2
13

TOTAL

8,708

23

7,689

18

The Council manages the credit risk inherent in its loans for service purposes,
financial guarantees and loan commitments in line with its published Investment
Strategy.
Loss allowances on loans for service purposes and loan commitments have been
calculated by reference to the Council’s historic experience of default and to adjust
for current and forecast economic conditions.
Liquidity Risk
The Council has ready access to borrowing at favourable rates from the Public Works
Loan Board and other local authorities, and at higher rates from banks and building
societies. There is no perceived risk that the Council will be unable to raise finance
to meet its commitments. It is however exposed to the risk that it will need to refinance
a significant proportion of its borrowing at a time of unfavourably high interest rates.
This risk is managed by maintaining a spread of fixed rate loans and ensuring that no
more than 20% of the Council’s borrowing matures in any one financial year.
The maturity analysis of financial liabilities is as follows, shown both as discounted
(principal plus accrued interest to date) and undiscounted (principal plus future
interest payments) figures:
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Time to maturity
(years)
Not over 1
Over 1 but not over 2
Over 2 but not over 5
Over 5 but not over 10
Over 10 but not over 20
Over 20 but not over 40
Over 40
Uncertain date *
Total

Discounted (principal)
31st March 2021
31st March 2020
Liabilities
Liabilities
£'000
£'000

Undiscounted (principal plus interest)
31st March 2021
31st March 2020
Liabilities
Liabilities
£'000
£'000

(2,254)
(111)
(19,222)
(18,470)
(78,140)
(31,090)
0
(13,265)

(353)
(2,205)
(10,332)
(23,377)
(74,233)
(39,090)
0
(7,566)

(7,483)
(5,299)
(33,884)
(39,190)
(103,759)
(35,764)
0
(13,169)

(5,627)
(7,434)
(25,574)
(44,818)
(102,469)
(45,036)
0
(7,566)

(162,552)

(157,156)

(238,548)

(238,524)

Market Risks: Interest Rate Risk
The Council is exposed to risk in terms of its exposure to interest rate movements on
its borrowings and investments. Movements in interest rates have a complex impact
on the authority. For instance, a rise in interest rates would have the following effects:





borrowings at variable rates – the interest expense will rise
borrowings at fixed rates – the fair value of the liabilities will fall
investments at variable rates – the interest income will rise
investments at fixed rates – the fair value of the assets will fall

Investments measured at amortised cost and loans borrowed are not carried at fair
value, so changes in their fair value will have no impact on the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement. However, changes in interest payable and
receivable on variable rate borrowings and investments will be posted to the Surplus
or Deficit on the Provision of Services. Movements in the fair value of fixed rate
investments measured at fair value will be reflected in Other Comprehensive Income
or the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services as appropriate.
The Treasury Management Strategy aims to mitigate these risks by setting upper
limits on its net exposures to fixed and variable interest rates. At 31 March 2021,
£140.389m (2019/20: £141.764m) of net principal borrowed (i.e. borrowing net of
investments) was exposed to fixed rates. There is currently no borrowing exposure
at variable rates.
If all interest rates had been 1% higher (with all other variables held constant) the
financial effect would be £1.499m (2019/20: £1.505m). The approximate impact of a
1% fall in interest rates would be as above but with the movements being reversed.
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Market Risks: Price Risk
The Council’s investment in a pooled equity funds is subject to the risk of falling share
prices. This risk is limited by the Council’s maximum exposure to equity investments
of £5m. Any fall in share prices result in a charge to Surplus or Deficit on the Provision
of Services which is then transferred to the Pooled Investment Funds Adjustment
Account.
20

Short Term Creditors
31st March
2021
£'000
Central Government Bodies
Other Local Authorities
NHS Bodies
Bodies external to Central Government
Total

21

31st March
2020
£'000

(5,701)
(1,591)
(22)
(7,874)

(2,317)
(500)
0
(7,837)

(15,188)

(10,654)

Provisions

Provisions have been made for known liabilities uncertain as to the amount or timing
in compliance with IAS37.
Short Term Provisions <12 months

Use of
Provision in
31 March 2020
Year
£'000
£'000

Provision in
Year
£'000

31 March
2021
£'000

Water Claims

0

0

(1,053)

(1,053)

Total

0

0

(1,053)

(1,053)

Long Term Provisions >12 months
NNDR Appeals Provision
Rykneld Homes Loss Provision

(1,349)
(36)

3,321
0

(3,435)
0

(1,463)
(36)

Total

(1,385)

3,321

(3,435)

(1,499)

Water Claims
This is a provision set aside to meet the potential water claims from tenants where
the Council have taken commission on collection of water charges that may need to
be repaid.
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Rykneld Homes Loss
This is a provision set aside to meet the costs where Rykneld Homes Limited has
recorded a trading loss. It is envisaged that the provision will be offset in future years
when Rykneld Homes Limited make trading profits.
NNDR Appeals
The Collection Fund (NNDR) has a number of outstanding appeals regarding the
Rateable Value applied to the premises within the District. These appeals are being
heard by the District Valuer at the Valuation Office and are independent of the
Council. The outstanding appeals at 31 March 2021, when assessed, may result in a
reduction in the rateable value and as a result reduce the NNDR liability which will
reduce NNDR income in the Collection Fund and therefore to the Council. Some of
these outstanding appeals go back over a number of years. The Council has
employed an independent company to assess the appeals and assist in the
calculation of an appropriate provision. The figures above relate only to the Council’s
proportion of outstanding appeals as at 31 March 2021.
22

Usable Reserves

Movements in the Council’s usable reserves are summarised below:
31 March
2020
£'000
Earmarked Reserves
General Fund (note 8)
Housing Revenue Account (note 8)
Major Repairs Reserve
Capital Receipts Reserve
Capital Grants Reserve

Balances
General Fund
Housing Revenue Account

Total

(13,423)
(33,338)
(176)
(3,294)
(1,846)
(52,077)

(2,000)
(3,000)
(5,000)
(57,077)

Transfers to
in year
£'000

(12,578)
(1,940)
(11,319)
(4,673)
(2,666)
(33,176)

0
0
0
(33,176)

Transfers
from in year
£'000

31 March
2021
£'000

5,475
597
9,321
5,285
163
20,841

(20,526)
(34,681)
(2,174)
(2,682)
(4,349)
(64,412)

0
0
0

(2,000)
(3,000)
(5,000)

20,841

(69,412)
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Unusable Reserves
31 March 2021

31 March 2020

£'000

£'000

(a) Revaluation Reserve
(b) Capital Adjustment Account
(c) Pensions Reserve
(d) Deferred Capital Receipts Reserve
(e) Collection Fund Adjustment Account
(f) Accumulated Absences Account
(g) Pooled Funds and Shares Revaluation Reserve

(57,844)
(173,582)
58,165
(31)
2,984
220
(35)

(50,175)
(170,528)
39,780
(99)
(812)
187
22

Total Unusable Reserves

(170,123)

(181,625)

(a) Revaluation Reserve
The Revaluation Reserve contains the gains made by the Council arising from
increases in the value of its Property, Plant and Equipment, including Intangible
Assets. The balance is reduced when assets with accumulated gains are:




Revalued downwards or impaired and the gains are lost;
Used in the provision of services and the gains are consumed through
depreciation;
Disposed of and the gains are realised.

The Reserve contains only revaluation gains accumulated since 1 April 2007, the
date that the Reserve was created. Accumulated gains arising before that date are
consolidated into the balance on the Capital Adjustment Account.
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31 March
2020
£'000
(39,002) Balance 1 April
0 Upward revaluation of assets
(Upward)/downward revaluation of assets and
impairment losses not charged to
(13,819) surplus/deficit on provision of services
Surplus or Deficit on revaluation of non-current
assets not posted to the surplus or deficit on
(13,819) the provision of service
0 Write out - Investment Property
Difference between fair value depreciation and
1,488 historic cost depreciation
Accumulated gains on assets sold or
1,158 scrapped
2,646
(50,175) Balance 31 March

31 March
2021
£'000
(50,175)
0

(10,404)

(10,404)
0
1,592
1,143
2,735
(57,844)

(b) Capital Adjustment Account
The Capital Adjustment Account absorbs the timing differences arising from the
different arrangements for accounting for the consumption of non-current assets and
for financing the acquisition, construction or enhancement of those assets under
statutory provisions. The Account is debited with the cost of acquisition, construction
or enhancement as depreciation, impairment losses and amortisations are charged
to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (with reconciling postings
from the Revaluation Reserve to convert fair value figures to historical cost basis).
The Account is credited with the amounts set aside by the Authority as finance for the
costs of acquisition, construction and enhancement.
The Account contains accumulated gains and losses in Investment Properties.
The Account also contains revaluation gains accumulated on Property, Plant and
Equipment before 1 April 2007, the date that the revaluation Reserve was created to
hold such gains.
The revaluation gains shown in the Account reflects the values from the exceptional
item that have been debited or credited to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement.
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31 March
2020

31 March 2021

£'000

£'000

£'000

(168,397) Balance 1 April
Reversal of items relating to capital expenditure debited or credited to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement:
18,145 Charges for depreciation and impairment of non current assets

(170,528)

6,531

(8,910) Revaluation losses on Property Plant and Equipment
34 Amortisation of Intangible Assets
2,406 Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital under Statute
Amounts of investment properties written off on disposal or sale as part of
the gain/loss on disposal to the Comprehensive Income & Expenditure
0 Statement
Amounts of non-current assets written off on disposal or sale as part of
the gain/loss on disposal to the Comprehensive Income & Expenditure
7,645 Statement

0
8
1,539

0

6,009

19,320
(2,647) Adjusting amounts written out of Revaluation Reserve

14,087
(2,734)

Net written out amount of the cost of non-current assets consumed in the
(151,724) year

(159,175)

Capital financing applied in the year:
(3,686) Use of Capital Receipts Reserve to repay allowable debt

(1,620)

(1,514) Use of Capital Receipts Reserve to finance new capital expenditure
(9,000) Use of the Major Repair Reserve to finance new capital expenditure

(1,215)
(9,321)

Capital grants and contributions credited to the Comprehensive Income &
(452) Expenditure Statement that have been applied to capital financing
Application of grants to capital financing from the Capital Grants
(336) Unapplied Account
Statutory Provision for the financing of capital investment charged against
(1,028) the General Fund and HRA balances/reserves
(1,612) Capital Expenditure charged against the General Fund and HRA balances

(858)
(162)
(701)
(598)

(17,628)
Movements in the market value of Investment Properties debited or
(1,176) credited to the Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement
Movements in the Donated Assets Account credited to the
0 Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement
(170,528) Balance 31 March

(14,475)
68
0
(173,582)

(c) Pensions Reserve
The Pensions Reserve absorbs the timing differences arising from the different
arrangements for accounting for post employment benefits and for funding benefits
in accordance with statutory provisions. The Authority accounts for post employment
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benefits in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as the benefits
are earned by employees accruing years of service, updating the liabilities recognised
to reflect inflation, changing assumptions and investment returns on any resources
set aside to meet the costs. However, statutory arrangements require benefits earned
to be financed as the Authority makes employer’s contributions to pension funds or
eventually pays any pensions for which it is directly responsible. The debit balance
on the Pensions Reserve therefore shows a substantial shortfall in the benefits
earned by the past and current employees and the resources the Council has set
aside to meet them. The statutory arrangements will ensure that funding will have
been set aside by the time the benefits come to be paid.
2020/21
£'000
Balance at 1 April
Actuarial (gains) or losses on pension assets
and liabilities
Reversal of items relating to retirement
benefits debited or credited to the surplus or
deficit on the provision of services in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement
Employer's pension contributions and direct
payments to pensioners payable in the year
Balance at 31 March

2019/20
£'000

39,780

56,709

17,240

(19,269)

4,178

5,323

(3,033)

(2,983)

58,165

39,780

(d) Deferred Capital Receipts Reserve
The Deferred Capital Receipts Reserve holds the gains recognised on the disposal
of non-current assets but for which cash settlement has yet to take place. Under
statutory arrangements, the Council does not treat these gains as usable for financing
new capital expenditure until they are backed by cash receipts. When the deferred
cash settlement eventually takes place, amounts are transferred to the capital
receipts reserve.
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Balance at 1 April
Transfer of deferred sale proceeds credited as
part of gain/loss on disposal to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement.
Transfer to the Capital Receipts Reserve upon
receipt of cash
Closing Balance

2020/21

2019/20

£'000

£'000
(99)

0

(272)

0

68

173

(31)

(99)

(e) Collection Fund Adjustment Account
The Collection Fund Adjustment Account manages the differences arising from the
recognition of council tax and business rates income in the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement as it falls due compared with the statutory arrangements
for paying across amounts to the General Fund from the Collection Fund.
Balance at 1 April

2020/21
£'000

2019/20
£'000

Opening Balance
Amount by which council tax/business rates income
credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement is different from council tax income calculated for
the year in accordance with statutory requirements

(812)

224

3,796

(1,036)

Balance at 31 March

2,984

(812)

(f) Accumulated Absences Account
The Accumulated Absences Account absorbs the differences that would otherwise
arise on the General Fund Balance from accruing for compensated absences earned
but not taken in the year, e.g. annual leave entitlement carried forward at 31 March.
Statutory arrangements require that the impact on the General Fund Balance is
neutralised by transfers to or from the Account.
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2020/21
£'000
Balance at 1 April
Settlement or cancellation of accrual made at
the end of the preceeding year
Amounts accrued at the end of current year

2019/20
£'000
187

(187)
220

Amount by which officer remuneration
charged to the Comprehensive Income &
Expenditure Statement on an accruals basis
is defferent from remuneration chargeable in
the year in accordance with statutory
requirements

171
(171)
187

33

Closing Balance

16

220

187

(g) Pooled Funds and Share Revaluation Reserve
The Pooled Funds and Share Revaluation Reserve Revaluation Reserve contains
the gains made by the authority arising from increases in the value of its
investments that are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income.
The balance is reduced when investments with accumulated gains are:



revalued downwards or impaired and the gains are lost
disposed of and the gains are realised.
2020/21
£'000
Balance at 1 April
Upward Revaluation of Investments
Downward Revaluation of Investments
Change in Impairment Loss Allowances

Accumulated gains or losses on assets sold
and maturing assets written out to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement as part of Other Investment Income
Accumulated Gains or losses on assets sold
and maturing assets written out to General
Fund Balances for financial assets designated
to fair value through other comprehensive
income
Closing Balance

2019/20
£'000
22
(57)
0
0
(35)

(17)
0
39
0
22

0

0

0

0

(35)

22
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Cash Flow Statement – Operating Activities
2020/21
£'000
Net (surplus) or deficit on provision of services
Adjustments for non-cash movements
Adjustments for investing and financing activities
Net cash flows from operating activities

2019/20
£'000

(7,670)

(1,526)

(12,983)

(19,708)

8,139

6,956

(12,514)

(14,278)

The cash flows from operating activities include the following items:

Interest Received
Interest Paid
Dividends Received
Total

25

2020/21
£'000

2019/20
£'000

358

388

(5,275)

(5,313)

0

20

(4,917)

(4,905)

2020/21
£'000

2019/20
£'000

8,955

10,261

0

0

1,273

3,260

(4,092)

(5,517)

Cash Flow Statement – Investing Activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment, investment
property and intangible assets
Purchase of short-term and long-term investments
Other payments for investing activities
Proceeds from the sale of property, plant and
equipment, investment property and intangible assets
Proceeds from short-term and long-term investments
Other receipts from investing activities
Net cash flows from investing activities

0

0

(4,358)

(1,822)

1,778

6,182
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26

Cash Flow Statement – Financing Activities
2020/21
£'000

2019/20
£'000

Cash receipts for short and long-term borrowing

0

0

Other movements from financing activities

0

0

Cash payments for the reduction of the outstanding
liabilities relating to finance leases and on-balance sheet
PFI contracts

0

0

303

1,304

0

0

303

1,304

Repayments of short and long-term borrowing
Other payments for financing activities
Net cash flows from operating activities

27

Cash Flow Statement – Reconciliation of Liabilities arising from
Financing Activities
2020/21

Non-Cash Changes
1st April 2020 Financing
Cash Flows Acquisition
Other
£'000
£'000
£'000
£'000

31st March 2021
£'000

Long-term borrowings

(149,238)

0

0

2,205

(147,033)

Short-term borrowings

(304)

304

0

(2,205)

(2,205)

(149,542)

304

0

0

(149,238)

Total Liabilities from financing activities

2019/20

1st April 2019
£'000

Non-Cash Changes
Financing
Cash Flows Acquisition
Other
£'000
£'000
£'000

31st March 2020
£'000

Long-term borrowings

(149,542)

0

0

304

(149,238)

Short-term borrowings

(1,304)

1,304

0

(304)

(304)

(150,846)

1,304

0

0

(149,542)

Total Liabilities from financing activities
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28

Acquired and Discontinued Operations

Acquired Services
The Council has not acquired any new services during the year.
Discontinued Services
The Council has not discontinued any of its services during the year.
29

Construction Contracts

At 31 March 2021 the Council had no construction contracts in place.
30

Events after the Balance Sheet Date

The Statement of Accounts was authorised for issue by the Head of Finance and
Resources on 17 June 2021. Events taking place after this date are not reflected in
the financial statements or notes. Where events taking place before this date
provided information about conditions existing at 31 March 2021, the figures in the
financial statements and notes have been adjusted in all material respects to reflect
the impact of this information.
31

Agency and Contractual Agreements

The Council has a contractual agreement with Derbyshire County Council whereby
the Council undertakes mowing, weeding and tree pruning on land adjoining
highways within the district. The Council is reimbursed for expenditure incurred on
these activities including a contribution towards administrative costs. A summary of
expenditure incurred in respect of the contract is shown below and this is included
within the Operations Directorate line of the Comprehensive Income & Expenditure
Statement.
2020/21
£'000

32

2019/20
£'000

Amenity Maintenance

259

264

Total

259

264

Members’ Allowances

The Council paid the following amounts to elected members during the year. These
costs are included within the Growth Directorate line of the Comprehensive Income
& Expenditure Statement.
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2020/21
£'000

33

2019/20
£'000

Allowances
Expenses

399
0

396
3

Total

399

399

Officer Emoluments

In addition to those employees covered within this note who are directly employed by
the Council, part of the Management Team are employed by Bolsover District
Council. The costs associated with these arrangements are included within the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.
The number of employees (excluding senior officers) whose remuneration,
excluding employer’s pension contributions, was £50,000 or more in bands of
£5,000 were:Remuneration
Band

£50,000 - £54,999
£55,000 - £59,999
£60,000 - £64,999
£65,000 - £69,999
£70,000 - £74,999
£75,000 - £79,999
£80,000 - £84,999
£85,000 - £89,999
£90,000 - £94,999
£95,000 - £99,999
£100,000 - £104,999

Number of
Employees
2020/21
3
1
1
0
0
0
1
0
0
0
0

Number of
Employees
2019/20
2
0
2
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

Senior Employees
The Council is required to disclose all posts where the total remuneration exceeds
£50,000 but does not exceed £150,000. Those posts identified as Senior Officers are
within this remuneration range or report directly to the head of paid service.
The definition of a senior employee is:  An employee whose salary is £150,000 or more.
 An employee whose salary is £50,000 or more who is a statutory chief officer
as per section 2(6) of the Local Government and Housing Act 1989.
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 An employee whose salary is £50,000 or more who is a non-statutory chief
officer as per section 2(7) of the Local Government and Housing Act 1989.
 An employee whose salary is £50,000 or more who reports directly to the Head
of Paid Service.

North East Derbyshire District Council Statement of Accounts 2020/21
103
Page 261

OTHER NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
Senior Officers emoluments - Salary is between £50,000 and £150,000 for 2020/21:
2020/21

Employed by N.E.D.D.C.
Joint Director of Environment and
Enforcement
Director
of
Growth
&
Economic
Development
Head of Service - Finance & Resources
(Section 151 Officer)
Total

Total
Termination
Total
Salary
Remuneration
Benefits in Payments &
Remuneration
Pension
Net Charge Net Charge
(including fees
(including
Kind
Pension
(excluding Pension Contributions
to BDC
to NEDDC
and allowances)
Pension
Shortfall
Contributions)
Contributions)
£

£

£

£

£

£

£

£

87,480

0

0

87,480

12,735

100,215

50,108

50,107

67,701

0

0

67,701

9,841

77,543

0

77,543

54,645

332

0

54,977

7,812

62,789

0

62,789

209,826

332

0

210,158

30,388

240,547

50,108

190,439

Employed by Bolsover D.C.
Joint Chief Executive
Joint Director of Corporate Resources
Joint Head of Service - Governance Monitoring Officer
Joint Head of Service - Transformation &
Organisation

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

87,707

0

0

87,707

13,068

100,775

50,388

50,387

59,827

328

0

60,155

8,914

69,069

34,535

34,534

56,637

0

0

56,637

8,439

65,076

32,538

32,538

Total

204,171

328

0

204,499

30,421

234,920

117,461

Overall Total

413,997

660

0

414,657

60,809

475,467

167,569

117,459
307,898
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Senior Officers emoluments - Salary is between £50,000 and £150,000 for 2019/20:
2019/20

Employed by N.E.D.D.C.

Total
Termination
Total
Salary
Remuneration
Benefits in Payments &
Remuneration
Pension
Net Charge Net Charge
(including fees
(including
Kind
Pension
(excluding Pension Contributions
to BDC
to NEDDC
and allowances)
Pension
Shortfall
Contributions)
Contributions)
£

£

£

£

£

£

£

£

Joint Strategic Director - Place/Joint
Director of Environment and Enforcement

84,216

0

0

84,216

11,396

95,612

47,806

47,806

Head of Service - Finance & Resources
(Section 151 Officer)

49,644

332

0

49,976

6,801

56,778

0

56,778

Total

133,860

332

0

134,192

18,197

152,390

47,806

104,584

Employed by Bolsover D.C.
Joint Chief Executive
Joint Strategic Director - People/Joint
Director of Corporate Resources
Joint Head of Service - Governance Monitoring Officer
Joint Head of Service - Partnerships &
Transformation

119,356

0

133,419

252,775

15,779

268,554

135,666

132,888

79,002

0

0

79,002

10,945

89,947

45,102

44,845

59,564

338

0

59,902

8,093

67,995

34,666

33,329

53,568

0

0

53,568

7,446

61,014

30,507

30,507

Total

311,490

338

133,419

445,247

42,263

487,510

245,941

241,569

Overall Total

445,350

670

133,419

579,439

60,460

639,900

293,747

346,153
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The numbers of exit packages, excluding the senior officer emoluments set out in the above tables, with total cost per band and total cost of
the compulsory and other redundancies are set out in the table below:Exit package cost
band (including
special payments)

£0 - £20,000
£20,001 - £40,000
£40,001 - £60,000
£60,001 - £80,000
£80,001 - £100,000
£100,001 - £150,000
Total

Number of
Compulsory
Redundancies
2019/20
2020/21

0
0
0
0
0
0
0

Total number of exit
packages by cost
band
2020/21
2019/20
2020/21

Number of other
departures agreed
2019/20

0
0
0
0
0
0
0

1
0
0
0
1
0
2

1
2
0
0
0
0
3

1
0
0
0
1
0
2

1
2
0
0
0
0
3

Total cost of exit
packages in each
band
2019/20
2020/21
£000
£000
5
0
0
0
93
0
98

2
43
0
0
0
0
45
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34

Termination Benefits

The Council terminated the contracts of a number of employees during 2020/21,
incurring liabilities of £0.045m (£0.098m in 2019/20), excluding senior officer
emoluments, presented separately above. The Council has received a contribution of
£0.023m towards their costs from Bolsover District Council.
35

Audit Fees

During 2020/21 North East Derbyshire District Council incurred the following fees
relating to external audit and inspection:
2020/21
£'000
Fees payable to the auditors with regard to
external audit services carried out by the
appointed auditor

43

43

Fees payable to the auditors in respect of
statutory inspection

0

0

Fees payable to the auditors for the certification
of grant claims and returns

8

0

30

5

0

(5)

81

43

Fees payable in respect of any other services
provided by the appointed auditor
Refund of overpaid auditors fee from Public
Sector Audit Appointments Ltd
Total

36

2019/20
£'000

Related Parties

The Council is required to disclose material transactions with related parties – bodies
or individuals that have the potential to control or influence the Council or to be
controlled or influenced by the Council. Disclosure of these transactions allows
readers to assess the extent to which the Council might have been constrained in its
ability to operate independently, or might have secured the ability to limit another
party’s ability to bargain freely with the Council.
Central Government
Central Government has effective control over the general operations of the Council;
it is responsible for providing the statutory framework, within which the Council
operates, provides the majority of its funding in the form of grants and prescribes the
terms of many of the transactions that the Council has with other parties (e.g. housing
benefits). Grants received from government departments are set out in note 7.
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Members
Members of the Council have direct control over the Council’s financial and operating
policies. Council Members make disclosures of relevant interests to the Council’s
Monitoring Officer, and also have to make declarations on individual committee
decisions. The Council also nominates Members to sit on outside bodies. A number
of Council Members are also Members of Derbyshire County Council, local parish
councils, or various local voluntary organisations, which the Council supports
financially. Four Members of the Council sit on the board of Rykneld Homes Limited
as Council nominees. Where necessary, Members declared such interests when
relevant to their duties and thus no further disclosure is considered necessary.
Officers
In addition to the Register of Interests, key management personnel were required to
complete a Declaration of Related Party Transactions Pro-Forma for the year
2020/21.
Other Significant Transactions
Other significant transactions with related parties, not included above, are as follows:
Receipts
£'000
Revenue
Bolsover District Council
Chesterfield Borough Council
Citizens Advice Bureau
Derbyshire County Council (excluding precepts)
Derbyshire Dales District Council
Parish Councils (excluding precepts)
Rykneld Homes Limited
Capital
Rykneld Homes Limited
Northwood Group Limited
Loan
Rykneld Homes Limited
Northwood Group Limited

Payments
£'000

(2,496)
(263)
0
(1,879)
(335)
(829)
(1,914)

0
0

(244)
0

796
281
75
526
2
209
10,083

10,483
509

1,000
263

During 2020/21 the Council had partnership agreements with Bolsover District
Council (BDC), Chesterfield Borough Council (CBC), and Derbyshire Dales District
Council (DDDC) in the following areas:
 Internal Audit
 Procurement
 ICT Service
 Environmental Health Section
 HR & Payroll Section
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Planning Policy Section
Legal Services
Crematorium

The Internal Audit Consortium is hosted by CBC. The accounts reflect the payments
made to CBC towards the costs of running the service.
The Council hosts the Joint ICT Service which covers BDC, Derbyshire Dales District
Council and ourselves for the provision of the Council’s ICT. The Council also hosts
the Joint Environmental Health Service which covers BDC and ourselves. There are
also joint sections between BDC and ourselves which cover HR & Payroll, Planning
Policy and Legal Services. The accounts reflect the total cost of these services less
contributions from BDC and Derbyshire Dales District Council.
During 2020/21 the Rykneld Homes Limited repaid a total of £0.244m from the loans
that the Council has provided them with.
The details of the loans made to Rykneld Homes Limited are shown below: Loans by Scheme

Loan Start
Date
£'000

Loan
Period
£'000

Initial
Amount
£'000

Amount Remaining
Repaid
Amount
£'000
£'000

Eckington & Killamarsh

31/3/14

25 years

1,792

(699)

1,093

Dronfield

31/3/15

25 years

453

(194)

259

Grassmoor

31/3/15

25 years

1,066

(256)

810

North Wingfield

31/3/16

40 years

1,908

(162)

1,746

Calow

31/3/17

40 years

410

(30)

380

Stonebroom

31/3/17

2 years

425

(425)

0

Hallowes Court, Dronfield

31/3/19

40 years

2,875

(59)

2,816

8,929

(1,825)

7,104

Total
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The details of the loans made to Northwood Group Limited are shown below: Loans by Scheme

Loan
Period
£'000

Initial Accrued Amount Remaining
Amount
Amount Interest Repaid
£'000
£'000
£'000
£'000

Developer Loan

6/11/19

4 years

1,342

81

0

1,423

Shareholder Loan

6/11/19

4 years

167

10

0

177

1,509

91

0

1,600

Total

37

Loan Start
Date
£'000

Capital Expenditure and Capital Financing

The total amount of capital expenditure incurred in the year is shown in the table
below, together with the resources that have been used to finance it. Where capital
expenditure is to be financed in future years by charges to revenue as assets used
by the Council, the expenditure results in an increase in the Capital Financing
Requirement (CFR), a measure of the capital expenditure incurred historically by the
Council that has yet to be financed.
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2020/21
£'000
Opening Capital Financing Requirement
Movement in debtors - Borrowing
Movement in debtors - Repayment
Capital Investment
Property, Plant & Equipment
Intangible Assets
Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital under Statute: Other REFCUS items

1,263
(270)

183,924
3,238
(241)

11,140
39

12,212
25

1,537

2,483

Sources of Finance
Capital Receipts
Major Repairs Reserve
Government Grants and Other Contributions

(1,215)
(9,321)
(1,618)

(1,514)
(9,000)
(2,477)

Amounts set aside from Revenue:
Repayment of Allowable Debt
Direct Revenue Contributions
Minimum Revenue Provision & Debt repayment from MRA

(1,620)
0
(701)

(2,141)
(1,545)
(1,028)

Closing Capital Financing Requirement

183,170

183,936

Movement on Capital Financing Requirement in year

(766)

12

Explanation of Movement in the Year
Increase in underlying need to borrow (supported) - Decent
Homes Programme
Increase in underlying need to borrow (prudential)
Repayment of debt

0
562
(1,328)

0
1,729
(1,717)

(766)

12

Increase/(decrease) in Capital Financing Requirement

38

183,936

2019/20
£'000

Leases

Council as Lessee
Finance Leases
At present, the Council does not have any Finance leases.
Operating Leases
Operating leases held by the Council comprise of photocopiers across various
Council locations and a coffee machine at Dronfield Sport Centre Café. The total
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payment in 2020/21 was £0.020m (2019/20, £0.020m for photocopiers, coffee
machine and gym equipment).
The following table identifies the Council’s operating lease liability:
31 March
2021
£’000
Not later than one year
later than one year and not later than five years
later than five years

31 March
2020
£’000

18
46
0

20
64
0

64

84

Authority as Lessor
Finance Leases
The Council has leased out vehicles on a finance lease to Rykneld Homes Limited
with a maximum term of 6 years. The Council has a gross investment in the lease,
made up of the minimum lease payments expected to be received over the remaining
term. The minimum lease payments comprise settlement of the long term-debtor for
the interest in the vehicles acquired by the lessee and finance income that will be
earned in future years whilst the debtor remains outstanding. The gross investment
is made up of the following amounts: -

31 March 2021

31 March 2020

£’000

£’000

Finance lease debtor (NPV of minimum lease
payments):
Current

17

67

Non-Current

14

32

Unearned finance income

0

0

Unguaranteed residueal value of property

0

0

31

99

Gross investment in the lease

The gross investment in the lease and the minimum lease payments will be received
over the following periods:
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Gross Investment in the Lease
31 March 2021
£’000
Not later than one year
later than one year and not later than five years
later than five years

Minimum Lease Payments

31 March 2020
£’000

31 March 2021
£’000

31 March 2020
£’000

17
14
0

67
32
0

23
19
0

95
43
0

31

99

42

138

Operating Leases
The Council owns Investment Properties to the value of £14.198m (2019/20,
£14.128m). These properties include industrial units, shops and other miscellaneous
properties. The Council leases these properties out and generated rental income of
£0.579m during 2020/21, (2019/20, £0.565m) No depreciation is charged on
investment properties.
The table below shows the projected income from operating leases as at 31 March
2021:
31 March
2021
£’000
Not later than one year
later than one year and not later than five years
later than five years

31 March
2020
£’000

452
288
87

638
497
101

827

1,236

Business Centres with a gross book value of £2.205m (£2.205m, 2019/20),
accumulated depreciation of £0.040m (£0.005m, 2019/20) and net book value of
£2.165m (£2.200m, 2019/20) are also owned by the Council. During 2020/21 lease
income of £0.496m (£0.449m, 2019/20) was received from these units.
39

Defined Benefit Pension Schemes

The Council, in line with all other Local Authority employers and as part of the terms
and conditions of employment of its officers, makes contributions towards the cost of
post-employment benefits. Although these benefits will not actually be payable until
the employees retire, the Council has a commitment to make the payments (for those
benefits) and to disclose them at the time that employees earn their future entitlement.
Employees of North East Derbyshire District Council are admitted to the Derbyshire
County Council Pension Fund (the Fund), which is administered by Derbyshire
County Council under the regulations governing the Local Government Pension
North East Derbyshire District Council Statement of Accounts 2020/21
113
Page 271

OTHER NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
Scheme (LGPS), a defined benefit final salary scheme, meaning that the Authority
and employees pay contributions into a fund, calculated at a level intended to balance
the pensions liabilities with investment assets.
The following notes on Pension Contributions do not include detailed figures for the
Joint Crematorium.
The Council’s Actuary, Hymans Robertson, has taken the approach detailed below
to allow for recent legal judgements or otherwise. This has been incorporated into the
accounts.
GMP equalisation/indexation treatment
An allowance for full GMP indexation has been included within the closing balance
sheet position.
GMP equalisation – historical transfers
It is the actuary’s view that this is unlikely to be significant in terms of impact on the
pension obligations of a typical employer. As a result no allowance has been made
within the calculations.
McCloud treatment
An allowance was made for McCloud in last year’s results. No further adjustment has
been made within year’s results. No specific additional adjustment for McCloud has
been added to the current service cost for 2020/21.
Transactions relating to Post-employment Benefits.
The cost of retirement benefits is recognised in the Net Cost of Services within the
Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement, when they are earned by the
employees rather than when the benefits are eventually paid as pensions. However,
the charge the Council is required to make against council tax is based on the cash
payable in the year, so the real cost of retirement benefits is reversed out of the
General Fund via the Movement in Reserves Statement. The following transactions
have been made in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and the
Statement of Movement in the General Fund Balance in the year:
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2020/21
£’000
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
Cost of Service
Current Service cost
Past Service Cost
(Gain)/loss from settlements

3,262
0
0

2019/20
£’000

4,231
(287)
0

Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure
Net Interest Expense

916

1,379

4,178

5,323

(18,232)

6,073

2,136

(5,551)

Actuarial gains and losses arising on changes in financial
assumptions

34,710

(11,958)

Other (if applicable)

(1,374)

(7,833)

Total Post Employment Benefit Charged to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

17,240

(19,269)

Total Post Employment Benefit Charged to the Surplus
or Deficit on the Provision of Service
Other Post Employment Benefit Charged to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
Re-measurement of the net defined benefit liability
comprising: Return on Plan Assets (excluding the amount included in
the net interest expense)
Actuarial gains and losses arising on changes in
demographic assumptions

Movement in Reserves Statement
Reversal of net charges made to the Surplus or Deficit for
the Provision of Services for post employment benefits in
accordance with the code

1,145

2,340

3,033

2,983

Actual amount charged against the General Fund Balance
for pensions in the year:
Employers Contributions Payable to Scheme

Pensions Assets and Liabilities Recognised in the Balance Sheet
The amount included in the Balance Sheet arising from the authority’s obligation in
respect of its defined benefits plan is as follows:
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2020/21
£’000

2019/20
£’000

Present value of the defined benefit obligation
Fair value of plan assets
Sub-total

(39,780)
19,822
(19,958)

(56,709)
(4,614)
(61,323)

Other movement in the liability (asset)
Net Total

(38,207)
(58,165)

21,543
(39,780)

The following tables analyse the movement in the values of the schemes assets and
liabilities.
Reconciliation of the Movements in the Fair Value of Scheme (Plan) Assets
2020/21
£’000
Opening fair value of scheme assets
Interest Income
Re-measurement gain/(loss):
The return on plan assets, excluding the amount included in
the net interest expense
The effects of changes in foreign exchange rates
Employer contributions
Contributions from employees into the scheme
Benefits paid
Closing fair value of scheme assets

2019/20
£’000

98,291

102,905

2,252

2,463

18,232
0
3,033
603
(4,298)

(6,073)
0
2,983
591
(4,578)

118,113

98,291
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Reconciliation of the Present Value of the Scheme Liabilities (Defined Benefit
Obligation)
2020/21
£’000
Opening balance at 1 April
Current service cost
Interest cost
Contributions from scheme participants
Contributions in respect of unfunded benefits
Re-measurement gain/(loss):
Actuarial gains/losses arising from changes in demographic
assumptions
Actuarial gains/losses arising from changes in financial
assumptions
Other
Past service cost
Liabilities assumed on entity combinations
Benefits Paid
Return on assets excluding amounts included in net
interest
Liabilities extinguished in settlements
Closing Defined Benefit Obligation

2019/20
£’000

(138,071)

(159,614)

(3,262)
(3,168)
(603)
0

(4,231)
(3,842)
(591)
0

(2,136)

5,551

(34,710)
1,374
0
0
4,298

11,958
7,833
287
0
4,578

0
0

0
0

(176,278)

(138,071)

Scheme History
2020/21
£’000
Present value of liabilities
Fair value of assets
Scheme Surplus/(deficit)

2019/20
£’000

2018/19
£’000

2017/18
£’000

2016/17
£’000

(176,278) (138,071) (159,614) (146,054) (145,219)
118,113
98,291 102,905
98,083
95,434
(58,165) (39,780) (56,709) (47,971) (49,785)

The liabilities show the underlying commitments that the authority has in the long run
to pay retirement benefits. The total liability of £58.165m has a substantial impact on
the net worth of the Council as recorded in the Balance Sheet.
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The local government pension scheme’s assets comprised of the following:
2020/21
£’000
Cash and cash equivalents

2019/20
£’000

7,508

6,265

Equity instruments by industry type:
Consumer
Manufacturing
Energy and utilities
Financial institutions
Health and care
Information technology
Other

2,001
1,164
425
893
1,047
1,621
23,750

2,680
1,533
720
1,082
1,547
2,303
8,148

Sub-total - Equity

30,901

18,013

Bonds by sector:
Corporate
Government
Other

15,364
9,957
2,113

12,439
9,765
2,460

Sub-total - Bonds

27,434

24,664

Real estate:
UK
Overseas

8,969
0

8,638
0

Sub-total - Real Estate

8,969

8,638

Private equity:
All

4,387

3,279

Sub-total - Private equity

4,387

3,279

Other investment funds:
Equities
Bonds
Infrastructure

31,589
0
7,325

30,149
0
7,283

Sub-total - Other investment funds

38,914

37,432

118,113

98,291

Total Assets
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Basis for estimating Assets and Liabilities
Liabilities have been assessed on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit
method, an estimate of the pensions that will be payable in future years dependant
on assumptions about mortality rates, salary levels, etc. Both the Local Government
Pension Scheme and discretionary benefits liabilities have been estimated by
Hymans Robertson LLP, an independent firm of actuaries, estimates for the County
Council Fund being based on the latest full valuation of the scheme as at 31 March
2019.
The accounts have been prepared on the basis of the actuary’s updated IAS19
valuation report dated 12 May 2021. An allowance was made for McCloud in last
year’s results (0.3% or £0.480m). No further adjustment has been made within year’s
results. An allowance for full GMP indexation has also been included within the
closing balance sheet position.
The significant assumptions used by the actuary have been:
2020/21

2019/20

Long term expected rate of return on
assets in the scheme:
Overall expected return
Mortality assumptions:
Longevity at 65 for current pensioners:
Men
Women
Longevity at 65 for future pensioners:
Men
Women
Financial Assumptions:
Rates of CPI inflation
Rate of increase in salaries
Rate of increase in pensions
Rate for discounting scheme liabilities

20.9%

(4.70%)

21.3 Yrs
23.9 Yrs

21.6 Yrs
23.7 Yrs

22.5 Yrs
25.8 Yrs

22.6 Yrs
25.1 Yrs

2.85%
3.55%
2.85%
2.00%

1.90%
2.60%
1.90%
2.30%

The estimation of the defined benefit obligation is sensitive to the actuarial
assumptions set out in the table above. The sensitivity analysis below have been
determined based on reasonably possible changes of the assumptions occurring at
the end of the reporting period and assumes for each change that the assumption
analysed changes while all the other assumptions remain constant. The assumptions
in longevity, for example, assume that life expectancy increases or decreases for men
and women. In practice, this is unlikely to occur, and changes in some of the
assumptions may be interrelated. The estimations in the sensitivity analysis have
followed the accounting policies for the scheme, i.e. on an actuarial basis using the
projected unit credit method. The methods and types of assumptions used in
preparing the sensitivity analysis below did not change from those used in the
previous period.
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Impact on the defined benefit obligation in the scheme
Increase in
Assumption
£'000

Decrease in
Assumption
£'000

Rate of increase in salaries (increase or
decrease by 0.5%)

1,739

0

Rate of increase in pensions (increase or
decrease by 0.5%)

14,810

0

0

16,915

Rate for discounting scheme liabilities
(increase or decrease by 0.5%)

Within the IAS19 disclosures there is an element of unfunded benefits in respect of
early retirement pension costs which amount to £1.532m at 31 March 2021, (2019/20,
£1.435m). The Council makes annual payments to the local government pension
scheme to cover this amount. In 2020/21 the Council paid £0.104m (2019/20,
£0.108m).
The Council’s contribution rate for 2020/21 was 13.7% (2019/20 13.7%).
Impact on the Authority’s Cash Flows
The objectives of the scheme are to keep employer’s contributions at as constant a
rate as possible. The County Council has agreed a strategy with the scheme’s actuary
to achieve a funding level of 100% over the next 19 years. Funding levels are
monitored on an annual basis. A triennial valuation was completed as at 31 March
2019.
The scheme will need to take account of the national changes to the scheme under
the Public Pension Services Act 2013. Under the Act, the Local Government Pension
Scheme in England and Wales and the other main existing public service schemes
may not provide benefits in relation to the service after 31 March 2014. The Act
provides for scheme regulations to be made within a common framework, to establish
new career average revalued earnings schemes to pay pensions and other benefits
to certain public servants.
The authority is anticipated to pay £2.929m expected contributions to the scheme in
2021/22.
40

Contingent Liabilities and Assets

Municipal Mutual Limited (MMI)
The Council’s former insurers Municipal Mutual Limited (MMI) ceased its underwriting
operations in September 1992 and entered into a Scheme of Arrangement in 1993.
The Scheme of Arrangement means that the Council is potentially liable to pay for
claims settled by MMI. The Scheme of Arrangement was triggered in 2012/13 with
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an initial levy set at 15%. The Council paid £0.125m levy in 2012/13.The Council was
subsequently notified of a further levy of 10% (£0.084m) which was paid in
2016/17.No further payments have been made in 2020/21 but the liability remains.
The Council has set aside a reserve of £0.195m to cover potential future liabilities as
the possibility remains that the Scheme of Arrangement will be triggered again and
the Council may be required to meet its liability in full.
41

Interests in Companies

The Council has 100% interest in Rykneld Homes Limited, through the issue of a
single £1 investment share, which does not impact on the Balance Sheet. The
Balance Sheet includes inter-company balances of £6.213m owed to Rykneld Homes
Limited and £0.720m owed by Rykneld Homes Limited.
In 2017/18 the Council entered into a joint venture with Woodhead Regeneration Ltd.
Both parties purchased 50% of the shares in Northwood Group Ltd for £0.150m.
Parties have equal controlling interests with 2 directors on the board. The driver for
creating the company is to stimulate economic growth by delivering housing and
commercial developments on Council owned land.
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HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT INCOME AND
EXPENDITURE STATEMENT
The Housing Revenue Account (HRA) Income and Expenditure Statement details the
major sources of income and expenditure relating to the Council’s Housing Stock
during the year.
2019/20
£’000
5,166
7,766
37
8,848
11
217

2020/21
£’000
Expenditure
Repairs and maintenance
Supervision and management
Rents, rates, taxes and other charges
Depreciation and impairments of non-current assets
Debt management costs
Movement in the allowance for bad debt
Water Litigation liability

22,045

(31,261)
(269)
(100)
(146)
(50)
(31,826)

Income
Dwelling rents
Garage rents
Non-dwelling rents
Charges for services and facilities
Contribution towards expenditure

5,143
6,836
127
5,280
12
399
1,053
18,850

(30,732)
(319)
(95)
(124)
(50)
(31,320)

Net Cost of HRA Services as included in the whole
(9,781) authority Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Account
185 HRA share of Corporate and Democratic Core
HRA share of other amounts included in the whole authority
0 Cost of Services but not allocated to specific services
(9,596) Net Cost of HRA Services

(12,470)
185
0
(12,285)

HRA share of the operating income and expenditure
included in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement
2,334 Gain or loss on sale of HRA non current assets
5,145 Interest payable and similar charges
(96) Interest receivable and similar income
Income and expenditure in relation to investment properties and
1,750 changes in their fair value
0 Capital Grants
(463) (Surplus) or deficit for the year on HRA services

1,983
4,949
(28)
0
(1,620)
(7,001)
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Movement on the HRA Statement
2019/20
£’000

2020/21
£’000

(463)

(Surplus) or deficit for the year on the HRA Income and
Expenditure Statement

(4,833)

Adjustments between accounting basis and funding basis under
statute

(5,296)

Net (Increase) or decrease in the HRA Balance before
transfers to or from reserves:

(7,001)

5,060

(1,941)
1,941
0

5,296 Transfer to or from reserves
0 Increase or Decrease in the year on the HRA

0

(3,000) Balance on the HRA at the end of the previous year

(3,000)

(3,000) Balance on the HRA at the end of the current year

(3,000)

Analysis of the adjustments between accounting and funding basis
2019/20
£’000
0
(1,083)
(1,750)
0
(901)
(2,334)
0
0
1,235
0
(4,833)

2020/21
£’000
Debt Repayment
Impairment and Revaluation of Assets
Change in the fair value of Investment Properties
Capital Expenditure funded by the HRA
REFCUS
Gain or loss on sale of HRA non-current assets
Capital Grants Utilised
Capital Grants Transfer to Capital Grant Reserve
Transfer to/from the Major Repairs Reserve
Exceptional Item

0
2,475
0
0
(616)
(1,983)
575
1,045
3,564
0
5,060
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NOTES TO THE HOUSING REVENUE
ACCOUNT
1

Ring Fenced Housing Revenue Account

Every housing authority is required to keep a Housing Revenue Account in which is
recorded the revenue income and expenditure related to the provision of council
housing, including land and other buildings, as defined in Schedule 4 of the Local
Government and Housing Act 1989.
The provisions of the Local Government and Housing Act 1989 effectively "ring
fenced” the Housing Revenue Account as from 1st April 1990. This means that the
Housing Revenue Account and General Fund - except in certain specified
circumstances – are not allowed to cross subsidise each other.
2

Rent Income

In April 2020 the new Social Housing Rent Standard came into force which is
externally regulated by the Housing Regulator and applies to all registered providers
of social housing. For the first time, the Government directed the Regulator to apply
the rent standard to all registered providers and this includes local authorities. The
Standard confirms that rent increases of up to CPI + 1% for the next five years will be
permitted, commencing April 2020. A rent increase of 1.7% was applied in 2020. A
2.3% voids allowance is built into our rental budgets. Outturn against this was 2.26%.
3

Rent Arrears and Provision for Doubtful Debts
31 March
2021

31 March
2020

Current tenant arrears
Former tenant arrears

1,668
417

1,053
493

Total HRA rent arrears

2,085

1,546

(1,147)

(863)

938

683

Provision for doubtful debts
Net HRA rent arrears
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4

Non-current Assets
31 March
2021

31 March
2020

Houses
Flats
Bungalows

4,563
1,182
1,873

4,623
1,186
1,884

Total Housing Dwelling Stock

7,618

7,693

£'000
Balance Sheet Value

363,436

£'000
355,499

During the year, the Council disposed of 79 dwellings (65 sold through the RTB
Scheme, 11 demolitions and 3 on the open market) and bought 4 council dwellings.
Reserved receipts are payable to the Government for houses sold. Usable receipts
are available for the Council to finance capital expenditure or repay debt. The
outstanding debt on the council houses sold was repaid from the receipts received
by the Council (£1.620m).

Operational assets
Other land and buildings
HRA land
Surplus assets
Shared Ownership Properties
Total other HRA assets

5

31 March
2021
£'000
611
1,372
3,688
0
1,354

31 March
2020
£'000
628
1,472
3,689
0
1,339

7,025

7,128

Vacant Possession Value

The Council’s housing stock is valued in the Balance Sheet based on the existing use
value (social housing). The vacant possession value of the Council’s housing stock
as at 31 March 2021 was £865.323m (£846.425m at 31 March 2020). This compares
against a value shown in the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2021 of £363.436m
(£355.499m as at 31 March 2020). The difference between the two values takes
account of dwellings being occupied by secure tenants, in 2020/21 this is 42% (42%,
2019/20).
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6

Revaluation/Impairment of HRA Assets

Revaluations and impairment of expenditure charged to HRA Income and
Expenditure Statement on Council Dwellings and other HRA assets in the year
amounted to a profit of £2.475m (2019/20 loss £1.083m). Revaluation losses on HRA
Investment Properties was £0.000m in 2020/21 (2019/20, loss of £1.750m). All
impairment charges relate to council dwellings.
7

Major Repairs Reserve
2020/21
£'000
Balance 1 April
HRA Depreciation
Transfer (to)/from HRA (difference between
depreciation and MRA)
Amount used to finance capital expenditure
Balance Carried Forward

8

2019/20
£'000

176
7,755

176
7,765

3,564
(9,321)

1,235
(9,000)

2,174

176

Financing of Capital Expenditure

Capital expenditure associated with the improvement of the Council’s housing stock
amounted to £10.924m. This expenditure has been financed as follows:
31 March
2021
£'000
Grants received
Major repairs reserve
Usable capital receipts
Prudential borrowing
HRA capital investment reserve
Total HRA assets

31 March
2020
£'000

575
9,321
430
0
598

0
9,000
270
1,081
1,631

10,924

11,982
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9

Capital Receipts
2020/21
Total
£'000
Sale of council houses
Sale of other assets
Mortgage receipts
Total

10

3,767
232
0
3,999

2020/21
Pooled
£'000

2020/21
Usable
£'000

1,802
0
0
1,802

2019/20
Usable
£'000

1,965
232
0
2,197

2,503
374
0
2,877

Depreciation Charges
31 March
2021
£'000

31 March
2020
£'000

Housing Dwellings
Other Operational Assets

7,641
114

7,650
115

Total Depreciation

7,755

7,765

Details of how depreciation is calculated can be found within note 10 to the Balance
Sheet.
11

Revenue expenditure funded from capital under statute

The Council’s Net Cost of HRA Services includes expenditure of £0.616m that is
associated with capital projects which did not result in an asset owned by the Council
or could be allocated to a specific non-current asset. Of this figure there is £0.483m
for work on communal flats, waste disposal and energy performance certificates,
£0.032m for demolition costs and £0.101m for other expenditure.
12

Pension Transfer to Rykneld Homes Limited

The Council has agreed to meet the past service deficit attributable to those scheme
members that transferred to Rykneld Homes on 1 April 2007. The cost is being paid
over a 22 year period commencing in 2008/09. The cost is charged to the HRA on an
annual basis. The cost in 2020/21 is £0.733m (2019/20, £0.701m) and the total
liability outstanding is £8.323m. This is included within the pension deficit figure
shown on the Balance Sheet.
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13

Rent Rebates

Assistance with rents is available under the Housing Benefits Scheme.
Approximately 40.70% of the Council's tenants received some help towards the cost
of rent charges in 2020/21 (43.75% for 2019/20).
14

Water Charges Provision

On 29 November 2019 the High Court handed down judgment in the case of Royal
Borough of Kingston upon Thames v Moss (2019). This judgment impacts on social
housing landlords who resold water and sewage services to its tenants for the
purposes of the Water Industry Act 1991 under an agreement. Until 31 March 2018,
the Council had such an agreement with Severn Trent Water Authority (STWA). The
High Court’s decision was subsequently appealed to the Court of Appeal. The
judgment of the Court of Appeal in the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames v
Moss [2020] was published on 27th October 2020. The result of that case is that
Kingston lost its appeal to the Court of Appeal over the earlier High Court ruling that
it overcharged tenants for water. As a result of this judgement it is likely that the
Council is bound by the maximum charges provisions of the Water Resale Orders
2001 and 2006, it will have charged tenants sums in excess of the maximum charges
and tenants will have a right to recover overpayments of charges. No claims have
been received to date. The estimated liability at 31 March 2021 for the refund of these
earlier years’ charges is a provision of £1.052m and has been included as a provision.
15

HRA Debt Repayment Reserve

The introduction of self-financing to the Housing Revenue Account in 2012 meant the
Council had to borrow £127.090m from the Public Works Loans Board to cover the
balance of the settlement payment.
The loans of £127.090m were taken out with varying maturity dates ranging from 12
years to 35 years with the final repayment date of the loans being the 2046/47
financial year.
This reserve has been created to meet the repayments of the loans as they become
due, if required, and is included in the Balance Sheet within earmarked reserves.
2020/21
£'000
Balance B/fwd 1st April
Transferred to Reserve in year
Transferred to Reserve in year from Capital Adjustment Account
Repayment of debt from the reserve in year
Balance as at 31st March

2019/20
£'000

(31,700)

(27,400)

0
0
0

(4,300)
0
0

(31,700)

(31,700)
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15

Exceptional Item

There are no exceptional items to be disclosed during 2020/21.
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EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT
2019/20
Business
Rates
£'000

Council Tax
£'000

2020/21
Business
Rates Council Tax
£’000
£’000

Total
£'000

Total
£’000

(17,568)
(391)

(60,228)
0
0

INCOME
(60,228) Council Tax Receivable
(17,568) Business Rates Receivable
(391) Section 13A(1)C Reliefs

(11,066)
(104)

(61,515)
(617)

(61,515)
(11,066)
(104)

(383)
(797)
(549)
(17)
(19,705)

0
0
0
0
(60,228)

Apportionment of Previous Year Deficit
(383) Central Government
(797) North East Derbyshire District Council
(549) Derbyshire County Council
(17) Fire Authority
(79,933)

0
0
0
0
(11,170)

0
0
0
0
(62,132)

0
0
0
0
(72,685)

371
626
390
14
1,401

0
89
404
66
23
582

371
715
794
80
23
1,983

8,732
6,985
1,572
175
17,464

0
9,224
42,185
7,084
2,430
60,923

8,732
16,209
43,757
7,259
2,430
78,387

0
0
0
0
0

0
161
647
41
100
949

0
161
647
41
100
949

8,598
6,877
1,547
172
17,194

0
9,010
40,953
2,360
6,705
59,028

8,598
15,887
42,500
2,532
6,705
76,222

EXPENDITURE
Apportionment of Previous Year Surplus
Central Government
North East Derbyshire District Council
Derbyshire County Council
Fire Authority
Derbyshire Police & Crime Commissioner

Precepts, Demands and Shares
Central Government
North East Derbyshire District Council
Derbyshire County Council
Fire Authority
Derbyshire Police & Crime Commissioner

Charges to Collection Fund
81
11
(311)
100
(119)

273
723
0
0
996

354 Write offs of uncollectable amounts
734 Increase (Decrease) in Bad Debt Provision
(311) Increase (Decrease) in Appeals
100 Cost of Collection
877

12
796
282
102
1,192

0
1,676
0
0
1,676

12
2,472
282
102
2,868

(2,630)

745

(1,885) Movement on fund balance during the year

8,887

1,049

9,936

1,088

(1,490)

(402) (Surplus)/Deficit B/fwd 1 April

(1,542)

(745)

(2,287)

(1,542)

(745)

(2,287) (Surplus)/Deficit B/fwd 31 March

7,345

304

7,649

The District Council precept and Council Tax contribution includes Parish Councils’
requirements of £3.295m (2019/20 £3.140m).
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1

General

The Collection Fund is a statement that reflects the statutory obligation for billing
authorities to maintain a separate Collection Fund. The statement shows the
transactions of the billing authority in relation to the collection from taxpayers and
distribution to local authorities and the Government of Council Tax and non-domestic
rates.
The Council has a statutory requirement to operate a Collection Fund as a separate
account. The purpose of the Collection Fund therefore, is to ring fence the income
and expenditure relating to Council Tax and National Non-Domestic Business Rates.
The administrative costs associated with the collection process are charged to the
General Fund.
The national code of practice followed by Local Authorities in England stipulates that
a Collection Fund Income and Expenditure account is shown as a separate statement
in the Council’s Statement of Accounts. The Collection Fund balance sheet
meanwhile is incorporated into the Council’s consolidated balance sheet.
Council Tax
Collection Fund surpluses declared by the billing authority in relation to Council Tax
are apportioned to the relevant precepting bodies in the subsequent financial year.
Deficits likewise are proportionately charged to the relevant precepting bodies in the
following year. For NEDDC, the Council Tax precepting bodies are Derbyshire
County Council, the Police and Crime Commissioner for Derbyshire and the
Derbyshire Fire Authority.
NNDR
In 2013/14, the local government finance regime was revised with the introduction of
the retained business rates scheme. The main aim of the scheme is to give Councils
a greater incentive to grow businesses in the District. It does, however, also increase
the financial risk due to non-collection and the volatility of the NNDR tax base.
The scheme allows the Council to retain a proportion of the total NNDR received. The
NEDDC share is 40% with the remainder paid to precepting bodies; Central
Government (50% share), Derbyshire County Council (9% share) and Derbyshire
Fire Authority (1% share).
The total non domestic rateable value for 2020/21 was £47.067m (£47.336m for
2019/20). The general national non-domestic multiplier for the year was 51.2p (50.4p
in 2019/20). The small business non-domestic multiplier for the year was 49.9p (49.1p
in 2019/20).
As part of the above scheme, all local authorities were given the opportunity to form
a business rates pool. With effect from 1 April 2015, the Council became a member
of the Derbyshire Business Rates Pool.
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NNDR surpluses or deficits declared by the billing authority in relation to the
Collection Fund are apportioned to the relevant precepting bodies in the subsequent
financial year in their respective proportions.
2

Council Tax Yield

The Council Tax Base is calculated each year as the estimated Band D equivalent
number of dwellings in the Council's area for the year after taking into account any
discounts. For 2020/21 the calculation was as follows:

3

Council
Tax Band

2020/21
Number of Band D Equivalents
(adjusted for discounts)

2019/20
Number of Band D Equivalents
(adjusted for discounts)

A
B
C
D
E
F
G
H

8,132.87
5,965.14
5,868.95
4,522.16
3,369.63
1,999.45
1,297.11
108.02

8,088.57
5,887.65
5,838.34
4,450.46
3,327.10
1,970.65
1,292.44
102.62

31,263.33

30,957.83

Business Rates

The Council collects National Non-Domestic Rates (NNDR) for its area based on local
rateable values provided by the Valuation Office multiplied by a uniform business rate
set nationally by Central Government. Prior to March 2013 the total amount due, less
certain allowances, was paid to a central pool (the NNDR pool) administered by
Central Government, which, in turn, paid to Local Authorities their share of the pool,
such shares being based on a standard amount per head of the local adult population.
In 2013/14, the administration of NNDR changed following the introduction of a
business rates retention scheme which aims to give Councils a greater incentive to
grow businesses but also increases the financial risk due to volatility and noncollection of rates. Instead of paying NNDR to the central pool, local authorities retain
a proportion of the total collectable rates due.
When the scheme was introduced, Central Government set a baseline level for each
authority identifying the expected level of retained business rates and a top up or tariff
amount to ensure that all authorities receive their baseline amount. Tariffs due from
authorities payable to Central Government are used to finance the top ups to those
authorities who do not achieve their targeted baseline funding. The tariff paid by the
Council in 2020/21 was £3.258m
From 1 April 2015, the Council became a member of the Derbyshire Pool. Under its
accounting arrangements, the Council pays a levy to the pool and receives a
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redistribution of growth back from the pool at the end of each financial year. The levy
payable in 2020/21 was £0.876m.
In addition to the local management of business rates, authorities are expected to
meet their share of the cost of appeals made in respect of rateable values as defined
by the Valuation Office. As such, authorities are required to make a provision for these
amounts. Appeals are charged and provided for in proportion of the precepting
shares.
4

Breakdown of Collection Fund (Surplus) /Deficit

At 31st March 2021 there was a deficit on the Collection Fund amounting to £7.649m
(2019/20 surplus £2.287m). The breakdown of this figure between the preceptors and
NEDDC is:
Council Tax
31 March
2020
£'000
(130)
(506)
(76)
(33)
(745)

Business
Rates
31 March
2020
£'000
(683)
(403)
(15)
(441)
(1,542)

Council Tax
31 March
2021
£'000
North East Derbyshire District Council
Derbyshire County Council
Derbyshire Police & Crime Commissioner
Fire Authority
Central Government

46
211
35
12
304

Business
Rates
31st March
2021
£'000
2,938
661
73
3,673
7,345

These amounts are included in the Balance Sheet and will be paid to the preceptors
in 2021/22 and future years.
5

Impact of Covid on the Collection Fund

Business Rates
The 2020/21 deficit is the result of reliefs being given to businesses during the
lockdown. Section 31 grants have been receive to offset this but under collection fund
accounting rules these will not be discharged until 2021/22 so have been moved into
an earmarked reserve in the general fund this year to be released next year.
The Government’s Tax Income Compensation Scheme is compensating local
authorities for 75% of their lost business rates income in 2020/21. Payments will be
based on the loss of business rates compared to the forecast position, estimated at
£0.461mof which £0.369m relates to North East Derbyshire with the remainder for
the major preceptors.
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NOTES TO THE COLLECTION FUND
Council Tax
The deficit in 2020/21 is the result of lower income collection rates during the
pandemic. Supplementary regulations have been issued to address these
exceptional negative balances and as a result deficits have been spread over the
next three years. This reduces the deficit in the collection fund in 2020/21 by £0.307m.

North East Derbyshire District Council Statement of Accounts 2020/21
135
Page 293
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GROUP ACCOUNTS

2020/21
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GROUP MOVEMENT IN RESERVES STATEMENT
2020/21

Balance at 31 March 2020

NEDDC
Usable
Reserves

NEDDC
Unusable
Reserves

Total
NEDDC
Reserves

RHL
Reserves

Total
Group
Reserves

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

181,625

238,702

(8,562)

230,140

(9,356)

(8,523)

57,077

Movement in Reserves during 2020/21:
Total Comprehensive Income and Expenditure

7,670

(6,837)

833

Adjustments from I&E charged under the
accounting basis to the funding basis under
regulation

4,665

(4,665)

0

Increase or (decrease) in 2020/21

12,335

(11,502)

833

(9,356)

Balance at 31 March 2021

69,412

170,123

239,535

(17,918)

0

0
(8,523)
221,617
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GROUP MOVEMENT IN RESERVES STATEMENT
2019/20

Balance at 31 March 2019

NEDDC
Usable
Reserves
£'000

NEDDC
Unusable
Reserves
£'000

Total
NEDDC
Reserves
£'000

Total
Group
Reserves
£'000

RHL
Reserves
£'000

53,504

150,584

204,088

(13,198)

190,890

Total Comprehensive Income and Expenditure

1,526

33,088

34,614

4,631

39,245

Adjustments from I&E charged under the
accounting basis to the funding basis under
regulation

2,047

(2,047)

0

5

5

Increase or (decrease) in 2019/20

3,573

31,041

34,614

4,636

39,250

57,077

181,625

238,702

(8,562)

230,140

Movement in Reserves during 2019/20:

Balance at 31 March 2020

Page 296

North East Derbyshire District Council Statement of Accounts 2020/21
138

GROUP COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND EXPENDITURE STATEMENT
Restated
Gross
Expenditure
£'000

2019/20
Gross Income
£'000

12,031
29,337
4,175

(7,803)
(24,984)
(1,708)

45,543

(34,495)

12,365
0
10,625

(31,814)
0
(1,017)

68,533

(67,326)

2020/21
Net
Expenditure
£'000
4,228 Environment & Enforcement Directorate
4,353 Corporate Resources Directorate
2,467 Growth & Economic Development Directorate

Gross
Expenditure
£'000

Gross
Income
£'000

Net
Expenditure
£'000

10,621
39,976
3,465

(6,841)
(37,437)
(2,135)

3,780
2,539
1,330

11,048 Cost Of General Fund Services

54,062

(46,413)

7,649

(19,449) Housing Revenue Account
0 HRA Exceptional Item
9,608 Operating Costs of Rykneld Homes

9,183
0
10,388

(30,575)
0
(901)

(21,392)
0
9,487

73,633

(77,889)

(4,256)

1,207 Cost of All Services
7,920 Other Operating Expenditure

7,152

5,666 Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure

5,944

0 Surplus or Deficit of Discontinued Operations
(14,408) Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income
385 (Surplus) or Deficit on Provision of Services
(13,819) (Surplus) or Deficit on Revaluation of Fixed Assets

0
(15,229)
(6,389)
(10,404)

(Surplus) or Deficit on Revaluation of Available for Sale
0 Financial Assets

0

(25,811) Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Pension Assets/Liabilities

25,316

(39,630) Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure

14,912

(39,245) Total Comprehensive Income and Expenditure

8,523
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GROUP BALANCE SHEET
31 March
2020

Note

£'000

31 March
2021
£'000

392,838
58
14,128
25
7,659
414,708

Property, Plant & Equipment
Heritage Assets
Investment Property
Intangible Assets
Long Term Debtors
Long Term Assets

401,988
58
14,198
118
8,716
425,078

0
229
7,377
27,568
35,174

Assets Held for Sale
Inventories
Short Term Debtors
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Current Assets

0
184
10,603
36,466
47,253

0
(350)
(10,897)
(1,386)
(12,633)

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Short Term Borrowing
Short Term Creditors
Provisions (short term)
Current Liabilities

0
(2,251)
(12,848)
(1,053)
(16,152)

0
0
(155,352)
(51,757)
(207,109)

Long Term Creditors
Provisions
Long Term Borrowing
Other Long Term Liabilities
Long Term Liabilities

0
(1,499)
(153,877)
(79,186)
(234,562)

230,140 Net Assets
(57,979) Usable Reserves
(172,161) Unusable Reserves
(230,140) Total Reserves

221,617
(70,191)
(151,426)
(221,617)
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GROUP CASH FLOW STATEMENT
2019/20

2020/21

£'000

£'000

(385) Net (surplus) or deficit on the provision of services

6,389

Adjustment to surplus or deficit on the provision of services for noncash
21,505 movements

13,343

Adjust for items included in the net surplus or deficit on the provision of
(20,606) services that are investing and financing activities

(21,064)

514 Net Cash flows from operating activities
4,969 Investing Activities
43 Financing Activities
5,526 Net (increase) or decrease in cash and cash equivalents

(1,332)
10,013
217
8,898

22,042 Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the reporting period

27,568

27,568 Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the reporting period

36,466
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NOTES TO THE GROUP ACCOUNTS
1

Rykneld Homes Limited

North East Derbyshire District Council (NEDDC) set up a wholly owned subsidiary
company, Rykneld Homes Limited (RHL), on 1 April 2007 to manage its housing
stock. The Company was established as an Arms Length Management Organisation
(ALMO) in accordance with a Government policy initiative for local authority housing
management.
NEDDC pay Rykneld Homes Limited an agreed management fee to undertake the
management and maintenance of 7,618 Council owned homes in North East
Derbyshire. NEDDC is the only shareholder but it allows Rykneld Homes Limited to
operate independently on day to day matters. Four representatives of the Council sit
on the Board of Rykneld Homes Limited as Council nominees.
Within the group accounts the setting up of a subsidiary is treated as an acquisition
(IAS 27). As NEDDC set up Rykneld Homes Limited as a subsidiary there was no
consideration paid for the company. All set up costs have been paid for by NEDDC
and there were no assets acquired or transferred between the two organisations.
2

Accounting Policies

The Accounting Policies of the two organisations have been examined for any
fundamental differences that may impact on the treatment of the group accounts. The
accounting policies used to produce the financial statements of Rykneld Homes
Limited do not differ materially from those utilised by NEDDC and as such have no
impact upon the Group Accounts produced above.
3

Retained Surplus / Deficit

In 2020/21 Rykneld Homes Limited made a loss of £1.280m (2019/20 loss of
£1.912m).
4

Post Consolidation Adjustment

There are no post consolidation adjustments during the current financial year.
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5

Pensions

Employees of North East Derbyshire District Council and Rykneld Homes Limited are
admitted to the Derbyshire County Council pension fund which is administered under
the regulations governing Local Government Pension Schemes.
The following transactions have been made in the group Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement and the Movement in Reserves Statement in the year.
2020/21
£’000
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
Cost of Service
Current Service cost
Past Service Cost
(Gain)/loss from settlements

2019/20
£’000

5,197
5
0

6,845
(282)
0

1,144

1,735

6,346

8,298

(27,486)

9,010

3,112

(8,002)

Actuarial gains and losses arising on changes in financial assumptions

51,703

(17,719)

Other (if applicable)

(2,013)

(9,100)

Total Post Employment Benefit Charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement

25,316

(25,811)

Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure
Net Interest Expense
Total Post Employment Benefit Charged to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Service

Other Post Employment Benefit Charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

Re-measurement of the net defined benefit liability comprising: Return on Plan Assets (excluding the amount included in the net interest expense)
Actuarial gains and losses arising on changes in demographic assumptions
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Reconciliation of the Movements in the Fair Value of Scheme (Plan) Assets
2020/21
£’000
Opening fair value of scheme assets

147,983

154,279

3,395

3,699

27,486
0
4,044
983
(5,616)
0

(9,010)
0
3,959
980
(5,924)
0

178,275

147,983

Interest Income
Re-measurement gain/(loss):
The return on plan assets, excluding the amount included in the net interest expense
The effects of changes in foreign exchange rates
Employer contributions
Contributions from employees into the scheme
Benefits paid
Other
Closing fair value of scheme assets

2019/20
£’000

Reconciliation of the Present Value of the Scheme Liabilities (Defined Benefit
Obligation)

Opening balance at 1 April

2020/21
£’000

2019/20
£’000

(197,227)

(224,995)

(5,197)
(4,539)
(983)
0

(6,845)
(5,434)
(980)
0

(3,112)
(51,703)
2,013
(5)
0
0
5,616
0
0

8,002
17,719
9,100
282
0
0
5,924
0
0

(255,137)

(197,227)

Current service cost
Interest cost
Contributions from scheme participants
Contributions in respect of unfunded benefits
Re-measurement gain/(loss):
Actuarial gains/losses arising from changes in demographic assumptions
Actuarial gains/losses arising from changes in financial assumptions
Other
Past service cost
Losses/(gains) on curtailment
Liabilities assumed on entity combinations
Benefits Paid
Return on assets excluding amounnts included in net interest
Liabilities extinguished in settlements
Closing Defined Benefit Obligation
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Scheme History
2020/21
£’000
Present value of liabilities
Fair value of assets
Scheme Surplus/(deficit)

2019/20
£’000

2018/19
£’000

2017/18
£’000

2016/17
£’000

(255,137) (197,227) (224,995) (203,096) (200,347)
178,275 147,983 154,279 145,774 141,202
(76,862) (49,244) (70,716) (57,322) (59,145)

The basis for estimating assets and liabilities for the group is the same as for North
East Derbyshire District Council, as detailed in note 39 to the single entity financial
statements.
6

Related Party Transactions

North East Derbyshire District Council paid Rykneld Homes Limited a total amount of
£21.913m (2019/20, £23.166m) made up of net management fee of £9.852m
(2019/20, £9.852m) to undertake the management and maintenance function of the
Council’s housing stock, the Council made 1 loans to Rykneld Homes Limited during
2020/21 for £1.000m (2019/20, £1.900m), other transactions amounting to £0.231m
(2019/20, £0.052m) and £10.484m (2019/20, £11.362m) for capital works to the
Council’s housing stock.
Rykneld Homes Limited purchased goods and services from the Council to the value
of £1.665m (2019/20 £1.215m).
7

Inter-organisation Balances

The Group Accounts require that inter-organisation balances be removed. The table
below shows the reconciliation of inter organisation debtors and creditors for 2020/21.
NEDDC
Balance
Sheet
£'000

RHL
Balance
Sheet
£'000

NEDDC
IOB

RHL IOB

Total

£'000

£'000

£'000

Short Term Debtors

11,262

6,492

(18)

Short Term Creditors

(16,241)

(4,810)

6,933

(4,979)

1,682

6,915

(6,933)
18
(6,915)

10,803
(14,100)
(3,297)

At 31 March 2021, Rykneld Homes Limited owed the Council £0.920m for goods and
services received while the Council owed Rykneld Homes Limited £6.213m for goods
and services received. The majority of this is in relation to the capital programme.
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8

The Statement of Accounts for Rykneld Homes Limited can be obtained from
Rykneld Homes Limited
Pioneer House
Mill Lane
Wingerworth
Chesterfield
Derbyshire
S42 6NT
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GLOSSARY
ACCRUAL
A sum included in the Final Accounts attributable to the year but for which payment
has yet to be made or income received. Accruals are made for revenue and capital
expenditure and income.
ASSET
An asset is an item having value measurable in monetary terms. Assets can be
defined as fixed or current. A fixed asset has a value for more than one year (for
example a building or a long-term investment). A current asset can be readily
converted into cash (for example stocks or a short-term debtor).
AUDIT OF ACCOUNTS
An independent examination of the Authority’s financial affairs.
BILLING AUTHORITY
A local authority that has the power to set and collect council tax.
BUDGET
The spending plans of the Authority over a specific period of time - generally the
financial year, 1st April to 31 March.
CAPITAL CHARGES
A charge to service revenue accounts to reflect the cost of using fixed assets in the
provision of services.
CAPITAL EXPENDITURE
Expenditure to acquire or enhance fixed assets that will be used to provide services
beyond the current financial year.
CAPITAL FINANCING
The raising of money to pay for capital expenditure. There are various methods of
financing capital expenditure, including borrowing, leasing, using capital receipts,
grants or contributions from third parties, or direct from revenue budgets.
CAPITAL PROGRAMME
The capital schemes the Authority intends to carry out over a specified period of time.

North East Derbyshire District Council Statement of Accounts 2020/21
147
Page 305

GLOSSARY
CAPITAL RECEIPT
The proceeds from the disposal of land or other fixed assets. A proportion of capital
receipts can be used to finance new capital expenditure, within rules set down by the
Government, but they cannot be used for revenue purposes.
CODE
The Code refers to the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting. The way in
which the statement of accounts is produced is outlined within the Code.
COLLECTION FUND
A separate fund to record the expenditure and income relating to council tax, nondomestic rates and residual community charges.
COMMUNITY ASSETS
Assets that the Authority intends to hold in perpetuity, or that have no determinable
useful life, and that may have restrictions on their disposal. Examples of community
assets are paintings and civic regalia.
CONSISTENCY
The concept that the accounting treatment of like items within an accounting period
and from one period to the next one is the same.
CONTINGENT LIABILITY
Potential losses from a future event where a liability may exist.
COUNCIL TAX
The local tax that pays for a proportion of council services.
COUNCIL TAX BENEFIT
Help provided to people on low incomes to assist them to pay their council tax bills.
CREDITOR
Amounts owed by the Council for works done, goods received or services rendered
before the end of the accounting period but for which payments had not been made
by the end of that period.
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CURRENT EXPENDITURE
This is the general term for “running costs” including employee costs and running
expenses but not debt charges.
DEBTOR
Amounts due to the Council for works done, goods received or services rendered
before the end of the accounting period but for which payments had not been received
by the end of that period.
DEFINED BENEFIT SCHEME
A pension or other retirement benefit scheme other than a defined contribution
scheme. The scheme rules define the benefits independently of the contributions
payable, and the benefits are not directly related to the investments of the scheme.
(A defined contribution scheme is a pension or other retirement benefit scheme into
which an employer pays regular contributions fixed as an amount or as a percentage
of pay and will have no legal obligation to pay further contributions if the scheme does
not have sufficient assets to pay all employee benefits)
DEPRECIATION
The loss in value of an asset due to age, wear and tear, deterioration or
obsolescence.
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARD (FRS) AND STATEMENTS OF
STANDARD ACCOUNTING PRACTICES (SSAP)
These cover particular aspects of accounting practice, and set out the correct
accounting treatment – for example, of depreciation. FRS’s are issued by, and
SSAP’s have been adopted by, the Accounting Standards Board.
GENERAL FUND
This is the main revenue account from which revenue payments are made to meet
the costs of providing services.
GOVERNMENT GRANTS
Grants made by the Government towards either revenue or capital expenditure to
support the cost of the provision of local authority services. These grants may be
specifically towards the cost of particular schemes or to support the general revenue
spending of the Authority (Revenue Support Grant).
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HOUSING ADVANCES
Loans made by an authority to individuals or Housing Associations towards the cost
of acquiring, constructing or improving dwellings. Loans made to individuals are
termed mortgages.
HOUSING BENEFITS
A system of financial assistance to individuals towards certain housing costs
administered by local authorities and subsidised by Central Government.
HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT (HRA)
A separate account, that includes all the expenditure and income arising from the
provision of council housing by the Authority.
IFRS
IFRS refers to the International Financial Reporting Standards by which the Council
must comply with when producing the statement of accounts.
IMPAIRMENT
In accordance with FRS11, Impairment of Fixed Assets and Goodwill, impairment is
a permanent decrease in the recoverable amount of a fixed asset below its carrying
amount. The ‘recoverable amount’ is the higher of:



net realisable value [disposal proceeds less direct selling costs];
value in use — the present value of the future cash flows obtainable as a result
of the continued use of the asset, including its ultimate disposal.

INCOME
Amounts which the Council receives or expects to receive from any source, including
rents, fees, charges, sales and grants.
INFRASTRUCTURE ASSETS
Fixed assets belonging to the Council, which are not readily sold, do not necessarily
have a resale value, and for which a useful life span cannot be readily assessed.
LIABILITY
An amount owed by the Authority, which will be paid at some time in the future.
MAJOR REPAIRS ALLOWANCE (MRA)
The major repairs allowance forms part of the housing subsidy calculation. It is an
allowance given to the Council based on the number of dwellings to finance capital
expenditure on council dwellings.
North East Derbyshire District Council Statement of Accounts 2020/21
150
Page 308

GLOSSARY
MAJOR REPAIRS RESERVE (MRR)
The major repairs reserve is where the major repairs allowances transactions are
processed and any balance carried forward.
MINIMUM REVENUE PROVISION (MRP)
The minimum revenue provision is the amount of debt repayment made based on the
life of the asset.
NON-DOMESTIC RATE (NDR)
The Non-Domestic Rate is a standard rate in the pound set by the Government on
the assessed rateable value of business properties.
NON-OPERATIONAL ASSETS
Fixed assets held by the Authority, but not directly occupied or used in the delivery of
services. Examples are investment properties, or assets that are surplus to
requirements, pending sale or redevelopment.
OPERATING LEASE
A type of lease, where the ownership of the asset remains with the lessor.
OPERATIONAL ASSETS
Fixed assets held by the Authority and directly occupied or used in the delivery of its
services.
PRECEPT
The levy made by precepting authorities on billing authorities. Derbyshire County
Council, Derbyshire Fire Authority and Derbyshire Police Authority levy a precept on
the District Council.
PROVISION
Provisions are required for any liabilities of uncertain timing or amount that have been
incurred. Provisions are required to be recognised when:
- the Authority has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of
a past event
- it is probable that a transfer of economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation; and
- a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.
The amount recognised as a provision should be the best estimate taking into account
the risks and uncertainties surrounding the events and should be regularly reviewed.
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PRUDENCE
The concept that revenue is not anticipated but recognised only when realised or
reasonably certain to be realised.
PUBLIC WORKS LOAN BOARD (PWLB)
A Central Government agency, which provides loans for one year and above to local
authorities at interest rates only slightly higher than those at which the Government
itself can borrow.
RATEABLE VALUE
The annual assumed rental value of a property, which is used for business rate
purposes.
REFFCUS (Revenue expenditure funded from capital under statute)
Capital expenditure which is of benefit beyond the current accounting period, but
which does not result in a tangible fixed asset to the Authority. An example of a
deferred charge would be capital expenditure on improvement grants.
RESERVES
Surpluses and deficits which have been accumulated over past years. Reserves of a
revenue nature are available and can be spent or earmarked at the discretion of the
Authority. Some capital reserves such as the Fixed Asset Restatement Reserve
cannot be used to meet current expenditure.
REVENUE ACCOUNT
The main account of the Authority into which grants and other income is paid and
from which the cost of providing services is met.
REVENUE EXPENDITURE
The day to day expenses of providing services.
REVENUE SUPPORT GRANT (RSG)
A grant paid by Central Government to authorities, contributing towards the cost of
services.
STATEMENT OF RECOMMENDED PRACTICE (SORP)
The SORP, issued by CIPFA in accordance with the Accounting Standards Board,
governs the way local authorities must produce their financial statements and report
their spending and income.
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STOCKS
Comprise the following categories: goods and other assets purchased for resale;
consumable stores; long term contract balances and finished goods.
TEMPORARY LOAN
Money borrowed for a period of less than one year.
TRUST FUNDS
Funds administered by the Council for such purposes as charities and specific
projects.
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ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT
Introduction
The Council sets out our vision for the next four years in the Council Plan 20192023:
North East Derbyshire is:
 Clean and attractive
 A place where people are proud to live and work
 A place where people will prosper
 A place where people will feel safe, happy and healthy

The Council’s core business is to provide good quality services fit for the 21st
Century. We will do this by transforming our services whilst ensuring our residents
receive value for money for the council tax they pay.
This Annual Governance Statement reviews arrangements in place for the financial
year 2020/21. The Coronavirus pandemic has impacted significantly on the Council
this year and the impact on our services and our response is addressed at Appendix
1.
The Annual Governance Statement
The Council has approved and adopted a code of corporate governance, which is
consistent with the principles of the CIPFA /SOLACE Framework Delivering Good
Governance in Local Government Framework 2016 edition.
This Statement explains how the Council has complied with the code for the year
ended 31 March 2021 and also meets the requirements of Accounts and Audit
Regulations 2015.
The Scope of the Council’s Responsibility
North East Derbyshire District Council is responsible for ensuring that its business is
conducted in accordance with the law and proper standards, and that public money
is safeguarded and properly accounted for, and used economically, efficiently and
effectively.
The Council also has a duty under the Local Government Act 1999 to make
arrangements to secure continuous improvement in the way in which its functions are
exercised, having regard to a combination of economy, efficiency and effectiveness.
In discharging this overall responsibility, the Council is responsible for putting in place
proper arrangements for the governance of its affairs, and for facilitating the effective
exercise of its functions, which includes arrangements for the management of risk.
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The Purpose of the Governance Framework
The governance framework comprises the systems and processes, culture and
values, by which the authority is directed and controlled, together with those activities
through which it accounts to, engages with and leads the local community. It enables
the Authority to monitor the achievement of its strategic objectives and to consider
whether those objectives have led to the delivery of appropriate cost effective
services.
The system of internal control is a significant part of that framework and is designed
to manage risk to a reasonable level. It cannot eliminate all risk of failure to achieve
policies, aims and objectives and can therefore only provide reasonable and not
absolute assurance of effectiveness.
The Governance Framework
The Governance Framework identifies the assurance needed to meet the Council’s
Strategic objectives and how this assurance is achieved. It also identifies areas that
require improvement (detailed below in Significant Governance Issues).
Assurance Required:















Delivery of Council
Plan
Communication of
Performance
Financial
Management
including
compliance with
CIPFA’s Financial
Management Code
Value for Money
Effective action
against service
failure
Members and
Officers working
effectively together
High standards
Transparency
Risk Management
Public Accountability
High ethical
standards from
members and
officers

Source of Assurance:














Constitution
Senior Management
Team
MTFP
Financial
Regulations
Procurement rules
Organisational
Development
Strategy
Information
Management
Strategy
ICT & Digital
Strategy
Health & Safety
Policy
Risk Management
Policy
Internal and
External Audit
Audit Committee
Scrutiny
Committees

Assurance Received:










Statement of
Accounts
External Audit
Internal Audit
Risk Registers
Scrutiny Reviews
Annual Review of
Constitution
Audit Committee
reviews
Service reviews
External Assurance
and advice
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The Council Plan
The Council Plan was launched in the summer of 2019 with a vision for North East
Derbyshire as “a place that is clean and attractive, a place where people are proud
to live and work, a place where people will prosper and a place where people will feel
safe, happy and healthy”.
Our values are:
 To be honest, open and accountable
 To treat everyone fairly and with respect
 To listen, involve and respond
 To embrace change and innovation
Our Aims are:
 Enhancing our residents’ quality of life
 Protecting and promoting the character of our District
 Delivering high quality cost effective services by
engaging with our residents, our partners and our staff
 Growing our local economy and being a business
friendly district.

Performance Management
We perform regular monitoring and reporting in line with the Council Plan and ensure
that we are transparent with the key performance measures we put in place. Each
year we undertake to review our delivery through the Council’s performance
management framework against the plan and report these findings.
As detailed above, the Council has four strategic aims designed to deliver this vision
through priorities that cover the life of the Council Plan.
The successful achievement of the Council’s agreed priorities and targets is key to
both ensuring effective delivery of services to local residents, whilst providing a
sustainable future for the Council.
The Council is also keen to keep both the Carbon Reduction Plan and Digital Strategy
high on the agenda along with work which has commenced on a Growth and
Industrial Strategy.
Risk
The longer term sustainability of both our service delivery and the Council’s financial
position are protected by Corporate, Service and Financial Plans which cover a four
year period. These are supported by a Risk Management Strategy and associated
framework which identifies and mitigates the Strategic and Operational risks which
could hinder or prevent our plans being achieved.
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Our organisation is risk aware rather than risk averse as the decision whether to
accept risk has to be taken in light of the potential benefits of a proposed course of
action. The extent to which the Council is risk averse, will undoubtedly impact on its
potential to progress available opportunities to secure benefits for local residents.
The Risk Management approach, both in the identification of risks and the action
taken to address the risks, is flexible and has the ability to respond to change.
National policies, service delivery arrangements, national and local circumstances,
together with Council priorities have and will continue to change and evolve over time.
The Council’s Risk Management focus and arrangements are able to adjust in order
to ensure that current threats and opportunities are effectively addressed and not
stifled by inappropriate risk management arrangements.
Although the Council can do much to manage the risks it faces, it does need to be
recognised that some of the major Strategic Risks are only partially within its direct
influence. Key risks included in the Strategic Risk Register at present are:


The requirement to adapt to legislative change which may require additional
or enhanced services, may reduce the financial resources available to the
Council, or may impact on our ability to provide services which meet local
needs.



We are required to manage the ongoing impact of budget pressures which
need to be carefully managed to mitigate the impact on service provision, to
ensure we balance the budget whilst maintaining effective governance and
internal control arrangements.



Our ability to attract and retain the staff required to operate an effective Council
and the impact of the financial environment or external circumstances having
an adverse effect on staff morale.



The direct or indirect impact of wider factors such as economic recession upon
local communities, the loss of a major employer, or an Emergency Plan issue.



The risk of operational service failure which has an impact on the local
community and the Council’s ability to secure its corporate objectives.



Failure to have robust comprehensive and up to date policies and procedures
for safeguarding children and vulnerable adults.



Impact of HS2 and the electrification of the Midland Main Line on the
environment, heritage, communities and businesses.



The risk of overstretched or reduced organisational capacity in delivery of the
Council’s Agenda as this is dependent upon effective delivery of both a
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number of major initiatives / projects and implementing a range of new
government reforms whilst maintaining service quality.


Lack of strategic direction from Members / Corporate Management, external
partners change Strategic direction.



Failure to maintain effective governance arrangements including
Performance, Finance and Risk Management in order to continue to operate
effectively in a rapidly changing environment.



Failure to address the impact of COVID-19 upon the organisation, local
economy and community



The risk of Cyber security attack which severely impacts ICT systems and
data. E.g. Ransomware attack rendering access to ICT unavailable for some
time.

Decision making
The Council consists of 53 elected members with a Cabinet of lead members who
are supported by scrutiny committees. As a result of the pandemic, temporary
regulations were laid down allowing for member meetings to be held virtually for most
of the year. This worked well and ensured that meetings could still be held and also
accessed by the public. In addition, temporary emergency delegations were put in
place to ensure that Council business could continue.
The Council has a formal Constitution in place which sets out how it operates, how
decisions are made and the procedures for ensuring that the organisation is efficient,
transparent and accountable to local people. It contains the basic rules that govern
the Council’s business and a section on responsibility for functions which may be
exercised by officers. It also contains the rules, protocols and codes of practice under
which the Council, its members and officers operate.
In March 2020, the Council approved a report to implement a new management
structure. This provided for the disestablishment of the Chief Executive officer post
and for a review of future senior management arrangements after 6 months. This
review was partially carried out and it was confirmed that the Council should continue
without a Chief Executive officer. The rest of the review into the senior management
structure has been delayed by the Covid 19 pandemic and the need to assist the
community in these difficult times and to deal with other emergency planning issues
related to the pandemic. The review has recommenced and is expected to be
concluded during 2021.
The Constitution is available on the Council’s website and is reviewed annually
through the Standards Committee and Annual Council. The Constitution sets out the
functions of key governance officers, including statutory posts of Head of Paid
Service (Director of Corporate Resources), Monitoring Officer (Head of Corporate
Governance) and Section 151 Officer (Head of Finance and Resources) and explains
the role of these officers in ensuring that processes are in place for enabling the
Council to meet its statutory obligations and also for providing advice to members,
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officers and committees on staff management, financial, legal and ethical governance
issues.
Compliance with the Financial Management Code
CIPFA’s Financial Management Code is designed to support good practice in
financial management and to assist local authorities in demonstrating their financial
sustainability. The code focuses on value for money, governance and financial
management styles, financial resilience and financial sustainability. It identifies the
risks to financial sustainability and introduces an overarching framework of assurance
which builds on existing financial management good practice. The Code is structured
around seven areas of focus:








The Responsibilities of the Chief Finance Officer and Leadership team
Governance and Financial Management style
Medium to Long-term Financial Management
The Annual Budget
Stakeholder Engagement and Business Cases
Financial Performance Monitoring
External Financial Reporting

Demonstrating compliance with the Code is a collective responsibility of the Elected
Members, the Chief Finance Officer and the Senior Management Team. In doing this
the statutory role of the Section 151 Officer will not only be recognised but also
supported, to achieve the combination of leadership roles essential for good financial
management.
This year was a “shadow” year for the Code, 2021/22 is the first full year of
compliance. As a step towards ensuring compliance, the Council’s Internal Audit
Consortium carried out an audit during 2020. The scope was to ascertain the levels
of compliance and identify any gaps to enable full implementation. The audit
concluded that there is already substantial compliance with the Code requirements.
A small number of recommendations were raised which are being implemented
during 2021/22 and have been included in the Governance action plan below.
The Chief Financial Officer remains responsible for the proper administration of the
Council’s financial affairs, as required by Section 151 of the Local Government Act
1972. Our financial management arrangements are compliant with the governance
requirements set out in the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy’s
“Statement on the Role of the Chief Financial Officer in Local Government (2016)”
The Council’s Chief Financial Officer is a full member of the Strategic Management
Team and is supported by appropriately qualified and experienced staff.
Managing Information
Information is central to the Council and we recognise that we have a responsibility
to safeguard the information we hold and to manage it with care and accountability.
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The Council complies with the Transparency Agenda, Freedom of Information
obligations and the requirements of the General Data Protection Regulations (GDPR)
regarding the collection, use and transfer of personal data with an appropriately
qualified and experienced Data Protection Officer in post.
Assurance from Audit
The Council’s external auditor is Mazars LLP. In accordance with their statutory
requirements, their annual audit includes examining and certifying whether the
financial statements are “true and fair” and assessing our arrangements for securing
value for money in the use of resources. In 2020, Mazars LLP gave an unqualified
audit opinion on both the financial statements and the use of resources.
The Council’s Internal Audit function is provided on a consortium basis and is
independently managed by the Internal Audit Consortium Manager. The Internal
Audit Service is a key means of assurance. It is responsible for reviewing the
adequacy of the controls throughout all areas of the Council and is compliant with the
Public Sector Internal Audit Standards. The Internal Audit function meets the
requirements of the CIPFA Statement on the Role of the Head of Internal Audit (2019)
The Internal Audit Consortium Manager is responsible for the delivery of an annual
audit opinion that can be used by the Council to inform its governance system. The
annual opinion concludes on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the
organisation’s framework of Governance, risk management and control.
The Internal Audit Consortium Manager concludes:
“Although COVID-19 has meant that less internal audit work has been
undertaken than usual during the year, in my opinion, sufficient work has been
completed and assurances ascertained to be able to provide an unlimited
opinion on the systems of governance, risk management and control in place.
As well as internal audit work assurance has also been gained from previous
years’ work, the work of the Risk Management Group, PSN compliance,
external audit and compliance with the Code of Corporate Governance.
In my opinion reasonable assurance can be provided on the overall adequacy
and effectiveness of the council’s framework for governance, risk management
and control for the year ended 2020/21.
Assurance can never be absolute. In this context “reasonable assurance”
means that arrangements are in place to manage key risks and to meet good
governance principles, but there are some areas where improvements are
required.
Overall, 100% of the areas audited received Substantial or Reasonable
Assurance demonstrating that there are effective systems of governance, risk
management and control in place. “
The Role of the Audit Committee
The Audit and Corporate Governance Scrutiny Committee carries out the functions
of an Audit Committee at the Council. The Committee provides independent
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assurance of the adequacy of the risk management framework and the associated
control environment, independent scrutiny of the Council’s financial and non-financial
performance to the extent that it affects the Council’s exposure to risk and weakens
the control environment. It is a statutory requirement and comprises 9 members
appointed annually on a politically balanced basis by the Council. Its main functions
include:






Agreeing the Annual Governance Statement and the Annual
Statement of Accounts
Overseeing Internal Audit’s independence, objectivity,
performance and professionalism and supporting their
effectiveness
Considering the effectiveness of risk management including
risks of fraud, bribery and corruption
Considering the reports of external auditors and inspectors

The effectiveness of the committee is reviewed annually utilising CIPFA’s selfassessment of good practice, specifically aimed at Audit Committees.
Conduct
Our codes of conduct for members and employees clearly set out the standards and
behaviour required. They are regularly reviewed and updated as required and both
members and staff are periodically reminded of the requirements.
These include the need for members to register personal interests and the
requirements for employees and members concerning gifts and hospitality, outside
commitments and personal interests.
Whistleblowing
People who work for or with the Council are often the first to realise that there may
be something wrong within. However, they may feel unable to express their concerns
for various reasons, including the fear of victimisation. The Council has a
Whistleblowing Policy that advises staff and others who work for us how to raise
concerns about activities in the workplace. This is reviewed annually by the
Standards Committee who also consider any entries on the whistleblowing register
for the preceding 12 months. A copy of the policy can be found on the Council’s
website.
Anti-Fraud and Corruption
We recognise that as well as causing financial loss, fraud and corruption also
detrimentally impact on service provision and morale and undermine confidence in
the Council’s governance arrangements and that of public bodies generally.
There is little evidence that the incidence of fraud is a major issue for the Council but
the risk is increasing nationally. The Council has a zero tolerance approach to AntiFraud and Corruption.
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Significant Governance Issues
The progress made during 2020/21 on the significant issues identified in the
2019/20 Annual Governance Statement is shown below:
Issue Identified
Pressure on the Council’s Budget.

Mitigation

Efficiencies of £4.5m need to identified
by March 2024 as identified in the
Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP)

The Council has a track record of
achieving savings. Delays to the
Government’s funding and business
rates reviews also aids the position.
The Council has developed a
Transformation Programme which
includes measures to deliver the
efficiency gains necessary to operate
within its underlying level of resources.
This includes income generation and
business re-design opportunities. The
achievement of these efficiencies is
monitored on a regular basis by
Cabinet and the day to day work is
undertaken by the Transformation
Governance Group.

Failure to adopt a Local Plan

The Council’s draft Local Plan is at an
advanced stage in its Examination
process. Reasonable steps have been
taken to ensure that it is based on
sound evidence and meets procedural
and legal requirements. This has
included taking external legal advice
both before and during the
Examination.
A comprehensive service review was
undertaken during the year and good
progress made with recruitment.
Increased statutory duties arising from
Coronavirus regulations has been
managed well and delivered effectively.

Failure of the Local Plan to progress to
submission stage and to be found
sound at independent examination.

Improvement in the Performance of
our Environmental Health Service
.

Anti-Money Laundering Policy

Refreshed during 2020/21
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Based on our review of the Governance Framework, the following issues will be
addressed in 2021/22:
Issue Identified
Pressure on the Council’s Budget.
Efficiencies of £5.2m need to be identified by March 2025 as identified in the
Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP). The impact of the funding settlement will
have a significant bearing on this in future years.
Failure to adopt a Local Plan
Failure of the Local Plan to be found sound at independent examination
Compliance with the Financial Management Code
The compliance audit identified a small number of recommendations to be
implemented:
1. That the Monitoring Officer ensures the Council’s Local Code of Corporate
Governance is approved annually
2. That the S151 officer maintains an overview of current benchmarking
arrangements and adopts a methodology that can demonstrate the
Council’s financial resilience has been assessed in future years
3. That a further audit of risk management be undertaken
Covid 19
Continue to assess and address the impact of Covid 19 upon the organisation,
local economy and community
In House Recycling Collection Service
Continue to assess effectiveness and value for money of in house service
Cyber Security
To keep under review the arrangements in place to manage the increased risk of
cyber security attacks especially in light of more agile working arrangements.
These issues will be supported by a detailed action plan, progress which will be
monitored during 2021/22 and reported to senior management and to the
Audit Committee.
No other major changes to the Council’s governance framework are planned for
2020/21, but we will continue to review and adapt it to ensure that the
Framework remains proportionate to the risks that are faced.
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Opinion
We have been advised on the implications of the result of the review of the
effectiveness of the governance framework by the Cabinet and the Standards
and Audit Committee, and that the arrangements continue to be regarded as fit
for purpose in accordance with the governance framework. The areas identified
for improvement form part of the Annual Governance Statement action plan.
We propose over the coming year to take steps to address the above matters to
further enhance our governance arrangements. We are satisfied that these steps
will address the need for improvements that were identified in our review of
effectiveness and will monitor their implementation and operation as part of our
next annual review.

Lee Hickin
Director of Corporate Resources
(Head of Paid Service)

Cllr Alex Dale
Leader of the Council

North East Derbyshire District Council Statement of Accounts 2020/21
165
Page 323

ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT
Appendix 1
Coronavirus Pandemic – The Council’s Response
Coronavirus was categorised as a pandemic by the World Health Organisation on 11
March 2020. None of the Council’s previously mentioned spending plans included a
contingency for dealing with the outbreak of a pandemic.

Impact on Our Services
In March 2020 all Council services were prioritised in line with the Council’s Business
Continuity Plan in anticipation of the Government’s reponse to the pandemic.
Throughout the whole of 2020/21 the Council has operated under business continuity
arrangements to a greater or lesser extent, closely following Government guidelines.
All year staff who could work from home did so and the major agile working exercise
continued, first providing then improving facilities as quickly as possible to office
based staff. Frontline services such as waste collection have continued to be fully
operational throughout. Even though at times these services have been under
significant pressure, neither sickness nor self isolation have resulted in any reduction
or failure in service delivery.
Many additional services have also been provided in direct response to the pandemic.
This included increased statutory responsibilities for regulatory services and the
delivery of large scale grant and relief schemes.
Temporary Coronavirus Regulations were laid down by the Government allowing for
member meetings to be held virtually for most of the year. In addition, temporary
emergency delegations were put in place to ensure that Council business could
continue.
Impact on Our Finances
During the year the main impact on the budget was the Covid 19 pandemic which
inevitably had a detrimental impact on the Council’s financial position. Whilst
additional costs were incurred as a result of the pandemic the main pressure came
from lost income from fees and charges, predominantly within leisure services but
also from other services such as MOT testing.
Covid Response grant funding has been received from the Government during the
year to aid the continued delivery of council services. In addition the Government
have compensated for a proportion of the income lost from fees and charges, such
as leisure centre income. This has meant that the additional pressures have not
needed to be met from General Fund balances. Ongoing pressures arising from the
Covid pandemic will continue to be met from this grant.
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Support in the Community
The Council was keen to provide support to the Community right from the outset and
we have received many calls and letters of thanks for our response and support
especially during the early months of the pandemic. The support we offered was
diverse and extensive, some of which is listed below and we are proud to have been
able to play our part in serving our community:


At the start of the first lockdown, we registered 6,971 of our most vulnerable
residents with our customer services support team and provided regular
communication, signposting and support to them throughout the numerous
lockdowns. We have remained in contact throughout the year providing help
and support where we can.



We provided food parcels to those in urgent need, with food supplies being
provided from local supermarkets as well as Parish Council collection and
donation points. Surplus donations were given to local foodbanks to
supplement their existing stocks.



We performed 10,869 pharmacy deliveries to ensure that the most vulnerable
residents received the medication that they needed



We delivered copies of the local newspaper to vulnerable and isolated
residents during lockdown to held with social inclusion



Our Environmental Health team has played a pivotal role throughout not only
delivering the additional statutory duties required under Coronavirus
Regulations but also dealing with the increased number of nuisance
complaints whilst people were forced to stay at home. Noise nuisance
complaints increased by 72% during the year and smoke nuisance by 257%.
Environmental enforcement has also been incredibly active as significant
increases in fly tipping was reported.



Our website has been frequently updated with the latest links to national
coronavirus information for residents. Information about the NHS test and
trace system has also been provided, alerting people via social media and our
website to the scams taking place around the NHS Test and Trace system.



We supported our residents and businesses by launching a campaign
highlighting the benefits of shopping local, supporting our independent
businesses and growing our economy.



To financially support businesses and individuals, the Government introduced
a number of grant and relief schemes. A council tax hardship scheme was also
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funded and business grants have been provided to small businesses and
those in the retail and hospitality sector and relief from business rates has also
been awarded. The Council has administered and distributed almost £40m in
grants and reliefs during the year.


Sharley Park Leisure Centre became one of the first large scale vaccination
centres in the County, offering the vital vaccine to our local residents.

The Council’s Plan for Recovery
The impact of the pandemic on the District will be felt for some time to come. Health
and wellbeing, employment, education and housing have all been adversely affected.
Both inward and outward facing recovery plans were devised to tackle the specific
impact on council services (inward) and the role we will play in the recovery of the
wider community (outward). These continue to be regularly reviewed and updated as
we continue on the road to recovery.
Business as usual services have continued throughout and whilst the pandemic has
inevitably resulted in some delays there have been no major changes to our long term
priorities and plans.
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Agenda Item 7b
North East Derbyshire District Council
Audit and Corporate Governance Scrutiny Committee
22 September 2021
North East Derbyshire District Council –Assessment of Going Concern 2020/21
Report of the Head of Finance and Resources
Classification:

This report is public

Report By:

Jayne Dethick, Head of Finance and Resources

Contact Officer:

as above

_____________________________________________________________________
PURPOSE/SUMMARY
To inform the Committee of an assessment of the Council as a ‘going concern’ for the
purposes of producing the 2020/21 accounts.
_____________________________________________________________________
RECOMMENDATIONS

1.

That the Audit and Corporate Governance Scrutiny Committee accepts the
outcome of the Council’s Section 151 Officer’s assessment of the Council’s
‘going concern’ status for the purpose of preparing the Statement of Accounts for
2020/21.

Approved by the Portfolio Holder – Yes
_____________________________________________________________________
IMPLICATIONS
Finance and Risk

Yes

No 

There are no additional financial implications arising from this report.
On Behalf of the Section 151 Officer
Legal including Data Protection

Yes 

No

The process has been undertaken in accordance with the requirements of the Accounts
and Audit Regulations. It should be noted that following a Government consultation
exercise, this year the Council is required to complete and approve the audited
Statement of Accounts by the 30 September 2021.
On Behalf of the Solicitor to the Council
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Staffing

Yes

No 

There are no staffing issues arising directly from this report.
On Behalf of the Head of Paid Service
_____________________________________________________________________
DECISION INFORMATION
Is the decision a Key Decision?
N/A
A Key Decision is an executive decision
which has a significant impact on two or
more District wards or which results in
income or expenditure to the Council above
the following thresholds:
BDC:
Revenue - £75,000 
Capital - £150,000 
NEDDC: Revenue - £100,000 
Capital - £250,000 
 Please indicate which threshold applies
Is the decision subject to Call-In?
(Only Key Decisions are subject to Call-In)

N/A

Has the relevant Portfolio Holder been Yes
informed
District Wards Affected
All
Links to Corporate Plan priorities or All
Policy Framework

_____________________________________________________________________
REPORT DETAILS
1

Background

1.1

The statement of accounts are audited by the Council’s external auditors, Mazars
LLP who provide an opinion with regard to the quality or integrity of the financial
information, including the principal of ‘going concern’.

2

Details of Proposal or Information
Assessment of Going Concern

2.1

The concept of ‘going concern’ assumes that a Council’s functions and services
will continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. This assumption
underpins the accounts drawn up under the Code of Practice for Local Authority
Accounting and is made because local authorities carry out functions essential to
the local community and are themselves revenue raising bodies (with limits on
their revenue raising powers arising only at the discretion of central government).
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2.2

If a Council was in financial difficulty, the prospects are that alternative
arrangements would be made by central government either for the continuation
of the services it provides or for assistance with the recovery of a deficit over
more than one financial year.

2.3

Where the assessment determines the ‘going concern’ status is not proven,
particular care would be needed in the valuation of assets, as inventories and
property, plant and equipment may not be realisable at their book values and
provisions may be needed for closure costs or redundancies. An inability to
apply the going concern concept would potentially have a fundamental impact on
the financial statements.

2.4

Given the significant reduction in funding for local government in recent years
and the potential threat this poses to the ongoing viability of councils as a
consequence, external auditors continue to place a greater emphasis on local
authorities undertaking an assessment of the ‘going concern’ basis on which they
prepare their financial statements. The current medium term financial plan and
the 2020/21 financial statements reflect an entire year of the ever evolving
circumstances surrounding the Covid19 pandemic and we need to be confident
that we continue to understand and take into account any threats to financial
sustainability. This report sets out the position for the Council and provides
justification for the 2020/21 financial statements being prepared on a ‘going
concern’ basis.

2.5

As with all principal local authorities, the Council is required to compile its
Statement of Accounts in accordance with the Code of Practice on Local
Authority Accounting for 2020/21 (“the Code”). The Code is published by the
Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA). In accordance
with the Code, the Statement of Accounts is prepared each year assuming that
the Council will continue to operate in the foreseeable future and that it is able to
do so within the current and anticipated resources available. By this, it is meant
that the Council will realise its assets and settle its obligations in the normal
course of business.
The Assessment for Going Concern

2.6

The main factors which underpin this assessment are:







The Council’s current financial position;
The Council’s projected financial position;
The Council’s balance sheet;
The Council’s cash flow;
The Council’s governance arrangements;
The regulatory and control environment applicable to the Council as
a local authority.

Each of the above is considered in more detail below.
2.7

The provisions in the 2020/21 Code section 3.4 (Presentation of Financial
Statements) on the going concern accounting requirements, reflect the economic
and statutory environment in which local authorities operate. These provisions
confirm that, as local authorities cannot be created or dissolved without statutory
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prescription, it would not therefore be appropriate for their financial statements to
be prepared on anything other than a going concern basis.
2.8

The requirements to use the going concern basis of accounting mean that
Council’s do not apply paragraph 25 of IAS 1 Presentation of Financial
Statements mandating management to make an assessment of the authority’s
ability to continue as a going concern. However, this reporting requirement is
separate from the need for them to report on the impact of financial pressures in
the Narrative Report and, for example, other relevant liquidity reporting
requirements such as those under the Code’s adoption of IFRS 7 Financial
Instruments: Disclosures.
The Council’s Current Financial Position – Revenue Resources
General Fund

2.9

As reported to Cabinet in July, the General Fund’s Net Cost of Services was
under spent by £0.627m in 2020/21. At 31 March 2021 the Council held a
General Fund Balance of £2.0m and Earmarked Reserves totalling £20.526m.
The Earmarked Reserves balance has increased by £7.103m during the year
largely the result of Covid related grants. The adequacy of reserves and balances
and the ongoing requirement for specified earmarked reserves, is reviewed on a
regular basis.
Housing Revenue Account (HRA)

2.10 The financial performance in 2020/21 resulted in a net under spend of £0.016m
on the HRA revenue budget. As at 31 March 2021 the Council held an HRA
Balance of £3m which was in line with the revised budget. HRA Earmarked
Reserves totalling £34.677m were held and the net reserve movement during
2020/21 was an increase of £1.342m. The level of adequate reserves and
balances and the ongoing requirement for specified earmarked reserves, is
reviewed on an annual basis. The HRA has a 30 year Business Plan which is
showing as affordable with the required estimated resources available to meet
the plan.
2.11 The Head of Finance and Resources (Section 151 Officer) is therefore satisfied
that the Council’s 2020/21 financial outturn for both General Fund and HRA, does
not present any material uncertainties regarding the Council’s ability to continue
as a going concern.
Covid-19
2.12 During the year, the main impact on the budget was the Covid 19 pandemic
which inevitably had an impact on the Council’s financial position. Whilst
additional costs were incurred as a result of the pandemic the main pressure
came from lost income from fees and charges, predominately within the leisure
centres. In addition, whilst not income foregone like fees and charges, collection
rates for local taxation were also lower in 2020/21. These pressures have been
met from the Covid grant received from the Government so no additional burden
has been placed on the budget. Support was also received from the sales fees
and charges compensation scheme where the Government reimbursed 75% of
lost income on fees and charges as a direct result of Covid. Support packages
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have also been put in place to assist with council tax and business rates. These
schemes allow council tax and business rates collection fund deficits to be repaid
over three years instead of one and there is also a scheme to compensate for
lost income when compared to pre Covid forecasts. These measures provide
management with the confidence that the Council will be able to manage the
financial challenge of Covid in the medium term.
The Council’s Projected Financial Position – Revenue Resources
2.13 The financial projection for 2021/22 to 2024/25 was approved by Members in
January 2021 in the Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP). The Council set a
balanced budget for 2021/22. The requirement to achieve financial savings over
the medium term was 2022/23 £1.055m; 2023/24 £1.855m and 2024/25
£2.610m.
2.14 To help mitigate losses caused by changes in Government funding and wider
budget pressures the Council has established a Resilience Reserve in the MTFP.
Un-ring fenced surpluses are accrued in this reserve and accumulated balances
will be utilised to even out the government funding losses and other identified
budget pressures over the life of the current MTFP. The balance on this reserve
currently stands at £2.320m.
2.15 The Council’s Section 151 Officer made a formal statement in January 2021 as
part of the approval on the robustness of estimates and the adequacy of
reserves, as contained within the Medium Term Financial Plan. The underlying
assumptions within this plan have been reviewed and at this stage remain in
place. Performance continues to be reviewed through robust budget
management and will be updated as part of the mid-year review. The medium
term financial planning process will fully challenge the assumptions and
estimates and refresh the position accordingly. At this stage the S151 Officer is
satisfied that the Council’s forecast financial position does not present any
material uncertainties regarding the Council’s ability to continue as a going
concern.
The Council’s Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2021
2.16 The Council’s net assets amounted to £240m and Usable Reserves totalled
£69m. There are no material liabilities or underlying issues regarding the strength
of the Council’s balance sheet which present any material uncertainties regarding
the Council’s ability to continue as a going concern.
The Council’s Cash Flow
2.17 The Council maintains short and long term cash flow projections, and manages
its cash, investments and borrowing in line with the Council approved Treasury
Management Strategy. As at the 31 March 2021 the Council has long term
borrowing commitments of £147m and held £39m in Cash and Cash Equivalents.
The Council has adequate financial resources to meet its immediate financial
obligations. There are no significant issues regarding the strength of the
Council’s underlying cash flow which present any material uncertainties regarding
the Council’s ability to continue as a going concern.
The Council’s Governance Arrangements
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2.18 The Council has a well-established and robust corporate governance framework.
This includes the statutory posts of Head of Paid Service, Monitoring Officer and
Section 151 officer in addition to the current political arrangements. An overview
of this governance framework is provided within The Annual Governance
Statement.
2.19 Whilst it is not possible to provide absolute assurance, the review process as
outlined in the Annual Governance Statement does conclude that the existing
arrangements remain fit for purpose and help provide reasonable assurance of
their effectiveness. There are no plans for the Council to be reorganised or
dissolved and we expect to operate under the current framework in the near
future. There are no significant issues regarding the Council’s governance
framework which present any material uncertainties regarding the Council’s
ability to continue as a going concern
The External Regulatory and Control Environment
2.20 As a principal local authority the Council has to operate within a highly legislated
and controlled environment. An example of this is the requirement for a balanced
budget each year combined with the legal requirement for the Council to have
regard to consideration of such matters as the robustness of budget estimates
and the adequacy of reserves. In addition to the legal framework and central
government control there are other factors such as the role undertaken by the
external auditor as well as the statutory requirement in some cases for
compliance with best practice and guidance published by CIPFA and other
relevant bodies.
2.21 The provisions in the Code on the going concern requirements reflect the
economic and statutory environment in which local authorities operate. There
are no significant issues regarding the external regulatory and control
environment which present any material uncertainties regarding the Council’s
ability to continue as a going concern.
Material Uncertainties
2.22 The Council is aware that there is a requirement to consider any material
uncertainties which would impact on the Councils ability to continue as a going
concern.
2.23 Economic uncertainty and difficulties in attaching weight to previous market
evidence for comparison has impacted on valuers being able to inform opinions
of value at 31 March 2021. In accordance with the Council’s actuary and in
common with other local authorities the valuation of the Pension Fund property
investment assets have been reported by the valuer on the basis of ‘material
valuation uncertainty’ as per the requirements of the VPGA 10 of the RICS Red
Book Global. These valuations therefore have less certainty and should be
viewed with a higher degree of caution than what would normally be the case.
This has been disclosed in the 2020/21 accounts for completeness, as under the
Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting these assets are required to be
disclosed at valuation. There is a statutory override in place though which means
that any valuation movements do not affect the cost to tax payers or useable
reserves. There are no indications that this presents a significant medium term
issue for the Council.
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2.24 There are no material uncertainties which, under the Code of Practice on Local
Authority Accounting framework, represent significant issues regarding the
Council’s ability to continue as a going concern.

3

Reasons for Recommendation

3.1

It is considered that having regard to the Council’s arrangements and such
factors as highlighted in this report that there are no material uncertainties
regarding the Council’s status as a ‘going concern’ and the Council’s accounts for
2020/21 have appropriately been prepared on this basis. This report gives that
assessment by the Council’s Section 151 Officer in support of presenting the
Accounts for approval and provides assurance to the Audit and Corporate
Governance Scrutiny Committee and Mazars, the Council’s external auditor.

4

Alternative Options and Reasons for Rejection

4.1
There are no alternative options for consideration.
_____________________________________________________________________
DOCUMENT INFORMATION
Appendix No

Title

Background Papers (These are unpublished works which have been relied
on to a material extent when preparing the report. They must be listed in the
section below. If the report is going to Cabinet (NEDDC) or Executive (BDC)
you must provide copies of the background papers)
Report Author

Contact Number

Jayne Dethick – Head of Finance and Resources

(01246) 217078
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Agenda Item 8a
North East Derbyshire District Council
Audit and Corporate Governance Scrutiny Committee
22 September 2021
North East Derbyshire District Council – Annual Governance Statement 2020/21
Report of the Head of Corporate Governance and Monitoring Officer
Classification:

This report is public

Report By:

Sarah Sternberg, Head of Corporate Governance and Monitoring
Officer

Contact Officer:

as above

_____________________________________________________________________
PURPOSE/SUMMARY
 To seek the agreement of the Audit and Corporate Governance Scrutiny
Committee to the conclusions and content of the Annual Governance Statement
which it is proposed to incorporate within the Council’s Statement of Accounts for
2018/19.
 To review the Local Code of Corporate Governance.
 To increase awareness of Governance issues amongst Members and Employees
of the Council and more generally amongst all stakeholders.

_____________________________________________________________________
RECOMMENDATIONS
1.

That the Audit and Corporate Governance Scrutiny Committee consider the draft
Annual Governance Statement as set out in Appendix 1 and make any
observations or recommendations which they consider to be appropriate prior to
the final version being incorporated within the Council’s Statement of Accounts.

2.

That the Audit and Corporate Governance Scrutiny Committee approve the local
Code of Corporate Governance as set out in Appendix 2.

3.

That the Audit and Corporate Governance Scrutiny Committee having reviewed
the effectiveness of the Governance Framework are satisfied that the Council’s
governance and internal control arrangements are fit for purpose.

4.

That delegated powers are granted to the Chief Financial Officer in consultation
with the Chair or Deputy Chair of the Audit and Corporate Governance Scrutiny
Committee to agree any changes which may be necessary in order to ensure the
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finalisation of the external audit currently being concluded by the Council’s
external auditors Mazars to ensure completion of the Statement of Accounts by
the statutory deadline of 30 September 2021.
Approved by the Portfolio Holder – Yes
_____________________________________________________________________
IMPLICATIONS
Finance and Risk

Yes

No 

There are no additional financial implications arising from this report.
Effective governance arrangements for local authorities are crucial if authorities are to
meet the standards of accountability, integrity, consumer focus, democratic engagement
and organisational effectiveness that are expected of them. The preparation of the
Annual Governance Statement is one of the mechanisms that helps ensure that
effective governance arrangements are in place. The gross impact of not having
effective Governance arrangements in place would be significant with the CIPFA /
SOLACE guidance taking the view that effective governance lies at the heart of a
Council’s managerial, performance and financial arrangements. The Governance
Statement and supporting documentation do, however, demonstrate that the Council
has in place a range of processes and procedures which taken together amount to a
culture of effective governance. While there remain a limited number of significant
individual issues that need to be addressed and resolved to improve the Council’s
Governance arrangements the overall framework is sound and provides an appropriate
base from which to address the individual issues identified within this report.

On Behalf of the Section 151 Officer
Legal including Data Protection

Yes 

No

The requirement to include an Annual Governance Statement within the Council’s
Statement of Accounts is set out within the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 and
associated best practice. The processes outlined in the report should be sufficient to
ensure that the Council’s Governance Statement together with the Local Code of
Corporate Governance meets the requirements of both the relevant legislation and
associated good practice.
On Behalf of the Solicitor to the Council
Staffing

Yes

No 

There are no staffing issues arising directly from this report.
On Behalf of the Head of Paid Service
_____________________________________________________________________
DECISION INFORMATION

Page 335

Is the decision a Key Decision?
N/A
A Key Decision is an executive decision
which has a significant impact on two or
more District wards or which results in
income or expenditure to the Council above
the following thresholds:
BDC:
Revenue - £75,000 
Capital - £150,000 
NEDDC: Revenue - £100,000 
Capital - £250,000 
 Please indicate which threshold applies
Is the decision subject to Call-In?
(Only Key Decisions are subject to Call-In)

N/A

Has the relevant Portfolio Holder been Yes
informed
District Wards Affected
All
Links to Corporate Plan priorities or All
Policy Framework

_____________________________________________________________________
REPORT DETAILS
1

Annual Governance Statement and Code of Corporate Governance

1.1

As part of its Statement of Accounts the Council is required to include an Annual
Governance Statement. Preparation of the Statement needs to be undertaken in
line with the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) /
Society of Local Authority Chief Executives and Senior Managers (SOLACE)
framework which sets out the fundamental principle of corporate governance that
need to be addressed. The CIPFA / SOLACE Framework sets out the following
core principles which Authorities should follow:
 Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to ethical values,
and respecting the rule of law.
 Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder agreement.
 Defining outcomes in terms of sustainable economic, social and environmental
benefits.
 Determining the interventions necessary to optimise the achievement of the
intended outcomes.
 Developing the entity’s capacity including the capability of its leadership and
the individuals within it
 Managing risks and performance through robust internal control and strong
public financial management
 Implementing good practices in transparency, reporting and audit to deliver
effective accountability
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One of the main purposes of the Annual Governance Statement is to assess the
extent to which the above key principles are in place within an authority and are
adhered to in practice. In short it is an annual assessment process for the
Council’s Governance arrangements. As part of this process the Audit and
Corporate Governance Scrutiny Committee will also be requested to give
consideration to the Council’s updated Code of Corporate Governance.
1.2

A key principle for CIPFA/SOLACE is that the Annual Governance Statement
together with the Code of Corporate Governance are corporate documents,
which must be owned by the whole organisation. Some key principles which are
set out in the Code are as follows:




The key focus of the governance structures should be the attainment of
sustainable economic, societal and environmental outcomes.
Local authorities must focus on the long term having responsibilities to more
than their current electors as they must take into account the impact of current
decisions and actions on future generations.
Local Authorities should assess their Governance structures and partnerships
on at least an annual basis reporting publicly on compliance

1.4

The Draft Annual Governance Statement for consideration and approval by this
Committee is attached as Appendix 1. While it is anticipated that the version
considered by the Audit and Corporate Governance Scrutiny Committee will
effectively be the final version of the Annual Governance Statement there may be
a requirement to make some final changes before the Statement of Accounts is
authorised for issue by the Chief Financial Officer. It is therefore recommended
that delegated powers be given to the Chief Financial Officer in consultation with
the Chair or Deputy Chair of this Committee to agree any final changes. It
should be noted that the only changes that will be made under these delegated
powers will relate to amendments agreed with the Council’s external auditors
Mazars.

1.5

The preparation of the draft Annual Governance Statement takes place at the
same time as the review of the Council’s Local Code of Corporate Governance.
The Code of Corporate Governance is attached at Appendix 2 to this report for
consideration by the Audit and Corporate Governance Scrutiny Committee.
Included as an Appendix within the Code of Corporate Governance is an
assessment of the arrangements which were operational within the Council
during the 2020/21 financial year. That Appendix is extracted from the CIPFA /
SOLACE framework and provides a benchmark against which to assess the
policies, procedures and behaviours which are in place at the Council. That
review supports the assessment that the Council is operating in line with good
practice and that the areas where improvement is required are those identified by
the work of Internal Audit and SAMT. Officers are of the view that this work
serves to satisfy the requirement that a comprehensive assessment of the
Council’s governance arrangements be undertaken and ensure compliance with
the requirement to undertake an annual review of the system of internal control.

1.6

While the evidence from the structured assessment that
demonstrates that appropriate procedures and processes
be noted that there remain a small number of issues of
where further work is necessary if we are to continue to

has been undertaken
are in place, it should
corporate governance
comply with the good
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governance requirement. The issues that have been identified as a result of the
work of external review (including external audit), internal audit, and the routine
work of the Council’s own officers will be addressed throughout the year through
the performance management framework and reported to this Committee.
1.7

In addition to the assessment contained within the Code of Governance given in
Appendix 2, there is at Appendix 3 a further benchmarking exercise between the
CIPFA / SOLACE Code and the draft Annual Governance Statement. The results
of this benchmarking confirm the assessment that the Council meets the
requirements in respect of the Annual Governance Statement.

1.8

Finally, Appendix 4 is the draft memo from this Committee (to be signed by the
Chair) the Chief Financial Officer and Monitoring Officer to the Leader and Head
of Paid Service which recommends that the Annual Governance Statement gives
a true and fair view of the position within the Authority, and that accordingly it
would be reasonable for them to sign the Statement off on behalf of the Council.

2

Reasons for Recommendation

2.1

To enable the Audit and Corporate Governance Scrutiny Committee to assess
the appropriateness of the draft Annual Governance Statement and to make
recommendations concerning any amendments which they consider appropriate.

3

Alternative Options and Reasons for Rejection

3.1
There are no alternative options for consideration.
_____________________________________________________________________
DOCUMENT INFORMATION
Appendix No

Title

1
2
3
4

Annual Governance Statement 2020/21
Updated Code of Governance
AGS Assessment against CIPFA Code
AGS Memorandum

Background Papers (These are unpublished works which have been relied
on to a material extent when preparing the report. They must be listed in the
section below. If the report is going to Cabinet (NEDDC) or Executive (BDC)
you must provide copies of the background papers)
Report Author

Contact Number

Sarah Sternberg – Head of Corporate Governance &
Monitoring Officer

(01246) 242414
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Introduction
The Council sets out our vision for the next four years in the Council Plan 2019 2023:
North East Derbyshire is:





Clean and attractive
A place where people are proud to live and work
A place where people will prosper
A place where people will feel safe, happy and healthy

The Council’s core business is to provide good quality services fit for the 21 st
Century. We will do this by transforming our services whilst ensuring our
residents receive value for money for the council tax they pay.
This Annual Governance Statement reviews arrangements in place for the
financial year 2020/21. The Coronavirus pandemic has impacted significantly on
the Council this year and the impact on our services and our response is
addressed at Appendix 1.

The Annual Governance Statement
The Council has approved and adopted a code of corporate governance, which is
consistent with the principles of the CIPFA /SOLACE Framework Delivering Good
Governance in Local Government Framework 2016 edition.
This Statement explains how the Council has complied with the code for the year
ended 31 March 2021 and also meets the requirements of Accounts and Audit
Regulations 2015.

The Scope of the Council’s Responsibility
North East Derbyshire District Council is responsible for ensuring that its business is
conducted in accordance with the law and proper standards, and that public money
is safeguarded and properly accounted for, and used economically, efficiently and
effectively.
The Council also has a duty under the Local Government Act 1999 to make
arrangements to secure continuous improvement in the way in which its functions
are exercised, having regard to a combination of economy, efficiency and
effectiveness.
In discharging this overall responsibility, the Council is responsible for putting in
place proper arrangements for the governance of its affairs, and for facilitating the
effective exercise of its functions, which includes arrangements for the management
of risk.
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The Purpose of the Governance Framework
The governance framework comprises the systems and processes, culture and
values, by which the authority is directed and controlled, together with those
activities through which it accounts to, engages with and leads the local community.
It enables the Authority to monitor the achievement of its strategic objectives and to
consider whether those objectives have led to the delivery of appropriate cost
effective services.
The system of internal control is a significant part of that framework and is designed
to manage risk to a reasonable level. It cannot eliminate all risk of failure to achieve
policies, aims and objectives and can therefore only provide reasonable and not
absolute assurance of effectiveness.

The Governance Framework
The Governance Framework identifies the assurance needed to meet the Council’s
Strategic objectives and how this assurance is achieved. It also identifies areas that
require improvement (detailed below in Significant Governance Issues).

Assurance Required:















Source of Assurance:

 Constitution
Delivery of Council
 Senior
Plan
Management
Communication of
Team
Performance

MTFP
Financial
 Financial
Management
Regulations
including
 Procurement rules
compliance with
CIPFA’s Financial
 Organisational
Management Code
Development
Strategy
Value for Money
 Information
Effective action
Management
against service
Strategy
failure
 ICT & Digital
Members and
Strategy
Officers working
effectively together
 Health & Safety
Policy
High standards
 Risk Management
Transparency
Policy
Risk Management
 Internal and
Public Accountability
External Audit
High ethical
 Audit Committee
standards from
 Scrutiny
members and
Committees
officers
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Assurance Received:










Statement of
Accounts
External Audit
Internal Audit
Risk Registers
Scrutiny Reviews
Annual Review of
Constitution
Audit Committee
reviews
Service reviews
External Assurance
and advice
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The Council Plan
The Council Plan was launched in the summer of 2019 with a vision for North
East Derbyshire as “a place that is clean and attractive, a place where people
are proud to live and work, a place where people will prosper and a place where
people will feel safe, happy and healthy”.
Our values are:





To
To
To
To

be honest, open and accountable
treat everyone fairly and with respect
listen, involve and respond
embrace change and innovation

Our Aims are:






Enhancing our residents’ quality of life
Protecting and promoting the character of our
District
Delivering high quality cost effective services
by engaging with our residents, our partners
and our staff
Growing our local economy and being a
business friendly district.

Performance Management
We perform regular monitoring and reporting in line with the Council Plan and
ensure that we are transparent with the key performance measures we put in
place. Each year we undertake to review our delivery through the Council’s
performance management framework against the plan and report these findings.
As detailed above, the Council has four strategic aims designed to deliver this
vision through priorities that cover the life of the Council Plan.
The successful achievement of the Council’s agreed priorities and targets is key
to both ensuring effective delivery of services to local residents, whilst providing
a sustainable future for the Council.
The Council is also keen to keep both the Carbon Reduction Plan and Digital
Strategy high on the agenda along with work which has commenced on a Growth
and Industrial Strategy.
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Risk
The longer term sustainability of both our service delivery and the Council’s financial
position are protected by Corporate, Service and Financial Plans which cover a four
year period. These are supported by a Risk Management Strategy and associated
framework which identifies and mitigates the Strategic and Operational risks which
could hinder or prevent our plans being achieved.
Our organisation is risk aware rather than risk averse as the decision whether to
accept risk has to be taken in light of the potential benefits of a proposed course
of action. The extent to which the Council is risk averse, will undoubtedly impact
on its potential to progress available opportunities to secure benefits for local
residents.
The Risk Management approach, both in the identification of risks and the action
taken to address the risks, is flexible and has the ability to respond to change.
National policies, service delivery arrangements, national and local
circumstances, together with Council priorities have and will continue to change
and evolve over time. The Council’s Risk Management focus and arrangements
are able to adjust in order to ensure that current threats and opportunities are
effectively addressed and not stifled by inappropriate risk management
arrangements.
Although the Council can do much to manage the risks it faces, it does need to be
recognised that some of the major Strategic Risks are only partially within its direct
influence. Key risks included in the Strategic Risk Register at present are:


The requirement to adapt to legislative change which may require additional or
enhanced services, may reduce the financial resources available to the Council, or
may impact on our ability to provide services which meet local needs.



We are required to manage the ongoing impact of budget pressures which need to
be carefully managed to mitigate the impact on service provision, to ensure we
balance the budget whilst maintaining effective governance and internal control
arrangements.



Our ability to attract and retain the staff required to operate an effective Council and
the impact of the financial environment or external circumstances having an adverse
effect on staff morale.



The direct or indirect impact of wider factors such as economic recession upon local
communities, the loss of a major employer, or an Emergency Plan issue.



The risk of operational service failure which has an impact on the local community
and the Council’s ability to secure its corporate objectives.



Failure to have robust comprehensive and up to date policies and procedures for
safeguarding children and vulnerable adults.
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Impact of HS2 and the electrification of the Midland Main Line on the environment,
heritage, communities and businesses.



The risk of overstretched or reduced organisational capacity in delivery of the
Council’s Agenda as this is dependent upon effective delivery of both a number of
major initiatives / projects and implementing a range of new government reforms
whilst maintaining service quality.



Lack of strategic direction from Members / Corporate Management, external partners
change Strategic direction.



Failure to maintain effective governance arrangements including Performance,
Finance and Risk Management in order to continue to operate effectively in a rapidly
changing environment.



Failure to address the impact of COVID-19 upon the organisation, local economy and
community



The risk of Cyber security attack which severely impacts ICT systems and data. E.g.
Ransomware attack rendering access to ICT unavailable for some time.

Decision making
The Council consists of 53 elected members with a Cabinet of lead members
who are supported by scrutiny committees. As a result of the pandemic,
temporary regulations were laid down allowing for member meetings to be held
virtually for most of the year. This worked well and ensured that meetings could
still be held and also accessed by the public. In addition, temporary emergency
delegations were put in place to ensure that Council business could continue.
The Council has a formal Constitution in place which sets out how it operates,
how decisions are made and the procedures for ensuring that the organisation is
efficient, transparent and accountable to local people. It contains the basic rules
that govern the Council’s business and a section on responsibility for functions
which may be exercised by officers. It also contains the rules, protocols and
codes of practice under which the Council, its members and officers operate.
In March 2020, the Council approved a report to implement a new management
structure. This provided for the disestablishment of the Chief Executive officer
post and for a review of future senior management arrangements after 6 months.
This review was partially carried out and it was confirmed that the Council should
continue without a Chief Executive officer. The rest of the review into the senior
management structure has been delayed by the Covid 19 pandemic and the
need to assist the community in these difficult times and to deal with other
emergency planning issues related to the pandemic. The review has
recommenced and is expected to be concluded during 2021.
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The Constitution is available on the Council’s website and is reviewed annually
through the Standards Committee and Annual Council. The Constitution sets out
the functions of key governance officers, including statutory posts of Head of
Paid Service (Director of Corporate Resources), Monitoring Officer (Head of
Corporate Governance) and Section 151 Officer (Head of Finance and
Resources) and explains the role of these officers in ensuring that pro cesses are
in place for enabling the Council to meet its statutory obligations and also for
providing advice to members, officers and committees on staff management,
financial, legal and ethical governance issues.

Compliance with the Financial Management Code
CIPFA’s Financial Management Code is designed to support good practice in
financial management and to assist local authorities in demonstrating their financial
sustainability. The code focuses on value for money, governance and financial
management styles, financial resilience and financial sustainability. It identifies the
risks to financial sustainability and introduces an overarching framework of
assurance which builds on existing financial management good practice. The Code
is structured around seven areas of focus:








The Responsibilities of the Chief Finance Officer and Leadership team
Governance and Financial Management style
Medium to Long-term Financial Management
The Annual Budget
Stakeholder Engagement and Business Cases
Financial Performance Monitoring
External Financial Reporting

Demonstrating compliance with the Code is a collective responsibility of the Elected
Members, the Chief Finance Officer and the Senior Management Team. In doing
this the statutory role of the Section 151 Officer will not only be recognised but also
supported, to achieve the combination of leadership roles essential for good financial
management.
This year was a “shadow” year for the Code, 2021/22 is the first full year of
compliance. As a step towards ensuring compliance, the Council’s Internal Audit
Consortium carried out an audit during 2020. The scope was to ascertain the levels
of compliance and identify any gaps to enable full implementation. The audit
concluded that there is already substantial compliance with the Code requirements.
A small number of recommendations were raised which are being implemented
during 2021/22 and have been included in the Governance action plan below.
The Chief Financial Officer remains responsible for the proper administration of
the Council’s financial affairs, as required by Section 151 of the Local
Government Act 1972. Our financial management arrangements are compliant
with the governance requirements set out in the Chartered Institute of Public
Finance and Accountancy’s “Statement on the Role of the Chief Financial Officer
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in Local Government (2016)” The Council’s Chief Financial Officer is a full
member of the Strategic Management Team and is supported by appropriately
qualified and experienced staff.

Managing Information
Information is central to the Council and we recognise that we have a
responsibility to safeguard the information we hold and to manage it with care
and accountability.
The Council complies with the Transparency Agenda, Freedom of Information
obligations and the requirements of the General Data Protection Regulations
(GDPR) regarding the collection, use and transfer of personal data with an
appropriately qualified and experienced Data Protection Officer in post.

Assurance from Audit
The Council’s external auditor is Mazars LLP. In accordance with their statutory
requirements, their annual audit includes examining and certifying whether the
financial statements are “true and fair” and assessing our arrangements for
securing value for money in the use of resources. In 2020, Mazars LLP gave an
unqualified audit opinion on both the financial statements and the use of
resources.
The Council’s Internal Audit function is provided on a consortium basis and is
independently managed by the Internal Audit Consortium Manager. The Internal
Audit Service is a key means of assurance. It is responsible for reviewing the
adequacy of the controls throughout all areas of the Council and is compliant
with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards. The Internal Audit function meets
the requirements of the CIPFA Statement on the Role of the Head of Internal Audit
(2019)
The Internal Audit Consortium Manager is responsible for the delivery of an
annual audit opinion that can be used by the Council to inform its governance
system. The annual opinion concludes on the overall adequacy and effectiveness
of the organisation’s framework of Governance, risk management and control.
The Internal Audit Consortium Manager concludes:
“Although COVID-19 has meant that less internal audit work has been
undertaken than usual during the year, in my opinion, sufficient work has been
completed and assurances ascertained to be able to provide an unlimited
opinion on the systems of governance, risk management and control in place.
As well as internal audit work assurance has also been gained from previous
years’ work, the work of the Risk Management Group, PSN compliance,
external audit and compliance with the Code of Corporate Governance.
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In my opinion reasonable assurance can be provided on the overall adequacy
and effectiveness of the council’s framework for governance, risk
management and control for the year ended 2020/21.
Assurance can never be absolute. In this context “reasonable assurance”
means that arrangements are in place to manage key risks and to meet good
governance principles, but there are some areas where improvements are
required.

Overall, 100% of the areas audited received Substantial or Reasonable
Assurance demonstrating that there are effective systems of governance, risk
management and control in place. “

The Role of the Audit Committee
The Audit and Corporate Governance Scrutiny Committee carries out the
functions of an Audit Committee at the Council. The Committee provides
independent assurance of the adequacy of the risk management framework and
the associated control environment, independent scrutiny of the Council’s
financial and non-financial performance to the extent that it affects the Council’s
exposure to risk and weakens the control environment. It is a statutory
requirement and comprises 9 members appointed annually on a politically
balanced basis by the Council. Its main functions include:






Agreeing the Annual Governance Statement and the Annual
Statement of Accounts
Overseeing Internal Audit’s independence, objectivity,
performance and professionalism and supporting their
effectiveness
Considering the effectiveness of risk management including
risks of fraud, bribery and corruption
Considering the reports of external auditors and inspectors

The effectiveness of the committee is reviewed annually utilising CIPFA’s self assessment of good practice, specifically aimed at Audit Committees.

Conduct
Our codes of conduct for members and employees clearly set out the standards
and behaviour required. They are regularly reviewed and updated as required
and both members and staff are periodically reminded of the requirements.
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These include the need for members to register personal interests and the
requirements for employees and members concerning gifts and hospitality,
outside commitments and personal interests.

Whistleblowing
People who work for or with the Council are often the first to realise that there
may be something wrong within. However, they may feel unable to express their
concerns for various reasons, including the fear of victimisation. The Council has
a Whistleblowing Policy that advises staff and others who work for us how to
raise concerns about activities in the workplace. This is reviewed annually by the
Standards Committee who also consider any entries on the whistleblowing
register for the preceding 12 months. A copy of the policy can be found on the
Council’s website.

Anti-Fraud and Corruption
We recognise that as well as causing financial loss, fraud and corruption also
detrimentally impact on service provision and morale and undermine confidence
in the Council’s governance arrangements and that of public bodies generally.
There is little evidence that the incidence of fraud is a major issue for the Council
but the risk is increasing nationally. The Council has a zero tolerance approach
to Anti-Fraud and Corruption.

Significant Governance Issues
The progress made during 2020/21 on the significant issues identified in the
2019/20 Annual Governance Statement is shown below:
Issue Identified
Pressure on the Council’s Budget.

Mitigation

Efficiencies of £4.5m need to
identified by March 2024 as identified
in the Medium Term Financial Plan
(MTFP)

The Council has a track record of
achieving savings. Delays to the
Government’s funding and business
rates reviews also aids the position.
The Council has developed a
Transformation Programme which
includes measures to deliver the
efficiency gains necessary to operate
within its underlying level of resources.
This includes income generation and
business re-design opportunities. The
achievement of these efficiencies is
monitored on a regular basis by Cabinet
and the day to day work is undertaken
by the Transformation Governance
Group.
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Failure to adopt a Local Plan
Failure of the Local Plan to progress to
submission stage and to be found
sound at independent examination.

Improvement in the Performance of
our Environmental Health Service
.

Anti-Money Laundering Policy

The Council’s draft Local Plan is at an
advanced stage in its Examination
process. Reasonable steps have been
taken to ensure that it is based on
sound evidence and meets procedural
and legal requirements. This has
included taking external legal advice
both before and during the Examination.
A comprehensive service review was
undertaken during the year and good
progress made with recruitment.
Increased statutory duties arising from
Coronavirus regulations has been
managed well and delivered
effectively.
Refreshed during 2020/21

Based on our review of the Governance Framework, the following issues will be
addressed in 2021/22:
Issue Identified
Pressure on the Council’s Budget.
Efficiencies of £5.2m need to be identified by March 2025 as identified in the
Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP). The impact of the funding settlement
will have a significant bearing on this in future years.
Failure to adopt a Local Plan
Failure of the Local Plan to be found sound at independent examination
Compliance with the Financial Management Code
The compliance audit identified a small number of recommendations to be
implemented:
1. That the Monitoring Officer ensures the Council’s Local Code of
Corporate Governance is approved annually
2. That the S151 officer maintains an overview of current benchmarking
arrangements and adopts a methodology that can demonstrate the
Council’s financial resilience has been assessed in future years
3. That a further audit of risk management be undertaken
Covid 19
Continue to assess and address the impact of Covid 19 upon the organisation,
local economy and community
In House Recycling Collection Service
Continue to assess effectiveness and value for money of in house service
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Cyber Security
To keep under review the arrangements in place to manage the increased risk
of cyber security attacks especially in light of more agile working
arrangements.
These issues will be supported by a detailed action plan, progress which will be
monitored during 2021/22 and reported to senior management and to the
Audit Committee.
No other major changes to the Council’s governance framework are planned for
2020/21, but we will continue to review and adapt it to ensure that the
Framework remains proportionate to the risks that are faced.

Opinion
We have been advised on the implications of the result of the review of the
effectiveness of the governance framework by the Cabinet and the Standards
and Audit Committee, and that the arrangements continue to be regarded as fit
for purpose in accordance with the governance framework. The areas identified
for improvement form part of the Annual Governance Statement action plan.
We propose over the coming year to take steps to address the above matters to
further enhance our governance arrangements. We are satisfied that these steps
will address the need for improvements that were identified in our review of
effectiveness and will monitor their implementation and operation as part of our
next annual review.

Lee Hickin

Cllr Alex Dale

Director of Corporate Resources

Leader of the Council

(Head of Paid Service)
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Appendix 1
Coronavirus Pandemic – The Council’s Response
Coronavirus was categorised as a pandemic by the World Health Organisation on 11
March 2020. None of the Council’s previously mentioned spending plans included a
contingency for dealing with the outbreak of a pandemic.

Impact on Our Services
In March 2020 all Council services were prioritised in line with the Council’s Business
Continuity Plan in anticipation of the Government’s reponse to the pandemic.
Throughout the whole of 2020/21 the Council has operated under business
continuity arrangements to a greater or lesser extent, closely following Government
guidelines.
All year staff who could work from home did so and the major agile working exercise
continued, first providing then improving facilities as quickly as possible to office
based staff. Services have continued to function successfully throughout and many
additional services have been provided in direct response to the pandemic. This
included increased statutory responsibilities for regulatory services and the delivery
of large scale grant and relief schemes. Whilst at times services have been under
significant pressure, neither sickness nor self isolation have resulted in a reduction or
failure in services. Personal protective equipment has been provided for staff as
required.
Temporary Coronavirus Regulations were laid down by the Government allowing
for member meetings to be held virtually for most of the year. In addition,
temporary emergency delegations were put in place to ensure that Council
business could continue.
Impact on Our Finances
During the year the main impact on the budget was the Covid 19 pandemic which
inevitably had a detrimental impact on the Council’s financial position. Whilst
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additional costs were incurred as a result of the pandemic the main pressure came
from lost income from fees and charges, predominantly within leisure services but
also from other services such as MOT testing.
Covid Response grant funding has been received from the Government during the
year to aid the continued delivery of council services. In addition the Government
have compensated for a proportion of the income lost from fees and charges,
such as leisure centre income. This has meant that the additional pressures have
not needed to be met from General Fund balances. Ongoing pressures arising
from the Covid pandemic will continue to be met from this grant.

Support in the Community
The Council was keen to provide support to the Community right from the outset and
we have received many calls and letters of thanks for our response and support
especially during the early months of the pandemic. The support we offered was
diverse and extensive, some of which is listed below and we are proud to have been
able to play our part in serving our community:


At the start of the first lockdown, we registered 6,971 of our most vulnerable
residents with our customer services support team and provided regular
communication, signposting and support to them throughout the numerous
lockdowns. We have remained in contact throughout the year providing help
and support where we can.



We provided food parcels to those in urgent need, with food supplies being
provided from local supermarkets as well as Parish Council collection and
donation points. Surplus donations were given to local foodbanks to
supplement their existing stocks.



We performed 10,869 pharmacy deliveries to ensure that the most vulnerable
residents received the medication that they needed



We delivered copies of the local newspaper to vulnerable and isolated
residents during lockdown to held with social inclusion



Our Environmental Health team has played a pivotal role throughout not only
delivering the additional statutory duties required under Coronavirus
Regulations but also dealing with the increased number of nuisance
complaints whilst people were forced to stay at home. Noise nuisance
complaints increased by 72% during the year and smoke nuisance by 257%.
Environmental enforcement has also been incredibly active as significant
increases in fly tipping was reported.
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Our website has been frequently updated with the latest links to national
coronavirus information for residents. Information about the NHS test and
trace system has also been provided, alerting people via social media and our
website to the scams taking place around the NHS Test and Trace system.



We supported our residents and businesses by launching a campaign
highlighting the benefits of shopping local, supporting our independent
businesses and growing our economy.



To financially support businesses and individuals, the Government introduced
a number of grant and relief schemes. A council tax hardship scheme was
also funded and business grants have been provided to small businesses and
those in the retail and hospitality sector and relief from business rates has
also been awarded. The Council has administered and distributed almost
£40m in grants and reliefs during the year.



Sharley Park Leisure Centre became one of the first large scale vaccination
centres in the County, offering the vital vaccine to our local residents.

The
Council’s
Recovery

Plan

for

The impact of the pandemic on the District will be felt for some time to come. Health
and wellbeing, employment, education and housing have all been adversely
affected.
Both inward and outward facing recovery plans were devised to tackle the specific
impact on council services (inward) and the role we will play in the recovery of the
wider community (outward). These continue to be regularly reviewed and updated as
we continue on the road to recovery.
Business as usual services have continued throughout and whilst the pandemic has
inevitably resulted in some delays there have been no major changes to our long
term priorities and plans.
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NORTH EAST DERBYSHIREDISTRICT: GOVERNANCE CODE
INTRODUCTION
1. The purpose of this Code is to state the importance to the Council of good corporate
governance and to set out the Council’s commitment to the principles involved.
2. The Code is based on guidance to all UK local authorities.
3. The Code is included in the Council’s Constitution and therefore applies to all
Members and employees of the Council and also to any individuals or bodies
authorised to act on its behalf.
4. How the effectiveness of the Code is reviewed is set out in Section 4.
5. The Code will be reviewed in its entirety by no later than 31 March 2025, but minor
reviews and updates will be made annually as required.
Approved by:
Head of Finance and Resources and section 151 Officer
Head of Corporate Governance and Monitoring Officer
29 March 2021
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SECTION 1: THE IMPORTANCE OF GOOD CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
1.1. Corporate Governance refers to the processes by which organisations such as the
Council are directed, controlled, led and held to account. It is also about culture and
values - the way that Councillors (Members) and employees think and act. In
summary, if management is about running the Council, corporate governance is about
seeing that it is run properly.
1.2. The Council is a complex organisation which affects all who live and work in North
East Derbyshire District Council’s area and businesses and organisations that are
based here. It is therefore essential that there is confidence in our corporate
governance, and the Council must therefore ensure that:


as a democratic body, we engage with and account to our citizens and
stakeholders effectively;



we conduct our business in accordance with the law and to proper standards;



public money is properly accounted for and is used economically, efficiently and
effectively;



controls are proportionate to risk so as not to impede performance;



we continuously improve the way in which we function, in terms of
effectiveness, quality, service availability, fairness, sustainability and innovation;
and



we fulfil our purpose and meet our priorities as set out in the Council Plan.

1.3. The Council is therefore committed to good corporate governance and to doing
the right things in the right way for the right people in a way which is timely, inclusive,
open, honest and accountable. This Code sets out that commitment and how we
evidence it.
1.4. This commitment includes improving governance on a continuing basis across the
Council as a whole, through a process of evaluation and review. This is detailed further
in Section 4.
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SECTION 2: THE BASIS OF THIS CODE
2.1 This Code is based on guidance provided to all UK local authorities which are
centred on seven Core Principles, designed to underpin the governance arrangements
of all public sector bodies.
1 Delivering Good Governance in Local Government Framework 2016, issued jointly
by the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) and the Society
of Local Authority Chief Executives (SOLACE).
2 From the International Framework: Good Governance in the Public Sector
(CIPFA/International Federation of Accountants, 2014)
2.2 These Core Principles are as follows:
A Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to ethical values, and
respecting the rule of law
B Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder engagement
C Defining outcomes in terms of sustainable economic, social, and environmental benefits
D Determining the interventions necessary to optimise the achievement of the intended
outcomes
E Developing the entity’s capacity, including the capability of its leadership and the
individuals within it
F Managing risks and performance through robust internal control and strong public
financial management
G Implementing good practices in transparency, reporting, and audit to deliver effective
accountability

2.3 Core Principles A and B are fundamental to the application of the other principles.
Further good governance requires all of the principles to be met and through a
dynamic approach good governance can be achieved.
2.4 This Code sets out our commitment to all seven of the Core Principles shown
above and to the various elements of our governance framework the policies,
strategies and processes - which help us to ensure that the principles are met (Section
3).
2.6 Since effective Corporate Governance relies on the way that Councillors
(Members) and employees think and act, the Code also recognises the importance of
the seven ˜Principles of Public Life” (the Nolan Principles) which are the basis of the
ethical standards expected of public office holders (Appendix A). These support the
seven Core Principles of this Code which in turn underpin the Council’s approach to
planning fair, effective and sustainable services and its responsibilities for sustainable
development.
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SECTION 3: COMMITMENTS TO GOVERNANCE PRINCIPLES
Principle A: Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to
ethical values, and respecting the rule of law
The Council is accountable not only for how much it spends, but also for how we use
the resources under our stewardship. This includes accountability for outputs, both
positive and negative, and for the outcomes we have achieved. In addition, we have an
overarching responsibility to serve the public interest in adhering to the requirements of
legislation and government policies. It is essential that, as a whole, we can
demonstrate the appropriateness of all our actions and have mechanisms in place to
encourage and enforce adherence to ethical values and to respect the rule of law.
To support Principle A, the Council is committed to:
Behaving with integrity
A1. Ensuring members and officers
behave with integrity and lead a culture
where acting in the public interest is
visibly and consistently demonstrated
thereby protecting the reputation of the
Council

What is in place to support this?





A2. Ensuring members take the lead in
establishing specific standard operating
principles or values for the Council and
its staff and that they are communicated
and understood. These should build on
the Seven Principles of Public Life (the
Nolan Principles)
A3. Leading by example and using these
standard operating principles or values
as a framework for decision making and
other actions
A4. Demonstrating, communicating and
embedding the standard operating
principles or values through appropriate
policies and processes which are
reviewed on a regular basis to ensure
that they are operating effectively


















Agreed Values
Organisation Development and
Workforce Strategy
Codes of Conduct for members
and employees
Registers of interests, gifts and
hospitality
Induction training for members
and employees
Members Allowances Scheme
Financial Regulations rules
Contract Procurement rules
Planning Protocol
Standards and Audit Committees
Anti-Fraud Bribery and Corruption
Strategy
Anti-Money Laundering Policy
Whistleblowing Policy
Compliments, Comments and
Complaints Procedure
Internal Audit Charter
Safeguarding Responsibilities
Health and Safety Policy
Single Equality Plan and review
Transparency around decision
making
Member Development Plan
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Demonstrating strong commitment to
ethical values
A5. Seeking to establish, monitor and
maintain the Council’s ethical standards
and performance

What is in place to support this?




A6. Underpinning personal behaviour
with ethical values and ensuring they
permeate all aspects of the Council’s
culture and operation
A7. Developing and maintaining robust
policies and procedures which place
emphasis on agreed ethical values
A8. Ensuring that external providers of
services on behalf of the Council are
required to act with integrity and in
compliance with high ethical standards
expected by the Council











Agreed Values
Organisation Development and
Workforce Strategy
Codes of Conduct for members
and employees
Registers of interests, gifts and
hospitality
Financial Regulations rules
Contract Procurement rules
Planning Protocol
Induction training for members
and employees
Regular governance awareness
raising for employees
Planning Principles
Commissioning, Procurement &
Contract Management
Strategy
Partnership & collaborative
working arrangements



Respecting the rule of law
A9. Ensuring members and staff
demonstrate a strong commitment to the
rule of the law as well as adhering to
relevant laws and regulations
A10. Creating the conditions to ensure
that the statutory officers, other key post
holders and members are able to fulfil
their responsibilities in accordance with
legislative and regulatory requirements

What is in place to support this?







A11. Striving to optimise the use of the
full powers available for the benefit of
citizens, communities and other
stakeholders





A12. Dealing with breaches of legal and




Key statutory responsibilities set
out in the Council’s Constitution
Compliance with CIPFA
Statement of the ˜Role of the
Chief Financial Officer in Local
Government)
Protocol on Member/Officer
relations (Constitution)
Job Descriptions
Regular governance awareness
raising for employees
Standards Committee
Audit Committee
Anti-Fraud Bribery and Corruption
Strategy
Anti-Money Laundering Policy
Whistleblowing Procedure
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regulatory provisions effectively
A13. Ensuring corruption and misuse of
power are dealt with effectively





Complaints Procedure
General Data Protection
Regulation guidance
Governance Codes of Practice
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Principle B. Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder engagement
Local government is run for the public good, and organisations therefore should ensure
openness in their activities. Clear, trusted channels of communication and consultation
should be used to engage effectively with all groups of stakeholders, such as individual
citizens and service users, as well as institutional stakeholders.
To support Principle B, the Council is committed to:
Openness
What is in place to support this?
B1. Ensuring an open culture through
demonstrating, documenting and
communicating our commitment to
openness
B2. Making decisions that are open
about actions, plans, resource use,
forecasts, outputs and outcomes. The
presumption is for openness. If that is not
the case, a justification for the reasoning
for keeping a decision confidential should
be provided
B3. Providing clear reasoning and
evidence for decisions in both public
records and explanations to stakeholders
and being explicit about the criteria,
rationale and considerations used. In due
course, ensuring that the impact and
consequences of those decisions are
clear
B4. Using formal and informal
consultation and engagement to
determine the most appropriate and
effective interventions/ courses of action



















Constitution
Commissioning, Procurement &
Contract Management Strategy
Contract Procedure Rules
Whistleblowing Procedure.
Council Plan
External audit and inspection
reports
Directory of published information.
Online Council Tax information
Reporting and publishing &
distribution timetables
Delegation of Powers Scheme
Meetings open to public
Minutes
Webcasting page
Codes of Conduct for members
and employees
Public Participation in Council and
Planning meetings
Webcasting Meetings and library
of Meeting recordings
Publishing of Delegated Decisions
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Engaging comprehensively with
institutional stakeholders

What is in place to support this?


B5. Effectively engaging with institutional
stakeholders to ensure that the purpose,
objectives and intended outcomes for
each stakeholder relationship are clear
so that outcomes are achieved
successfully and sustainably




Consultation and Engagement
Strategy
Current consultations
Complaints Procedure
Partnership & collaborative
working arrangements

B6. Developing formal and informal
partnerships to allow for resources to be
used more efficiently and outcomes
achieved more effectively
B7. Ensuring that partnerships are based
on trust, a shared commitment to change
and a culture that promotes and accepts
challenge among partners and that the
added value of partnership working is
explicit

Engaging stakeholders effectively,
including individual citizens and
service users
B8. A clear policy on the type of issues
that the Council will meaningfully consult
with or involve individual citizens, service
users and other stakeholders to ensure
that service provision is contributing
towards the achievement of intended
outcomes
B9. Ensuring that communication
methods are effective and that members
and officers are clear about their roles
with regard to community engagement

What is in place to support this?







Consultation and Engagement
Strategy
Medium Term Financial Plan
Planning Principles
Complaints Procedure (and
compliments)
Employee survey
partnership with partners both
public, private and the Community
and Voluntary sector infrastructure
provider
Partnership with RHL for the
Councils housing

B10. Encouraging, collecting and
evaluating the views and experiences of
communities, citizens, service users and
organisations of different backgrounds
including reference to future needs
10
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B11. Implementing effective feedback
mechanisms in order to demonstrate
how their views have been taken into
account
B12. Balancing feedback from more
active stakeholder groups with other
stakeholder groups to ensure inclusivity
B13. Taking account of the interests of
future generations of tax payers and
service users
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Principle C: Defining outcomes in terms of sustainable economic, social, and
environmental benefits
The long-term nature and impact of many of local government’s responsibilities mean
that it should define and plan outcomes and that these should be sustainable.
Decisions should further the authority’s purpose, contribute to intended benefits and
outcomes, and remain within the limits of authority and resources. Input from all groups
of stakeholders, including citizens, service users, and institutional stakeholders, is vital
to the success of this process and in balancing competing demands when determining
priorities for the finite resources available.
To support Principle C, the Council is committed to:
Defining outcomes
What is in place to support this?
C1. Having a clear vision which is an
agreed formal statement of the Council’s
purpose and intended outcomes
containing appropriate performance
indicators, which provides the basis for
the Council’s overall strategy, planning
and other decisions
C2. Specifying the intended impact on, or
changes for, stakeholders including
citizens and service users. It could be
immediately or over the course of a year
or longer








Council Plan Planning Principles
Local Plan
Consultation and Engagement
Strategy
Medium Term Financial Plan
Half-yearly performance reports to
the Cabinet
Risk Management Strategy

C3. Delivering defined outcomes on a
sustainable basis within the resources
that will be available
C4. Identifying and managing risks to the
achievement of outcomes
C5. Managing service users expectations
effectively with regard to determining
priorities and making the best use of the
resources available.

Sustainable economic, social and
environmental benefits
C6. Considering and balancing the
combined economic, social and
environmental impact of policies, plans

What is in place to support this?



Medium Term Financial Plan
Budget consultation exercises
12
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and decisions when taking decisions
about service provision




C7. Taking a longer-term view with
regard to decision making, taking
account of risk and acting transparently
where there are potential conflicts
between the Council’s intended
outcomes and short-term factors such as
the political cycle or financial constraints







Risk Management Strategy
Commissioning, Procurement &
Contract Management Strategy
Member workshops
Strategic Equality Plan
Equality Impact Assessments
Customer Focus Strategy
ICT & Digital Strategy

C8. Determining the wider public interest
associated with balancing conflicting
interests between achieving the various
economic, social and environmental
benefits, through consultation where
possible, in order to ensure appropriate
trade-offs
C9. Ensuring fair access to services
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Principle D: Determining the interventions necessary to optimise the
achievement of intended outcomes
Local government achieves its intended outcomes by providing a mixture of legal,
regulatory, and practical interventions. Determining the right mix of these courses of
action is a critically important strategic choice that local government has to make to
ensure intended outcomes are achieved. They need robust decision-making
mechanisms to ensure that their defined outcomes can be achieved in a way that
provides the best trade-off between the various types of resource inputs while still
enabling effective and efficient operations. Decisions made need to be reviewed
continually to ensure that achievement of outcomes is optimised

To support Principle D, the Council is committed to:
Determining necessary interventions
What is in place to support this?

D1. Ensuring decision makers receive
objective and rigorous analysis of a
 Council Plan
variety of options indicating how intended
 Reporting requirements for Full
outcomes would be achieved and
Council and Cabinet 
including the risks associated with those
 Decision making Principles
options. Therefore ensuring best value is
(Constitution) 
achieved however services are provided.
 Scrutiny committees and support
 Risk Management Stategy
D2. Considering feedback from citizens
 Consultation and Engagement
and service users when making
Strategy 
decisions about service improvements or
 Medium Term Financial Plan
where services are no longer required in
 Senior Management Structure
order to prioritise competing demands
 Officer Delegation Scheme
within limited resources available
 Calendar of meetings
including people, skills, land and assets
 Pre-meetings
and bearing in mind future impacts.
 The Forward Plan

Planning interventions
D3. Establishing and implementing
robust planning and control cycles that
cover strategic and operational plans,
priorities and targets

What is in place to support this?

 Council Plan
 Reporting and publishing &
distribution timetables
 Consultation and Engagement
D4. Engaging with internal and external
Strategy
stakeholders in determining how services
 Medium Term Financial Plan
and other courses of action should be
 Partnership & collaborative
planned and delivered
working arrangements
 Half-yearly performance reports to
D5. Considering and monitoring risks
the Cabinet
facing each partner when working
 Budget and Policy Framework
collaboratively including shared risks
Procedure Rules
14
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D6. Ensuring arrangements are flexible
and agile so that the mechanisms for
delivering outputs can be adapted to
changing circumstances







Budget Monitoring & Control
Procedures
Council Procedure Rule
Financial Regulations
Senior Management Structure
Regular Portfolio Holder meetings
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Principle E: Developing the Council’s capacity, including the capability of its
leadership and the individuals within it
Local government needs appropriate structures and leadership, as well as people with
the right skills, appropriate qualifications and mindset, to operate efficiently and
effectively and achieve their intended outcomes within the specified periods. A local
government organisation must ensure that it has both the capacity to fulfil its own
mandate and to make certain that there are policies in place to guarantee that its
management has the operational capacity for the organisation as a whole.
Because both individuals and the environment in which an authority operates will
change over time, there will be a continuous need to develop its capacity as well as the
skills and experience of the leadership of individual staff members. Leadership in local
government entities is strengthened by the participation of people with many different
types of backgrounds, reflecting the structure and diversity.
To support Principle E, the Council is committed to:
Developing Capacity
E1. Developing and maintaining an
effective workforce plan to enhance the
strategic allocation of resources.
E2. Reviewing operations, performance
and use of assets on a regular basis to
ensure their continuing effectiveness,
E3. Improving resource use through
appropriate application of techniques
such as benchmarking and other options
in order to determine how the Council’s
resources are allocated so that outcomes
are achieved effectively and efficiently,

What is in place to support this?









Scrutiny committees and support
Senior Management Structure
Reviews commissioned by Senior
Management
External audit and inspection
reports
Partnership & collaborative
working arrangements
Corporate Land and Buildings
Strategy
LGA Peer Review
Employee Celebratory Awards

E4. Recognising the benefits

What is in place to support this?
Developing the capability of the
leadership and other individuals
E5. Developing protocols to ensure that
elected and appointed leaders negotiate
with each other regarding their
respective roles early on in the
relationship and that a shared
understanding of roles and objectives is
maintained
E6. Publishing a statement that specifies







Constitution
Protocol on Member/Officer
relations (Constitution)
Regular meetings between
Strategic Leadership Team and
Lead Members
Delegation of Powers Scheme
Financial Regulation
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the types of decisions that are delegated
and those reserved for the collective
decision making of the governing body





E7. Ensuring the leader and the senior
management team have clearly defined
and distinctive leadership roles within a
structure, whereby the senior
management team leads the authority in
implementing strategy and managing the
delivery of services and other outputs set
by members and each provides a check
and a balance for each other’s authority
E8. Developing the capabilities of
members and senior management to
achieve effective shared leadership and
to enable the Council to respond
successfully to changing legal and policy
demands as well as economic, political
and environmental changes and risks by:
ensuring members and staff have access
to appropriate induction tailored to their
role and that ongoing training and
development matching individual and
organisational requirements is available
and encouraged, ensuring members and
officers have the appropriate skills,
knowledge, resources and support to
fulfil their roles and responsibilities and
ensuring that they are able to update
their knowledge on a continuing basis,
ensuring personal, organisation and
system-wide development through
shared learning, including
lessons learnt from both internal and
external governance weaknesses














Contract Procurement Rules
Learning and Development
function
Member Development Working
Group and programme of training
Performance Review and
Development Process
Consultation and Engagement
Strategy
Organisation Development and
Workforce Strategy
Workforce Policies
Code of Conduct for employees
Internal Communication
Health and Safety Policy
Corporate Health Standard
HR Policies
Appraisals
Member Inductions and midterm
Member Induction refresh
Employee training

E9. Ensuring that there are structures in
place to encourage public participation
E10.Taking steps to consider the
leadership’s own effectiveness and
ensuring leaders are open to
constructive feedback from peer review
and inspections
E11.Holding staff to account through
regular performance reviews which take
account of training or development
17
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needs
Principle F: Managing risks and performance through robust internal control and
strong public financial management
Local government needs to ensure that the organisations and governance structures
that it oversees have implemented, and can sustain, an effective performance
management system that facilitates effective and efficient delivery of planned services.
Risk management and internal control are important and integral parts of a
performance management system and crucial to the achievement of outcomes. Risk
should be considered and addressed as part of all decision making activities.
A strong system of financial management is essential for the implementation of policies
and the achievement of intended outcomes, as it will enforce financial discipline,
strategic allocation of resources, efficient service delivery, and accountability.
It is also essential that a culture and structure for scrutiny is in place as a key part of
accountable decision making, policy making and review. A positive working culture that
accepts, promotes and encourages constructive challenge is critical to successful
scrutiny and successful delivery. Importantly, this culture does not happen
automatically, it requires repeated public commitment from those in authority.
To support Principle F, the Council is committed to:
Managing Risk
F1. Recognising that risk management is
an integral part of all activities and must
be considered in all aspects of decision
making
F2. Implementing robust and integrated
risk management arrangements and
ensuring they are working effectively
F3. Ensuring that responsibilities for
managing individual risks are clearly
allocated

What is in place to support this ?









Risk management group
Risk Management Strategy, Risk
and Control Registers and Internal
/ External audit coverage of risk
management
Audit Committee
Partnership and Collaborative
Working arrangements
Reporting requirements for Full
Council and Cabinet
Service Continuity arrangements
Annual review of Constitution

Managing Performance
What is in place to support this ?
F4. Monitoring service delivery effectively
including planning, specification,
 Council Plan
execution and independent post Service Plans and service
implementation review
planning guidance
 Commissioning, Procurement &
F5. Making decisions based on relevant,
Contract Management Strategy
clear objective analysis and advice
 Quarterly performance reports to
pointing out the implications and risks
the Performance Management
inherent in the Council’s financial, social
group, Audit Committee and
and environmental position and outlook
Cabinet
18
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F6. Ensuring an effective scrutiny or
oversight function is in place which
encourages constructive challenge and
debate on policies and objectives before,
during and after decisions are made,
thereby enhancing the Council’s
performance and that of any organisation
for which it is responsible
F7. Providing members and senior
management with regular reports on
progress towards outcome achievement.
F8. Ensuring there is consistency
between specification stages (such as
budgets) and post implementation
reporting (eg financial statements

Robust Internal Control
F9.Aligning the risk management
strategy and policies on internal control
with achieving objectives
F10.Evaluating and monitoring risk
management and internal control on a
regular basis
F11.Ensuring effective counter fraud and
anti-corruption arrangements are in place
F12.Ensuring additional assurance on
the overall adequacy and effectiveness
of the framework of governance, risk
management and control is provided by
the internal auditor
F13.Ensuring an audit committee or
equivalent group or function which is
independent of the executive and
accountable to the governing body
provides a further source of effective
assurance regarding arrangements for
managing risk and maintaining an
effective control environment and that its
recommendations are listened to and
acted upon














Forward Work Programmes
Reporting and publishing &
distribution timetables
Scrutiny committees and support
Scrutiny reviews
Report preparation guidance
Report screening (Full Council
and Cabinet
Member Development
Financial Regulations
Budget and Policy Framework
Procedure Rules
Budget Monitoring & Control
Procedures
Budget – Medium Term Financail
Plan
Annual Statement of Accounts

What is in place to support this ?















Risk Management Strategy
Principal Risk Register
Heads of Departments Internal
Control Assurances
Internal Audit Charter (inc Annual
Plan)
Audit Committee Terms of Ref
(Constitution)
Audit Committee effectiveness
surveys and training
Financial Regulations
Contract Procurement Rules
Counter Fraud Policy &
Procedures
Anti-Money Laundering Strategy
Annual Governance Statement &
Action Plan
Head of Internal Audit’s Annual
Report
Audit Committee Chair’s Annual
Report to Cabinet and Council
Identification of Assurance Gaps
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Managing Data
F14.Ensuring effective arrangements are
in place for the safe collection, storage,
use and sharing of data, including
processes to safeguard personal data
F15.Ensuring effective arrangements are
in place and operating effectively when
sharing data with other bodies
F16.Reviewing and auditing regularly the
quality and accuracy of data used in
decision making and performance
monitoring

Strong public financial management
F17.Ensuring financial management
supports both long-term achievement of
outcomes and short-term financial and
operational performance

What is in place to support this ?
 General Data Protection
Regulation guidance
 GDPR clauses in contracts
 Freedom of Information guidance
 Information Management
Strategy and Action Plan
 Acceptable Use of ICT Facilities
 ICT Security Policy and
Guidelines
 Secure Data Transfer Standards
and Procedures
 Information Security Policy
 Records Management Policy
 Corporate Records Retention
Scheme
 Regular data protection training

What is in place to support this ?




Budget monitoring
Annual Governance Statement
External Audit reports

F18.Ensuring well-developed financial
management is integrated at all levels of
planning and control, including
management of financial risks and
controls
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Principle G: Implementing good practices in transparency, reporting, and audit
to deliver effective accountability
Accountability is about ensuring that those making decisions and delivering services
are answerable for them. Effective accountability is concerned not only with reporting
on actions completed, but also ensuring that stakeholders are able to understand and
respond as the organisation plans and carries out its activities in a transparent manner.
Both external and internal audit contribute to effective accountability.

To support Principle G, the Council is committed to:
Implementing good practice in
transparency
G1. Writing and communicating reports
for the public and other stakeholders in
an understandable style appropriate to
the intended audience and ensuring that
they are easy to access and interrogate
G2. Striking a balance between providing
the right amount of information to satisfy
transparency demands and enhance
public scrutiny while not being too
onerous to provide and for users to
understand

Implementing good practice in
reporting
G3. Reporting at least annually on
performance, value for money and the
stewardship of resources

What is in place to support this?





What is in place to support this?



G4. Ensuring owners and senior
management own the results
G5. Ensuring robust arrangements for
assessing the extent to which the
principles contained in the Framework
have been applied and publishing the
results on this assessment including an
action plan for improvement and
evidence to demonstrate good
governance (annual governance
statement)

Report preparation guidance
Report screening (Full Council
and Cabinet
Website including summary and
easy-to-read reports
Compliance with access
requirements





Quarterly reporting of
performance
Annual Governance Statement
and Action Plan
Risk Management Strategy
Risk and Control Registers
Annual Statement of Accounts
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G6. Ensuring that the Framework is
applied to jointly managed or shared
service organisations as appropriate
Assurance and effective
accountability
G8. Ensuring that recommendations for
corrective action made by external audit
are acted upon

What is in place to support this?



G9. Ensuring an effective internal audit
service with direct access to members is
in place which provides assurance with
regard to governance arrangements and
recommendations are acted upon



G10. Welcoming peer challenge, reviews
and inspections from regulatory bodies
and implementing recommendations



G11. Gaining assurance on risks
associated with delivering services
through third parties and that this is
evidenced in the annual governance
statement







Audit Committee Terms of
Reference (Constitution)
Regular reporting of progress on
implementing audit
recommendations to Audit
Committee
External audit and inspection
reports
Internal Audit Charter
Head of Internal Audit’s Annual
Report
Internal Audit self assessment and
compliance with Public Sector
Internal Audit Standards
Partnership and collaborative
working arrangements
Annual review of Constitution

G12. Ensuring that when working in
partnership, arrangements for
accountability are clear and that the need
for wider public accountability has been
recognised and met
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SECTION 4: HOW CORPORATE GOVERNANCE IS REVIEWED
1. The Leader and Senior Management Team are required to ensure that each year, a
review is undertaken to measure the extent to which the Council as a whole has met
the requirements of this Code.
2. The results of the review are included in the Annual Governance Statement which is
published with the Annual Statement of Accounts.
3. Where the review reveals possible gaps or weaknesses, action is agreed to ensure
effective governance in future. Agreed action is monitored for implementation.
4. Where necessary, this Code will be amended as a result of the annual review,
changes in best practice or statutory changes. Minor amendments to wording, titles
and to details of ‘what is in place’ to support the principles (Section 3 above) may be
approved by the Head of Finance but any substantive changes to the Code and the
principles will require Cabinet approval.
5. This code will be renewed no later than 31st March 2025
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APPENDIX A.
THE SEVEN PRINCIPLES OF PUBLIC LIFE (THE NOLAN PRINCIPLES)
These apply to anyone who works as a public office-holder. This includes people who are
elected or appointed to public office, nationally and locally, and all people appointed to
work in:
• the civil service
• local government
• the police
• the courts and probation services
• non-departmental public bodies
• health, education, social and care services.

1. Selflessness
Holders of public office should act solely in terms of the public interest.
2. Integrity
Holders of public office must avoid placing themselves under any obligation to people or
organisations that might try inappropriately to influence them in their work. They should not act
or take decisions in order to gain financial or other material benefits for themselves, their
family, or their friends. They must declare and resolve any interests and relationships.
3. Objectivity
Holders of public office must act and take decisions impartially, fairly and on merit, using the
best evidence and without discrimination or bias.
4. Accountability
Holders of public office are accountable to the public for their decisions and actions and must
submit themselves to the scrutiny necessary to ensure this.
5. Openness
Holders of public office should act and take decisions in an open and transparent manner.
Information should not be withheld from the public unless there are clear and lawful reasons
for so doing.
6. Honesty
Holders of public office should be truthful.
7. Leadership
Holders of public office should exhibit these principles in their own behaviour. They should
actively promote and robustly support the principles and be willing to challenge poor behaviour
wherever it occurs.
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Appendix 3
ASSURANCE SCHEDULE: EXTRACTED FROM “DELIVERING GOOD
GOVERNANCE IN LOCAL GOVERNMENT: FRAMEWORK”
CHAPTER 6 - The principles of good governance – application.
This Appendix utilises extracts from key elements of the CIPFA / SOLACE document
“Delivering \ Good Governance in Local Government Framework” (2016) in order to
show how the council complies with the requirements of good practice and the
evidence which is available to support the statements made within the Annual
Governance Statement. It should be noted that the revised framework places
increased emphasis on culture, values and behaviour where it is more problematic than in the case of processes and procedures - to provide evidence that appropriate
cultures and behaviours are in place. The Committee therefore needs to consider
both the specific processes evidenced within this document together with the issue
of whether the underlying culture, values and behaviour of the Council remain in line
with the standards championed by the CIPFA / SOLACE document.
The annual governance statement should be focused on outcomes and value for
money and relate to the authority’s vision for the area. It should provide an
assessment of the effectiveness of the authority’s governance arrangements in
supporting the planned outcomes – not simply a description of them. Key elements
of an authority’s governance arrangements are summarised in the next section.
Extracts from the Code itself are shown in Italics in the section below:
The annual governance statement should include:


an acknowledgement of responsibility for ensuring that there is a sound
system of governance (incorporating the system of internal control) and
reference to the authority’s code of governance
Position at NEDDC: This is set out within the Annual Governance Statement
(AGS), with appropriate reference being made to the Code of Governance.
The AGS also includes a section on Compliance with the Financial
Management Code, designed to support good practice in financial
management and financial sustainability.



reference to and assessment of the effectiveness of key elements of the
governance framework and the role of those responsible for the development
and maintenance of the governance environment, such as the authority, the
executive, the audit committee, internal audit and others as appropriate
Position at NEDDC: The AGS includes a section setting out “The Governance
Framework” which address the issues identified above.



an opinion on the level of assurance that the governance arrangements can
provide and that the arrangements continue to be regarded as fit for purpose
in accordance with the governance framework
Page 378

Position at NEDDC: The AGS highlights the areas of significant weakness
which whilst requiring addressing as a matter of priority are not of such a
scale as to undermine the view that the Council’s Governance Arrangements
remain ‘fit for purpose’.


an agreed action plan showing actions taken, or proposed, to deal with
significant governance issues and reference to how issues raised in the
previous year’s annual governance statement have been resolved
Position at NEDDC: this is included in the AGS. During 2020/21 the Council
has made good progress in addressing issues in respect of 2019/20 and
recorded those identified in 2020/21 that will be addressed in the following
year. These issues are managed as part of the Council’s Performance
Management Framework which monitors progress in including performance
against the approved budget and the implementation of Internal Audit
recommendations.



A conclusion and a commitment to monitoring implementation as part of the
next annual review.
Position at NEDDC: The AGS includes an opinion and clear statement of
commitment from the Leader of the Council and the Head of Paid Service
both to address the issues that have been identified and to take action to
ensure that further improvements in the Council’s Governance arrangements
are secured.



The annual governance statement should be signed by the leading member
(or equivalent) and chief executive (or equivalent) on behalf of the authority.
Position at NEDDC: The Council is fully compliant with this requirement.



The annual governance statement should be approved at a meeting of the
authority or delegated committee
Position at NEDDC: The Council’s Constitution sets out the role of the Audit
Committee in the approval of the AGS on behalf of the Council.



Local authorities are required to include the annual governance statement
with their statement of accounts. As the annual governance statement
provides a commentary on all aspects of the authority’s performance, it is
appropriate for it to be published, either in full or as a summary, in the annual
report, where one is published. It is important that it is kept up to date at time
of publication.

Position at NEDDC: The AGS is published along with the Statement of
Accounts.
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The Code also makes reference to a number of areas that aren’t specifically
related to the Annual Governance Statement but represent good practice:


Developing codes of conduct which define standards of behaviour for
members and staff, and policies dealing with whistleblowing and conflicts of
interest and that these codes and policies are communicated effectively. “
Position at NEDDC: The Council has both a Members and an Employee Code
of Conduct within the Council’s Constitution. These are supported by a range
of other policies / procedures which reflect best practice across the local
government sector.



Ensuring compliance with relevant laws and regulations, internal policies and
procedures, and that expenditure is lawful.
Position at NEDDC: The Council has a qualified lawyer supported by an
appropriately qualified legal team who undertakes the role of monitoring
officer. All other Officers are appropriately qualified, trained and experienced
to undertake their role and responsibilities in line with current legislation and
recognised good practice. The Council has a formal appraisal process in
place, supported by a training plan and appropriate funding to ensure that all
officers retain / refresh the necessary levels of expertise in order to discharge
their responsibilities effectively. All reports / new initiatives are subject to
formal consideration by Council / Cabinet as appropriate and prior to being
considered by Members they are reviewed by the Council’s three statutory
officers (Head of Paid Service, Monitoring Officer, Chief Financial Officer).



Documenting a commitment to openness and acting in the public interest.
Position at NEDDC : This is set out within the Council’s Constitution:
“The job of a Councillor is to represent you even if you did not vote for
them........Councillors have a Code of Conduct to make sure they follow high
standards in the way they carry out their role. There is a Standards
Committee which trains, advises and deals with complaints against
Councillors alleging that they have breached the Code of Conduct.
Article 1 of the Constitution sets out the following core principles
“(a) Mission.
The Council will seek to make a difference by building thriving communities
through partnership, community leadership and excellent service delivery.
(b) Values
The Council will follow these values:(i)

We are honest, open and accountable.
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(ii)

We value people’s differences and we will treat everybody fairly and
with respect.

(iii)

We listen, involve and respond to all our communities.

(iv)

We always look for new and better ways of working to improve quality
and value.

The position as set out within the Constitution is supported by the Code of
Corporate Governance which is based upon a clear community focus as set
out in the Community Strategy and Corporate Plan which sets out the links
between community engagement, service planning and delivery, and the
maintenance of appropriate standards of conduct.


Establishing clear channels of communication with all sections of the
community and other stakeholders, ensuring accountability and encouraging
open consultation.
Position at NEDDC: The Council actively encourages consultation with the
local community by way of information / opportunities to comment on the
website, through postal and on line surveys, access to local Councillors and
holding all meetings in public session. The Council has a formal Consultation
Policy along with an Engagement Plan which includes a structured plan
concerning how the Council will ensure effective engagement with residents,
customers and businesses regarding our services and functions.



Developing and communicating a vision which specifies intended outcomes
for citizens and service users and is used as a basis for planning. Translating
the vision into courses of action for the authority, its partnerships and
collaborations.
Position at NEDDC: These are set out within the Council Plan which covers
the period 2019 to 2023. This Plan is on the Council’s website and is linked to
a range of service plans and the Council’s Performance Management
Framework to help ensure that the agreed strategic direction informs the
Council’s actions and in particular its service delivery.



Reviewing the effectiveness of the decision-making framework, including
delegation arrangements, decision-making in partnerships, information
provided to decision makers and robustness of data quality.
Position at NEDDC: The Council conducts an annual review of its Constitution
to ensure that it remains fit for purpose and in line with evolving best practice
across the local government sector.



Measuring the performance of services and related projects and ensuring that
they are delivered in accordance with defined outcomes and that they
represent the best use of resources and value for money.
Page 381

Position at NEDDC: The Council has a robust performance management
framework which helps ensure that service plans and delivery are linked into
the Council’s wider strategic objectives, whilst delivering services that meet
our statutory obligations and the expectations of our residents.


Defining and documenting the roles and responsibilities of members and
management, with clear protocols for effective communication in respect of
the authority and partnership arrangements.
Position at NEDDC: The roles and responsibilities of Members and senior
officers are set out in the Constitution, being further supported by the Member
and Officer protocols and for officers by job descriptions and contractual
terms. The Constitution which reflects best practice incorporates a scheme of
delegation, and sets out the roles, powers and limits upon the power of
individual officers and Members.
Ensuring that financial management arrangements conform with the
governance requirements of the CIPFA Statement on the Role of the Chief
Financial Officer in Local Government (2015) or CIPFA Statement on the Role
of the Chief Financial Officer of the Police and Crime Commissioner and the
Chief Financial Officer of the Chief Constable (2014) as appropriate and,
where they do not, explain why and how they deliver the same impact.
Position at NEDDC: The Council is fully compliant with the requirements on
the CIPFA Statement on the Role of the Chief Financial Officer in Local
Government (2016) with a professionally qualified Chief Financial Officer who
is a full member of the Senior Management Team and is supported by
appropriately qualified and experienced staff.



Ensuring effective arrangements are in place for the discharge of the
monitoring officer function.
Position at NEDDC: The Monitoring Officer is a fully qualified solicitor, is a full
member of the Senior Management Team and is supported by appropriately
qualified and experienced staff.



Ensuring effective arrangements are in place for the discharge of the head of
paid service function.
Position at NEDDC: The Head of Paid Service is an appropriately qualified
and experienced officer appointed as a result of a competitive selection
process.



Providing induction and identifying the development needs of members and
senior officers in relation to their strategic roles, supported by appropriate
training.
Position at NEDDC: There is an induction process for both newly Elected
Members and for officer appointments. The Council has a structured Member
Development Programme with a Member Development Working Group which
meets on a regular basis. All officers are subject to a structured appraisal
process which identifies training and development requirements, which are
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necessary to effectively undertake their role are funded by the Council.
Professionally Qualified officers are required / supported to actively participate
in the CPD arrangements of their professional body.


Reviewing the effectiveness of the framework for identifying and managing
risks and for performance and demonstrating clear accountability.
Position at NEDDC: The Council has in place an established performance
management framework which incorporates performance, finance and risk.
This results in formal reports on a quarterly basis to Cabinet and to Audit and
Governance Scrutiny Committee. These are open reports available on the
website. Independent review is provided by Scrutiny and by Internal Audit,
with the Annual Governance Statement providing a comprehensive evaluation
concerning the Council’s compliance with best practice.



Ensuring effective counter fraud and anti-corruption arrangements are
developed and maintained in accordance with the Code of Practice on
Managing the Risk of Fraud and Corruption (CIPFA, 2014).
Position at NEDDC: The Council has in place an Anti -Fraud Bribery and
Corruption Policy updated on a regular basis which has a core principle of
zero tolerance of fraud. The Audit Committee receives regular updates
concerning fraud including an annual report from the Head of Internal Audit
which assesses the arrangements against a checklist provided within the
Fighting Fraud and Corruption Locally. Where required the Council will take
action again those who breach the Council’s approach of zero tolerance
including reporting concerns to the Police, the Department of Work and
Pensions, or directly through its own employee codes of conduct.



Ensuring an effective scrutiny function is in place.
Position at NEDDC: The function of Scrutiny is well established and operating
effectively supported by a senior dedicated specialist independent officer.
These arrangements and the effective engagement of other Members and
Officers of the Council help ensure that Scrutiny’s analysis and
recommendation are supported by robust evidence, data and critical analysis.
Where appropriate Scrutiny reports are referred to Cabinet for its
consideration. All Scrutiny meetings have agendas, reports and minutes on
the Council’s website.



Ensuring that assurance arrangements conform with the governance
requirements of the CIPFA Statement on the Role of the Head of Internal
Audit (2010) and, where they do not, explain why and how they deliver the
same impact.
Position at NEDDC: The Council is fully compliant with the requirements of
the CIPFA Statement. The Internal Audit Consortium Manager is
professionally qualified, suitably experienced, reports on a regular basis to the
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Audit Committee, with unrestricted access to elected members and
management. The Chief Financial Officer prepares on an Annual basis an
“Annual Review of the Effectiveness of Internal Audit”.


Undertaking the core functions of an audit committee, as identified in Audit
Committees: Practical Guidance for Local Authorities and Police (CIPFA,
2013).
Position at NEDDC: The Audit Committee undertakes a self-assessment of its
own performance against best practice covering both the areas of work
considered by the Committee, together with its powers in the Constitution and
the effectiveness of the Committee in securing improved outcomes.



Ensuring that the authority provides timely support, information and responses
to external auditors and properly considers audit findings and
recommendations.
Position at NEDDC: All reports of the External Auditor are given appropriate
consideration by the Audit Committee, which requires that recommendations
are implemented by Council officers. The reports taken by the External
Auditor to the Audit Committee continue to acknowledge the active cooperation of Council staff with the work of External Audit.



Incorporating good governance arrangements in respect of partnerships and
other joint working and ensuring that they are reflected across the authority’s
overall governance structures.
Position at NEDDC: The Council manages its partnerships through the
Partnership Team, whilst the Strategic Partnerships with Rykneld Homes, the
Derbyshire and Sheffield economic regions, the Strategic Alliance and other
Joint Working are handled through a range of governance arrangements in
which both Elected Members and Officers play an active role. Reports to
Cabinet and Council set out progress in each of the key partnerships and help
ensure that managerial arrangements remain robust.
Impact of Covid on Governance Arrangements
The impact of Covid has meant that there has been more changes than usual
to the governance arrangements and this has been taken into account when
conducting the annual review for 2020/21. The annual governance statement
has a specific section detailing the impact of the pandemic on our services,
finances, governance arrangements and recovery plans. Despite having to
find new ways of working during the pandemic, throughout the year the
Council’s arrangements when measured against the framework principles
have remained effective.
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Appendix 4
DRAFT MEMORANDUM TO THE SIGNATORIES OF THE ANNUAL
GOVERNANCE STATEMENT
You will be aware that in line with the requirements of the Accounts and Audit
Regulations 2015 and associated good practice guidance that all local authorities are
required to prepare as part of the preparation of the Annual Accounts an “Annual
Governance Statement”. At the heart of the Annual Governance Statement is a
requirement to reflect how the Council conducts its business, both internally and in
its dealing with others. In line with good practice it is appropriate that the Leader, and
the Chief Executive be required to sign off the Governance Statement, with the
signed copy appearing alongside the Council’s Published Accounts.
As the Chair of the Audit and Corporate Governance Scrutiny Committee and the
Council’s Responsible Financial and Legal officers we have given appropriate
consideration to the Governance Statement that is attached. We are satisfied that it
meets the requirements of the relevant legislation, and that it gives the reader a true
and fair view of the current position within North East Derbyshire District Council. In
arriving at this statement we have taken into account the available evidence, and
have put in place appropriate mechanisms to allow informed challenge of this
document to take place.
In particular we have placed reliance on the following:
●

We have considered the current policies and procedures in place at the
Council against the good practice guidance issues by CIPFA / SOLACE and
have concluded that the Council’s arrangements are fit for purpose when
benchmarked against these criteria

●

We have considered all of the findings or outcomes of the reports presented
by our External Auditors, by other external inspections or by Peer Review,
and from Internal Audit. Where these reviews have resulted in an
unfavourable conclusion with significant risk attached this has been taken
forward by inclusion in the Key Issues of Financial Governance report which
is presented to all meetings of the Audit Committee.

●

The Governance Statement that is presented here has been compiled by the
Head of Finance & Resources (S151 Officer) and the Monitoring Officer and
has been commented on by senior Council Officers.

●

The contents of the Governance Statement have been agreed with the
Senior Management team.

●

Portfolio Members of the Cabinet have been provided with the opportunity to
comment.

●

The statement was agreed by the Council’s Audit and Corporate Governance
Scrutiny Committee at its meeting of 22 September 2021.

Page 385

In the light of the above we consider that it is reasonable to request that you sign the
attached Governance Statement. We are satisfied that the contents of the
Governance Statement are supported from the evidence collected within the
Assurance Statement, and is in line with the issues identified in the Key Issues of
Financial Governance Statement. Furthermore, we believe that the Statement has
been appropriately prepared by Council officers, and that it has been through a
range of challenge mechanisms which ensure that there is effective corporate
ownership of the Statement.

Councillor Martin Thacker MBE
Chair of the Audit and Corporate Governance Scrutiny Committee

Jayne Dethick
Chief Financial Officer

Sarah Sternberg
Monitoring Officer
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Agenda Item 8b
North East Derbyshire District Council
Audit and Corporate Governance Scrutiny Committee
28 July 2021
Committee Work Programme 2021/2022
Report of the Joint Head of Corporate Governance and Monitoring Officer
Classification:

This report is public

Report By:

Nicola Calver – 01246 217753

Contact Officer:

As above

PURPOSE / SUMMARY
To enable the Audit and Corporate Governance Scrutiny Committee to review the
Work Programme for the remainder of the municipal year 2021/2022.

RECOMMENDATIONS
1. That the Committee notes and approves the Audit and Corporate Governance
Scrutiny Work Programme for the remainder of the 2021/2022 municipal year
as set out in the attached Appendix 1.
Approved by the Portfolio Holder
IMPLICATIONS
Finance and Risk:
Details:

Yes☒

No ☐

Risk - the development of a Work Programme for the Audit and Corporate
Governance Scrutiny Committee will provide an appropriate structure to assist and
support the Committee’s work. This will help to ensure that the Committee continues
to operate effectively and that the Council’s governance/scrutiny and accountability
arrangements remain robust. The Programme is designed to allow the Audit and
Corporate Governance Scrutiny Committee to continue its flexible approach to its
and consider work the range of matters which are within its remit. There are no
financial issues arising from the report.
On Behalf of the Section 151 Officer
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Legal (including Data Protection):
Details:

No ☒

Yes☐

There are no legal issues or Data Protection matters arising directly from this report.
On Behalf of the Solicitor to the Council

Staffing:
Details:

Yes☐

No ☒

There are no staffing issues arising from the report.
On behalf of the Head of Paid Service

DECISION INFORMATION
Decision Information
Is the decision a Key Decision?
No
A Key Decision is an executive decision which has a
significant impact on two or more District wards or
which results in income or expenditure to the Council
above the following thresholds:
BDC:
Revenue - £75,000 ☐ Capital - £150,000 ☒
NEDDC:
Revenue - £100,000 ☐ Capital - £250,000 ☐
☒ Please indicate which threshold applies
Is the decision subject to Call-In?
(Only Key Decisions are subject to Call-In)

No

District Wards Significantly Affected

None

Consultation:
Leader / Deputy Leader ☐ Cabinet / Executive ☐
SAMT ☐
Relevant Service Manager ☐
Members ☒ Public ☐ Other ☐

Yes
Details:
Members of the Audit and
Corporate Governance
Scrutiny Committee
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Links to Council Ambition (BDC)/Council Plan (NED) priorities or Policy
Framework including Climate Change, Equalities, and Economics and Health
implications.
None.

REPORT DETAILS
1

Background (reasons for bringing the report)

1.1

The Audit and Corporate Governance Scrutiny Committee considers a range of
financial and governance issues on a regular basis. Given the number of
matters that are examined by the Committee it is appropriate that an Annual
Work Programme continues to be in place.

1.2

The Work Programme is set out in the attached Appendix 1. It should be
recognised that the work plan is a live document to which matters may be added
or removed as appropriate and approved by the Committee, including standing
items.

1.3

The Work Programme enables Members to give structured consideration as to
whether the proposed agenda items are appropriate and serve to meet the
objectives of the Committee. That question needs to be considered in the light
of the Council’s Constitution, Chartered Institute of Public Finance and
Accountancy (CIPFA) Guidance on the role of an Audit Committee and
established good practice.

2.

Details of Proposal or Information

2.1 To enable the Audit and Corporate Governance Scrutiny Committee to review
the Work Programme for the remainder of the municipal year 2021/22.
3

Reasons for Recommendation

3.1

To enable the Committee to consider the Work Programme for the remainder
of the 2021/22 municipal year.

4

Alternative Options and Reasons for Rejection

4.1

There are no other options proposed.

DOCUMENT INFORMATION
Appendix No

Title

1

Committee Work Programme 2021/22

Background Papers (These are unpublished works which have been relied on to a
material extent when preparing the report. They must be listed in the section below.
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If the report is going to Cabinet (NEDDC) or Executive (BDC) you must provide
copies of the background papers)
Click here to enter text.
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Appendix 1
AUDIT AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE: PROPOSED
WORK PROGRAMME
DATE OF MEETING

ITEM



22 September 2021
















03 November 2021












12 January 2022





Summary of Internal Audit Reports
Monitoring the Implementation of Internal Audit
Recommendations
Performance Management
Corporate Debt
Financial Monitoring
Internal Audit Consortium Annual Report
External Review of Internal Audit
Annual Statement of Accounts and Going Concern
Report 2020-21
Annual Governance Statement and Code of Corporate
Governance 2020/21
Audit Completion Report 2020/21
Letter of Representation 2020/21
Risk Management
Report of the External Auditor – Progress report and
Technical Update
Review of Work Programme

Summary of Internal Audit Reports
Monitoring the Implementation of Internal Audit
Recommendations
Performance Management
Risk Management
Safeguarding (Risk Management)
Corporate Debt
Financial Monitoring
Benchmarking
Investment Strategy
Report of the External Auditor – Progress report and
Technical Update
Evaluate the Effectiveness of the Audit and Corporate
Governance Committee
Overpaid Housing Benefit
Review of Work Programme
Medium Term Financial Plan 2021/22 - 2024/25
Treasury Management Strategies 2021/22 – 2024/25
Summary of Internal Audit Reports
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23 February 2022













11 May 2022













Monitoring the Implementation of Internal Audit
Recommendations
Performance Management
Risk Management
Corporate Debt
Financial Monitoring
Action Plan on Projected Budget Shortfall
Report of the External Auditor – Progress report and
Technical Update
Review of Work Programme

Summary of Progress on the Annual Internal Audit Plan
Monitoring the Implementation of Internal Audit
Recommendations
Fighting Fraud and Corruption Locally
Report of the External Auditor – Progress report and
Technical Update
Performance Management
Financial Monitoring
Corporate Debt
Proposed Accounting Policies 2021/22
Review of Work Programme
Risk Management
Report of the External Auditor – Progress report and
Technical Update
Annual Review of Effectiveness of Internal Audit
Summary of Progress on the Annual Internal Audit Plan
Monitoring the Implementation of Internal Audit
Recommendations
Report of the External Auditor – Audit Plan 2022/23
Report of the External Auditor – Progress report and
Technical Update
Internal Audit Plan 2022/23
Performance Management
Risk Management
Financial Monitoring
Corporate Debt
Work Programme
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